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CONG BO THONG TIN BAT THUONG
EXTRAORDINARY INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Kinh giti: S& Giao dich Ching kho4n thanh phd Ha Noi
To: Hanoi Stock Exchange

1. Tén t6 chire: CONG TY CO PHAN VSC GREEN LOGISTICS
Name of organization: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
- Ma chimg khoan/Ma thanh vién/ Stock code/ Broker code: GIC
- Dia chi: L6 CC2 - Khu cong nghiép MP Dinh Vi, Phuong Pong Hai, Thanh phd Hai Phong,
Viét Nam
Address: Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam
- Dién thoai lién hé/Tel: 0225 283 8666 Fax: 0225 2838898
- E-mail: fgd@greenicd.com.vn
2. N6i dung thong tin cong bb/Contents of disclosure:
Cong ty ¢b phan VSC Green Logistics cong bd thong tin Thong béo Phét hanh ¢ phiéu
dé tra c6 tirc va Chao ban c¢b phidu ra cong chiing va cac vin ban kém theo,
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company announces the Notice Regarding the stock
issuance for dividend payment and Public offering of shares and related documents.
3. Thong tin nay da dugc cong bo trén trang thong tin dién tir cua cong ty vao ngay 11/02/2026
tai dudng din www.greenicd.com.vn.
This information was disclosed on the Company’s website on February 11th, 2026, at the

Jollowing link: www.greenicd com.vn.

Chung t6i xin cam két cac thong tin cong bb trén day la dung su that va hoan toan chiu trach
nhiém trude phap lut vé ndi dung céc thong tin di cong bd.

We pledge that the information disclosed above is true and accurate, and we shall be Sfully
responsible before the law for the contents of the disclosed information.

Tai liéu dinh kém/Attached Dai dién t6 chirc
documents: Organization representative

- Thong bao Phat hanh cb phiéu Ngwoi dai dién theo phap luat
dé tra ¢d tirc va cc vin ban kém Legal representative
theo.
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VSC GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 07/2026/TB-GIC Hai Phong, February 10, 2026

NOTICE

Regarding the stock issuance for dividend payment and Public offering of shares

(Public Olffering Registration Certificate No. 33/GCN-UBCK issued by the Chairperson of the State
Securities Commission on January 30, 2026)

I. Introduction of the Issuer
1 Name of Issuer: VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company.
2. Abbreviation: GIC

3. Head office address: Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam

4. Telephone: (84-225) 2838 666 | Fax: (84-225) 2838 689 | Website: www.greenicd.com.vn
5. Charter capital: VND 121,200,000,000.
6. Stock symbol: GIC

7. Place of opening payment account: Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Eximbank)
— Hai Phong Branch. Account number: 12118888

8. Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0201768923, first issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of Hai Phong City on January 24, 2017; 4th amendment on March 13, 2025, issued by the
Department of Finance.

- Primary business line: Other support activities related to transportation. Industry code: 5229

- Main products/services: Providing shipping agency services, sea freight forwarding agencies,
warehouse operations such as stevedoring, storage, preservation, repair, and cleaning of containers.

9. Establishment and Operation License: None
II. Purpose of the Offering

- Stock issuance for 2024 dividend payment;;

- Supplementing working capital and investing in the purchase of additional workshops, warehouses,
machinery, equipment, and means of transport to serve production and business activities.

II1. Offering Plan

A. Stock issuance for 2024 dividend payment

1. Name of stock: Stock of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company

2. Type of stock: Common stock

3. Total number of issued shares: 12,120,000 shares.

4. Number of outstanding shares: 12,120,000 shares.

5. Number of treasury shares: 0 shares.

6. Number of shares expected to be issued: 1,212,000 shares.

7. Total issuance value at par value: VND 12,120,000,000.

8. Right exercise ratio: 10:1 (A shareholder owning 10 shares will receive 01 new share)
9. Capital source for issuance: Undistributed post-tax profit according to GIC's 2024 audited Financial
Statements.



10. Plan for handling fractional shares: Shares issued for dividend payment will be rounded down to
the nearest whole unit. Fractional shares (if any) will be cancelled.

11. Last registration date for right allocation: March 03, 2026
B. Public offering of additional shares to existing shareholders

1. Name of stock: Stock of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
2. Type of stock: Common stock

3. Number of shares offered: 12,120,000 shares, in which:

o Number of shares offered by the Issuer: 12,120,000 shares;
Number of shares offered by shareholders/owners/members: 0 shares.
Offering price: VND 10,000/share.

Total mobilized capital value: VND 121,200,000,000, in which:
Value of capital mobilized by the Issuer: VND 121,200,000,000;
Value of capital mobilized by shareholders/owners/members: VND 0.
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. Distribution method: Offering additional shares to existing shareholders via the exercise of
purchase rights.

Minimum registration quantity: Not specified.

Time for receiving purchase registration: From March 09, 2026, to April 15, 2026.

S

Place for receiving purchase registration:
For shareholders who have deposited their shares at depository members: Shareholders who have

O

opened accounts and deposited shares at a specific depository member shall register to exercise
their rights at that depository member.

o For shareholders who have not yet deposited their shares: Registration for purchase and transfer of
purchase rights shall be conducted at the Head Office of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company (Address: Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City).

10. Time for receiving payment for shares: From March 09, 2026, to April 15, 2026. ==
.. 1.0

11. Escrow account for receiving share purchase payment: */—\775
o Account number: 100303950 ?Nig\i\:
o Opened at: Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Eximbank) — Hai Phong g gREE'

Branch. J)GISTIC
12. Related organizations (Underwriter/Lead Underwriter, Consulting Organization...): —
o Consulting Organization: =

VIX Securities Joint Stock Company ,
Address: 22nd Floor, No. 52 Le Dai Hanh Street, Hai Ba Trung Ward, Hanoi.
Telephone: (84-24) 4456 8888 | Website: http.//vixs.vn/

o Auditing Organization:
PWC (VIETNAM) LIMITED
Address: Address: No. 29, Le Duan Street, Sai Gon Ward, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Telephone: (+84 28) 3823 0796 | Website: www.pwe.com/vn

13. Last registration date for right exercise: March 03, 2026.

14. Place for Prospectus announcement:

o VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
Address: Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam.
Telephone: (84-225) 2838 666 | Website: www.greenicd.com.vn

o VIX Securities Joint Stock Company




Address: 22nd Floor, No. 52 Le Dai Hanh Street, Hai Ba Trung Ward, Hanoi.
Telephone: (84-24) 4456 8888 | Website: http://vixs.vn/
This notification supersedes Notification No. 05/2026/TB-GIC dated February 3, 2026
Hai Phong, February 10, 2026
VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Legal Representative

(Signature, full name, and seal)




THE STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION’S GRANT OF THE CERTIFICATE OF
REGISTRATION FOR PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIESONLY MEANS THAT
THE REGISTRATION OF THE PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIES HAS BEEN
CARRIED OUT INACCORDANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWSAND DOESNOT
IMPLY ANY GUARANTEE OF THE VALUE OF THE COMPANY OR THE VALUE
OF THE SECURITIES. ANY STATEMENT TO THE CONTRARY ISILLEGAL.

PROSPECTUS

[}

LOGISTICS

VSC GREEN LOGISTICSJOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0201768923 first issued by the Hai Phong Department of
Planning and Investment on January 24, 2017, 4th amendment dated March 13, 2025 issued by the
Department of Finance)

PUBLIC OFFERING OF ADDITIONAL SHARES

(Certificate of Public Offering Registration No 33/GCN-UBCK issued by the Chairman of the
Sate Securities Commission on 30 month 01 year 2026)

This Prospectus and supplementary documents will be provided at the following address from
date: ...

ISSUING ORGANIZATION
VSC GREEN LOGISTICSJOINT STOCK COMPANY

Head Office: Lot CC2 — MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City
Tel: (0225) 2838666 Fax: (0225) 2838689
Website: www.greenicd.com.vn

Person in charge of information disclosure:
Mr. Dong Trung Hai Title: Director
Tel: (0225) 2838666



http://www.greenicd.com.vn/

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

(Enterprise Registration Certificate No. 0201768923 first issued by the Hai Phong Department of
Planning and Investment on January 24, 2017, 4th amendment dated March 13, 2025 issued by the

Department of Finance)
PUBLIC OFFERING OF ADDITIONAL SHARES
Share name: Shares of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
Share type: Ordinary shares
Par value: VND 10,000/share
Offering price: VND 10,000/share
Total number of shares offered: 13,332,000 shares

Total value at par value: VND 133,320,000,000 (In words: One hundred thirty-three billion,
three hundred twenty million dong)

X/
X4

X/
° L)

X/
X4

L)

X/
X4

L)

X/
X4

L)

X/
°

AUDITOR

% HANOI BRANCH OF PWC (VIETNAM) LIMITED (AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR 2023 AND 2024)

Head Office: Floor 16, Keangnam Hanoi Landmark Tower, Lot E6, Cau Giay New Urban Area,
Y en Hoa Ward, Hanoi, Vietnam

Tel:  (84-24) 3946 2246 Fax:

Website: WWW.pwc.com/vn

ISSUING ADVISORY ORGANIZATION

% VIX SECURITIESJOINT STOCK COMPANY

Head Office: 22nd Floor, 52 Le Dai Hanh Street, Hai Ba Trung Ward, Hanoi City
Tel:  (84-24) 4456 8888 Fax: (84-24) 3978 5380

Website: https.//vixs.vn



http://www.pwc.com/
https://vixs.vn/
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PERSONS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONTENT OF THE
PROSPECTUS

1. I ssuing Organization
VSC GREEN LOGISTICSJOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mr.: Nguyén e Diing Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors
Mr.: Bong Trung Hai Title: Director
Mrs.: Nguyén Thi Thu Hang Titl: Chief Accountant

We hereby ensure that the information and data in this Prospectus are accurate and truthful
and commit to taking responsibility for the truthfulness and accuracy of such information and data.
Within the scope of our responsibility and knowledge, we ensure that there are no misleading or
omitted facts that may materially affect the information contained in this Prospectus.

2. Advisory Organization
VIX SECURITIESJOINT STOCK COMPANY
Legal Representative: Mr. Truong Ngoc Lan
Title: Chief Executive Officer

This Prospectus is part of the dossier for registration of the public offering of additional
shares prepared with the participation of VIX Securities Joint Stock Company under Contract No.
1102/2025/HDTVPH/GIC-VIX dated March 14, 2025 with VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company. Within the scope of responsibility and information available, we ensure that the analysis,
evaluation and wording in this Prospectus have been conducted in a reasonable and prudent manner
based on the information and data provided by VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company.

. RISK FACTORS

Risk refersto the possibility of adverse or undesirable events occurring, causing fluctuations
or losses to the Company’s business performance and/or share price. Risks may arise from external
factors such as economic conditions, legal environment, unusual risks from natural disasters,
epidemics, etc., aswell as from internal subjective factors of the Company.

The main business activities of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company (“GIC”) are
container yard operations and the provision of related services such as storage and container repair.
GIC’s business operations may be affected by the following risks:

1. Economic Risks
11 Economic Growth

Macroeconomic fluctuations may affect the business operations of enterprises across most
industries in general and GIC in particular. A vibrant economy with positive growth creates a
favorable environment and provides enterprises with more opportunities for development, and vice
versa. For companies operating in the seaport and logistics sector such as GIC, growth in trade and
import—export activities directly affects cargo throughput at ports and container yards, thereby
having a profound impact on the Company’s business performance.

In 2024, Vietnam’s economy experienced many positive developments compared to the
previous year. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in 2024 reached USD 476.3 billion, representing
5




growth of 7.09% compared to 2023. GDP growth in 2024 returned to a level nearly equivalent to
the 2018-2019 pre-COVID-19 period and was the second highest growth rate in the most recent
five-year period (2020-2024), lower only than the growth recorded in 2022 when the economy
rebounded from a low base caused by the pandemic. During 2024, the Purchasing Managers’ Index
(PMI) remained above the 50 threshold for 9 out of 12 months, indicating that although the economy
had not fully overcome difficulties, production activities had gradually shown asignificant recovery
compared to 2023. The Index of Industrial Production (11P) increased by 8.4% year-on-year, driven
by the manufacturing and processing and construction sectors. Total retail sales of goods and
consumer service revenue at current prices nationwide were estimated at VND 6,391 trillion, up
9.0% compared to the previous year; excluding inflation factors, real growth reached 5.9%, down
0.9 percentage points from the 6.8% recorded in 2023 due to slower growth in the retail goods
segment. Import and export activities were a highlight of the economy with double-digit growth,
which helped the transportation and warehousing sector achieve an impressive growth rate of
10.82%, contributing 0.68 percentage points to the overall growth rate of total value added of the
economy in 2024.

Chart 1: Vietnam’s GDP Growth Rate

Unit: % compared to the same period of the previous year
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Source: General Satistics Office

In 2025, national GDP growth was estimated at 8.02% compared to 2024, second only to
the growth rate recorded in 2022 during the 2011-2025 period. Of the overall increase in the
economy, the agriculture, forestry and fishery sector grew by 3.78%, contributing 5.30%; the
industry and construction sector grew by 8.95%, contributing 43.62%; and the services sector grew
by 8.62%, contributing 51.08%. Within the industry and construction sector, industrial production
recorded the highest growth rate since 2019. The Index of Industrial Production (I11P) in 2025 saw
breakthrough growth compared to the same period, reaching 9.2%. The added value of the industrial
sector in 2025 was estimated to increase by 8.80% year-on-year, contributing 35.15% to the overall
growth rate of total value added of the economy. Within the services sector, key contributing
industries included: wholesale and retail trade, which increased by 8.52% compared to the previous
year, contributing 10.62% to GDP growth; transportation and warehousing, up 10.99%, contributing
8.69%; and financial, banking and insurance activities, up 7.82%, contributing 5.72%. Import—
export activities continued their growth momentum, with export turnover increasing by 17.0% and
import turnover rising by 19.4% compared to 2024.
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In 2026, the economic growth target assigned by the National Assembly is 10% or higher.
The logistics, transportation and warehousing sectors are expected to benefit directly from the
expansion of domestic trade and import—export activities. Conversely, slower overall economic
growth would adversely affect trade flows and the seaport and logistics sector.

1.2 Inflation

Inflation risk arises when the general price level of goods and services in the economy
increases continuously, leading to reduced purchasing power and currency depreciation. Inflation
is commonly measured by core inflation, the Consumer Price Index (CPl), and the Producer Price
Index (PPI).

Inflation typically exists alongside economic growth. Most studies and viewpoints indicate
that when inflation remains at a low and controlled level, it may have a positive or neutral impact
on economic growth; however, high inflation will certainly have negative effects. Excessive
inflation can reduce aggregate demand due to tightened spending behavior. For enterprises, inflation
increases input costs such as wages, raw materials, fuel, and services, and may even raise financial
expenses if the State Bank of Vietnam increases interest rates to control inflation.

Chart 2: Vietham Consumer Price Index (CPI)
Unit: % compared to the same period of the previous year
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Inflation developments are most commonly measured by core inflation and the Consumer
Price Index (CPI). Vietnam’s 2025 inflation plan set a relatively prudent target of controlling inflation
at 4.5-5% under Resolution No. 192/2025/QH15 dated February 19, 2025. In 2025, the State Bank
of Vietnam (SBV) implemented monetary policy in a proactive and flexible manner to control
inflation while supporting economic growth. According to data from the General Statistics Office,
CPI levels throughout 2025 generally remained within the inflation control threshold and were more
stable compared to the previous two years, 2023-2024. On average for 2025, core inflation increased
by 3.21% year-on-year, lower than the average CPI increase of 3.44%. This difference was mainly
due to rising prices of food, foodstuffs, household electricity, and healthcare services, which pushed
up CPI but are excluded from the basket used to calculate core inflation.

For GIC, operating expenses typically account for approximately 88-90% of annual
revenue, with the remainder being relatively small financial expenses as the Company has no
outstanding loans. Key expenses such as staff salaries, commissions, raw materials, and outsourced
services are cost items exposed to inflation risk.
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13 Interest Rates

Interest rate risk arises when interest rates fluctuate, directly affecting a company’s financial
income or expenses. The level of impact varies across industries and enterprises depending on their
capital and asset structures. Companies with high leverage are more vulnerable when interest ratesrise
due to increased borrowing costs eroding profits. Conversely, companies with significant financial
investments and large bank deposits may benefit from higher interest income.

In the first nine months of 2025, bank interest rates remained relatively stable and were
maintained at low levels compared to the peak interest rate period in 2023, with 12-month deposit
rates a most banks mainly ranging from approximately 5.5% to 6% per year. In Q4/2025, interest
rates showed a slight upward trend among joint-sock commercial banks, while state-owned
commercial banks largely kept their rates unchanged compared to the previous quarter. The slight
increase in interest rates during Q4/2025 followed seasonal patterns due to higher year-end capital
demand. Credit growth recovery was the main driver supporting interest rate increases, while the
appreciation of the USD/VND exchange rate also exerted pressure on interest rates to stabilize the
VND.

Chart 3. Average 6-12 Month Deposit Interest Chart 4. Average Lending Interest Rates for
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Currently, GIC does not utilize borrowings and does not incur interest expenses. Therefore,
for GIC, interest rate risk is minimal or negligible.

1.4  Exchange Rates
Fluctuations in exchange rates may affect the Company’s revenue if service prices provided
to foreign customers are denominated in USD. Onthe input side, fuel pricesand the cost of imported
machinery are also affected by exchange rate movements. Therefore, exchange rates may impact
the Company’s inputs, outputs, and investment activities.
Chart 5. USD/VND Exchange Rate M ovements During 2023-2025
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The USD/VND exchange rate increased significantly in 2024 and continued rising in 2025.
The average central exchange rate in 2024 was estimated to have increased by 1.4% compared to
the previous year, while the average free-market selling rate rose sharply by 6.7% year-on-year,
reaching a historic level of approximately 25,500. In 2025, the USD/VND exchange rate continued
its upward trend, with the central rate a the end of December 2025 estimated to have risen by about
3.2% compared to the same period in 2024, while the free-market rate exceeded 26,300. The sharp
increase in the exchange rate in 2025 was mainly attributable to domestic factors, including the
State Treasury’s purchases of USD from commercial banks, particularly in the first six months of
the year, which tightened foreign currency supply, while domestic enterprises maintained strong
foreign currency demand to serve import activities. In 2025, the trade balance of the domestic
enterprise sector recorded a trade deficit of USD 29.43 billion. In addition, the SBV’s monetary
easing policy in 2025 and the decline in VND interbank interest rates caused the VND-USD interest
rate differential to turn sharply negative, adding further pressure on the exchange rate.

For GIC, the Company only provides container lifting and repair services within Vietnam,
does not engage in export activities, and currently has no loans or investments denominated in
foreign currencies. Therefore, the Company’s current business operations are not directly affected
by exchange rate risk.

2. Legal Risks

Asajoint stock company, the operations of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company are
governed by the legal framework, including the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, and
other relevant laws, decrees, and guiding circulars.

Vietnam isadeveloping country with an economy undergoing rapid growth and increasingly
deep integration into the global economy. During this accelerated development phase, the legal
framework continues to be developed and refined to keep pace with socio-economic changes,
making policy amendments and adjustments unavoidable. In the seaport and logistics sector in
particular, recent years have seen significant legal and policy changes, including regulations on
transport route management, service pricing management, and policies promoting infrastructure
investment.

Any changes in, or interpretations and guidance regarding, applicable laws may lead to
unforeseen impacts on the Company’s business operations if timely adaptation and adjustments are
not made. To control legal risks, VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company continuously monitors
and studies changesin legal regulationsrelevant to its business activities and formulates appropriate
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business development plans accordingly. At the same time, the Company establishes and maintains
a standardized internal governance system in compliance with legal requirements and seeks advice
from external consultants on legal matters beyond its internal capacity.

Given the relative stability of the legal environment and GIC’s strict compliance with
general legal regulations as well as specific industry requirements, legal risk is not considered a
significant risk for the Company.

3. Specific Risks
3.1. Risksfrom Significant Fluctuationsin Import—Export Activities

I mport—export cargo accounts for approximately 85-90% of the total cargo volume passing
through the Hai Phong port area, with the remainder consisting of domestic waterway cargo.
Vietnam’s import—export trade activities therefore have amajor and direct impact on the Company’s
business performance.

Chart 6: Vietnam’s Import—Export Turnover 2024-2025 (USD billion)

® Xuit khau = Nhap khiu

E /

“ “ “ “ “ “ “ “ “ “ “
b&
\Q

50
45
4
3
3
2
2
1
1

o o1 O o1 O o1 O 01 O

@P‘ @P‘ @P‘ @P‘

b‘
& \\\,\,\000 N4 G%th)@?@ijéj@i)b@@?@?r@%%,&%
&@@&b‘«‘?&b&“&%@&

\WW\W

f\, V707 (v AN

Source: General Satistics Office

I mport—export activities in 2025 remained a bright spot in the economy with strong growth
momentum. Cumulatively for the full year 2025, total export turnover reached USD 475.04 billion,
up 17.0% compared to 2024, mainly driven by processed industrial goods; total import turnover
reached USD 455.01 billion, up 19.4% year-on-year, of which production materials accounted for
93.6% of total import value. The merchandise trade balance recorded a surplus of USD 20.03
billion, making an important contribution to macroeconomic stability, foreign currency supply, and
the strengthening of national foreign exchange reserves. In terms of markets, the United States
remained Vietnam’s largest export market, accounting for 32% of total export turnover in 2025.

Unexpected risks arising from tariff tensions between the United States and other countries may
negatively affect import—export activities. In early April 2025, the U.S. President announced a new
tariff policy under which the United States would impose a baseline tariff of 10% on imports from
all countries and territories worldwide starting April 5, 2025, and apply varying reciprocal tariff
rates to each trading partner from April 9, 2025. As of the end of Q3/2025, the export tariff rate
applied to Vietnamese goods entering the U.S. market stood at 20%. Industries with a high
proportion of exportsto the U.S. may be significantly affected by changesin trade and tariff policies,
such as seafood (especially pangasius), textiles and garments, footwear, construction stone and
wood products, and electronic components. Strong retaliatory measures by China in response to
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U.S. tariff policies may further complicate the global economic situation and supply chain shiftsin
2025. U.S. trade protection and tariff policies aimed at preventing Chinese goods from being
imported into athird country and then re-exported to the U.S. may alter global and regional supply
chains as well as container shipping activities.

Although Vietnam’s import—export turnover and FDI attraction in 2025 recorded relatively positive
growth, import—export activities may still face objective risks in the coming period due to global
trade tensions, trade defense measures, or geopolitical instability affecting supply chains.

3.2. Risksfrom Fuel Price Fluctuations

Fuel costs account for a significant proportion of the Company’s total operating expenses.
For enterprises operating port yards, the main fuels are typically diesel and electricity; therefore,
fluctuations in oil and electricity prices may pose risks to the Company’s business operations.
Electricity prices are regulated by the State. The minimum interval between adjustments of the
average retail electricity price is three months from the most recent adjustment. Vietnam Electricity
(EVN) prepares pricing plans and reports them to the Ministry of Industry and Trade for review and
comments. During the 2015-2019 period, electricity prices were adjusted on average twice per year.
From 2019 to 2022, electricity prices were kept unchanged to support the economy during and after the
pandemic. From 2023 to 2024, retail electricity prices were increased three times with a total increase
of approximately 11.7%. EVN’s business performance returned to profitability in the last six months of
2024. While coal and fuel oil prices have declined, exchange rate pressures may till increase electricity
production cogts. Electricity prices are expected to rise by approximately 4-6% in the coming year.
Chart 7: Global Oil Price Movements 2020-2025 (Brent Crude Oil, USD/barrel)
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Global oil prices are influenced by various complex and multidirectional factors, including
geopolitical developments and supply—demand dynamics among major economies. In 2025, global
oil prices generally maintained a downward trend, with crude oil prices at the end of 2025 falling
below USD 60 per barrel. Oil prices may continue to weaken and remain at low levels in the early
months of 2026 due to weak demand and oversupply. However, historical oil price movements
show that prices can fluctuate sharply due to unusual political or economic factors, posing non-
negligible risks to businesses in general and those in the seaport and logistics chain in particular.
3.3. Technology Change Risks
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With its core business of providing container lifting, storage, repair, and transportation
services, a large proportion of GIC’s fixed asset value consists of warehouse infrastructure, transport
vehicles, and large-scale lifting equipment. These assets require substantial investment, have long
useful lives, and are not subject to rapid technological change. Therefore, technology change risk
for the Company is considered low.

34. Competitive Risks

During the 2025-2026 period, competitive pressure within port clusters in the Hai Phong
area is expected to increase. Total container port capacity is projected to rise by 34% as new ports
commence operations, especially in the downstream Cam River area: Lach Huyen deep-water port
berths 3-4 operated by PHP (maximum capacity of 1.1 million TEUSyear, operational from
Q1/2025), Lach Huyen deep-water port berths 5-6 operated by Hateco (capacity of 1 million
TEUS/year, operational from Q1/2025), and Nam Dinh Vu Port Phase 3 operated by GMD (capacity
of 650,000 TEUS/year, expected to commence operations from 2026). Midstream ports such as VIP
Green may face pressure from cargo shifting to downstream ports. In addition, Hai Phong ports also
face competition from other major regional ports such as the Quang Ninh port cluster.

The rapid increase in supply in the short and medium term will create competitive pressure
on service pricing and service quality, requiring the Company to remain flexible, innovative, and
adaptive in order to mitigate the impacts of competitive risks.

4, Offering Risks
4.1. Risk of Failureto Fully Distribute the Offered Shares

In the public offering of additional shares to existing shareholders, VSC Green Logistics
Joint Stock Company plans to offer 12,120,000 shares (at a 1:1 ratio) at an expected offering price
of VND 10,000 per share.

The offering takes place amid significant fluctuations in both domestic and international
economic conditions, which also affect the stock market. In the event of unfavorable stock market
developments, there is arisk that shareholders may not fully exercise their rights to purchase the
additional shares. In such acase, any unsubscribed shares will be authorized by the General Meeting
of Shareholdersto be alocated by the Board of Directorsto other investors in accordance with legal
regulations. Although the Company’s plan to issue additional shares to existing shareholders does
not gipulate a minimum subscription success rate, the Company still faces risks associated with the
possibility of under-subscription. In such circumstances, the Company may need to utilize
alternative funding sources, such as borrowings or other forms of capital mobilization, to implement
its business plans.

4.2. RisksRelating to the Use of Proceeds from the Offering

With the objective of strengthening financial capacity and expanding business operations,
the proceeds from the offering are expected to be used by GIC to supplement working capital and
to invest in additional assets serving warehouse yard and transportation operations. The Company’s
capital utilization plan aligns with its development strategy aswell asthe overall development trend
of the industry. However, risks in the use of proceeds may arise from inefficiencies in the business
activities funded by the allocated capital. To mitigate such risks, the Company continuously
evaluates and improves the effectiveness of its investment decisions.
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5. Dilution Risk

After the issuance of shares for dividend payment and the public offering of shares to
existing shareholders for charter capital increase, the number of GIC’s outstanding shares will
increase accordingly, resulting in dilution of GIC shares.

Earningsper Share (EPS) Dilution: Immediately after completion of the issuances, diluted
EPS may decline as profit attributable to shareholdersis distributed over a larger number of shares.
In subsequent financial periods, however, EPS will depend on the efficiency of capital utilization
and the profits generated from the newly raised capital.

Profit after corporate income tax

Formula: EPS = Weighted average number of outstanding shares
during the period

Price Adjustment Dueto Additional Issuance when the Company issues additional shares

to existing shareholders and issues shares for dividend payment, the market price may betechnically

adjusted. If the closing price of GIC shares on the trading day immediately preceding the ex-rights

date is higher than the offering price, the reference price on the ex-rights date will be adjusted
according to the following formula:

Pe+ (Prix 11 + (Prax 12)
Ppl =

1+11+12
Where:
- Ppl: Diluted share price on the ex-rights date
- Pt: GIC share price on the trading day preceding the ex-rights date
- Prl: VND 10,000/share (offering price to entitled shareholders)
- Pr2: VND O/share (stock dividend at zero price)
- 11: Capital increase ratio from the rights offering
- 12: Stock dividend ratio

Assuming the market price of GIC shares on the trading day before the ex-rights date is
VND 15,000/share. After a 1:1 rights offering a¢ VND 10,000/share and a 10% stock dividend
issuance, the diluted share price would be:

15.000 + (10.000x 1) + 0x 0,1

= 11.905 VND/share
1+1+01

6. Corporate Governance Risks
6.1. Corporate Governance Risk

Governance risk may arise from a reduction in key personnel within the management or
organizational structure, which may affect the Company’s operations, or from changes in ownership
structurethat lead to misalignment of interests and responsibilities or inconsistent management and
business viewpoints among leadership. To mitigate general governancerisks, VSC Green Logistics
Joint Stock Company complies with corporate governance regulations stipulated in current laws,
including the Law on Enterprises, the Law on Securities, and relevant guiding documents.
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Regarding the capital increase in this offering, the Company’s policy is to offer shares to
existing shareholders. The possibility that existing shareholders may not fully subscribe to the
offered shares cannot be ruled out. In such a case, the remaining shares will be allocated to other
investors as decided by the Board of Directors under appropriate conditions. To mitigate governance
risks, if shares must be distributed to other investors, GIC will seek investors who share a common
strategic vision and business orientation to enable long-term cooperation and mutual development.
6.2. Management Mechanism Risk

The Company’s current management mechanism has been developed in line with its existing
charter capital scale and current business lines. The Company plans to increase capital to expand
operations within its existing business sectors. In recent years, GIC has continuously improved its
management capacity and developed a professional workforce to meet its new strategic and
operational scale. The Company assesses management mechanism risk as low.

7. Other Risks

In addition to the risks described above, the Company’s business operations may be affected
by other force majeure risks such as war, natural disasters, or large-scale epidemics. These risks
may cause damage to people or assets, reduce customer demand, or destabilize the business
environment.

GIC shares are listed and traded on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX); therefore, the share
price of GIC may be affected by fluctuations in both domestic and international stock markets.

DEFINITIONSAND ABBREVIATIONS
The abbreviations used in this Prospectus shall have the following meanings:

SSC

State Securities Commission of Vietnam

HOSE Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
HNX Hanoi Stock Exchange
VSDC VN Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation

I ssuing Organization

/ Company V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
GIC V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
GMS General Meeting of Shareholders

BOD Board of Directors

BOS Board of Supervisors

Stock Market Securities market

DPI Department of Planning and Investment
JSC Joint Stock Company

FS Financial Statements

Business Operations

Production and business activities
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Employees Officers and employees

Charter Capital Charter capital

Unit Unit of measurement

VND Vietnam Dong

TEU Twenty-foot Equivalent Unit (standard container

measuring 20ft x 8ft x 8.5ft = 6.1m x 2.5m x 2.6m)

Other terms (if any) shall be construed in accordance with the Law on Enterprises No.
59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated
November 26, 2019, and other relevant legal documents.

SITUATION AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE ISSUING ORGANIZATION
General Information about the Issuing Organization

Full name: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Abbreviated name: GIC

English name: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Enterprise Registration Certificate No.: 0201768923, first issued by the Hai Phong
Department of Planning and Investment on January 24, 2017; 4th amendment registration
dated March 13, 2025 issued by the Department of Finance.

Head office address. Lot CC2 — MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam.

Telephone: (84-225) 2838 666

Charter capital: VND 121,200,000,000 (One hundred twenty-one billion two hundred
million Vietham Dong)

Main business line: Other service activities supporting transportation (Industry Code:
5229)

Main products/services. Provision of shipping agency services, sea freight forwarding
agency services, and warehouse operations such as cargo handling, storage, preservation,
repair, and cleaning of containers.

Legal representative:
Mr. Dong Trung Hai — Director

Stock ticker: GIC
Listing exchange: HNX

Former name: Green Development and Service Investment Joint Stock Company. As of
March 13, 2025, the Company changed its name to VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company.
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2. Summary of Formation and Development History

Table 1: Formation and Development History

Timeline

Activities and Events

2017:

- On January 24, 2017, Green Development and Service Investment Joint

Stock Company was established with an initial charter capital of VND
101,000,000,000, of which Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation contributed VND 67,000,000,000, equivalent to 66.3% of the
charter capital, and the remaining 33.7% was contributed by individual
shareholders. The Company’s main business line is other service activities
supporting transportation.

The Company inherited the entire workforce, technical capabilities,
experience, and long-standing traditional customer relationships from Ben
Xanh One Member Limited Liability Company (awholly owned subsidiary
of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation — Viconship),
operating in the field of depot and warehouse services such as loading and
unloading, storage, preservation, repair, and cleaning of containers. With
traditional shipping line customers and an experienced workforce in depot
and warehouse operations, immediately after the Company’s container yard
construction project was partially completed and put into operation from
July 2017, the Company quickly provided services to customers and
generated profit in its first financial year. The Company has continuously
invested in modern specialized equipment and optimized information
technology systems in the logistics service industry to enhance service
guality, aiming to become a leading logistics depot service provider in the
Hai Phong area.

2018:

To expand business operations, the Company increased its charter capital
from VND 101,000,000,000 to VND 121,200,000,000.

2020:

On April 6, 2020, the Company was approved by the State Securities
Commission of Vietham to become a public company under Official Letter
No. 2268/UBCK-GSDC regarding the public company registration of Green
Development and Service Investment Joint Stock Company.

On June 26, 2020, the Company was granted Securities Registration
Certificate No. 43/2020/GCNCP-VSD by the Vietham Securities
Depository, with atotal registered securities volume of 12,120,000 shares.

On October 22, 2020, the Hanoi Stock Exchange issued Listing Decision
No. 577/Qb-SGDHN approving the listing of shares of Green Development
and Service Investment Joint Stock Company on the Hanoi Stock Exchange.
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Timeline

Activities and Events

On November 6, 2020, the Company’s shares were officially traded under
the ticker symbol GIC.

2021:

The Company paid a cash dividend of 10% of charter capital in accordance
with Resolution No. 01/2022/NQ-DHDPCD of the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders dated March 14, 2022.

2022:

The Company paid a cash dividend of 10% of charter capital in accordance
with Resolution No. 01/2023/NQ-DHDCD of the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders dated April 7, 2023.

2023:

Company paid a cash dividend of 12% of charter capital in accordance with
Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated March 15, 2024.

2024 — 2025:

The Company plans to pay a stock dividend at a ratio of 10% and issue
additional sharesto existing shareholdersto increase charter capital at aratio
of 1:1 in accordance with Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-BDHDCD of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated March 10, 2025.

- On March 13, 2025, the Company officially changed its name to VSC
Green Logigtics Joint Stock Company under Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0201768923 (4th amendment).

3. Organizational Structure of the Company

VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company is organized and operates in accordance with
the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, the Company’s Charter, and other relevant legal documents.

Currently, the Company’s head office is located at: Lot CC2 — MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park,
Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam.

The Company’s parent company is Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation

(holding 66.34% of the Company’s charter capital), a major shareholder is America LLC (holding
6.98% of the Company’s charter capital), and other shareholders hold 26.68%.

The Company has no subsidiaries or affiliated companies.

Table 2: Company Organizational Structure
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Corporate Governance and M anagement Structure

Governance model: The Company adopts the following governance structure: General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS); Board of Directors (BOD); Supervisory Board (SB);
General Director.

Table 3: Corporate Governance Structure Diagram

( PAIHOI DONG
+ L cO PONG

[ BAN KIEM SOAT }
|

hJ

HOI DPONG }

J
| QuiNTH
[

BAN GIAM POC }

e

PHONG PHONG PHONG PHONG
TAI o THIET BI
. THUONG KHAI -
CHINH VU THAC SUA
KE TOAN - CHUA

. S SN

18




Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company

4.1. General Meeting of Shareholders (GMYS)
The GMS is the highest decision-making body of the Company, comprising all voting
shareholders or their authorized representatives. The GMS has the following rights:
- Toamend and supplement the Company Charter;
- To approve the annual audited financial statements, reports of the Supervisory Board
and the Board of Directors, and the Company’s annual business plan;
- To decide on the reorganization or dissolution (liquidation) of the Company and
appoint liquidators;
- To determine the number of members of the Board of Directors,
- Toé€lect, dismiss, or remove members of the BOD and SB;
Other rights as stipulated in the Company Charter.
4.2. Board of Directors (BOD)
% List of BOD members:

- Mr. Nguyén Pric Diing - Chairman of the BOD

- Mr. Bdng Trung Hai - Member of the BOD

- Mr. Nguyén Kim Duong Khoi - Member of the BOD

- Mrs.Tran Thi Phuong Anh - Member of the BOD

- Mr. Lé Quang Huy - Independent Member of the BOD

%+ The BOD currently consists of 05 members. The BOD has full authority to exercise all rights
on behalf of the Company except those under thejurisdiction of the GMS. Itskey rightsinclude:
- Deciding on the Company’s organizational structure;
- Approving medium-term development strategies and annual business plans;
- Supervising and directing the General Director and other managers in daily business
operations;
- Recommending reorganization, dissolution, or bankruptcy of the Company;
- Approving agendas and documents for GMS meetings, convening GMS meetings or
collecting shareholders’ opinions for resolution approval;
Other rights as provided in the Company Charter.
4.3. Board of Supervisors (BOS)

% Ligt of Board of Supervisors members:

- Mrs. Nghiém Thi Thuy Duong - Head of the Board of Supervisors
- Mrs. Phan Thi Trung Hiéu - Member of Board of Supervisors
- Mrs. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc - Member of Board of Supervisors

% The BOS is elected by the GMS and consists of 03 members, representing shareholders in
supervising all management and operational activities of the Company. The BOS isresponsible
to the GMS and the law for the performance of its duties, including:

- Supervising the BOD and General Director in managing and operating the Company;

- Examining the reasonableness, legality, honesty, and prudence in management and
business operations; and reviewing the consistency and appropriateness of accounting,
statistics, and financial reporting;

- Requesting the BOD to convene an extraordinary GMS meeting when necessary;
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Other rights and obligations as stipulated in the Company Charter.

4.4. Board of Management
% List of Executive Officers Board of Management

Mr. Bong Trung Hai - Director
Mr. Bang Quéc Vé Deputy Director

% The Director is the legal representative of the Company, appointed by the BOD, and is
accountable to the law, the BOD, and the GMS for managing and operating all business
activities in line with the strategies approved by the GMS.

% The Deputy Director assists the Director in operating the Company and may be authorized to
oversee specific professional areas, being accountable to the Director and the law for assigned

duties.

% Key duties of the General Director include:

Deciding on matters relating to the Company’s daily business operations not under the
authority of the BOD;

Implementing resolutions of the BOD and GMS, as well as approved business and
investment plans;

Proposing organizational structures and internal management regulations;

Appointing and dismissing managerial positions under his/her authority;

Deciding salaries and benefits for employees, including managers appointed by the
Director;

Recruiting employees,

Proposing dividend distribution plans or loss treatment measures;

Performing other rights and obligations as prescribed by law.

Giam déc chiu trach nhiém trude Hoi ddng quan tri va Pai hoi ddng co dong vé viéc
thie hién nhiém vu va quyén han duoc giao va phai bao cdo cac co quan nay khi duoc
yéu cau.

The Director is accountable to the BOD and GMS for fulfilling assigned rights and duties and
must report when requested. The BOD may dismiss the Director upon approval by at least two-
thirds (2/3) of BOD members (excluding the Director’s vote) and appoint a replacement.

45. Other Departments
% Finance and Accounting Department:

*

Advising the Director on finance-accounting, labor-salary, administration, and
occupeational safety;

Organizing implementation of finance-accounting and labor—salary tasks as assigned,

Coordinating with other departmentsto control revenues and expenses under Company
regulations and contracts;

Fulfilling obligations to tax authorities, social insurance agencies, and other state
authorities;

Preparing management reportsfor the BOD and Management to develop business plans;
Performing other assigned duties.

% Commercial Department:

Develop the Company’s service tariff schedule on a periodic (annual) or ad-hoc basis
in response to changes in fuel prices, materials, and other relevant factors.
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- Advise the Management on negotiating and finalizing service contracts with customers,
as well as contracts for the purchase of goods, fuel, materials, spare parts, and other
services with suppliers.

- Prepareplansand directions, and implement customer care activitiesto maintain service
contractswith existing clientsand to seek new and potential customers, thereby advising
the Management in formulating and executing the Company’s production and business
plans.

- Coordinate with the Operations Department in preparing documents for the handover
and receipt of containers entering and leaving the yard.

- Coordinate with the Operations Department, Equipment & Repair Department, and
Finance & Accounting Department to issue invoices and collect service fees in
accordance with the Company’s tariff schedule or signed contracts.

% Operations Department:

The Operations Department is responsible for organizing and carrying out the following
tasks:

- Plan container stacking areas within the yard in a scientific manner to achieve optimal
container stacking capacity while ensuring occupational safety.

- Receive containers and inspect and assess their condition upon yard entry, including
damage and cleanliness for empty containers; sealing status and accompanying customs
documents for laden containers.

- Perform cleaning of 100% of empty containers entering the yard.

- Arrange appropriate container stacking positions in accordance with the approved yard
plan upon container entry.

- Implement plansto retrieve containers from stacking positions in a safe, time-efficient,
and cost-effective manner, and deliver containers in accordance with customers’
delivery orders for outbound containers; inspect and record the container condition by
images prior to yard exit.

- Manage and operate container transport vehicles safely and efficiently; transport
containers by road in accordance with customer requirements.

- Carry out stuffing of cargo into containers and stripping of cargo from containers as
requested by customers.

- Coordinate with the Equipment & Repair Department (cargo-handling equipment
management unit) to perform lifting and lowering of containers in the yard; coordinate
with the container repair unit to carry out container repair work.

- Coordinate with the Commercial Department to complete procedures for preparing
container handover documents and recording container conditions upon yard entry and
exit.

- Coordinate with the Finance & Accounting Department, Commercial Department, and
Equipment & Repair Department to reconcile settlements, issue invoices, and collect
payments from customers in accordance with the Company’s contracts and tariff
schedules.

% Equipment & Repair Department:

- Manage and operate cargo-handling equipment and other machinery and tools safely

and efficiently to support the Company’s production and business activities.
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5.1

5.2.

5.3.

- Coordinate with the Operations Department and the Commercial Department in
performing container loading and unloading

- Carry out container repair work, installation of hanging equipment inside containers,
and fabrication of new containers in accordance with customer requirements.

- Coordinate with the Commercial Department, Operations Department, and Finance &
Accounting Department to finalize settlements and payments with customers in line
with the Company’s tariff schedules and signed contracts.

Information on the Parent Company, Subsidiaries of the Issuer, Companies Holding
Control or Dominant Shares in the Issuer, and Companies in which the Issuer Holds

Control or Dominant Ownership or Capital Contributions for Two Consecutive Years
Prior to the Offering Registration and Up to the Present:

Parent Company:

Vietnamese name: CONG TY CO PHAN CONTAINER VIET NAM

English name: Vietnam Container Shipping Corporation

Abbreviation: VICONSHIP

Address: No. 11 Vo Thi Sau &, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, VN
Tel: (84-225) 383 6705

S6 fax: (84-225) 383 6104

Website: Www.viconship.com

CEO: Mr. Ta Cong Thong

Charter capital (registered): 3.743.703.620.000 VND
Charter capital (contributed): 3.743.703.620.000 VND

ERC: No. 0200453688 issued by the Hai Phong Department of Planning
and Investment on April 1, 2002, and its subsequent amendments.

Business aresas. Warehousing and storage of goods (Industry code: 5210).

Main products/services: Container agency services, shipping agency and maritime
brokerage; cargo handling services; export trading of forest
products; warehousing and yard services; transportation and
organization of multimodal transport for import—export cargo,
project cargo and transit cargo; trading of petroleum, spare
parts, vehicles and equipment; container repair, fabrication and
leasing; seaport operations; coastal shipping operations; support
services directly related to railway transport; maintenance and
repair of automobiles and other motor vehicles; support services
directly related to inland waterway transport; port operation and
marine services, and barge towing.

Ownership ratio in GIC: 66,34%
Companies holding control or dominant sharesin thelssuer:
None

Subsidiaries and companiesin which the I ssuer has held controlling or dominant
ownership or capital contributionsfor two consecutive yearsprior to the offering
registration and up to the present:
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None

6. Information on Changes in the Company’s Charter Capital
Table 4: GIC’s Charter Capital Increases

Charter
Time of CZE';?I ;rrlgcr)unt Method of
T R o s
(VND billion)
billion)
Initial Enterprise Registration Certificate No.
24/01/2017 101 ] capital 0201768923 first |_$ued by the Ha Phong
contribution Department of Planning & Investment on January
24, 2017
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
No. 01/2018/NQ-DHDCD approving the share
issuance to existing shareholders for charter capital
<h increase;
issiraice o Resolution of the Board of Directors No.
27/12/2018 | 121,2 20,2 existing 08/2018/NQ-HPQT dated August 1, 2018;
shareholders Enterprise I.?egisfration Certificatg No.
0201768923 first issued by the Ha Phong
Department of Planning & Investment on January
24, 2017, amended for the second time on
December 27, 2018
Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company
7. Information on Major Capital Contributions and Divestments of the Company in
Other Enterprises
Number . Total
Ownership | .
Company name of shares ratio (**) investment Notes
owned value (VND)
Quang Binh — Dinh VGl is a subsidiary of Green
Vu Inland Port Joint Logistics Center Co., Ltd. (GLC) —
U Inland Port Joint | 5 aes| 13,3196 | 70.000.000,000 | -O9iStics Center Co., Ld. (GLC) - a
Stock Company member unit of VSC (the Company’s
(VaGl) (*) parent company)

(*) Asof December 31, 2024, the Company had not determined the fair value of thisinvestment for
disclosure in the financial statements because the investment is not publicly listed. Therefore, the
Company made a provision of VND 2,406,257,649 as of December 31, 2024 for the investment in

VGI.

(**) On September 20, 2023, GIC acquired 9.5% of shares in Quang Binh — Dinh Vu Inland Port
Joint Stock Company (Tax code: 0201973263, located in Dinh Vu — Cat Hai Economic Zone, Hai
Phong). On February 26, 2024, the Company increased its ownership in VGI to 13.31%.
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8. Information on Outstanding Securities
8.1. Ordinary Shares
Table 5: Shareholder Structure as of June 30, 2025
Shareholder structure g;rghb(j;g:s Number of shares Owner(izi)p ratio
Domestic 338 10.784.800 88,98%
i.  Individuals 337 2.744.800 22,64%
ii.  Organizations 1 8.040.000 66,34%
Foreign 11 1.335.200 11,02%
i. Individuals 10 489.800 4,04%
ii.  Organizations 1 845.400 6,98%
Economic organizations
with foreign investors 0 0 0
holding morethan 50% of
charter capital
Total 349 12.120.000 100,00%

Source: GIC shareholder list as of June 30, 2025 provided by VSDC.

8.2. Preferred Shares. None
8.3. Other Types of Securities. None
0. Information on Foreign Owner ship Ratio
- The maximum foreign ownership ratio at the Issuer as prescribed in Official Letter No.
658/UBCK-PTTT dated April 1, 2025 of the State Securities Commission is: 49%.
- The maximum foreign ownership ratio a the Issuer as decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and stipulated in the Company’s Charter (if any): None.
- Thecurrent foreign ownership ratio in the Company: 11.02% (based on the shareholder list
as of June 30, 2025 provided by VSDC).
10. Business Operations
10.1. Characterigticsof Busness Operations
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company was established in January 2017 with the
orientation to develop into aleading enterprise in providing the following services:
- Forwarding, storage and preservation services for empty and laden containers
- Stuffing and unstuffing services at the Company’s yard

- Container repair services, installation of hanging equipment inside containers, container
fabrication, etc.

- Inland container transportation services by road
- Leasing of container handling equipment and specialized container transport vehicles
- Other related services

Currently, the Company focuses on two main business segments:
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+ Warehousing, storage and cargo handling services
+ Container repair services
10.1.1 Warehousing, Storage and Cargo Handling Services

With advantages in geographical location and mutual cooperation among logistics member
units under the parent company — Vietnam Container Shipping Corporation, GIC has focused on
developing supporting services for logistics activities, in which container lifting, preservation and
handover services are the main revenue contributors for the Company each year.

Located in Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Hai Phong, adjacent to the Dinh Vu Port system and Lach
Huyen deep-sea port, and directly connected to key expressways such as Hai Phong — Hanoi
Expressway and Hai Phong — Ha Long Expressway, the yard occupies a strategic location for post-
port logistics operations, facilitating logistics and cargo transport services, specifically as follows:
- Area and capacity: With a 10-hectare container yard system in Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Hai

Phong, featuring asphalt-paved surfaces meeting planning standards and optimized container
stacking capacity, the yard can accommodate up to 8,000 containers (8,000 TEUS).

LIRS B S S N e W e L e
Figure 1: GIC Container Yard
- Infrastructure: The Company’s container yard area is designed with separate entry and exit

gates, ensuring convenient and safe traffic flow within the yard. A system of 200 reefer
container sockets serves up to 200 containers simultaneously for inspection and continuous
power supply 24/7 within the yard. A CCTV surveillance system operates 24/7 across the
entire container yard and customer service areas, connected to LED screens at the operations
control center, ensuring security and effective cargo management. An automatic camera
system at both entry and exit gates enhances monitoring of inbound and outbound
containers.

- Equipment: GIC has invested in 03 Reach Stackers with a lifting capacity of 45 tons, 04
empty container Reach Stackers with a lifting capacity of 10 tons; 02 forklifts with lifting
capacities of 5 tons and 10 tons to meet container lifting and movement needs efficiently;
and 09 tractors with accompanying trailers for inland container transportation.

- Operations management: The Company is equipped with the PL-TOL container in/out
management software system and fully digitized handheld devices for all handling stages at

both entry and exit gates. Handheld devices are also used by yard lifting equipment operators
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to promptly update completion status of lifting, lowering and container positioning, and to
report all cargo condition information in real time.

- The Company has developed professional and efficient container handover procedures,
supported by a skilled, experienced and professional workforce, ensuring service quality and
cargo safety. With professional service quality and high labor productivity, the yard handling
capacity exceeds 1,800 TEUSs per day, bringing maximum benefits to customers.

- Container lifting, preservation and handover activities have been standardized into
operational procedures, including: Empty container release procedures and Inter-port
container transfer procedures.

(1) Empty Container Release Procedure
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(2) Inter-Port Empty Container Transfer Procedure
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In order to provide customers with a comprehensive, seamless, and closed-loop service within
the container storage and preservation service chain a the yard, the Company also develops
accompanying services such as inland container transportation, container repair services,
installation of container hanging equipment, container fabrication, container cleaning services, etc.,
to deliver containersto customers in good condition and ready for cargo stuffing.

10.1.2. Container Repair Services

One of the key services at container depots and ports relating to empty containers is accurate
condition inspection and the provision of appropriate repair solutions. | SO-standard containers help
accelerate cargo circulation, reduce congestion at ports, and ensure cargo is transported safely. Each
container shipping line is responsible for providing customers and shippers with standard, intact
empty containers that are suitable for cargo stuffing and transportation. Container units are stored
by shipping lines at depots and seaports worldwide where they operate.

During the use of containers for cargo stuffing, handling, and transportation, damage to
containers inevitably occurs, and the repair and refurbishment of container shells must comply with
standardized regulations. 11CL (The Ingtitute of International Container Lessors) setsthe standards
for containers and related activities concerning repair, maintenance, and inspection. Accordingly,
VSC Green Logigtics Joint Stock Company provides container inspection and repair services to
ensure container quality and safety before being put into use. To meet the requirementsfor container
ingpection and repair, the Company has invested in modern infrastructure and advanced equipment
along with a professionally trained workforce, specifically:

- Infrastructure: A dedicated repair area of 2,000 m?, including 400 m? of covered space, is
aways ready to serve container repair and maintenance activities 24/7 in all weather
conditions.

- Modern equipment: The Company is equipped with specialized machinery and tools for
container repair, such as 45-ton and 10-ton Reach Stackers, pneumatic hammers, industrial
welding machines, paint spraying machines, etc., aong with the PL-TOSS management
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software to optimize processes and meet international standards for container repair and
maintenance.

Professional workforce: The container inspection and survey team operates 24/7, possessing
professional qualificationstrained in accordancewith 11CL standards and extensive inspection
experience, ensuring high service quality.
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Figure 2: GIC Saff Conducting Container Inspection

Quality inspection in compliance with international standards. Assessing the technical and
structural condition of containers and identifying damage and wear. Inspections are carried
out in accordance with I CL standardsto ensure containers meet international transportation
requirements.

The Company has also procured dedicated software for preparing repair plans and issuing
professional container repair quotations in line with 11CL international standards, enabling
immediate submission of repair plans and quotations as soon as containers enter the yard.

Container Inspection and Repair Process
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In addition, the Company also provides container cleaning services. Containers entering the
yard are immediately moved to the cleaning area for comprehensive cleaning, including cleaning
container wallsand floors, removing cargo securing nails from container floors, removing transport-
related cargo warning labels affixed to containers, etc. After repairs, containers are also cleaned to
ensure they are in good, clean condition and ready for customers to load new cargo.

10.1.3. Report on Environmental and Social | mpacts
- Environmental impacts:

+

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions: As the Company operates in
the depot and yard service sector, total estimated direct and indirect GHG emissions are
a arelatively low level.

GHG emission reduction initiatives and measures: The Company continuously adopts
new technologies and modern equipment in its operations to minimize greenhouse gas
emissions.

- Raw material management:

+

+

The Company’s main business activities are depot operations and maritime-related
services; therefore, the primary materials used in operations include electricity, diesel
fuel, lubricants, and other auxiliary materials and spare parts.

Percentage of recycled input materials used in producing main products and services:
None.

- Energy consumption: The Company consistently focuses on energy consumption efficiency
to support business performance while minimizing environmental impact, including:

+
+

Direct and indirect energy consumption equivalence;
Prioritizing energy-saving solutions through energy efficiency initiatives, such asthe use
of renewable energy (e.g., solar power systems) and clean water solutions,
Water consumption is mainly for office use, yard cleaning, container repair, and cleaning
activities. Percentage and total volume of recycled and reused water: 0%.
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Compliance with environmental laws:
+  Number of violations due to non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations; 0

cases.

+ Tota monetary fines for environmental violations: VND O.
10.1.1 Raw Materialsand Fuel
Sources of raw materials:
+ Asalogistics service provider, fuel costs account for a significant proportion of total
operating expenses. The primary fuels used in GIC’s operations are diesel and other
lubricants. Fuel is supplied by domestic petroleum distributors. The Company signs one-
year contracts, automatically renewable for another year (unless otherwise agreed), with
supply volumes based on actual demand to ensure stable supply and quality while
avoiding inventory stockpiling and waste.
+ Inaddition, the Company uses container repair materials such as steel sheets, structural
steel, and wooden flooring panels sourced from domestic manufacturers. The Company
enters into annual long-term contracts with suppliers that provide full quality
certifications. Materials are supplied based on actual demand to ensure stable quantity,

price, and quality in compliance with IICL international container repair standards.
- Stability of raw material sources: Fuel, materials, and key inputs used in the Company’s
operations are stably supplied within the domestic market, and there is no scarcity risk.

Table 6: Materials, Fuel, and Input Consumption of GIC
for the Years 2023, 2024, and 2025

Unit: Vietnam Dong

2023 2024 2025

No. | Indicator Ratio Ty lé o
Value (%) Value (%) Giatri Value
11.21
1 | Materias 11.218.892.270 | 41,15 | 12.310.593.683 1 Materials 8.892.
270
16.04
2 | Fuel 16.043.460.896 | 58,85 | 12.320.044.198 2 Fuel 3.460.
896
27.26
Total 27.262.353.166 | 100 | 24.630.637.881 | 100 Total 2.353.
166

Source: VSC Green Logigtics Joint Sock Company

Input material prices have a significant impact on the Company’s revenue and profit due to the
industry’s characteristics, where input materials account for a large proportion of the cost structure
and cost of goods sold. The Company proactively develops business plans closely aligned with
actual fuel consumption needs, ensuring operations remain closely tied to customer demand under
signed framework agreements.
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10.1.5. Production Costs

Table 7: GIC’s Production and Business Costs in 2023, 2024 and 2025

Unit: VND million

0,
2023 2024 2025 %
Producti Increase/(Decr ease)
on & % of
Business % of Net % of Net Net
D
Costs Value Revenue Value Revenue Giatri 0%/ DTT Value Revenu
e
Cost of
Goods 102.670 | 59.6% 04283 | 5917% | 87.432 | 56.05% | -817% | -7.27%
Sold
Financial 511 | 0,30% 1.042 | 1.22% 2163 139% | 280,04% | 11,38%
Expenses
Selling
45933 | 26,66% 40237 | 2525% | 45134 | 2894% | -12,40% | 12.17%
Expenses
Genegrd &
aAtﬂ/rg'”'gr 6.747 | 3.92% 6342 | 3,98% 6.413 411% | -6,00% | -1,12%
Expenses
Total 155861 | 90,47% | 142.804| 89,62% | 141.142 | 90,49% | (8,38%) | -1,16%

Source: Audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024 and Q4/2025 financial statements of GIC

Total production and business costs decreased from VND 155.8 billion in 2023 to VND 142.8
billion in 2024 (down 8.38%), mainly due to significant reductions in cost of goods sold and selling
expenses. Cost of goods sold decreased from VND 102.6 billion to VND 94.3 billion (a decrease of
VND 8.3 hillion, equivalent to 8.17%), while selling expenses fell by 12.40% (from VND 45.9
billion in 2023 to VND 40.2 billion). In contrast, financial expenses rose sharply by 280.04%, from
VND 511 million in 2023 to VND 1.94 hillion in 2024. These financial expenses arose from
provisions for impairment of investments in other entities, specifically the Company’s investment
in Quang Binh — Dinh Vu Inland Port Joint Stock Company, with an investment cost of VND 70
billion (representing a 13.31% ownership interest).

In 2025, GIC’s total production and business costs were VND 141.1 billion, slightly
decreasing by 1.16% compared to 2024. Cost of goods sold amounted to VND 87.4 hillion, down
7.27% year-on-year. Selling expenses, the second largest cost component, reached VND 45.1
billion in 2025, up 12.17% compared to the previous year. Financial expenses increased by 11.38%
compared to 2024, mainly due to higher provisions for impairment of investments in other entities.
The Company did not incur any borrowing interest expenses in 2025 as it had no outstanding loans.
General and administrative expenses decreased slightly by 1.12% compared to 2024.

Cost of goods sold consistently accounts for a large proportion of the Company’s total
production and business costs (over 56%). The breakdown of cost of goods sold for the years 2023,
2024, and 2025 is as follows:
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Table 8: Cost of Goods Sold Structure for 2023, 2024 and 2025

Unit: VND million

No. Cost of Goods Sold 2023 2024 2025
1 | Personnel expenses 32.414 30.195 20.722
2 :Xi’ége”als and materials 27.252 27.204 26.081
3 | Outsourced service expenses 25.237 22.269 20.322
4 | Depreciation expenses 17.255 14.379 11.307
5 | Other expenses 513 236 -

Total 102.671 94.283 87.432

Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company

Selling expenses also account for a significant proportion of the Company’s total operating
expenses, representing more than 28% of total operating costs in 2025. These expenses mainly
include shipping line-related expenses and commission expenses, detailed as follows:

Table 9: Selling Expenses Structure for 2023, 2024 and 2025
Unit: VND million

No. Selling Expenses 2023 2024 2025
1 | Shipping line-related expenses 20.363 18.977 21.330
11 | Sustomer incentive expenses 20.363 18.977 21.330
(paid to shipping lines)
o | Commission expenses - third 5.384 3111 1471
parties
g | Commission expenses - refated 18.797 16.687 21.228
parties
4 | Other expenses 1.389 1.462 1.105
Total 45.933 40.237 45.134
Source: VSC Green Logigtics Joint Sock Company
10.1.6 Technology Level

+ Application of Information Technology in Operations

- Tomeet customer demand and improve service quality, the Company hasinvested in software
and IT equipment, applying information technology solutions that enable GIC to provide
online services to customers. These solutions enhance competitiveness within the industry,
optimize yard stacking capacity and storage utilization, reduce operating costs, and improve
professionalism in service quality management as well as overall business efficiency.

- The PL-TOS software system is a specialized container terminal operating system currently
optimized for container yard operations. PL-TOS manages and stores data on container gate-
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in/gate-out activities, container conditions upon entry and exit, yard location, container
inventory levels, and more. The system is integrated with handheld electronic devices and
computers, allowing container data to be entered directly at the gate and automatically
transmitted throughout GIC’s yard operation system. A single data entry at the input stage
provides sufficient information for preparing delivery and receipt documents, issuing
electronic VAT invoices, and processing online bank payments or cash payments at the
customer service department.

- PL-TOS is integrated with the Company’s accounting software, e-invoice service providers,
banks’ online payment systems, and the Customs information portal via the Company’s E-
Depot online platform.

- Through the E-Depot application, customers can conduct online transactions for all GIC
services via the Company’s website, which is connected to banks’ electronic payment
gateways, e-invoice providers, and online delivery and receipt procedures.

- The CRCE software is an application that records container damage conditions based on
inspection results and matches them against International 11CL repair standards embedded in
the system. The output includes repair and replacement plans compliant with 11CL standards,
along with detailed repair quotations separating material costs and labor costs (calculated by
working hours) according to customer requirements.

Operation of GIC’s PL-TOS, E-Depot, and CRCE systems
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- The Bravo accounting software is a widely used accounting system that integrates with the
Company’s e-invoice system, customer service system, and online payment website. It fully
meets requirements for financial accounting and corporate governance in compliance with
current legal regulations.

- The Company’s website system is regularly updated to provide information on its services,
partners, customers, and shareholder-related disclosures in accordance with regulations
applicable to public companies.
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The IT system is regularly monitored and maintained by a qualified and experienced IT
team, ensuring stable connectivity and uninterrupted business operations.

Modern, High-Quality Specialized Container Handling and Transport Equipment from
Leading Brands

Empty container handling equipment with a lifting capacity of 10 tons manufactured by
Kamar (Finland). Kalmar products are widely used and trusted by ports and depot operators
worldwide for their durability, high load capacity, and ease of maintenance.

Loaded container handling equipment with a lifting capacity of 46 tons manufactured by
Hyster (Europe), one of the world’s leading forklift manufacturers. Hyster forklifts are
capable of operating up to 3,000 hours per year, performing reliably in harsh working
environments. These machines feature robust chassis, high-performance engines, and cost-
efficient operation.

A fleet of specialized International ProStar Limited tractors (USA) featuring powerful
traction, low fuel consumption, and the ability to operate on challenging terrains, serving
the transport needs of heavy cargo and containers.

Specialized container repair tools and equipment such as industrial welding machines,
container floor grinding machines, steel and wooden flooring cutting machines, paint
Sprayers, pneumatic hammers, etc., are fully equipped and utilized in compliance with I11CL
international container standards.

10.1.7. Output Volume and Service Value in 2023, 2024 and 2025

Table 10: Service Output/Volume for 2023, 2024 and 2025

No. Indicator Unit 2023 2024 2025
1 Depot yard operations Teus 383.950 320.726 280.058
Container repair
2 | (number of containers | Containers 14.299 14.978
repaired) 16.754
Total 398.249 337.480 295.036

Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company

Depot yard operations are the Company’s primary revenue-generating activity. However,

during 2024-2025, yard throughput declined due to difficulties in the maritime transport market,
which reduced cargo volumes handled at regional seaports. Additionally, intense competition
among industry participants further impacted the Company’s yard operation revenue. In 2025, the
Company’s yard throughput reached 280,058 TEUs, a 12.68% decrease compared to 2024. The
number of containers repaired during the year reached 14,978 units, down 10.60% year-on-year.
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Table 11: Revenue and Profit Structure for 2023, 2024 and 2025
Unit: VND million

2023 2024 2025 % increa
H 0,
No. Indicator % of Net % of Net 0% of Net % of Net
Value Value Value | Revenu Value
Revenue Revenue e Revenue
Service
| 172.273 100% 159.342 100% 155.975 100% -7,51% -2,11%
revenue
| Net revenue 172.273 100% 159.342 100% 155.975 100% -7,51% -2,11%
Net revenue
y | from container | o er | 909 | 130738 | 87.70% | 141.000 | 91% | -9.88% | 1.55%
handling and
lifting
Net revenue
2 | from container | 11.110 6,45% 13.402 | 8,41% 12.915 8,28% 20,63% -3,63%
repair
g |Revenue from | o 0 | 35506 | 6202 | 389% | 1150 | 074% | 152% | -81.46%
other services
11 | Gross profit 69.602 | 40,40% | 65.059 | 40,83% | 68.542 | 43,94% -6,52% 5,35%
AV} 18.593 10,79% 18.092 | 11,35% 16.510 | 10,59% -2,69% -8,74%
Profit befor e tax
Profit  after
V tax 16.631 9,65% 16.239 | 10,19% | 14.593 | 9,36% -2,36% -10,14%

Source: Audited financial statements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 financial statements

GIC’s revenue over the years mainly comes from container lifting and handling services

(accounting for over 87% of total revenue), container repair services (over 10%), and other related
services. Net revenue in 2025 reached VND 155.9 billion, down 2.11% compared to 2024, mainly
due to an 81.46% decline in revenue from other services, falling from VND 6.2 billion in 2024 to
VND 1.1 billion in 2025. Revenue from container handling and lifting increased by 1.55% to VND
141.9 billion in 2025. Revenue from other service segments did not show significant changes in
recent years.

Despite lower revenue, improved cost of sales helped gross profit in 2025 rise to VND 68.5
billion, up 5.35% compared to 2024. However, dueto a12.17% increase in selling expenses, along
with slight increases in administrative and financial expenses, profit in 2025 declined compared to
the previous year. Profit after tax in 2025 reached VND 14.6 billion, down 10.14% year-on-year.
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10.2. Assets
10.2.1. Fixed Assets

Table 12: The Company’s Fixed Assets as at 31 December 2023

Unit: VND million

No. Indicator Historical Cost Accuml_JIa_ted Net Book Value
Depreciation

| | Tangible fixed assets 153.394 109.595 43.799
1 | Buildings and structures 83.050 57.279 25.771
2 | Machinery and equipment 3.100 3.058 42
3 | Vehicles 66.113 48.161 17.952
4 | Office equipment 1.130 1.097 34
Il | Intangible fixed assets 1121 1121 0
1 | Computer software 1121 1121 0
Total 154.515 110.716 43.799

Source: Audited 2023 Financial Satements of GIC

Table 13: The Company’s Fixed Assets as at 31 December 2024

Unit;: VND million

No. Indicator Historical Cost Accumglgted Net Book Value
Depreciation

I Tangible fixed assets 153.456 123.807 29.649
1 | Buildings and structures 83.050 63.507 19.543
2 | Machinery and equipment 3.100 3.100 -
3 | Vehicles 66.113 56.075 10.038
4 | Office equipment 1.193 1.125 68
[l | Intangible fixed assets 1.224 1.224 100
1 | Computer software 1.224 1124 100
Tong cong 154.680 124.931 29.749

Source: Audited 2024 Financial Satements of GIC

Table 14: The Company’s Fixed Assets as at 31 December 2025

Unit: VND million

No. Indicator Historical Cost Accumlljla.ted Net Book Value
Depreciation

I Tangible fixed assets 153.456 135.114 18.342

1 | Buildings and structures 83.050 69.434 13.616

2 | Machinery and equipment 3.100 3.100 -

3 | Vehicles 66.113 61.428 4.685
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No. Indicator Historical Cost Accumglqted Net Book Value
Depreciation

4 | Office equipment 1.193 1.152 41

Il | Intangible fixed assets 1.224 1.163 61

1 | Computer software 1.224 1.163 61

Téng cong 154.680 136.377 18.403

Source: Q4/2025 Financial Satements of GIC
10.2.2. Other Long-term Assets

Other long-term assets consist of long-term prepaid expenses related to the lease of land at
the Company’s business location — Lot CC2 a&t MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai
An Digtrict, Hai Phong City.

Table 15: Assets Related to the Leased Land at the Business L ocation (2023—-2025)

Unit: VND million

No. Long-term prepaid expenses 2023 2024 2025
1 | Land lease expenses (*) 113.730 110.335 106.729
2 | Tools and equipment 314 241 193
3 | Provision for site restoration costs 654 654 876
Total 114.617 111.149 107.798

Source: VSC Green Logistics JSC

(*) The lease expense for Lot CC2 was prepaid for the period from 25 January 2017 to 30 June
2057 under Land Sublease Agreement No. 61/2017/HDTD-MP dated 25 January 2017 between
GIC and Minh Phuong Real Estate Investment JSC. This prepaid amount is amortized to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

10. Table 16: Movement of Prepaid Land Lease Expense — Lot CC2 (2023-2025)
11.  Unit: VND million

No. Content 2023 2024 2025
1 | Opening balance 117.293 114.617 111.149
2 | Additions during the year 946 245 208
3 | Amortization during the year (3.622) (3.713) (3.559)
4 | Closing balance 114.617 111.149 107.798

Source: VSC Green Logistics JSC
10.3. Operating M arket

Business Area: Hai Phong City and Northern Vietham

VSC Green Logistics JSC, together with its parent company Vietham Container Shipping
Corporation (VSC), operatesmainly in Hai Phong City. According to statistics, Hai Phong currently
has approximately 250 logistics enterprises, employing more than 170,000 workers, and around 60
large warehouses and depots with atotal area exceeding 700 hectares, primarily located in key port
areas such as Dinh Vu, Tan Vu, Chua Ve, Hoang Dieu, and Hai An. To promote logistics
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development, Hai Phong City has proactively developed and implemented a modern and
synchronized logistics master plan, focusing on large-scale logistics centers in areas such as Dinh
Vu — Cat Ha, Nam Dinh Vu, and VSIP. These areas not only serve as cargo storage and
transshipment hubs but also act askey linksin the global supply chain, directly connecting industrial
zones, seaports, and major transportation corridors.

Vi tri cac cang cua VSC (mau den) va cac cang container khac tai Hai Phong (mau do)
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GIC holds a strategic location at the center of the Dinh Vu — Cat Hai Economic Zone in Hai
Phong, enabling it to provide logistics support services and container-related servicesto customers
of seaportsin the area.

Seaports are a crucial link in the logistics value chain, connecting road and rail transport with
maritime transport within the supply chain. They are equipped with appropriate infrastructure for
loading and unloading cargo onto vessels for shipment to other ports. With a large and modern
seaport system, notably Lach Huyen Port, Hai Phong City is capable of accommodating large-
tonnage container vessels, operating continuously, and directly connecting to international shipping
routes linking to the United States, Europe, and global markets.

Chuoi gid tri nganh logistics
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In addition, the system of expressways, railways, and Cat Bi International Airport has been
synchronously developed, closaly linking with domestic production and consumption centers aswell as
the ASEAN region and China. In particular, the segport-industrial park—logistics center linkage model
forms a closed ecosystem that helps optimize trangportation costs and time.

Hai Phong City currently has 18 operating industrial parks and two major economic zones —
Dinh Vu — Cat Hai Economic Zone and the Southern Coastal Economic Zone — covering atotal area
of over 40,000 hectares, along with millions of square meters of ready-built factories and warehouses
for lease. The city is also promoting the establishment of a Free Trade Zone and the Nam Do Son Free
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Port with outstanding incentive mechanisms.

Moreover, Hai Phong serves as a key gateway for goods trangported from inland areas and for
exportsto international markets. The city isconveniently connected to major expresswvays such asHanoi
— Hai Phong and Hanoi — Lao Cai, creating ideal conditions for goods from northern provinces such as
Lao Cai, Yen Bai, Thai Nguyen, and others to be rapidly transported to Hai Phong segports. This
enhances transport efficiency, reduces logistics costs, and improves the competitiveness of Vietnamese
goods.

With its business operations located in Hai Phong, the provision of logistics-related services,
and cooperative support relationships with VSC and its member companies forming operational
linkages, the Company has been significantly supported in delivering container lifting, handling, and
repair services, ensuring a stable customer base and consistent revenue over the years.

10.4. Report on Investment Activities, Investment Efficiency, Business Perfor mance and Service

Provision in Key Business Segments
Table 17: Business Performance in 2024 and 2025
Unit: VND hillion

NoO Indicator 2024 2024 2025 2025 | 2024 Actual | 2025 Actual
' Plan Actual Plan Actual / Plan / Plan
1 | Net revenue 160 159,34 145 155,97 99,59% 107,57%
2 | Profit before tax 16,5 18,09 16,5 16,51 109,65% 100,06%

Source: Audited 2024 Financial Statements and Q4/2025 Financial Statements of GIC

The year 2025 was a challenging year for business operations due to intense competition
among companies in the same industry. However, under the sound direction and development
strategy of the Board of Directors and the Management Board, the Company maintained its growth
momentum and sustainable development. The container yard was operated and utilized relatively
efficiently, with throughput reaching 280,058 TEUs and higher service pricing. As a result, the
Company fulfilled its business plan with the following 2025 performance:

- Revenuereached VND 155.97 hillion, equivalent to 107.57% of the 2025 revenue plan.
- Profit before tax reached VND 16.51 billion, achieving the 2025 profit target.
- Basic earnings per share (EPS) reached VND 1,204 per share.

Container lifting and handling activities generated the largest revenue in 2025, reaching
VND 141.9 billion, accounting for over 91% of the Company’s total net revenue.

[Phan cuéi ciia trang nay dwge c6 ¥ bo trong dé chuyén tiép sang ni dung trang tiép theo
cua Ban cao bach]
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10.5. Major Contracts

Table 18: List of Major Contracts Being Performed or Already Signed

2023 2024 2025
Percentag Per centag Relations
o Perfc\(jntlag eof Value eof Value | Input/Ou hip with
Sioni | b f o | Performe | Performe | tPUl Counterpart | internal | Other
No | Contract name | ng | Value | Performe | Value | =, = Value dover | Products
date | Perform | dover |Performed " | Perform | " Py y person/sh | term
ed(VND | Sales | (VND ed (VND Services areholder
. L Revenue/ - Revenue/
billion) | Revenue/ | billion) . billion) . S
. Operatin Operatin
Operating
. g Costs g Costs
Costs (*) *) *)
| | SALESAND SERVICE CONTRACTS
Contract 02-
01/10/
2022VGR-GIC, | 5n Container | L1* Green
) . Port Joint Same
1 | Contract 02/05/ 9,20 5,34% 10,82 6,79% 1,24 1,08% Repair Stock Grou None
08/2024/DVXD/ | Services | o> P
VGR-GIC pary
Contract No. ovov Co\r(]?; N \P/cl)rF: G\]roirt] Same
2 | 01/2023/VGR- 2023 9,37 5,44% 11,18 7,02% 5,29 4,60% . None
Operation | Stock Group
GIC
S Company
Contract ~ No. | 01/01/ Contai G Same
3 | 03/2023/HDNH/ | 2023 | 167 0,97% 1,59 0,99% 1,09 0,050 | Contaner | Green None
GLC-GIC Yard Logistics Group
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2023 2024 2025
Per centag Per centag :
Per centag eof Value eof Value | Input/Ou Relations
Signi eof Value Performe Performe tput hip with
No | Contract name | ng Value | Performe | Value | © 4 © Value dover | Products Counterpart | internal | Other
date | Perform dover |Performed Sl Perform Sl & y person/sh | term
ed (VND | Sales | (VND < | ed (VND es . areholder
S o Revenue/ | .. Revenue/ | Services
billion) | Revenue/ | billion) . billion) . S
Operatin Operatin Operatin
P . g g Costs g Costs
coss® ¢) ()
Operation | Center Co.,
S Ltd.
Contract No. 01/01/ Container e 5
03/2023/HBNH/ |~ i ) ) Yad | BTN e
4 GLC-GIC 1,10 0,64% 0,83 0,52% 0,16 0,14% Operation Lines Co., Group None
S Ltd.
Disposal
Contract  No. c/):leed Quang Binh —
01/2024 27/06/ SS I pinh  Vu| Same
- - 0 - -
> | HBMBVGL- | 2024 135 | 08% Toolsand | |yiand  port | Group | MO
GIC Equipmen | j5¢
t
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2023 2024 2025
Per centag Percentag :
Per centag eof Value eof Value | Input/Ou Relations
Signi eof Value Performe Performe tput hip with
No | Contract name | ng Value | Performe | Value | © 4 © Value dover | Products Counterpart | internal | Other
date | Perform dover |Performed I Perform | & y person/sh | term
ed(VND| Sales | (WND | _ 2% leqynp | A - areholder
S o Revenue/ | .. Revenue/ | Services
billion) | Revenue/ | billion) . billion) . S
Operating Operatin Operatin
Costs (*) g Costs g Costs
*) *)
Contract No. Cargo | Traco No.l
g |012025mD |\ 3ULZT ) o 0,74% 1,50 | 0,94% 0,85 0,74% | Stuffing | Transport None | None
GIC-TRACO 2025 Services | JSC
Contract No. Container | Yusen
7 | 012025 HDP 3%;;’ 0,89 0,51% 1,54 0,96% 0,61 054% | Lifting |LodisticsCo., | Nope | None
YLTV-GIC Services | Ltd.
Contract  No Container | Orient
11/2025/DEPOT | 3V/12/ Cleaning | Maritime \
% | janT-cIC o0p5 | O3 | 036 102l 013% 1 020 1 017% and | Services None one
] Repair | (ORIMAS)
Services

SALESAND SERVICE CONTRACTS
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2023 2024 2025
Per centag Per centag Relations
Perfcentlag eof Value eof Value | Input/Ou hip with
Signi | eofVaue | Performe | Performe | tPul Counterpart | internal | Other
No | Contract name | ng | Value | Performe | Value | =, = Value dover | Products
date | Perform | dover |Performed Sales Perform Sales Py y gre;hsz?éz: term
ed (VND | Sales (VND | pevenues | & VND | povenues | Services
billion) | Revenue/ | billion) . billion) . S
. Operatin Operatin
Operating c
" g Costs g Costs
Costs(’) *) )
Contract No. | 31/12/
01/2022/HDKT; 2022 Vietnam
1 | Contrat  No.|OLO0V | 631 4,06% 0 0 9,96 15,12% LZ‘:J?:;;‘:S g;’i”tai'ger csiega None
01/2025/HPNT/ | 2025 Cofp ra‘i’ion pany
VSC-GIC PO
Contract No.
2405/2024/HDN Thinh Tien
T/THT-GIC; 2004 - Materials | Trading
2 Contract No. | 2025 - - 3,53 3,75% 7,60 11,5% and Investment None None
0101/2025/HPN Lubricants gnd jzrwces
T/THT-GIC 0., )




2023 2024 2025
Percentag Per centag Relations
Perfcentlag eof Value eof Value | Input/Ou hip with
Signi | b fva " | Performe | Performe | tPUl Counterpart | internal | Other
No | Contract name | ng Value | Performe |\ Value | =, Value dover | Products
date | Perform | dover |Performed Soles Perform Soles & y person/sh | term
ed(VND | Sales | (VND ed (VND Services areholder
. - Revenue/ - Revenue/
billion) | Revenue/ | billion) . billion) . S
. Operatin Operatin
Operating
" g Costs g Costs
Costs (*) *) *)
Repair
Contract No. Services
01/2023 GIC- for
GSL/HP DVSC; Vehicles
Contract No. | o1/01/ and Green Star Same
3 | 01/2023/GSL- 2023 7,74 4,98% 7,86 5,58% 3,80 577% Equipmen | Lines  Co., Grou None
GIC; tand | Ltd. P
Contract ~ No. Stevedori
01/2023/HDNH/ ng-related
GSL-GIC Transport
Services

Source: VSC Green Logistics JSC




As of the date hereof, the Company has entered into several material contracts which have been signed but not yet performed. These
are asset transfer agreements, detailed as follows:

Table 19: Material Contracts Signed but Not Yet Performed (*)

Relationship
Contract with Internal Other K
No Contract Name Signing Date | Value (VND | Products/ Services Counterparty &
billion) Persons and Terms
Shareholders
Contract No. : Green Logistics Center
1 36/HDCN/GLC-GIC: 29/08/2025 40 Land userights Co. Ltd. Same Group None
Transport vehicles: .
Contract No. L Green Logistics Center
2 37/HPCNTS/GLC-GIC: 29/08/2025 18 semi-trailers, tractor Co. Ltd. Same Group None
trucks, forklifts
Contract No. Machinery and Green Logistics Center
3 | sgmpONTS/GLC-GIC | 2Y/08/2025 36 equipment Co., Ltd. Same Group None
Contract No. Machinery and Green Star Lines Co.,
4 | 169/HPCNTS/GSL-GIC | 22/08/2025 0.6 equipment Ltd. Same Group None
Transport vehicles: .
Contract No. R Green Star Lines Co.,
5 170/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC 29/08/2025 49 semi-trailers and Ltd. Same Group None
tractor trucks
Total 111,2

Source: VSC Green Logistics JSC
(*) Expected implementation timeline: After the Company completes the public offering of additional shares to existing shareholders for charter capital increase.
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10.6. Major Customersand Suppliers

Table 20: Major Customers and Suppliers of VSC Green Logistics JSC

Val Relationship
Custor mer Transaction Tran cta'l une Products, with internal
No Value afr%‘ 0 Services person and
erm shareholders
. Major Customers
Pursuant to
Contract No. 02-
Settled 2022/VVGR-GIC,
VIP Green Port monthly | Contract No. | Container
1 | Joint Stock based on | 03/2024/DVXD/ | repair, depot | Same Group
Company final VGR-GIC, yard services
reconciliation | Contract No.
01/2023/VGR-
GIC
msstr:tlﬁ Pursuant to
2 Green Logistics based on Contract No. Depot. yard Same Group
Center Co., Ltd. " 03/2023/HDNH/ services
nad | 5 caic
reconciliation
Setttlﬁ Pursuant to
, monthly
Green Star Lines Contract No. | Depot yard
Same Grou
3 | co., Ltd. baf’ On | 03/2023/HDNH/ |  services P
nd G caic
reconciliation
Liquidation
Quang Binh — Dinh of fixed Same Grou
4 Vu Inland Port JSC 1,35 In 2024 assets and P
tools
Traco Transport Sem? Pursuant ©
5 | Joint Stocksp g;;‘; y Contract No. Stuffing None
Comoany No1 o ajon 01/2025/HD GIC- |  services
pany o. N | rraco
reconciliation
Se“:? Pursuant 0 Container
. monthly
Y usen Logistics Contract No. e
None
® | co., Ltd. basedon | ;5005 pp ";;'r:gii”d
find |y 1v.GIC g
reconciliation
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Value

Relationship

No Custor mer Transaction Transaction Products, with internal
Value Term Services person and
shareholders
. . Settled Pursuant to .
Oriental Maritime monthly |~ iract NG Container
7 | Services based on "| cleaning and None
(ORIMAS) final 11/2025/DEPQOT/ repair
o SNT-GIC
reconciliation
II. Major Suppliers
Settled Pursuant to
Vietnam Container monthly Contract No.
1 | Shipping based on 01/2022/HBKT Fugl and Parent
Corporation il and Contract No. | lubricants Company
o 01/2025/HDNT/V
reconciliation | o~~~
Pursuant to
Thinh TienTraging | Scttled | Contract Mo,
. monthly 2405/2024/HDNT .
5 and Service based on THT-GIC  and Materials and None
Investment Co., , lubricants
Ltd. final Contract No.
reconciliation | 0101/2025/HDNT
ITHT-GIC
Pursuant to
Contract No. | Equipment
Settled 01/2023 GIC- | andvehicle
: monthly | GSL/HD DVSC; repair;
3 g(r)eef titar Lines basedon | Contract No. | stevedoring- | Same Group
R final 01/2023/GSL - related
reconciliation | GIC; Contract No. transport
01/2023/HBNH/ services
GSL-GIC
Pursuant to
Contract No. Machinery
Green Star Lines [69/HDENTS/GS equipment’
4 Co., Ltd. 616 L-GIC and and transport =ame Group
’ Contract No. vehicles
170/HBCNTS/GS
L-GIC
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| Relationship
No Custor mer Transaction Transa\c/:tailcl:ne Products, with internal
Value Term Services person and
shareholders
Pursuant to
Contract No. | Transfer of
36/HDCN/GLC- land use
- GIC; Contract No. rights,
5 S;:grl'gg'stf ; 49,6 37/HDCNTS/GL | machinery, | Same Group
T C-GIC; Contract | equipment
No. and transport
38/ HBDCNTS/GL vehicles
C-GIC

Source: VSC Green Logistics JSC

10.7. Position of the Company in the Industry
10.7.1. The Company’s Position Compared to Other Enterprises in the Same Industry
+ Position of GIC

VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company (GIC) was established and commenced
operations in 2017. Although arelatively young enterprise with only eight years of operation, the
Company has achieved impressive growth in both revenue scale and total assets.

Competitive Advantages:

As a subsidiary of Vietham Container Corporation (VSC), which operates an integrated
logistics service chain including seaport systems, CFS warehouses (Container Freight Stations),
container depots, a professional trucking fleet, and repair workshops, GIC benefits significantly
from inherited human resources, technical expertise, operational experience, and especially long-
standing customer relationships from its parent company. These customers include manufacturing
enterprises, import-export businesses, and major global shipping lines such as Maersk, Evergreen,
COSCO, Namsung, Dongyoung, OOCL, TS Lines, Hapag-Lloyd, Yang Ming, CMA CGM, and
others. This foundation serves as a strong platform for GIC’s future expansion.

GIC has made systematic investments in modern specialized equipment such as 45-ton and
10-ton reach stackers, pneumatic breakers, industrial welding machines, spray-painting systems,
tractor trucks with moderntrailers, and an optimized I T system tailored for logistics services. These
investments aim to continuously improve service quality, with the long-term objective of becoming
aleading logistics depot service provider in Vietnam and the region.

With a depot area of approximately 10 hectares and substantial storage capacity located in
Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Hai Phong, at the intersection of key transportation routes such as the Hai
Phong — Hanoi Expressway and the Hai Phong — Ha Long Expressway, GIC’s depot holds a
strategic position that enables efficient logistics operations and cargo transportation at competitive
costs.

+* Level of Competition and Market Share
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Hai Phong, as one of the largest port cities in Vietnam and the primary gateway for the
Northern region, handles approximately 90% of container throughput and more than 50% of total
import-export cargo volume in the area. The city is home to more than 500 logistics enterprises of
various sizes, leading to intense competition.

Container handling services represent the core business activity, contributing over 85% of
seaport revenue. Due to rapid and large-scale infrastructure investments, excess capacity has
emerged, forcing many ports and logistics companies to compete by lowering service prices to
attract shipping lines.

Currently, Lach Huyen Port, benefiting from its deep-water advantage and its ability to
receive mother vessels, maintains the highest handling service rates in Hai Phong, reaching the
ceiling of the price framework regulated by the Ministry of Transport. Meanwhile, ports along the
Cam River continue to face fierce price competition and must maintain lower handling rates to
retain customers. As a land-based depot service provider located near the Cam River area, GIC—
along with VSC’s affiliated terminals in this region—has experienced a certain decline in market
share.
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10.7.2. Industry Outlook

In 2024, Vietnam’s logistics industry recorded a strong recovery following the period of severe
disruption caused by the pandemic. Export activities grew steadily, and active support from the
Government created favorable conditions for logistics enterprises to expand their operations. In
addition, global supply chains improved significantly, helping to ease transportation bottlenecks.

According to datistics, more than 82% of logistics enterprises in Vietnam reported profit
growth in 2024, reflecting a notable rebound in the industry. Occupancy rates at industrial parks
reached approximately 81% in the North and 92% in the South, supported by continued strong FDI
inflows. These factors not only increased transportation demand but also laid the foundation for
further development of logistics infrastructure. In Hai Phong City in particular, logistics services
maintained an annual growth rate of 20-23% and contributed approximately 13-15% to the city’s
GRDP. However, according to representatives of the Hai Phong Economic Zone Authority, the
city’s logistics sector has yet to develop in line with its potential and its role as a national marine
economic center and international trade gateway. Logistics costsin Vietnam in general, and in Hai
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Phong in particular, remain high compared to other countries in the region, posing significant
challenges to improving business competitiveness. A key reason is the limited level of integration
among enterprises within the supply chain. Relationships between logistics enterprises and
manufacturing or import-export companies are still largely transactional rather than strategic
partnerships. To address these limitations, Hai Phong City has oriented its development toward
building integrated supply chain models, accelerating digital transformation, enhancing soft
infrastructure, and prioritizing high-quality workforce training to meet increasingly demanding
domestic and international market requirements.

Entering 2025, Vietnam’s logistics industry faces both opportunities and significant challenges.
Global economic and geopolitical uncertainties, together with intensifying competition among
industry participants, are creating increasing pressure on the sector.

Global economic and political instability continuesto affect the logistics industry and itsrelated
supporting sectors. Disruptions in international supply chains not only increase operating costs but
also reduce transportation efficiency. This requires enterprises to enhance adaptability and risk
management in order to mitigate potential impacts.

The logistics market in Vietnam is also experiencing intensifying competition, with a growing
number of domestic and foreign enterprises participating. The increase in competitors has made the
market more challenging, requiring companies to invest more heavily in technology and service
improvements to maintain their market position. In addition, global trade tensions and potential
declines in import-export activities may reduce cargo volumes, thereby negatively affecting
revenues of enterprises operating in the industry.

Logistics Industry Outlook Toward 2030

Vietnam’s logistics sector is expected to achieve substantial progress with strong government
support and the development of green logistics (e-logistics). Sustainable and environmentally
friendly logistics solutions are gradually becoming the industry standard, aiming to minimize
environmental impacts. Vietnam holds significant potential in this area thanks to technological
advancements and supportive government policies.

Increased public—private partnerships in infrastructure development will play a crucial role in
upgrading ports, warehouses, and transportation networks, thereby facilitating overall industry
growth. With its strategic geographic location and rapid economic development, Vietnam is
positioning itself to become a major logistics hub in Southeast Asia, opening up new opportunities
for both domestic and international enterprises.

10.7.3. Comparison of Financial Position and Business Performance of Companies in the
Same Industry

Table 21: Comparison of Financial Indicators of Companiesin the Same Industry
Unit: VND million

VSC Green Saigon Hai Phong Cam Ranh

Indicator Logistics JSC Shipping JSC Port JSC Port JSC
(HNX) (Upcom) (Upcom) (HNX)
Total assets 264.485 350.392 8.492.693 313.985
Charter capital 121.200 114.200 3.269.600 245.018
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Owners’ equity 242.364 314.550 6.360.621 280.670

Net revenue 43.256 42.231 709.949 46.241
;ft;jt”aid earnings 16.238 148.799 1.043.411 16.919
ROE (%) 6,7% 16,79% 12,69% 5,83%
ROA (%) 6,18% 14,44% 9,51% 5,2%
EPS (thousand VND) 1,34 3,16 2,47 0,67
BV (thousand VND) 20 19,26 16,99 11,29

Source: Audited 2024 financial statements of peer companies listed/registered for trading
on the stock exchange.
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10.7.4. Assessment of the Company’s Development Orientation in Alignment with Industry
Trends, Government Policies, and Global Trends

To enhance its operational capacity and move toward sustainable development goals, GIC
continuously researches, develops, and improves its service capabilities, particularly in providing
supporting services for the logistics industry. Technologies such as automated yard management
and real-time tracking systems have been and are being implemented by the Company. Promoting
ESG (Environmental — Social — Governance) practices and green, sustainable logistics is not only
atrend but an inevitable requirement in the current context for logistics enterprises. Therefore, the
Company’s development orientation toward ESG and green logistics is fully aligned with the
overall development direction of the industry.

The logistics, cargo handling, and container repair service sectors still offer significant room
for growth. With Hai Phong City’s development orientation toward modern, synchronized, and
sustainable logistics services — supported by all five modes of transportation and especially the
Lach Huyen International Port — Hai Phong is aiming to become a major logistics hub of the
Northern region and an international logistics center. To date, Hai Phong has two operational
logistics centers (with a plan to develop six by 2025), namely Green Logistics Center and Y usen
Logistics Center (both located in Dinh Vu Industrial Zone). In addition, two logistics centers are
under construction: CDC Logistics Center (Dinh Vu Industrial Zone 2) and the logistics center in
Hai Phong International Gateway Port Industrial Zone (Deep C 111 Industrial Zone, Dinh Vu — Cat
Hai Economic Zone). Furthermore, Resolution No. 45 of the Politburo sets the objective of
developing Hai Phong into a national logistics service center by 2025 and a modern international
logistics center by 2030, integrating sea transport, air transport, expressways, and high-speed rail.

The application of advanced technologiesin operations, extensive yard systems, well-invested
and high-quality equipment, together with the logistics development strategy of Hai Phong City in
general and the parent company V SC in particular, provides GIC with strong confidence in its goal
of becoming a leading logistics support service provider in Northern Vietnam. The Company’s
development orientation is therefore consistent with industry trends, government policies, and
global development directions.

The Company’s leadership places strong emphasis on marketing and market development
activities, directly participating in key service segmentsthat generate substantial revenue and profit.
At the same time, management consistently upholds the principle that customers are fundamental
to the Company’s existence and development. The Company’s brand is increasingly recognized by
domestic and international customers and organizations, and cooperation with foreign partners
continues to expand.

10.8. Marketing Activities

- Ensuring service quality, continuously improving service standards, and maintaining strong
relationships with existing customers in order to retain loyal clients, while actively seeking
and developing new customers, constitute the Company’s core marketing principles.

- As a subsidiary of Vietnam Container Shipping Corporation (VSC), the Company’s services
form part of VSC’s integrated logistics service chain. This provides the Company with
opportunities to access customers within the Viconship system and develop them into
official and potential customers in the future.
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The Company also actively seeks customers among manufacturing and import-export
enterprises in order to introduce its services and meet customer demand.
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10.9. Intellectual Property Rights, Trademarks, Trade Names, Patents

VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company, abbreviated as GIC. The Company has
registered its trading names in both English and Vietnamese with the State Management Authority.
The Company has also designed and registered its logo, websites, and domain names to build a
unique brand with the goal of becoming the leading post-port logistics service company in Vietnam
and promoting its brand within the global logistics industry.

%
- The Company's logo symbol ﬁT\'yﬁb

LOGISTICS

- The Company's website .
www.greenicd.com.vn

10.10. Research and Development Policy for the Period 2023 - 2024 and the Present Time

During the period 2023 - 2024 up to the present, GIC has continued to invest in R&D
activities with a focus on the logistics service chain. The Company’s research and development
policy has been implemented through the following key orientations:

e Closely following the market, ensuring the stable maintenance of the Company’s core

business activities.

- Remaining steadfast with the marketing and market development strategy of “retaining
existing customers and seeking new customers” by jointly providing customers with
“Service Package” solutions in parallel with offering additional “Value-Added
Services.”

- Establishing deeper connections with units within the Group, extending beyond the
scope of the Company itself.

- Enhancing the quality of human resources, professionalism of employees and the
leadership and management team. Training human resources for long-term goals and
vision, creating favorable conditions, supporting, and encouraging employees to pursue
learning to improve professional expertise, management skills, and proactive creativity.

- Strongly applying technology in management, operations, service provision, and
marketing to further increase productivity and service quality.

- Reviewing personnel, salaries, and labor management to ensure the most effective
utilization of the workforce.

- Managing resources and costs effectively; practicing thorough savings, ensuring
efficient business performance; achieving a dividend payout ratio of 10% and
accumulating capital for business scale expansion.

Someresultsfrom R& D activitiesin therecent period:

- Continuing to implement Vaue-Added Services (VAS) such as PTI service (Pre-Trip
Inspection: technical inspection service for refrigerated containers before commencing the
transportation journey), hanging container service, €tc.



http://www.greenicd.com.vn/

- Researching the application of technology in management, operations, and service
provision, developing the “E-Depot” by applying technology to enable online transactions,
online payments, container registration, and related processes, ...

Assessment of the impact of R&D activities on the Company’s operations:

GIC identifies research and development (R&D) as one of the important strategies to help
the Company optimize operational efficiency, enhance competitiveness, and achieve sustainable
development. The Company’s research and development orientation is always aligned with State
policies, the Company’s development direction, and global trends. The above R&D policies have
gradually contributed to improving the Company’s operational capacity, reducing operating costs,
and increasing the value chain of logistics activities in warehouse operations.

10.11. Business Strategy
Overview of the Company’s business strategy:

- The primary objective of the Company is to expand its service system in order to meet the
increasingly diverse needs of customers. At the same time, the Company continuously improves
service quality to better satisfy the stringent requirements of customers. Ensuring sustainable
development, enhancing competitiveness, and striving to become an international-scale logistics
company. The Company’s medium- and long-term development strategy is to consider, research,
and explore markets to invest in multiple potential sectors based on existing business strengths,
thereby bringing the greatest economic benefits and continuously elevating the Company to new
heights. With the investment plan for new asset acquisition approved under the Resolution of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025, the Company is planning to expand its business
fields and increase the scale of its existing business activities, specifically as follows:

+ Operating along-haul fleet: acquiring transportation vehicles including tractors and semi-
trailers from Green Star Lines Shipping Co., Ltd (GSL) and Green Logistics Center Co.,
Ltd (GLC), taking over existing customers from GSL and GL C, and expanding the market
to seek new partners..

+ Expanding shipside operations between vessels and yards and container lifting servicesin
yards through acquiring additional internal port tractors from GSL and forklifts (diesel and
electric) from GLC..

+ Constructing additional warehouses for bulk cargo packing and repairing container yards
at the Warehouse Land and Container Yard Areaat Lot CN3.2l, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone,
Hai Phong, with an area of 10,120 m? acquired from GLC.

+ Repairing the current container yards at the Company’s existing yard areas with a total area
of 10 hectares owned by the Company.

- Sustainable development objectives (environmental, social, and community) and the
Company’s main short-term and medium-term programs. The Company ensures that
responsibility towards the environment, society, and community always accompaniesand is
closely integrated with the Company’s management system and corporate culture

Projected Capital and Resources for Strategy | mplementation:

To implement the above business strategy, the Company will utilize capital mobilized from this
public offering of additional shares, with the expected amount of VND 121 hillion, to supplement
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working capital and invest in the acquisition of new factories, warehouses, machinery, equipment,
and transportation vehicles serving production and business activities.

In addition, the Company will use existing capital to carry out the plan of constructing a warehouse
for bulk cargo packing on the land lot acquired from GLC (over 1 hectare) and undertaking major
repairs of the container yard currently under operation (10 hectares) owned by the Company. The
total value of construction and major repair investment projected for 2026 — 2027 isVND 52 billion

10.12. Information on Compliance with Business Conditionsas Prescribed by Relevant L aws

The Issuer currently does not engage in any business lines or sectors that fall under the
system of conditional business lines as stipulated in Appendix IV — Law on Investment No.
61/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020.

11. Policiesfor Employees

11.1.

Number of Employeesand Labor Structure

— The quality of human resources is one of the important factors determining the Company’s
development; therefore, the Company always places the objective of building a professional
workforce as atop priority in its development strategy.

— As of December 31, 2025, the total number of employees in the Company is 120. The
specific labor structure is as follows:

Table 22: Labor Situation in the Company

2023 2024 2025
Classification Number | Proportion | Number | Proportion | Number | Proportion

(persons) (%) (persons) (%) (persons) (%)
By qualification 151 100 139 100 120 100
g:;;/gerr:;tg ataend 49 324 53 38.1 a4 36.7
College 14 9.3 12 8.7 11 9.1
Intermediate 40 26.5 21 151 15 125
Unskilled Labor 48 31.8 53 38.1 50 41.7
zzti'z ployment 151 100 139 100 120 100
Regular 151 100 139 100 120 100
Seasonal 0 0 0 0 0 0

Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company

11.2. Policieson Training, Salary, Bonus, and Allowances

Working Regime

Working hours: 8 hours per day; 5.5 days per week. When required by production and business
progress, employees are responsible for working overtime, and the Company has regulations to
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ensure employee benefits in accordance with State provisions.

Leave, holidays, Tet, sick leave, maternity leave: All employees of the Company have labor
contracts in compliance with labor laws and are entitled to full benefits under current legal
regulations on labor law, including allowances, bonuses, health insurance, social insurance, and
periodic health examinations.

Working conditions: The Company provides full labor protection equipment and consistently
adheres to occupational safety principlesto ensure high labor productivity and safety for employee

Recruitment and Training Policy

Objectivesand recruitment criteria: The Company’s recruitment objectives are directed
towards highly specialized skills across all departments.

Effectively implementing human resources and recruitment activities, developing long-

term training and human resource development plans to meet the Company’s growth. In

2024, the Company successfully carried out training and human resource development
programs.

Organizing skill development and continuous learning programs to support employeesin
securing employment and advancing their careers.

Developing and implementing training and human resource development plans to provide
the best support for employees in their work and career development.

Encouraging employees to collaborate with management and promote initiatives for
technical improvements and production savings

Policies on Salary, Bonus, and Welfare

Applied according to job titles and the nature of each position, the Company pays salaries
to its employees fully and accurately in accordance with the Salary Regulation, based on
current legal provisions, ensuring stable employment, improved income, and attention to
the material and spiritual well-being of employees. In addition, based on performance,
capability, and work efficiency, the Company considers and applies bonus schemes at
year-end for individuals, departments, or units with outstanding achievements in fulfilling
their tasks.

Labor norms and salary unit prices are reviewed and adjusted every six monthsto align
with actual production and business conditions. The salary and bonus regulations are
transparent, and payments are made on schedule.

Regulation on I'ssuance of Sharesto Employees

12.

At present, VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company has not established a Regulation on
the issuance of sharesto its employees. The issuance of sharesto employees is applied in
accordance with the relevant provisions of law.

Dividend Policy

Based on the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the Company’s Charter on organization
and operation as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the dividend distribution
policy proposed by the Board of Directors and decided by the General Meeting of Shareholdersis
as follows:
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The Company may only pay dividends to shareholders when the Company operates
profitably and has fulfilled its tax obligations and other financial obligations in accordance
with the law.

Shareholders shall receive dividends proportionate to their capital contribution, subject to
the business performance and as decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The dividend rate shall be determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders based on
the proposal of the Board of Directors, taking into account the business results of the fiscal
year and the business plan for the coming years.
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13.

Dividend Rate inthe Last Two Y ears:
Table 23: Dividend Rate in the Last Two Years (2023 — 2024)

Content 2023 2024
Dividend Rate 12% 10% (Expected)
Form of Payment Cash Shares

(Source: Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of GIC in 2023, 2024)

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholdersin 2024 of GI C approved the plan to pay dividends
for 2023 in cash to existing shareholders at the rate of 12% per share (one share receives VND
1,200).

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 of GIC approved the plan to issue
additional sharesto pay dividends for 2024 to existing shareholders at the rate of 10% in shares.
The Company expects to implement the dividend payment during the period from Q4/2025 to
Q2/2026 in the same issuance of additional shares to existing shareholders

Information on the Use of Capital Raised from the M ost Recent Offerin

In 2018, the Company issued additional shares at a rights execution ratio of 5:1 (equivalent to an
issuance rate of 20%), with atotal issuance value of VND 20.2 billion, to increase charter capital
from VND 101 billionto VND 121.2 billion for 75 existing shareholders.

Purpose of capital use: To supplement capital for investment in handling equipment and
transportation vehicles. The Company used the capital for the intended purpose of issuance as
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Since 2018, the Company has not increased its charter capital

14.

15.

16.

Information on the Company’s Commitments Not Yet Fulfilled
None

Information on Contingent Liabilities, Pending Disputes, and Litigation Related to the
Company That May Affect the Company’s Business Operations, Financial Position,
the Offering, the Offering Price, and the Project Using Capital Raised from the
Offering

None

Information on the Company’s Commitment Not to Be Under Criminal Prosecution
or Convicted of Any Economic Management Order Offenses Without Having Been
Expunged

The Company commits that it is not under criminal prosecution and has not been convicted
of any offenses against economic management order without having its criminal record
expunged. The Company affirms that the above information is true and shall bear full
responsibility before the law for its commitment.

BUSINESSPERFORMANCE, FINANCIAL POSITION, AND PROJECTED PLANS

Business Performance
Summary of Certain Business Performance Indicators of the Company
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Table 24: Company’s Business Performance

Unit: VND million

% Change
Indicator 2023 2024 2025

2024/2023 2025/2024
Total Assets 267.427 262.562 276.972 -1,82% 5,49%
Net Revenue 172.274 159.343 155.975 -7,51% -2,11%
Net Profit from 18.654 17.828 16.526 -4,43% -7.30
Business Activities
Other Profit -61 264 -16 532,08% -106,06%
Profit Before Tax 18.593 18.092 16.510 -2,69% -8,74%
Profit After Tax 16.631 16.239 14.593 -2,36% -10,14%
Dividend Payout Ratio
(Dividend/Profit After 73% 90% - 22,9% -
Tax)
Dividend Rate 10% 12% - 20,00% -

(Source: Audited Financial Statements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 Financial Statements of GIC)

At December 31, 2024, GIC’s total capital amounted to VND 262.6 hillion, a decrease of
1.8% compared to the same period in 2023. At December 31, 2025, GIC’s total capital reached
VND 276.9 billion, an increase of 5.5% compared to December 31, 2024. The capital structure of
GIC as of December 31, 2025 did not include any bank loans.

The years 2024-2025 were marked by significant challenges and intense competition in the
maritime transport industry and related services. In the context of port/warehouse/container
transport operations showing signs of oversupply, the Company’s core service segments all faced
difficulties. As a result, GIC’s business performance in 2024-2025 showed a declining trend
compared to previous years.

For the full year 2025, GIC recorded net revenue of VND 155.9 billion, down 2.1%
compared to 2024. Profit after tax in 2025 was VND 14.6 billion, a decrease of 10.1% compared to
the previous year.

1.2.  Factors Affecting the Company’s Business Operations
+ Favorable Factors:

—  The East Searegion has a favorable position on the global maritime map, with 29 out of 39
major sea routes passing through the area, transshipping goods from Asiato other markets.
Vietnam not only has a strategic geographical location, but the domestic seaport industry
also benefits from natural advantages with a coastline of 3,260 km, many deep bays that can
accommodate large vessels, and proximity to Asia—Europe shipping routes aswell as major
transshipment portsin Singapore and Malaysia.
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2.
2.1

The medium-term outlook of the industry is supported by economic growth potential,
especially the strong wave of infrastructure investment. The total volume of goods through
Vietnam’s seaport system in general and the Hai Phong area in particular recovered and
grew positively during 2023-2024, including both export goods and cargo from inland
waterway vessels.

Difficult Factors:

Negative fluctuations in import—export activities may directly affect the Company’s
business performance. Geopolitical crises, trade tensions, and freight rate volatility can all
impact the circulation of goods. In recent years, Vietnam has benefited from the U.S.
friendshoring policy (relocating supply chains to friendly countries), with FDI inflows
growing positively and import—export activities becoming a bright spot of the economy in
2024. However, import—export activitieswill facerisks of severe damage fromtariff barriers
and trade wars in 2025, thereby harming the seaport and logistics industry.

Growth opportunities in the Hai Phong port area come with the challenge of oversupply.
The operating efficiency of ports in Hai Phong is currently at 80%, with throughput
differentiated between upstream and downstream areas. Some newly operated ports have
not yet secured stable cargo sources, resulting in low exploitation efficiency. Oversupply

pressure will increase in 2025-2026 as a series of new ports from major competitors come
into operation.

Financial Situation
Basic Indicators

Report on charter capital, business capital, and the use of charter capital and business capital:

Table 25: Charter Capital and Owner’s Equity of the Company

Unit: VND
2023 2024 2025
Charter Capital 121.200.000.000 121.200.000.000 121.200.000.000
Owner’s Equity 242.635.338.874 242.364.263.642 254.991.033.817

(Source: Audited Financial Statements 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 Financial Satements of GIC)

Situation of using charter capital and owner’s equity: The Company always uses charter

capital and owner’s equity in accordance with the provisions of law and the Company’s Charter.
The Company is committed to using capital effectively, serving its business operations for the
purposes of each offering as approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders

- Depreciation of fixed assets:
Fixed assets (FA) are depreciated using the straight-line method to gradually reduce the
depreciable value over their estimated useful life. The depreciable value is the original
cost of the fixed asset recorded in the financial statements minus the estimated residual
value of that asset. The estimated useful life of asset categories is as follows:

+ Land userights: Recorded at original cost and not depreciated
+ Buildings and structures: 05 - 25 years
+ Machinery and equipment: 03 - 10 years
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+ Transport vehicles:

03— 10vyears

+ Management equipment: 04 — 05 years
+ Computer software: 3 years
- Average Salary
Table 26: Average Salary
Indicator 2023 2024 2025
Average salar
% Y 19,32 21,27 21,64
(million V ND/person/month)

(Source: VSC Green Logistics Joint Sock Company)
VSC Green Logistics JSC considers people as the source of its strength; therefore, the

Company always focuses on policies to ensure employees’ rights and benefits. Employees are
guaranteed stable jobs and income. Regarding salary policies, labor norms and wage rates are
reviewed and adjusted every six months to align with actual business conditions. The Company’s
salary and bonus regulations are transparent, with payments made on time. The average salary of
the Company’s staff is relatively competitive compared to the average salary of other enterprises in

the same industry and locality
- Current debt situation

Table 27: Current Total Debt

Unit: billion VND
2023 2024 2025
Total receivables 12.596.726.345 17.883.341.171 7.894.206.876
Total liabilities 24.791.591.133 20.197.777.280 21.980.558.911

(Source: Audited Financial Satements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 of GIC)

- Cackhoan phai thu

Table 28: Details of the Company’s Receivables

Unit: VND
Indicator 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2025
1. Short-term receivables 12.596.726.345 | 17.883.341.171 | 7.894.206.876
-Cust;hnoerrts-term receivables  from 1140.464.476 | 7713741171 5.628.006.876
- Short-term advances to suppliers 1.067.500.000 20.600.000 100.000.000
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Indicator 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2025
- Short-term loans receivable 10.000.000.000 | 10.000.000.000 0
- Other short-term receivables 388.761.869 149.000.000 2.166.200.000
2. Long-term receivables 0 0 0
Total 12.596.726.345 | 17.883.341.171 | 7.894.206.876

(Source: Audited Financial Statements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 of GIC)

- Details of Payables

Table 29: Details of the Company’s Payables

Unit: VND
Indicator 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2025
1. Short-term liabilities 24.136.829.191 | 19.543.015.338 | 21.105.011.797
- Short-term payablesto suppliers 5.553.347.453 | 3.364.617.465 2.748.011.553
- Advances from customers 72.243.905 50.460.600 86.230.600
- Taxesand other payablestothe State | 1.444.231.875| 1.062.528.076 1.336.864.259
- Payablesto employees 9.091.253.933 | 8.569.331.783 8.172.872.324
- Short-term accrued expenses 6.898.093.579 | 5.392.985.508 7.323.299.418
- Other short-term payables 851.984.446 892.017.906 1.015.013.643
- Short-term borrowings 0 0 0
- Bonus and welfare funds 225.674.000 211.074.000 422.720.000
2. Long-term liabilities 654.761.942 654.761.942 875.547.114
- Provision for long-term liabilities 654.761.942 654.761.942 875.547.114
Total 24.791.591.133 | 20.197.777.280 | 21.980.558.911

(Source: Audited Financial Satements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 of GIC)

- Payment of Due Debts

Currently, the Company has no bad debts. Exchange rate differences and loan interest
differences do not affect the Company’s business results. The Company has no receivables
classified as bad debts; all receivables are collected on time, thoroughly avoiding cases of
prolonged overdue debts from customers.

- Statutory Payables

Currently, the Company is managing its revenues and expenditures well and strictly
fulfilling its tax obligations. The Company has declared and paid taxes fully, on time, and in
compliance with legal regulations. The taxes implemented by the Company in fiscal year 2023,
fiscal year 2024, and up to December 31, 2025 are as follows:
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Table 30: Tax Payables

Unit: VND
No. Indicator 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2025

1 | VAT ondomestic sales 700.348.987 380.341.230 577.348.736
2 | Import—export tax 0 0 0
3 | Corporateincome tax 550.181.272 490.184.466 569.696.134
4 | Personal income tax 193.701.616 192.002.380 189.819.389
5 | Other taxes and fees 0 0 0
Total 1.444.231.875 1.062.528.076 1.336.864.259

(Source: Audited Financial Statements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 of GIC)
- Appropriation of Statutory Funds

The Company appropriatesthe Bonus and Welfare Fund and the Development | nvestment
Fund from profit sources. The balances of these funds at the end of fiscal year 2023, fiscal year
2024, and the end of Q4/2025 are asfollows:

Table 31: Situation of Statutory Fund Appropriation

Unit: VND
Indicator 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 31/12/2025
Bonus and Welfare Fund 225.674.000 211.074.000 422.720.000
[F)ue:]'g' opment Investment | 1 11 804160218 | 104.925.338.874 |  107.078.263.642

(Source: Audited Financial Statements for 2023, 2024 and Q4/2025 of GIC)
- Total Outstanding L oans:

Currently, the Company does not use bank loans, bonds, or other borrowings to finance
its production and business activities.
The Company’s total liabilities have always been maintained at below 10% of its Total
Assets, mainly consisting of short-term payablesto suppliers, payablesto employees, and short-
term accrued expenses.
2.2 Key Financial Indicators
Table 32: Key Financial Indicators of the Company

Indicator Unit 2023 2024 2025
1. Liquidity

1.1. Cash Solvency 1,80 1,71 3,53
1.2. Quick Ratio Lan 2,34 2,64 3,93
1.3. Current Ratio 2,46 2,76 4,04
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2. Capital Structure
2.1. Short-term and Long-term Loans/ 0
Owner's Equity & 0 0 0
2.2. Short-term and Long-term Loans/ Total 0
Assets & 0 0 0
2.3. Debt-to-Equity Ratio % 10,22 8,33 7,94
2.4. Debt-to-Total Assets Ratio % 9,27 7,69 8,62
3. Profitability
3.1. Return on Sales (ROS) 0 9,36

. % 9,65 10,19 ’
(Net Profit After Tax / Net Revenue) °
3.2. Return on Equity (ROE) 0

. . % 7 %
(Net Profit After Tax / Owner's Equity) ° 6.89 6.70 538
3.3. Return on Assets (ROA)
(Net Profit After Tax / Average Tota % 6,36 6,11 5,41
Assets)

. Dongs
3.4. Earnings Per Share (EPS) share 1.235 1.340 1.204
4. Operating Capacity
4.1. Total Asset Turnover
(Net Revenue / Average Total Assets) 0.66 0.60 0.58

- - Turnover
4.2. Working Capital Turnover 252 581 294
(Net Revenue / Average Current Assets) ’ ’ ’
4.3. Inventory Turnover
T 32,58 34,00 36,71

(Cogt of Goods Sold / Average Inventory) Hrnover

Source: Calculated based on the 2023 and 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the Q4/2025
Financial Satements of GIC

- Solvency

The Company's solvency ratios remained at a safe level (greater than 1) and stable during the
2023 - 2025 period. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2025 increased by 41.2 billion VND
compared to the same period last year, while current liabilities did not experience any significant
upward fluctuations. Consequently, GIC's solvency indicators in 2025 showed an upward trend: the
cash solvency ratio increased from 1.71 times (2024) to 3.53 times, the quick ratio increased from
2.64 timesto 3.63 times, and the current ratio increased from 2.76 timesto 4.04 times.

- Capital Structure

The Company maintains a capital structure with a high self-financing ratio; the debt ratio at the
end of 2025 was 7.94%, a slight decrease compared to the same period in 2024. As the Company
doesnot utilize bank loans, itsliabilities primarily consist of short-term accounts payableto suppliers,
payables to employees, and short-term accrued expenses. Consequently, the Company's debt-to-total
assets and debt-to-total equity ratios are lower than those of other enterprises in the same industry.

- Profitability

Despite the challenges faced in the Company's business operations, the Company has
maintained stable profitability with a Return on Sales (ROS) hovering around the 9-10% mark. Port
and container yard operations is an industry with high gross profit margins, typically reaching 30—
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40%. ROS in 2025 reached 9.36%, a decrease of 0.83% compared to 2024. This slight decline in
ROS subsequently led to adownward trend in other profitability ratios: ROA in 2025 reached 5.41%
(down 0.7% compared to 2024), and ROE in 2025 reached 5.87% (down 0.83% compared to the
previous year).
- Operating Efficiency

The Company's revenue in 2025 decreased compared to the previous year, which led to a
slight decline in the total asset turnover ratio. The Total Asset Turnover decreased from 0.60 times
in 2024 to 0.58timesin 2025. A slight decrease in net revenue combined with an increase in current
assets caused the Company's Working Capital Turnover to drop from 2.81 times in 2024 to 2.24
times. The cost of goods sold (COGS) in 2025 decreased by 7.27%, a sharper decline than that of
inventory, resulting in aslight increase in Inventory Turnover from 34 times to 36.71 times.

3. Audit Opinionson the Company's Financial Statements

+* Independent Auditor's opinion on the Company's 2023 Financial Statements according to
Independent Audit Report No. HAN 3541 dated February 20, 2024

“In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view, in all material respects, of
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, aswell astheresults of its business
operations and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and relevant legal
regulations regarding the preparation and presentation of financial statements.”

+* Independent Auditor's opinion on the Company's 2024 Financial Statements according to
Independent Audit Report No. HAN 3877 dated February 18, 2025:

“In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view, in all material respects, of
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, as well as the results of its business
operations and its cash flows for the fiscal year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and relevant legal regulations
regarding the preparation and presentation of financial statements.”

4. Revenue, Profit, and Dividend Plan
41. Revenue, Profit, and Dividend Plan

Table 33: 2025 Profit and Dividend Plan

Actual Percentage
Taraet Performance in 2025 Plan Increase/(Decrease)
g 2024 (VND (VND hillion) of the 2025 Plan
billion) Compared to 2024
Throughput (TEUS) 320.720 283.000 -11,76%
Net Revenue 159 145 -9,00%
Profit After Tax 16 16,5 1,61%
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Profit After Tax to Net Revenue

) 10,19% 11,38% 1,19%
Ratio (%
Dividend Rate (%) 10% 11% 10%

Source: the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution No. 01/25/NQ-BPHDCD and GIC’s

4.2.

Audited Financial Statements for 2024

- The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of GIC approved the plan to issue
additional shares for the payment of 2024 dividends to existing shareholders at arate of
10%. The Company expects to implement the dividend distribution during the period
from Q4/2025 to Q2/2026.

- The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of GIC approved the 2025 Business
Plan and the proposed dividend rate for 2025.

Basesfor Achieving the Above Revenue, Profit and Dividend Plan
A favorable macroeconomic environment serves as a foundation supporting GIC in

accomplishing its business plan:

In 2025, both the domestic and global economies continue to face numerous persistent
challenges that threaten stability and growth prospects. Notably, one of the most
significant risks materialized in early April 2025 with the introduction of new tariff
policies by the new U.S. administration. The sudden and unpredictable changes in tariff
policy have posed, and will continue to pose, risks of escalating economic and political
tensions among major economies, disrupting the global economic order and affecting the
direction of capital flows and supply chains worldwide. Viet Nam’s economy is highly
open, and import—export activities have contributed positively to economic growth in
recent years. However, this high degree of openness also exposes the economy to elevated
risks amid fluctuations in the global economic environment.

The demand for transportation in the Southeast Asia region is projected to reach 82-85

million TEUs in 2025, while the current total capacity is only 53 million TEUs.

Hai Phong has set an ambitious growth target for 2025, with its industrial production index
expected to increase by 17% and total investment capital projected to reach VND 210
trillion, up 9% year-on-year. Cargo throughput via seaports in Hai Phong is anticipated to
reach 190 million tons, representing an 11% increase compared to the same period last
year. Growth opportunities for the seaport sector in the Hai Phong area therefore remain
promising, although accompanied by considerable challenges as regional competition
becomes increasingly intense.

Basisfor GIC to Accomplish the 2025 Business Plan as Set Out
Cumulatively to the end of 2025, GIC has achieved 107.57% of its revenue plan and

100.06% of its pre-tax profit plan.

As an enterprise whose core business activities consist of yard operation services and

container lifting and handling services, the Company’s contracts with customers are typically
settled on a monthly basis, as these services are provided continuously over extended periods.
This ensures a stable and recurring cash flow for the Company throughout the financial year.
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Based on executed customer contracts, the Company prudently formulates its annual
business plan in terms of throughput, revenue and profit, ensuring that such plans closely reflect
its actual operating performance.

One of the Company’s key strategies is to effectively manage resources, rigorously
implement cost-saving measures, and ensure efficient operations. The Company’s current
business activities are concentrated in the container yard operation segment.

Although the challenging market conditions have led to a decline in container throughput
and, consequently, a slight decrease in revenue compared to the previous year, the Company has
maintained stable operational efficiency indicators and profitability ratios.

According to the Ministry of Transport, by 2030 cargo throughput via Viet Nam’s seaports
is projected to increase significantly, with container cargo expected to reach 46.3 million TEUs
and dry bulk cargo estimated at 423.5 million tons (mainly alumina, iron and steel, and coal). The
positive medium- and long-term outlook for the shipping and seaport industry constitutes one of
the important grounds for GIC’s ability to achieve its planned revenue and profit targets in the
coming years.

4.3. Assessment by the Consulting Firm of the Revenue, Profit and Dividend Plan

In its capacity as a professional advisory firm, VIX Securities Joint Stock Company has
prudently and reasonably collected information and carried out research, analysis and evaluation of
the business operations of V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company. The Company has developed
a prudent business plan for 2025, under which planned revenue is projected to decrease by 9% and
planned profit after tax is expected to increase by only 1.61% compared to the actual results
achieved in 2024. Based on the Company’s current capabilities and the plans it is implementing,
and in the absence of abnormal fluctuations that could adversely affect its operations, the
Company’s revenue and profit targets for 2025 are considered attainable.

Cumulatively to the end of 2025, GIC recorded revenue of VND 155.97 billion and profit of
VND 16.51 hillion, equivalent to 107.57% of its revenue plan and 100.06% of its pre-tax profit
plan. Accordingly, GIC has fulfilled its 2025 business plan in terms of both revenue and profit.

We would also like to note that the above opinions are provided from the perspective of a
consulting organization, based on selectively collected information and established securities
finance theories, and do not imply any guarantee of the value of the securities or the certainty of the
forecast figures. These comments are intended solely for investors’ reference in making their own
investment decisions.

VI. INFORMATION ON FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS,

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE INSPECTION COMMITTEE,

THE DIRECTOR, DEPUTY DIRECTORSAND THE CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
1. Information on Founding Shareholders

VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company commenced operations on 24 January 2017. In
accordance with the Law on Enterprises, as of now, the transfer restrictions applicable to founding
shareholders have expired.

2. Information on Major Shareholders
Table 34: List of Major Shareholders
Y ear National ID Card No. L egal Representative
Name of it / Enterprise Address or Authorized
Birth y Registration Representative at the

68




/Y ear Certificate Issuer (Full Name
of No and Title)
Estab
lishm
ent
Vietnam 11 Vo Thi Sau
Container Street, May To
Shipping | 2002 | Vietnam | 0200453688 | Ward, Ngo Quyen TGaeE;r;,g g ir:zgtgc);
Joint Stock District, Hai Phong
Corporétion City, Viet Nam
AMERICA StKitts PO Box F43031
2012 and CA5883 ’ Paul Aunger
LLC Nevis Freeport, Bahamas

Source: List of Shareholders of GIC as of the Record Date of 30 June 2025, provided by VSDC
(Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation)

Table 35: Number and Percentage of Voting Shares Held by Major Shareholders and Their
Related Persons

Name

Date of Becoming a
Major Shareholder

30/06/2025

Expected After the
Offering

Number
of Shares

Owner ship
Ratio (%)

Number
of Shares

Ownership
Ratio (%)

Number
of Shares

Ownership
Ratio (%)

Vietnam Container
Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation

6.700.000

66,34

8.040.000

66,34

16.884.000

66,34

Hoang Hoa Nam —
Chairman of the
Trade Union of

Vietnam Container

Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation

14.400

0,12

30.240

0,12

Hoang Anh Tuan —
Husband of Ms. Tran
Thi Phuong Anh,
Member of the Board
of Directors of VSC

5.400

0,04

11.340

0,04

AMERICA LLC

0

0

845.400

6,98

1.690.800

6,98

Source: List of Shareholders of GIC as of the record date of 30 June 2025, provided by VSDC

— Contracts and transactions being performed or already signed but not yet performed
between the Issuer and shareholders, authorized representatives of shareholders
holding more than 10% of the Issuer’s total ordinary shares, and their related persons:
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Name of Implemen
Organization Other Competgnt bate OT tation
. . Authority | Executi
/Individual Type of Contrac | Material (of GIC) on of Status
NG (being M gj or Contract, t/Transa | Terms Approving the (Ongoing/
Shareholders Contract ction of the the Contra Signed but
and Their Number Value | Contrac . Not Yet
Transactio | ct/Tran
Related t 0 saction Performe
Persons) d)
Vietnam Board  of
Container Master Directors’
Shipping Agreement Payment Resolution
Joint  Stock | No. based on No. 0210/
1 | Corporation | 01/2025/HPN | monthly None | 12/2024/N 2025 Ongoing
(VSC) — | TIVSC-GIC Settleme Q-HbQT
Major (Supply of nt dated 31
Shareholder | Fuel) December
of GIC 2024
Vietnam Board  of
Container Master Directors’
Shipping Agreement Resolution
Joint  Stock | No. 161.000. No. 010/
2 | Corporation | 01/2023/HBN 000 None | 13/2022/N 2023 Ongoing
(VSC) —| TIVSC-GIC dongs Q-HbQT
Major (Provision of dated 03
Shareholder | Services) January
of GIC 2023
— Related Interestswith Respect to the Issuer:

+ Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation: a major shareholder currently
holding 66.34% ofthe Issuer’s charter capital, entitled to receive dividends and exercise
shareholders’ rights in accordance with the General Meeting of Shareholders’
Resolutions.

+ AMERICA LLC: a major shareholder currently holding 6.98% of the Issuer’s charter
capital, entitled to receive dividends and exercise shareholders’ rights in accordance
with the General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolutions.

— Enterprises operating in the same line of business as the Issuer in which Major

Shareholdershave related interests:

. Relationship with
Main . ,
NoO Name (?f BUSNESS M aj or Measgresfor M anaging
Enterprise . Shareholders of Conflicts of Interest (*)
Activities GIC
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Green Star Lines | Other Support GSL maintains its short-haul
1 One Member Services Wholly-owned shipping operations and has
Limited Company | Incidental to subsidiary of VSC | transferred  its  long-haul
(GSL) Transportation shipping segment to GIC.
Transferred its transportation
operations and part of its
warehousing facilitiesto GIC,
Green Logistics Warehousing Wholly-owned enabling GIC .to expand its
2 | Centre One and Storage of subsidiary of VSC vessel import—export
Member Ltd (GLC | Goods transport operations
(shipside-yard movements)
and  container  stuffing
services

(*)Pursuant to the overall restructuring orientation for the operations of VSC’s member units,

including GIC, GLC, GSL and VGI (Quang Binh — Dinh Vu Dry Port JSC), the parent company, VSC, is
expected to implement measures which may include, but are not limited to, merger plans or the sale of assets
associated with the operations of these companies in order to restructure business activities, minimize
overlaps, improve cost efficiency among companies with similar business lines, and reduce internal
competition. Under thisrestructuring, GIC will expand the scale of its warehousing operations and add long-
haul transportation services; GSL will maintain its short-haul transportation segment; and GLC will focus
on warehousing operations based on its existing facilities currently in operation.

Other enterprises that are major customers/suppliers of the Issuer in which Major
Shar eholders haverelated inter ests:

_ _ I mplementation
Relationship Status
NoO Name (_)f with M ajor Contracts/TransaF:tlon?c, Executed by the (Ongoing /
Enterprise Shareholders Enterprisewith GIC Signed but Not
of GIC Y et Perfor med)
Contract No. 01/2024/V GR-GIC dated
01 January 2024 regarding the lifting
and handling of containers for vessel
VIP Greenport import and export operations
1 Joint  Stock | Subsidiary Ongoing
Company of VSC Contract No. 03/2025/VGR-GIC dated
(VGR) 02 May 2024 regarding the provision
of stevedoring services, cargo and
container stuffing/unstuffing, and
services supporting vehicle repair
Green  Star Contract No. 1/2025 GIC-
Lines One GSL/HDDV SC dated 31 December
) Member Subsidiary | 2024 regarding the provision of Ongoing
Limited of VSC maintenance and repair services for
Company lifting and transportation equipment
(GSL) and vehicles
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Contract No. 01/2025/GSL-GIC dated
31 December 2024 regarding the
provision of container transportation
services
Contract No. 01/2025/HDNH/GSL-
GIC dated 30 December 2024
regarding the provision of container
lifting and handling services
Greenport Contract No. 01/2025/GRP-GIC/NH
3 Services One | Subsidiary | dated 31 December 2024 regarding the Ongoing
Member Ltd of VSC provision of container lifting and
(GRP) handling services.
Branch of
Viconship Ho
Chi Minh City Contract No. 04-2025/HDNH/VSC
4 One Member | Subsidiary | HCM—GIC dated 01 January 2025 Ongoing
Limited of VSC regarding the provision of container
Liability lifting and handling services.
Company in
HaNoi City
Contract No. 02/2025/HDNH/GLC-
Green GIC dgted 31 Decgnjber 2024 . Ongoing
. regarding the provision of container
Logistics - . . .
c | Centre One Subsidiary | repair and cleaning services
Member  Ltd of VSC Contract No. 01/2025/HPDNH/GLC-
GIC dated 31 December 2024 -
(GLC) ; s : Ongoing
regarding the provision of container
lifting and handling services.
3. Information on Members of the Board of Directors, the Inspection Committee, the
Director, Deputy Directors and the Chief Accountant
3.1 Board of Directors
Table 36: List of the Company’s Board of Directors
No FULL NAME YOB NATIONALITY POSITION
1 | Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung 1975 Vietnamese Chairman of the BOD
2 | Mr. Dong Trung Hai 1977 Vietnamese Member of the BOD
3 | Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi 1977 Vietnamese Member of the BOD
4 | Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh 1975 Vietnamese Member of the BOD
5 | Mr. Le Quang Huy 1979 Vietnamese Independené E)/I I:(-;-mber of the

3.1.1. Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung — Chairman of the BOD

+ YOB 23/02/1975

+ Nationality Vietnamese
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+ Educational Background

12/12

+ Positions Previously and Currently Held at the I ssuer

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

From March 2024 to present

Green Investment, Services and Development
Joint Stock Company — now VSC Green

Logistics Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

+ Postions Previously and Currently Held at Other Organizations

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position

[ month/year])
Thanh Thai [ k

10/2021 - 09/2022 anh  Thal - Group Joint  Stock | i Director
Company

04/2020 - 10/2023 Thanh Duc Holding Joint Stock Director
Company
Thanh Duc Holding Joint Stock | Chairman of the Board of

04/2020 - 06/2024

Company

Directors

09/2022 - 05/2024

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation

Member of the Board of
Directors

05/2024 — 04/2025

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation

Chairman of the Board of
Directors

04/2025- present

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation

Member of the Board of
Directors

06/2023 - present

VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock
Company

Member of the Board of
Directors

+ Number and Ownership
Percentage of Securitiesinthe
Issuer Held by the Individual,
Authorized  Representative,
and Their Related Persons as
of 30 September 2025

Number of Owne
Shares Held rship
Perce
ntage
Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung 0 0
Authorized Representative: 0 0
Related Person: Vietnam Container
66,34%
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation 8.040.000
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+ Related person who is concurrently a shareholder and an internal person of the Issuer: Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung is a Member of the Board of
Directors of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation — the parent company of GIC)

+ Related interests with respect to the I ssuer: Remuneration and salary

e 2023: None
e 2024: Board of Directors’ bonus — VND 55 million (paid in 2025)

+ Outstanding liabilities to the Issuer: None

+ Related interestsin other enterprises operating in the same line of business as the I ssuer or being major
customers/suppliers of the Issuer:

e Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung is a Member of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation (V SC) and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance with applicable
regulations and VSC’s policies.

e Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung is a Member of the Board of Directors of VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock
Company and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance with applicable regulations and the
company’s policies

3.1.2. Mr Dong Trung Hai — Member of the Board of Directors

+ YOB 28/12/1977

+ Nationality Vietnamese

+ Educational Background 12/12

+ YOB Engineer in Maritime Transport Economics
+ Postions Previously and Currently Held at the I ssuer

Term of Office
(From [month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])

Green Investment, Services and
Development Joint Stock Company —
now VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company

07/2017-11/2020 Deputy Director

Green Investment, Services and
Development Joint Stock Company —
now VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company

11/2020- present Director

Green Investment, Services and
Development Joint Stock Company — | Member of the Board of
now VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock | Directors cum Director
Company

04/2021- present

+ Positions Previously and Currently Held at Other Organizations:
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2000-2005 Traco Sai Gon Transport Joint Stock
Employee
Company
2005-2009 Tan Nhat Thanh VTB Company Emplovee
Limited POy
04/2010-09/2011 Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Emplovee
Stock Corporation Pioy
09/2011-02/2016 Green Star LinesOneMember Limited | Employee, Deputy Head of
Company Department, Sales Manager
03/2016- 06/2017 Ben Xanh One Member Limited .
Deputy Director
Company
15/04/2025- present Green Star Lines One Member Limited : :
Chairman and Director
Company (GSL)
02/2023- 11/2024 Quang Binh — Dinh Vu Dry Port JSC Director
+ Number and  ownership Number of Ownership
percentage of securitiesin the Shares Owned | Percentage
Issuing organization held by 'y, "0 Trung Hai 14.400 shares | 0,12%
the individual, authorized
represe’]tative’ and their Authorized Representative 0 0
related persons as of 30 | Related Persons 0 0
September 2025

+ Related persons who are simultaneously shareholders or internal persons of the issuing organization:
None

+ Related interests with respect to the issuing organization: Remuneration and salary
o 2023:
Director’s salary and bonus: VND 918.8 million;
Board of Directors’ bonus: VND 42 million (paid in 2024)
o 2024:
Director’s salary and bonus: VND 899.2 million;
Board of Directors’ bonus: VND 55 million (paid in 2025)

+ Outstanding debts to the issuing organization: None

+ Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same business line as the issuing organization or
being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization:

e Mr. Dong Trung Hai concurrently serves as Director and Chairman of Green Star Lines One
Member Limited Company (GSL) and receives remuneration and salary in accordance with the law
and GSL’s regulations.

3.1.3. Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi — Member of the Board of Directors

+ YOB 03/05/1977
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+ Nationality Viet Nam
+ Educational Background 12/12
+ Professional Qualifications Engineer

+ Positions Previously and Currently Held at the I ssuer

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])
Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company — currently | Member  of  the
2021- . . :
04/2021- present known as V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock | Board of Directors
Company
+ Positions currently held at other organizations

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

10/2020-04/2004

No. 1 Logistics Development Joint
Venture Company

Operation Department
Staff

07/2004-12/2016

GREENPORT

Operations Manager

12/2016-06/2018

GREENPORT

Deputy Director

06/2018-08/2024

VIP GREENPORT

Deputy Director

V1P Green Port Joint Stock

08/2024- present Company (VGR) Director
VIP Green Port Joint Stock Member of the Board of
03/2024- present Company (VGR) Directors

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Limited

07/2025 - present Liability Company (NDP) Director
+ Number and ownership Number of Own ©
e shares owned rship
percentage of securities in the
. . perce
issuing organization held by the ftage
individual, athorized i~
representative, and  related | Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi 0 0
ggrzsgns as of September 30, | aythorized representative 0 0
+ Related persons 0 0

+ Related persons who are also shareholders or internal persons of the issuing organization: None

+ Related interests in the issuing organization: Remuneration, salary
e Year 2023: BOD bonus of VND 40 million (paid in 2024)
o Year 2024: BOD bonus of VND 30 million (paid in 2025)
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+ Debtsto the issuing organization: None

+ Related interestsin other enterprises operating in the same business sector asthe issuing organization
or being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization:

e Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi concurrently serves as the Director and a Member of the Board of
Directors of VGR, and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with the law and

VGR'sregulations.

+ Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi is currently the Director of NDP and receives remuneration, salary,
and bonuses in accordance with the law and NDP's regulations.

3.1.4 Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh — Member of the Board of Directors

+ YOB 06/10/1975
+ Nationality Vietnamese
+ Educational Background 12/12

+ Professional Qualifications

Bachelor of Maritime Economics Engineering

+ Postions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

03/2022- present

Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company -

Member of the Board of

currently known as VSC Green | Directors
Logistics Joint Stock Company
+ Positions currently and previously held at other organizations
Term of Office
(From [ month/year] to Employing Organization Position

[ month/year])

05/1997 - 07/1999

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation

Staff - Agency Department

08/1999 - 07/2001

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint

Staff - Warehouse Operations

Stock Corporation Department

08/2001 - 01/2012 Vietnam Container Shipping Joint | Deputy Head of Warehouse
Stock Corporation Operations Department

02/2012 - 05/2014 Vietnam Contqlner Shipping Joint | Head of Warehouse Operations
Stock Corporation Department

06/2014 - 12/2019 Viconship Port Enterprise Head of Warehouse Operations

Department

01/2020 - 08/2021 G.ree.:n Po_rt _Sgrwces One Member | Head of Warehouse Operations

Limited Liability Company Department
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Green Port Services One Member . .
09/2021 - 02/2022 Limited Liability Company Deputy Director in charge

Green Port Services One Member .
03/2022 - presemt Limited Liability Company Director

Quang Binh — Dinh Vu ICD Joint | Chairman of the Board of

10/2022 — presemt Stock Company Directors

Centrad Vietnam Container Joint | Chairman of the Board of

11/2022 - presemt Stock Company Directors

Green Logistics Center One

03/2024 - presemt Member Limited Liability Company

Chairman of the Company

06/2024 - presemt Vietnam Container Shipping Joint | Member of the Board of

Stock Corporation Directors
+ Quantity and ownership Numlgrvrc:;dshares s;lr\l::rrlts;g

percentage of securities at

the issuing organization | Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh 0 0
held by the individual, the

authorized  representative, | AAUthorized Representative: 0 0
e relst:dsopzrgggs % Of [ Related persons: Vietnam Container 8.040.000 66,34%
Septem ’ Shipping Joint Stock Corporation

+ Related person who is also a shareholder and an insider of the issuing organization: Vietnam Container
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation

(Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is a Member of the Board of Directors of Vietham Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation — the parent company of VSC)

+ Related interests with the issuing organization: Remuneration, salary
e 2023: Board of Directors bonus of VND 40 million (paid in 2024)
e 2024: Board of Directors bonus of VND 30 million (paid in 2025)

+ Liabilitiesto the issuing organization: None

+ Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same business sector as the issuing organization,
or being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization:

e Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is currently the Director of Green Port Services One Member Limited
Liability Company (GRP) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with the law
and GRP's regulations,

e Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is currently the Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Quang Binh —
Dinh Vu ICD Joint Stock Company (VGI) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in
accordance with the law and VGI's regulations.

e Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is currently the Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Central Vietham
Container Joint Stock Company (V SM) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance
with the law and VSM's regulations.
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e Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is currently the Chairwoman of Green Logistics Center One Member
Limited Liability Company (GLC) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with
the law and GLC's regulations.

e Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh is currently a Member of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Container
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (VSC) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in
accordance with the law and V SC's regulations.

3.1.5. Mr. Le Quang Huy — Independent Member of the Board of Directors

+ YOB 25/03/1979
+ Nationality Vietnamese
+ Educational Background 12/12

+

Professional Qualifications | Bachelor of International Studies

+

Positions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office
(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])

Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company — now | Independent Member of the
known as VSC Green Logistics Joint Board of Directors

Stock Company

03/2025 - present

+ Positions currently and previously held at other organizations

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])
09/2002 - 06/2006 SAFI Company - Hanoi Branch Sales Executive

Oriental  Logistics Joint  Stock

07/2006 - 04/2008
Company

Sales Manager

Vinashin  Shipping Joint  Stock | Deputy Manager of

05/2008 - 10/2010 Company Forwarding Department

East Sea Logistics Joint Stock

04/2011 - 12/2013
Company

General Director

Vinalines Logistics Vietnam Joint

01/2014 - 04/2015 Stock Company

Deputy Sales Manager

Duyen Hai Transport Joint Stock

04/2015 - 06/2017
Company

General Director

Tan Cang 128 - Hai Phong Joint Stock

06/2017 - 01/2024
Company

Deputy Director
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Green Logistics Center One Member

Limited Liability Company Director

02/2024 - present

Quang Binh—DinhVu ICD Joint Stock

11/2024 - present Cormpany

Director

25/04/2025 - present Vinaship  Shipping Joint  Stock | Member of the Board of

Company Directors
+ Number and ownership Number of Ownership
percentage of shares held in sharesowned | percentage
the |§SU|_ng organlzatlor? by Mr. Le Quang Huy 0 0
the individual, authorized
representative, and related Authorized Representative 0 0
persons as of September 30, | Related Persons 0 0
2025
+ Related persons who are also shareholders or internal persons of the issuing organization: None
+ Interestsrelated to the issuing organization: Remuneration, Salaries
e 2023: None
e 2024: None

+

Debts owed to the issuing organization: None

+

Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same business sector as the issuing organization
or being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization:

e Mr. Le Quang Huy is currently the Director of Quang Binh — Dinh Vu ICD Joint Stock Company

(VGI) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with the law and VGl's
regulations.

Mr. Le Quang Huy is currently the Director of Green Logistics Center One Member Limited Liability
Company (GLC) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with the law and
GLC'sregulations.

Mr. Le Quang Huy is currently aMember of the Board of Directors of Vinaship Shipping Joint Stock
Company (Vinaship) and receives remuneration, salary, and bonuses in accordance with the law and
Vinaship's regulations.

3.2 Board of Management
3.2.1 Director: Mr. Dong Trung Hai (as above)
3.2.2 Mr. Dang Quoc Ve — Deputy Director

+ YOB 22/11/1978

+ Nationality Vietnamese

+ Educational Background | 12/12

+ Professional Bachelor of Radio Engineering
Qualifications
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+ Postions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

06/2024 - present

Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company — now
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company

Deputy Director

+ Positions held at other organizations:

07/2023 - 06/2024

Green Logistics Center One Member
Limited Liability Company

Deputy Director

12/2012 - 06/2023

Future Green Star Limited Liability
Company

Depot Manager

07/2007 - 11/2012

Bien Dong Logistics Joint Stock
Company

Manager of Sales Department —
Hai Phong Branch

+ Number and ownership
percentage of securities
a the issuing
organization held by
individuals, authorized
representatives, and
related persons as of
September 30, 2025

Number of shares | Ownership

owned percentage
Mr. Dang Quoc Ve 0 0
Authorized Representative 0 0
Related Persons 0 0

Related persons who are also shareholders or internal persons of the issuing organization: None

+ Related interests with the issuing organization: Remuneration and Salary

e 2023: None

e 2024: VND 310.4 million

+ Debts owed to the issuing organization: None

+ Related interestsin other enterprises operating in the same business sector asthe issuing organization
or being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization: None

3.3

Board of Supervisors

3.3.1 Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong — Head of the Board of Supervisors

+ YOB

30/11/1987

+ Nationality

Vietnamese

+ Educational Background

12/12

+ Professional
Qualifications

Financial and Accounting Management
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+ Positions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])
Green Development and Investment Service
04/2021 - present Joint Stock Company — now VSC Green gueagrsr;kz Board of
Logistics Joint Stock Company P
+ Positions held at other organizations:
Term of Office
(From[month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])
+ Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
+ 08/2009 Company Branch - Viconship Port | + Treasurer
Enterprise
+ 11/2015 + VIP Green Port Joint Stock Company + Accountant
+ 06/2020 - present + Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock | + Member of the Board of

Company (VSC)

Supervisors

03/2021 - present

+ VIP Green Port Joint Stock Company
(VGR)

+ Chief Accountant

06/2022 - present

+ Quang Binh - Dinh Vu ICD Joint Stock
Company (VGI)

+ Member of the Board of
Supervisors

Number and ownership
percentage of securities
at the issuing
organization held by
individuals, authorized
representatives, and
related persons as of
September 30, 2025

Ownersh
Number of ip
sharesowned | percenta
ge
Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong 0 0
Authorized Representative 0 0
Relatgd I?erson.s: Vietnam Container 8.040.000 66,34%
Shipping Joint Stock Company (VSC)

+ Related persons who are also shareholders and internal persons of the Issuing Organization: Vietham
Container Shipping Joint Stock Company (V SC) (Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong isa Member of the Board
of Supervisors of Vietham Container Shipping Joint Stock Company — the Parent Company of GIC)

+ Related interests in the issuing organization: Remuneration, salar
e 2023: Bonus for the Board of Supervisors: VND 30 million (paid in 2024)
e 2024: Bonus for the Board of Supervisors. VND 28 million (paid in 2025)

+ Liabilitiesto the issuing organization: None

82




+ Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same business sector as the issuing organization
or being major customers/suppliers of the issuing organization:

e Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong is currently a Member of the Board of Supervisors of Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Company (VSC) and receives remuneration and bonuses in
accordance with the provisions of law and VSC’s regulations.

Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong is currently a Member of the Board of Supervisors of Quang Binh -
DinhVu ICD Joint Stock Company (VGl) and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance with
the provisions of law and VGI’s regulations.
Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong is currently the Chief Accountant of VIP Green Port Joint Stock

Company (VGR) and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance with the provisions of law

and VGR’s regulations

3.3.2Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu — Member of the Board of Supervisors

+ YOB 09/10/1979

+ Nationality Vietnamese

+ Educational Background 12/12

+ Professional Qualifications | Economic Engineer

+ Postions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

04/2021 - present

Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company — now VSC
Green Logistics Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of
Supervisors

+ Postions held at other organizations:

Term of Office

(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

Employing Organization

Position

04/2014 - 12/2014

Ngo Quyen Construction and Service One
Member Limited Liability Company

Project Department Staff

01/2015 - 07/2015

Ngo Quyen Construction and Service One
Member Limited Liability Company

Deputy Manager of
General Finance
Department

08/2015 - present

Green Logigtics Center One Member
Limited Liability Company (GLC)

Chief Accountant

12/2021 - present

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Company

Member of the Internal
Audit Board

25/04/2025 - present

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Company

Member of the Board of
Supervisors
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Ownersh

+ Number and ownership Number of ip
percentage of securities at sharesowned | percenta
the issuing organization ge
held by individudls, | \1s phan Thi Trung Hieu 0 0

authorized representatives,

and related persons as of Authorized representative 0 0

September 30, 2025 Related persons. Vietnam Container

0,
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (VSC) 8.040.000 | 66,34%

Related persons who are simultaneously shareholders and internal persons of the Issuer: Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (V SC)

(Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu is a member of the Inspection Committee of Vietnam Container Shipping
Joint Stock Corporation — the parent company of GIC)

+ Related interests with respect to the Issuer: Remuneration and salary
e |n2023: Supervisory Board bonus of VND 24 million (paid in 2024)

e In2024: Supervisory Board bonus of VND 26 million (paid in 2025)

+ Outgtanding liabilities to the Issuer: None

+ Related interestsin other enterprises operating in the same line of business asthe Issuer or being major
customers/suppliers of the Issuer:
e Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu is currently a member of the Internal Audit Committee and the
Inspection Committee of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (V SC) and receives
remuneration and bonuses in accordance with applicable laws and VSC’s regulations

e Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu is currently the Chief Accountant of Green Logistics Centre One Member
Ltd (GLC) and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance with applicable laws and GLC’s
regulations

3.3.3 Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc — Member of the I nspection Committee

+ YOB 17/12/1988
+ Nationality Vietnamese
+ Educational Background | 12/12

+

Professional Qualifications | Bachelor of Accounting and Auditing; Bachelor of Foreign Languages

+

Positions currently and previously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office
(From [month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])

Green Investment, Services and Development
03/2022 - present Joint Stock Company — now VSC Green Logistics | Board of Supervisors
Joint Stock Company

+

Positions held at other organizations:

Term of Office Employing Organization Position
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(From[month/year] to
[ month/year])

10/2010- 04/2011

Bibi Hai Phong Kindergarten

General Accountant

04/2011- 12/2014

Duyen Ha Petroleum Construction and

General Accountant

Investment Joint Stock Company
: : Deputy Head of Finance
01/2015- 03/2017 Duyen Hai F_’etroleum Construction and and Accounting
Investment Joint Stock Company
Department
Duyen Ha Petroleum Construction and | Acting Chief
04/2017- 0212018 Investment Joint Stock Company Accountant
Senior Corporate

02/2018-05/2021

HDBank — Hai Dang Branch, Hai Phong

Banking Officer

. . I . Deputy Head of Finance
06/2021-05/2023 Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock |, Accounting
Corporation
Department
06/2023-10/2023 Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited | Chief Accountant
. . . . Deputy Head of Finance
11/2023 - present Vletnam' Container Shipping Joint Stock and Accounting
Corporation
Department

10/2022 - present

Quang Binh— Dinh'VVu Dry Port Joint Stock
Company (VGI)

Head of the Board of
Supervisors

Owners
+ Number and ownership Number of hip
percentage of securities at sharesowned | percent
the issuing organization age
held by individuals,
authorized representatives, Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc 0 0
and related persons as of | Aythorized representative 0 0
September 30, 2025
Related persons 0 0

+ Related persons who are smultaneously shareholders and internal persons of the Issuer: None

+ Related interests with respect to the I ssuer: Remuneration and salary
e |In2023: Supervisory Board bonus of VND 24 million (paid in 2024)

e |In2024: Supervisory Board bonus of VND 26 million (paid in 2025)

+ Outgtanding liabilities to the Issuer: None

+ Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same line of business as the Issuer or being
major customers/suppliers of the Issuer:
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e Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc is currently the Head of the Board of Supervisors of Quang Binh — Dinh
Vu Dry Port Joint Stock Company (VGI) and receives remuneration and bonuses in accordance
with applicable laws and VGI’s regulations.

34  Chief Accountant

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang — Chief Accountant
+ YOB 27/07/1982
+ Nationality Vietnamese
+ Educational Background | 12/12

+ Professional
Qualifications

Master of Economics, major in Accounting

+ Positions currently and prev

iously held at the issuing organization

Term of Office

(From [ month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])

Green Investment, Services and

06/2024 - present Development Joint Stock Company — now | Chief Accountant
V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company

+ Positions currently held at other organizations
11/2007- 12/2008 Indochina Company Limited Chief Accountant
01/2009 - 06/2010 Tan Viet Cuong Company Limited Chief Accountant

07/2010 - 31/12/2021

Center for Vocational Education and
Continuing Education under the People’s
Committee of Le Chan District

Chief  Accountant;
Accounting Lecturer

Term of Office

(From [month/year] to Employing Organization Position
[ month/year])
. Owne
+ Number and owr.1(=jrsh|p Number of rship
percgntage of secur|.t|e§ at sharesowned | perce
the issuing organization rtage
held by individuals, _
authorized representatives, | Ms- Nguyen Thi Thu Hang 0 0
and related persons as of | Authorized representative 0 0
September 30, 2025
Related persons 0 0

+ Related persons who are simultaneously shareholders and internal persons of the Issuer: None
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+ Related interests with respect to the I ssuer: Remuneration and salary

e In2023: VND 391.5 million (prior to her appointment as Chief Accountant, Ms. Hang served as
Deputy Head of the Finance and Accounting Department)

e |n2024: VND 497 million

+ Outstanding liabilities to the Issuer: None

+ Related interests in other enterprises operating in the same line of business as the Issuer or being
major customers/suppliers of the Issuer: None

VII. INFORMATION ON THE OFFERING

1. Typeof Shares
Common shares

2. Par Value
10.000 VND/per share

3. Total Number of Shares Expected to be | ssued
A total of 13,332,000 shares, comprising:

- Shares issued for 2024 dividend payment in shares: 1,212,000 shares

- Public offering of additional sharesto existing shareholders: 12,120,000 shares
The Company will implement both plans in the same issuance. Accordingly, on the record
date for exercising shareholders’ rights, shareholders will receive both subscription rights for
the additional share offering and the right to receive share dividends.

4. Total Par Value of Sharesto belssued
VND 133,320,000,000, of which:

- Share dividend issuance: VND 12,120,000,000

- Public offering to existing shareholders: VND 121,200,000,000

5.  Offering Price (for shares offered to existing shareholders)
10.000 VND/per share

6. Pricing Basis

- The book value per share of GIC as of December 31, 2024, based on the 2024 audited financial
statements, was VND 19,997 per share

- The market price of GIC shares as of November 19, 2025 was VND 15,700 per share (closing
price) (Source: hnx.vn).

Accordingly, the offering price is lower than the Company’s book value per share based on
the 2024 audited financial statements and lower than the market price of GIC shares as of February
12, 2025. Pursuant to Article 126 of the Law on Enterprises, the Company is permitted to issue
shares to existing shareholders at a price not higher than the market price at the time of offering or
the book value per share at the most recent time. In addition, taking into account the price adjustment
on the ex-rights date, the General Meeting of Shareholders has approved the offering price of VND
10,000 per share to ensure shareholders’ interests and the success of the public offering to existing
shareholders.
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Distribution Method

Share I ssuance for Dividend Payment

Number of sharesto be issued: 1,212,000 shares

Total par value: VND 12,120,000,000

I ssuance ratio: 10% (shares to be issued / outstanding shares)

Exerciseratio: 10:1 (Shareholders owning 10 shares will receive 1 new share)

Eligiblerecipients: Existing shareholders listed on the record date determined by the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC)

Source of issuance: Undistributed after-tax profits as shown in GIC’s 2024 audited financial
statements

Expected issuance time: Q4/2025 — Q2/2026, subject to approval by the State Securities
Commission of Vietnam (SSC)

Rounding principle and treatment of fractional shares: The number of shares issued as
dividends will be rounded down to the nearest whole share. Fractional shares (if any) will be
cancelled.

Example: If shareholder Nguyen Van A owns 589 shares on the record date, the number of
dividend shares received will be (589 + 10) x 1 = 58.9 shares, rounded down to 58 shares.
The fractional 0.9 share will be cancelled.

Transfer restriction: Shares issued as 2024 dividends are not subject to transfer restrictions
Public Offering of Additional Sharesto Existing Shareholders

Number of shares offered: 12,120,000 shares

Offering price: VND 10,000 per share

Offering ratio: 100% of outstanding shares

Exercise ratio: 1:1 (Each shareholder owning 1 share on the record date will receive 1
subscription right; every 1 right entitles the holder to purchase 1 new share)

Total expected proceeds. VND 121,200,000,000

Minimum successful subscription rate: Not applicable

Expected offering period: Q4/2025 — Q2/2026, subject to SSC approval
Distribution method: Rights offering to existing shareholders

Use of proceeds. To supplement working capital and invest in additional factories,
warehouses, machinery, equipment, and transport vehicles for business operations.

Eligible investors: Existing shareholders listed on the record date determined by VSDC

Transfer of subscription rights. Subscription rights may be transferred once only (the
transferee may not further transfer to athird party). Transfer price and payment terms shall
be agreed upon by the parties, who are responsible for fulfilling all related obligations in
accordance with applicable regulations.

Transfer redtrictions: Shares purchased by existing shareholders and transferees of
subscription rights are not subject to transfer restrictions.

Shares remaining unsubscribed by existing shareholders (including fractional shares arising
fromrounding) that are subsequently offered to other investorswill be restricted from transfer
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for one (01) year from the completion date of the offering in accordance with regulations.

Rounding principle: The number of sharesallocated to each shareholder will be rounded down
to the nearest whole share to ensure total distributed shares do not exceed the total offered
shares.

Example: If shareholder Nguyen Van A owns 589 shares on the record date, with an exercise
ratio of 1:1, the number of shares A may purchaseis (589 + 1) x 1 = 589 shares.

Treatment of fractional and unsubscribed shares. Fractional shares (if any) and shares not
subscribed or paid for by existing shareholders will be offered by the Board of Directors to
other investors (including existing shareholders wishing to increase their holdings) at a price
not lower than the offering price to existing shareholders. The criteriaand list of such investors
shall be determined by the Board of Directors as authorized by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

If, upon expiry of the distribution period (including any extension), shares remain
unsubscribed, such shares will be cancelled, and the Board of Directors will decide to close
the offering. The Company will increase its charter capital based on the actual number of
shares successfully issued.

Minimum successful offering rate: Not applicable

Share Subscription

Minimum subscription quantity: Not specified

Subscription period: The Company will announce the specific subscription period in the

Offering Notice and will ensure that the registration and payment period for securities
subscription by investorsis at least twenty (20) days in compliance with regulations.

Method of subscription and payment: The shareholder list as of the record date shall serve as
the basis for registering the exercise of rights to purchase newly issued shares in accordance
with the allocated entitlement ratio.

+ For shareholders who have deposited shares with depository members. Shareholders who
maintain accounts and deposit their shares with any depository member shall register the
exercise of their rights through such depository member.

+ For shareholders who have not deposited shares. Registration for share subscription and
transfer of subscription rights shall be conducted at the head office of VSC Green
Logistics Joint Stock Company. Payment for the newly offered shares shall be made into
the Company’s blocked account with the following details:

e Account Name: VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
e Account Number: 100303950

e Bank: Vietham Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Eximbank) —Hai Phong
Branch
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9.  Expected Schedulefor Share Distribution

The offering and distribution of shares to existing shareholders is expected to be carried out
within 90 days from the date the State Securities Commission of Vietnam grants the Certificate of
Registration for the Offering.

The specific schedule will be detailed in the Securities Offering Notice.

Table 37: Expected Schedule for Share Distribution to Existing Shareholders

No Content Timeline
1 | The Certificate of Registration for the Public Offering becomes effective D
5 Disclosure of information regarding the offering in an electronic newspaper D dén D+7
or printed newspaper for three (03) consecutive issues ©
3 | Ex-rightsdate D+11
4 | Record date D+12
Coordination with VSDC to alocate and notify the list of allocated share P
. . D+16 dén
5 | purchase rights to depository members and shareholders who have not D+22
deposited securities
5 Existing shareholders register, transfer subscription rights, and make | D+23 dén
payment for share purchases D+43
VSDC consolidates the exercise of rights by existing shareholders, sends
7 | the list of shareholders who have exercised their subscription rights, and D+50
transfers the subscription proceeds to the blocked account
8 The Issuer handles the undistributed shares D+51 dén
D+61
9 Report to the State Securities Commission of Vietnam on the results of the D+62
offering
10 Submission of application dossier for adjustment of the number of D+64
registered securities and additional listing registration
1 Delivery of shares or issuance of share ownership certificatesto purchasers | D+64 dén
D+94
10. Method of Exercising Rights

This is a case where the Company conducts an offering of additional ordinary shares to
existing shareholders and issues dividend shares in proportion to each shareholder’s current
ownership in the Company.
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After receiving notification of their subscription rights and entitlement to share dividends,
shareholders shall exercise their rights (including transfer of subscription rights and registration to
purchase shares) in accordance with Sections VI1.7, VI11.8, and V11.9 of this Prospectus.

This public offering of additional shares is not underwritten by any underwriting
organization.
11. Restrictionson Share Transfer

11.1 For sharesissued as dividend payment
These are ordinary shares and are not subject to transfer restrictions from the date of
distribution.

11.2 For sharesoffered to existing shareholders

- Shares distributed to existing shareholders and to transferees of subscription rights from
existing shareholders are not subject to transfer restrictions.

- Any remaining shares not fully distributed to existing shareholders (including fractional
shares arising from rounding) that are subsequently offered to other investors shall be
restricted from transfer for one (01) year from the completion date of the offering, in
accordance with regulations.

12. Escrow Account for Share Subscription Proceeds

= Account Name: VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company

= Account Number: 100303950

=  Bank: Vietham Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Eximbank)
13.  Opinion of Competent Authoritieson the Charter Capital Increase

As the Issuer does not operate in a conditional business line requiring approval under
specialized laws, no approval from any competent state authority is required for the charter capital
increase.

14. M easuresto Ensure Compliance with Foreign Ownership Limits

The Company’s Charter does not impose restrictions on foreign ownership. However, under
current regulations, where a public company operates in multiple business lines subject to different
foreign ownership limits, the foreign ownership ratio must not exceed the lowest limit applicable to
the business lines in which the company operates.

According to the latest shareholder list dated 07 February 2025, foreign investors hold
1,333,100 shares, representing 11% of the Company’s total voting shares.

Pursuant to Official Letter No. 658/UBCK-PTTT dated 01 April 2025 issued by the State
Securities Commission of Vietnam, the maximum foreign ownership limit is 49%. To ensure that
foreign ownership does not exceed 49% of the Company’s charter capital during the offering to
existing shareholders, the Board of Directors will implement the following measures:

- Coordinating with VSDC to ensure that shareholders do not transfer subscription rights to
foreign investors if such transfer would cause the foreign ownership ratio to exceed the
permitted limit.

- For fractional shares arising from rounding and any shares not subscribed by existing

shareholders, the Company commits not to offer these shares to foreign investors in order
to comply with the maximum foreign ownership limit.
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15.
151

15.2
+

Applicable Taxes

For the Company

Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Company appliesthe VAT credit method, with a VAT rate of 10%.
Corporate Income Tax (CIT)

Current income tax is calculated based on taxable income for the period and the tax rate
effective at the end of the accounting period. Taxable income differs from accounting profit due to
adjustments for temporary differences between tax and accounting treatments, as well as
adjustments for non-taxable income and non-deductible expenses.

Other Taxes
The Company declares and pays other taxes in accordance with prevailing laws.

The Company’s tax reports are subject to inspection by tax authorities. As tax regulations
may be interpreted differently depending on the nature of transactions, the tax amounts presented
in the financial statements may be adjusted based on the final determination of tax authorities.

For Investorsin Relation to the Offered Shares
Individual Investors
Individual Investors

+

For domestic individual investors: Tax on income from securitiestransfer is0.1% of the
transfer price per transaction, as dipulated in Point 2, Article 16 of Decree No.
12/2015/ND-CP dated 12 February 2015 of the Government guiding amendments and
supplements to certain tax laws and related decrees.

For foreign individual investors: Income from securities transfer is subject to personal
income tax at 0.1% of the gross transfer proceeds, in accordance with Point 2, Article
20 of Circular No. 111/2013/TT-BTC dated 1 October 2013 regarding income from
capital investment and capital transfer.

Income from dividends

Pursuant to Circular No. 111/2013/TT-BTC dated 1 October 2013, dividend income
received by individualsis considered taxable income and subject to aflat tax rate of 5%.
In case of stock dividends or bonus shares, investors are not required to pay tax at the
time of receipt. However, upon transferring such shares, the investor must fulfill tax
obligations in accordance with regulations (generally through securities transfer tax as
applicable at that time).

Institutional Investors

+

I nstitutional I nvestors

For domestic ingtitutions: 1n accordance with Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC dated 18
April 2014, income from capital transfer and securities transfer is classified as other
income and subject to corporate income tax (CIT) at the sandard rate (currently 20%).

For foreign institutions. Income from securities transfer is subject to CIT at 0.1% of
taxable revenue, in accordance with Circular No. 103/2014/TT-BTC dated 6 August
2014.

Income from dividends
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+ Dividend income received by institutional investors is exempt from corporate income
tax pursuant to Clause 6, Article 4 of the Law on Corporate Income Tax (2008, as
amended).

16. Information on Commitments

The Company commits to implementing both issuance plans in the same offering, including
the issuance of shares for dividend payment and the offering of additional shares to existing
shareholders.

The Company undertakes to comply with Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP and the Listing
Regulations of the Stock Exchange regarding supplementary listing within thirty (30) days after
completion of the public offering.

The implementation plan is as follows:

+ To submit the report on offering results to the State Securities Commission of Vietnam
within 10 days from the completion date of the public share offering; and, 15 days from
the completion date of the dividend share issuance;

+ To submit the application for adjustment of the number of registered shares to the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC) immediately after
receiving the SSC’s confirmation of receipt of the offering results report;

+ To submit the application for additional listing of shares to the Hanoi Stock Exchange
(HNX) immediately after obtaining the certificate of additional securities registration
from VSDC.

17.  Information on Other Securities Offered or Issued Concurrently

None

VIll. PURPOSE OF THE OFFERING

VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company is conducting a public share offering to
supplement working capital and to invest in additional workshops, warehouses, machinery,
equipment, and transportation vehicles serving its production and business operations.

[X. PLAN FOR THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OFFERING
1. Plan for the Use of Proceeds

The total estimated proceeds from the public offering of shares by VSC Green Logistics
Joint Stock Company amount to VND 121,200,000,000 (One hundred twenty-one billion two
hundred million Vietnamese Dong). The proceeds from the offering of additional sharesto existing
shareholders will be used to supplement working capital and to invest in additional workshops,
warehouses, machinery, equipment, and transportation vehicles for business operations. The
allocation of capital will follow the principle of priority in descending order as outlined below:

Amount Expected |mplementation

No Item (VND) Period

Investment in additional workshops

and warehouses 40.000.000.000 QI/2026 to QI1/2027

Investment in additional transportation

vehicles 67.000.000.000 QI/2026 to QI1/2027

93




g | Investment in eadditional machinery | o0 000000 | QI/2026to QI/2027
and equipment
4 | Supplementation of working capital 10.000.000.000 During 2026
Total 121.200.000.000
+ Detailed Disbursement Plan
Estimated Expected
No. Purpose of Capital Use Disbur sement Disbur sement
(VND) Period
1 Investment in additional wor kshops and 40.000.000.000
warehouses
Land use right transfer contract No. QI/2026 to
36/HPCN/GLC-GIC dated 29 Aug 2025 between Ql/2027
1.1 y 40.000.000.000
Green Logistics Center Co., Ltd. and VSC Green
Logistics JISC
5 Inv_estment in additional transportation 67.000.000.000
vehicles
Vehicle transfer contract No.
170/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC dated 29 Aug 2025
21 between Blue Star Shipping & Transport Co., 49.000.000.000 Ql/2026 to
Ltd. and VSC Green Logistics JSC QI1/2027
Vehicle transfer contract No.
170/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC dated 29 Aug 2025
22 between Blue Star Shipping & Transport Co., 18.000.000.000
Ltd. and VSC Green Logistics JSC
3 Inv'eﬂment in additional machinery and 4.200.000.000
equipment
Machinery and equipment transfer contract No.
169/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC dated 29 Aug 2025
3.1 between Blue Star Shipping & Transport Co., 600.000.000 Ql/2026 to
Ltd. and VSC Green Logistics JSC QI1/2027
Machinery and equipment transfer contract No.
38/HPCNTS/GLC-GIC dated 29 Aug 2025
3.2 between Green Logistics Center Co., Ltd. and 3.600.000.000
VSC Green Logistics JSC
4 | Supplementation of working capital 10.000.000.000
4.1 | Labor and administrative expenses 4.000.000.000
4.2 | Labor and administrative expenses 3.000.000.000 | During 2026
43 Fuel., materials (consumables and reserves) and 3.000.000.000
repair expenses
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Total 121.200.000.000

In the event that the total proceeds raised are lower than planned, the Board of Directors
shall, based on actual circumstances:

+  Allocate the proceeds in the order of priority (1) — (2) — (3) — (4). Within each category,
allocation will follow the internal priority order (2.1) — (2.2); (3.1) — (3.2); and (4.1) —
(4.3) as stated above.

+ Consider flexibly using loan capital and other lawful funding sources to make up for any
shortfall in the Company’s total capital requirements.

2. Measuresin Case of Undersubscription or Insufficient Proceeds

In the event that not all offered shares are distributed or the total proceeds raised are lower
than expected, the following measures shall apply:

- The Board of Directors is authorized to select investors for further distribution of the
remaining shares at a price not lower than VND 10,000 per share, and may carry out
procedures to request the State Securities Commission of Vietnam to extend the offering
period if deemed necessary.

- If, upon completion of the offering, the total proceeds are lower than the expected amount of
VND 121,200,000,000, the Board of Directors shall proactively utilize loan capital and other
lawful funding sources to cover the shortfall in the Company’s total funding needs.

3. Information on Working Capital Supplementation

Pursuant to the restructuring strategy for the overall operations of VSC’s subsidiaries,
including VSC Green Logigtics Joint Stock Company (GIC), Green Logistics Center Co., Ltd.
(GLC), Blue Star Shipping & Transport Co., Ltd. (GSL), and Quang Binh — Dinh Vu Inland Port
Joint Stock Company (VGl), the parent company V SC is expected to implement various measures,
including but not limited to mergers or the transfer of assets associated with the operations of these
entities. The objective is to reduce overlapping business activities, improve cost management
efficiency among entities operating in similar business lines, and minimize internal competition.
Following the restructuring: GIC will expand its warehousing operations and add both long-haul
and short-haul transport services (including ship-to-yard transport); GSL will downsize its
operations; and GLC will focus on its existing warehousing segment.

Accordingly, in addition to its two core business lines — yard operations (including
warehousing, storage, and cargo handling services) and container repair services— GIC will further
expand into long-haul transportation, add ship-to-yard container transport services (shipside
operations), and construct new general cargo warehouses for container stuffing (supporting services
for yard operations and transportation). These service segments form part of the container logistics
value chain, spanning from port services (shipside operations) to yard and warehouse operations,
general cargo warehousing, container stuffing, long-haul transportation, and container repair,
thereby completing a key link in the business development strategy of the VSC system in general
and GIC in particular.

Company’s business and investment strategy in the coming period includes:

- Operating along-haul trucking fleet: acquiring tractors and semi-trailers from GSL and GLC,
taking over existing customers from GSL and GLC, and expanding market reach to develop
new partners.
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- Expanding shipside yard operations and container lifting services by acquiring additional
internal port tractors from GSL and forklifts (both diesel and electric) from GLC.

- Congtructing additional general cargo warehouses and upgrading container yards at the
warehouse and container yard land lot located at Lot CN3.2l, Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Hai

Phong, covering an area of 10,120 n¥, to be acquired from GLC.

- Upgrading existing container yards within the Company’s current 10-hectare yard facilities.

With the acquisition of 325 vehicles of various types from GSL and GLC, the Company’s
transportation capacity and container-related service capabilities will increase substantially. This
expansion will lead to a corresponding rise in working capital requirements associated with fleet
operations, including: labor costs; fuel and consumable materials; reserve fuel and materials;
repair and maintenance expenses for transportation vehicles; and procedural costs at ports, depots,
and shipping lines, among others. Accordingly, the Company estimates that its working capital
requirements for the following year will increase significantly and has prepared a projected
working capital supplementation plan as follows:

No. Projected Indicatorsfor 2026 Amount (VND) Notes
Assumes GIC takes over
business operations related
1 | Planned revenue for 2026, of which: 209.000.000.000 | to assets acquired from
GLC and GSL darting
from Q3/2026
| Additional revenue from fleet inherited 60.000.000.000
from GSL
Includes container yard
Additional revenue from expanded yard operdtion revenue a LOF
: . ) CN3.2l from Q3/2026;
- | service capacity and transport vehicles 4.000.000.000
. revenue from the general
acquired from GLC . .
cargo stuffing warehouse is
not yet included
Profit after tax 22.000.000.000
Average current assets 50.000.000.000
Working capital expenses, of which: 210.000.000.000
Working capital expenses of GIC under
| the .orlglnal gcale (%Urnated to‘be 90.000.000.000
consstent with working capital
expenses in 2024 and 2025)
Working capital expenses of GIC under Calculated based on
| the original scale (estimated to be 120.000.000.000 | transport vehicles acquired
consstent with working capital fromGSL and GLC
expenses in 2024 and 2025)
5 | Working capital turnover ratio 4,18 times B =D/(3
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Working capital required per turnover
.000.000. =4
6 oycle (rounded) 50.000.000.000 (6) =(4)/(5)
Expected construction of
Investment in construction of general general cargo warehouse at
7 | cargo warehouse and major repairs of | 52.000.000.000 | Lot CN3.2l acquired from
container yard (expected in 2026) GLC and repars of
existing container yard
8 Projected current assets a year-end 26.000.000.000
2025
9 Additional working capital requirement 26.000.000.000 9) = (6)+(7)-(8)
for 2026
Of which:
- Capital raised fromthe offering | 10.000.000.000
- Capital raised fromthe offering | 16.000.000.000

Given the Company’s additional working capital requirement of VND 26 billion in 2026, the
plan to raise VND 10 billion from the offering is considered consistent with the Company’s business

plan.
The Board of Directors has approved a detailed working capital utilization plan as follows:
Estimated Expected
No. Purpose of Fund Utilization Disbur sement Disbur sement
Amount (VND) Timeline
1 | Supplementing working capital, including: 10.000.000.000
1.1 | Personnel and management expenses 4.000.000.000
12 Fuell, consumables (usage and reserves) and 3.000.000.000 During 2026
repair expenses
13 Car.go handling expenses and other working 3.000.000.000
capital expenses
4. Information on Investment in Additional Workshops, Warehouses, Machinery,
Equipment and Transport Vehiclesfor Business Operations
The assets to be acquired by the Company from GLC and GSL are as follows:
No. Quantity (units) Value (VND)
I Transport vehicles 325 67.000.000.000
1 From GSL 246 49.000.000.000
Transport vehicles 123 37.800.000.000
Semi-trailers 123 11.200.000.000
2 From GLC 79 18.000.000.000
Tractor trucks 13 550.000.000
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Semi-trailers 35 1.110.000.000

Forklifts 31 16.340.000.000
[ Machinery and equipment 4.200.000.000

Acquired from GSL 600.000.000

Acquired from GLC 3.600.000.000
Il | Workshops and warehouses 40.000.000.000

acquired from GLC

Total 111.200.000.000

4.1. Acquisition of Assetsfrom Green Star Lines One Member Limited Company (GSL)
a. General Information
— Company name: Cong ty TNHH Mot thanh vién Van tai bién Ngoi sao xanh (“GSL”)
— English name: GREEN STAR LINES ONE MEMBER LIMITED COMPANY
— Abbreviation: GS Lines
— Head office: No. 05 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam
— Enterprise Registration Certificate No.: 0200468606, first issued on 14 June 2002 by the
Hai Phong DPI, with the 14th amendment dated 05 August 2025 issued by the Hai Phong
Department of Finance
— Business lines: Road and inland waterway freight transport, multimodal transport,
warehousing, maintenance and repair services, sale of auto spare parts and accessories,
wholesale of petroleum, machinery and equipment
— Relationship with GIC and itsrelated persons:
+  Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation — the parent company holding
66.34% of GIC — currently owns 100% of GSL’s charter capital.
+  Mr. Dong Trung Hai — Board Member and General Director of VSC Green Logistics
JSC — concurrently serves as Chairman and General Director of GSL.
b. Financial Information of GSL
— Charter Capital: 76.000.000.000 VND
— Business performance in 2024 and accumulated results up to the end of Q3/2025

Unit: VND
Revenu Profit After Tax
Accumulated to end Liiy ké dén cuoi
2024 of Q3/202 2024 Quy 111/2025
204.771.746.547 148.363.164.859 204.771.746.547 10.550.864.613

Source: Audited financial statements for 2024 and Q3/2025 financial statements of GSL
— The Company’s assets and capital structure in 2024 and as at 30 September 2025:

Unit: VND
No [tem 2024 30/09/2025
1 | Total assets 113.655.676.438 115.583.890.894
1.1 | Short-term Assets 69.382.154.457 80.134.944.216
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C.

1.2 | Long-term Assets 44.273.521.981 35.448.946.678
2 | Equity 89.668.704.913 86.953.731.843
3 | Liabilitites 23.986.971.525 28.630.159.051

Source: Audited financial statements for 2024 and Q3/2025 financial statements of GSL
Legal Basisfor the Asset Acquisition from GSL
Legal Basis for the Asset Acquisition from GSL

+

Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/N Q-
DHDCD dated 10 March 2025 of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
(formerly Green Service and Development Investment Joint Stock Company), and
the Submission to the General Meeting of Shareholders dated 14 February 2025
regarding the approval of the share issuance plan for charter capital increase;

Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 07/2025/NQ-HDPQT dated 23 August 2025 of
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company approving the asset acquisition
transaction with a related party, namely Green Star Lines One Member Limited
Company;

Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 08/2025/NQ-HDQT dated 29 August 2025 of
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company approving the implementation of the
share issuance plan for charter capital increase and the plan for use of proceeds from
the offering;

Decision No. 166/QD-CT dated 25 August 2025 of the Chairman of Green Star Lines
One Member Limited Company approving the liquidation of assets.

d. Asset Purchase Agreements Executed between GIC and GSL
No. Contract Name Contract No. Signing Date Contract Value
(VND)
| | Venide Transter | 120/ HPCNTS/IGSL-GIC | 29/08/2025 |  49.000.000.000
Agreement
Machinery and Equipment
2 169/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC | 29/08/2025 600.000.000
Transfer Agreement
Total 49.600.000.000
— Pursuant to Vehicle Transfer Agreement No. 170/HPCNTS/GSL-GIC, the assets
acquired by the Company include:
No. Type of Vehicle Quantity (units) Value (VND)
1 | Container Semi-Trailers 123 11.200.000.000
2 | Truck Tractors (Prime Movers) 123 37.800.000.000
Total 246 49.000.000.000
— Pursuant to Machinery and Equipment Transfer Agreement No. 169/HDCNTS/GSL-

GIC, the assets acquired by the Company include:
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No.

Quantity

Asset Description
(systems)

Value (VND)

Workshop Equipment System 01 397.000.000

Office Equipment System 01 203.000.000

Total 02 600.000.000

4.2.

b.

Information on the Acquisition of Assets from Green Logistics Centre One Member
Company Limited
General Information

Company name: Cong ty TNHH Mét thanh vién Trung tam Logistics Xanh (“GLC”)
English name: GREEN LOGISTICS CENTRE ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED
Abbreviation: GLC

Head office address: Land Lot CN3.2G, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai
An District, Hai Phong City, Vietnam.

Enterprise Registration Certificate No.: 0201263312, first issued by the Hai Phong
Department of Planning and Investment on 16 May 2012, with the 7th amendment dated
01 February 2024.

Business lines. Provision of cargo handling services, warehousing and storage services,
and other logistics support services related to transportation.

Relationship between GIC and itsrelated persons with GLC:

+ Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation — the parent company holding
66.34% of GIC’s charter capital — currently owns 100% of the charter capital of
Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited.

+ Mr. Le Quang Huy — Independent Member of the Board of Directors of VSC Green
Logistics Joint Stock Company — is currently serving as Director of Green Logistics
Centre One Member Company Limited.

+ Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu — Member of the Supervisory Board of VSC Green
Logistics Joint Stock Company — is currently serving as Chief Accountant of Green
Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited.

+ Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh — Member of the Board of Directors of VSC Green
Logistics Joint Stock Company — is currently serving as Chairwoman of Green
Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited.

Financial Information of Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited

Charter Capital: 620.000.000.000 VND
Financial Information of Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited

Unit: VND
Revenu Profit After Tax
Accumulated to Accumulated to
2024 end of Q3/202 2024 end of Q3/202
256.221.083.695 207.113. 396.581 (29.077.630.011) 2.111.390.560
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d.

Source: Audited Financial Satements for 2024 and the Financial Satements for

Q3/2025 of GLC.

— The Company’s assets and capital structure in 2024 and as at 30 September 2025:

Unit: VND

STT Noi dung

2024

30/09/2025

1 | Total assets

669.600.131.419

744.961.916.783

1.1 | Short-term Assets

113.300.133.412

215.730.319.946

1.2 | Long-term Assets

556.299.999.007

529.231.596.837

2 | Equity 601.990.255.368 604.101.645.928

3 | Liabilitites 67.609.877.051 140.860.270.855

Source: Audited Financial Satements for 2024 and the Financial Satements for
Q3/2025 of GLC.

Legal bass for the acquisition of assets from Green Logistics Centre One Member

Company Limited

— The Company will use VND 61,600,000,000 from the proceeds of the offering to acquire
assets from Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited in accordance with
the following legal documents:

+

Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/NQ-
DHDCD dated 10 March 2025 of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
(former name: Green Development and Service Investment Joint Stock Company)
and the AGM Proposal dated 14 February 2025 approving the plan for the share
issuance to increase charter capital;

Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 06/2025/NQ-HDPQT dated 23 August 2025 of
V SC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company approving the asset purchase transaction
with arelated party being Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited;
Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 08/2025/NQ-HDPQT dated 29 August 2025 of
VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company approving the implementation of the
share issuance plan to increase charter capital and the plan for use of proceeds from
the issuance;

Decision No. 52/Qb-CT dated 25 August 2025 of the Chairman of Green Logistics
Centre One Member Company Limited approving the liquidation of assets.

Asset purchase agreements executed between GIC and GLC

No.

Signing Contract Value

Contract Name Contract No. Date (VND)

Land Use Rights Transfer

1 Contract 36/HPCN/GLC-GIC | 29/08/2025 | 40.000.000.000
2 | Vehicle Transfer Contract | 37/HPCNTS/GLC-GIC | 29/08/2025 | 18.000.000.000
3 | Vehicle Transfer Contract | 38/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC | 29/08/2025 3.600.000.000

Total 61.600.000.000

— Pursuant to the Land Use Rights Transfer Agreement No. 36/HPDCN/GLC-GIC, the
Company will acquire the warehouse land lot and container yard areafrom GLC, located
at Lot CN3.2I, Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam:
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Asset Unit Area Transfer Value (VND)

Land Use Rights m2 10.120 40.000.000.000

Total 10.120 40.000.000.000

— Pursuant to Vehicle Transfer Agreement No. 37/ HPCNTS/GLC-GIC, the assets to be
acquired by the Company include:

Type of Vehicle Quantity (Units) Total Value (VND)
Semi-trailers 35 1.110.000.000
Tractor trucks 13 550.000.000
tIEc)rrr:S|c;ty container handlers (10 02 1.550.000.000

4 | Forklifts (41 tons) 02 2.200.000.000
5 | Forklifts (45 tons) 03 6.890.000.000
6 | Forklifts (46 tons) 01 1.500.000.000
7 | Diesel Forklifts (3 tons) 05 1.197.000.000
8 | Diesel Forklifts (4.5 tons) 01 175.000.000
9 | Electric Forklifts 17 2.828.000.000

Total 79 18.000.000.000

— Pursuant to Machinery and Equipment Transfer Agreement No. 38/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC,
the assets to be acquired by the Company include:

Asset Quantity Total Value (VND)
Hydraulic lift tables AG8BFHE 37 999.000.000
Industrial dehumidifiers 15 405.000.000
Sever systems 03 114.000.000
Electrical infrastructure system 01 484.000.000

Telecommunications network infrastructure

: 01 1.246.000.000
for operations
Office container 01 20.000.000
Cargo handling machinery and equipment o1 332.000.000
system
Total 59 3.600.000.000
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X. PARTIESINVOLVED IN THE OFFERING
1. Auditor
+ HANOI BRANCH OF PWC (VIETNAM) LIMITED

Head Office: Floor 16, Keangnam Hanoi Landmark Tower, Lot E6, Cau Giay New Urban
Area, Yen HoaWard, Hanoi, Vietnam
Tel:  (84-24) 3946 2246 Fax:

Website: WWW.pWc.com/vn

2.  Issuing advisory organization

VIX SECURITIESJOINT STOCK COMPANY

Head Office: 22nd Floor, 52 Le Dai Hanh Street, Hai Ba Trung Ward, Hanoi City
Tel: (84-24) 4456 8888 Fax: (84-24) 3978 5380

Website: https://vixs.vn

Opinion of the Advisory Organization on the Offering

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/NQ-
DHDCD dated March 10, 2025, VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company has registered to issue
13,332,000 shares, including:1,212,000 shares for dividend payment in shares for 2024; and
12,120,000 shares to be offered to existing shareholders. The expected proceeds from the public
offering to existing shareholders amount to VND 121,200,000,000, which will be used to
supplement working capital and to invest in additional warehouses, yards, machinery, equipment,

and transport vehicles serving the Company’s production and business activities.

The Company plans to offer 12,120,000 shares to existing shareholders at aratio of 1:1 at
an offering price of VND 10,000 per share, representing a 49.99% discount to the Company’s book
value as of December 31, 2024 (VND 19,997 per share) and a 38.27% discount compared to the
market trading price at the time the offering plan was formulated (VND 16,200 per share as of
February 12, 2025).

With the offering price of VND 10,000 per share being attractive compared to the market
price, the risk of an unsuccessful offering is considered low. Together with the Company’s
maintained profitability in recent years, the advisory organization believes that the Company is
capable of completing the offering as planned.

We would also like to emphasize that the above opinions are provided from the perspective
of an advisory organization, based on selectively collected information, and do not imply any
guarantee of the value of the securities. These opinions are for reference purposes only, and
investors should carefully consider them when making investment decisions.

Xl.  APPENDICES
1. Thelatest amended Enterprise Registration Certificate;
2. The Company’s Charter;
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Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/NQ-DHDCD dated March
10, 2025 approving the share issuance plan for charter capital increase;

Submission to the General M eeting of Shareholders No. 09 dated February 14, 2025 regarding
approval of the share issuance plan for charter capital increase;

Board of Directors’ Resolution approving the implementation of the share issuance plan for
charter capital increase and the detailed plan for use of proceeds from the offering;

Board of Directors’ Resolution approving the dossier for registration of the share issuance for
charter capital increase;

Board of Directors’ Resolution approving the order and timeline for implementation of the
2025 share issuance plan and related matters;

Audited financial statements of the Company for 2023 and 2024, and the most recent quarterly
financial statements,

Documents relating to the plan for use of proceeds from the public offering, including:

— Asset transfer contracts and attached appendices;

— Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 06/2025/NQ-HDPQT dated August 23, 2025 approving
the asset acquisition transaction with a related party being Green Logistics Centre One
Member Company Limited,;

— Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 07/2025/NQ-HDPQT dated August 23, 2025 approving
the asset acquisition transaction with a related party being Green Star Lines One Member
Limited Company.
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INTRODUCTION

Based on:
= Enterprise Law No. 392020/0H 14 dated June 17, 2020 and legal documents guiding ity
implementation;

- Securities Law No, 54°201%0HI duted November 26, 2019 and legal documents
srutding itx implementation;

= Decree 155/ 2020ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 detailing the implementation of a
miember of arficles of the Law on Securities;

- Circular 1162020TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 guiding a number of provisions on
corporate governance applicable fo public companies in Decree 13520200ND-CP;

- Thix Charter is approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders of VSC Green
Logistics Jaim Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), a joint stock
companny established and operating  wnder Business Registration Certificate No
0201768923 first issued by the Depaviment of Planning and Investment af Hal Phong
Liny on January 27, 2007 .

I. DEFINITIONS AND TERMS IN THE CHARTER
Article 1. Definitions
In this Charter, the following words and terms are construed as follows:

a. “Company”™ means ¥5C Green Logistics Joint Stock Company;

b. “Charter” means the Charter of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company ;

c. “Charter Capital” is the total par value of shares sold or registered 1o be purchased by
shareholders contributed by way of purchasing shares and specified in Article 5 of this Charter,

d. “Law on Enterprises” means the Law on Enterprises No. 5920200QH14 passed by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020.

&. “Securities Law" means Securities Law No. 54201 9%QH 14 dated November 26, 2019,

f. “Establishment Date™ is the date the Company is first pranted the Certificate of
Business Registration.

g. “Sharcholder” means a natural or legal person whose name is recorded i the
Company’s Shareholders' Register owning at least one issued share of the Company;

h. *Share” means the Share Ownership Centificate of the Sharcholder;

i. “Business Executives” are the Director, Deputy Directors, Chief Accountant, and other
executives as prescribed in the Company Charter,

J- “Related person™ is an individual or organization specified in Clause 23, Article 4 of the
Law on Enterprises and Clause 46, Article 4 of the Law on Securities,

k. “Authorized representative” is an individual authorized in writing by the Company's
shareholders to exercise histher rights at the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Enterprise Law and this Charter.

l. “¥ietnam” means the Socialist Republic of Vietnam;

I. In this Charter, references to one or more other provisions or documents shall include
their amendments or replacements.

2. The titles {chapters, articles of this Charter) are used for convenience of understanding
the content and do not affect the content of this Charter,

3. Words or terms defined in the Enterprise Law (if not inconsistent with the subject or
context) shall have the same meaning in this Charter,
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I1. NAME, FORM, HEADQUARTERS, BRANCHES, REPRESENTATIVE
DFFICES, TERM OF OPERATION AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE
COMPANY

Article 2. Name, form, headquarters, branches, representative offices and term of
operation of the Company

1. Company Mame ;

- Company name written in Viethamese: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

- Company name written in English: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

2. The company is & joint stock company with legal status in accordance with current laws
of Vietnam.

3. The Company’s registered office is:

- Head office address: Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai An
Distriet, Hai Phong City, Vietnam,

- Phone: (1225 2838660

= Fax: 0225 2838898

- Email; fgdiggreenicd . com.vn

- Website: www,greenicd.com.vn

4. The Director is the legal representative of the Company;

3. The Company may establish branches and representative offices in the business area to
carry out the Company's operational objectives in accordance with the resolutions of the Board
of Directors and within the scope permitted by law .

. Linless terminated prior to the term as provided in this Charter, the term of operation of
the Company is indefinite.

111 ODBJECTIVES, SCOPE OF BUSINESS AND ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Article 3. Company's operational objectives
The Company’s business lines are :

STT Industry name code

Industry |

Cargo handling 5974
{except aivport cargo havdling) :

Other support services related to transportation
Detail:

- Shipping agency services: Sea transporl agency services; Freight
forwarding: Customs clearance agency activities; Freight forwarding;
Freight forwarding support services; Ship chartering brokerage {excluding
crew); Cargo packaging, sampling. weighing: International and domestic
2 | multimodal transport services; Consignment  agency, container
management, import and export goods delivery; Organization of joint
exploitation of container transport of import and export goods, transit
goods by means of transport; Shipping agency and maritime transport
brokemage.

fexcept services of establishing, vperating, maintaining and servicing
maritime signals, water areas, public water channels and maritime rowies;

(5229 —
Main)
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services of surveving warer areas, public warer channels and maritime
romtes for the publication of Maritime Notices, services af surveying,
cansiructing and developing nawiical charts af water areas, seaports,
maritime channels and maritime rowles; consiruciing and issuing
documents and publications on maritime safefy. Services of regulating and
ensuring maritime safery in public water areas, water areas and maritime
ronfes; maritime electronic information services; maritime pilofage
services. Support sepvices related ro aiv transport; Air transport business,
airparts and general aviation busirness)

Wholesale of solid, liquid, paseous fuels and related products
fexcept for expord, import and distribution of goods in the List of goods

3 | that foreign investars and foreign-invested economic organizations are not 4661
| allowed to exercise export righis, import rights and distribution rights
| according to law.,)
Retail zale of motor fuel in specialised stores
fexcept for export, import and distribution of goods in the List of goods
4 | that foreign investors and foreign-invesied economic organizations are nof 4730
allowed to exercise export rights, import rights and distibution rights
according fo law.) ==
Real estate business, land use rights of owners, users or lenanls
5 | {except for imvestment in building infrastruciure for cemeteries and 6810
graveyards fo transfer land use rights assoctated with infrasiructure)
6 | Direct support service activities for road transport 522%
Other remaining busingss support service activities not elsewhere classified
fexcept for export, import and distribution of goods in the List of goods
T | that foreign investors and foreign-invested econamic arganizations ave ot §299
allawed to exercise export rights, import rights and distribution rights
according fo law)
8 | Coastal and ocean freight transport 5012
9 | Inland waterway freight transport 5022
10| Warehousing and storage of goods 3210
11 | Repair of prefabricated metal products 3311
12 | Repair of machinery and equipment 3312
13 | Maintenance and repair of automobiles and other motor vehicles 4320
14 | Road freight transport 4933
Direct support service activities for railway transport
15 | fexcept for management and exploitaion of national railway and wrban 5221
railway infrastructure systems invested by the State)
Wholesale of other machinery, equipment and spare parts
Detail:
16 | - Wholesale of industrial machinery, equipment and spare parts 4659

{except for export, fmport and distribution af goods in the List of goods
thrt foreign investors and foreign-invested economic organizations are noit

&
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allawed to exercise export rights, import rights and disteibution rights
| gccording to law)
17 | Whaolesale of automobiles and other motor vehicles 4511
Other specialized wholesale not elsewhere classified
18 | Detail: 4665
| - Wholesale of ships
Packing services
19 | Detail: 3202
- Packaging of goods
20 | Manufaciure of automobiles and other motor vehicles 2810
21 | Motor Vehicle Rental 7710
37 Manufacture of bodies for motor vehicles and other motor vehicles, trailers 2920
and semi-trailers i
Direct support service activities for water transport
Detail:
- Transportation services, water freight agency; Water transport vehicle
rescue activities; Operations, towing, and docking of ships; Barge cargo
transportation services
fexcept for services of establishing, operating, maintaining and servicing
muaritime sigmais, water areas, public water channels and mavitime routes,
23 | services af surveping water areas, warér areas, public maritime channels 5222
arid mirittme rowtes for the publication of Mariiime Notices; services of
surveyving, constructing and developing nautical charts of warer areas,
seaports, maritime channels and maritime rowles; constructing and issuing
documents and publications on maritime safety; services of regulating and
ensuring maritinre safery in public water areas, water areas and maritime
roufes; maritime elecironic information services. maritime pilotage
Fervices)
24 Manufacture of spare parts and accessories for automobiles and other 2930
i3t maotor vehicles ) =
Renting of machinery, equipment and other tangible goods without
operator
25 Dietall: 7730
- Container rental
Whaolesale of agricultural machinery, equipment and spare parts
fexcepe for export, import and distribution of poods in the List of poods
26 | rhat foreign investors and foreign-invested economic organizations are not 453
allowed fo exercise export vights, import righis and distriburion rights
according o law)
77 Sale of spare parts and accessories for automobiles and other motor 15
g 330
vehicles
Other retail forms not elsewhere classified
28 | Detail: 4704
- Retail of ships and boats
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The Company's operational objectives are; to continuously develop business activities in
the ficlds specified in Point | of this Article, and other industries in accordance with the Enterprise
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Law in order to maximize possible profits for the Company, ensure benefits for shareholders:
improve working conditions, increase income for employees in the Company; [ulfill the
obligation to pay the State budget,
Article 4. Scope of business and operations of the Company

1. The Company is permitted to plan and conduct all business activities in accordance with
the provisions of the Business Registration Certificate and this Charter in accordance with the
provisions of current laws and to take appropriate measures 1o achieve the Company's objectives

2. The Company may conduct business activities in other fields not prohibited by law and
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders |
IV, CHARTER CAPITAL, SHARES, FOUNDING SHAREHOLDERS
Article 5. Charter capital, shares, founding sharcholders

1. The Company's charter capital is 121,200,000,000 Dong ( (e hundred twemty one
hiflion vwo hundred million Dong )

The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 12,120,000 shares with par value
of 10,(HH) VNI /share.

2, The company may increase its charter capital when approved by the General Mesting of
Shareholders and in accordance with the provisions of law |

3. The shares of the Company on the date of adoption of this Charter are common shares.
The rights and obligations attached to the shares are stipulated in Article 11 .

4. The Company may issue different types of preferred shares with the approval of the
General Meeting of Shareholders and in accordance with the provisions of law ,

5. Ordinary shares must be offered to existing shareholders in proportion to their
ownership of ordinary shares in the Company, unless otherwise stipulated by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders. The Company must announce the offering of shares, clearly stating the
number of shares offered and the appropriate registration period (at least 20 werking days) for
shareholders to register to buy. The number of shares that sharchelders do not register to buv in
full will be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors may
distribute such shares to subjects under conditions and in the manner that the Board of Directors
deems appropriate, but may not sell such shares under conditions more favorable than those
offered to existing shareholders, except in cases where shares are sold through the Stock
Exchange by auction .

6. The Company may repurchase shares issued by the Company itsell (including
redeemable preference shares) in the manners prescribed in this Charter and current laws.
Common shares repurchased by the Company are treasury shares and the Board of Directors
may offer them for sale in ways consistent with the provisions of this Charter and the Securities
Law and related guiding documents .

7. The Company may issue other types of securities when approved in writing by the
General Meeting of Sharcholders and in accordance with the provisions of law on securities and
the securities market .

8. The foreign investor's capital contribution ratio in the charter capital is the highest level
permitted by law according to the business lines in which the Company is operating
Article 6. Stock certificates

1. A share is a certificate issued by a Joint Stock Company, a book entry or electronic data
confirming ownership of one or more shares of that Company. A share must have the following
main contents:
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a. Name, business registration number, head office address of the Company;

b. Number and date of issue of the Business Registration Certificate;

¢. Mumber of shares and type of shares;

d. Par value of each share and total par value of shares stated on the stock certificate;

€. Full name, comtact address, nationality, legal document number of individual
shareholders; name, enterprise code or legal document number of organization, head office
address for organizational shareholders;

f. Sample signature of the legal representative and seal of the Company;

g. Registration number in the Company's shareholder register and date of issue of shares;

h. Other contents as prescribed in Articles 116, 117 and 118 of the Enterprise Law for
shares of preferred stock.

2. Within 30 days from the date of submission of a complete application for transfer of
share ownership as prescribed by the Company or within 02 (two)} months {(or longer as
prescribed by the issuance terms) from the date of full pavment for the purchase of shares as
prescribed in the Company's share issuance plan, the share owner will be issued a share
certificate, The share owner does not have to pay the Company for the cost of printing the share
certificate.

3. In the event of a transfer of only some of the registered shares in a registered share
certificate, the old certificate will be cancelled and a new certificate representing the remaining
shares will be issued free of charge.

4. In case the shares are lost, destroved or damaged in any other way, the shareholder will
be reissued by the Company upon request of that shareholder,

The sharcholder's proposal must contain the following contents:

a. Shares have been lost, destroved or otherwise damaged; in case of loss, further assurance
that & thorough search has been made and if found, will be returned to the Company for
destruction;

b. Responsible for disputes arising from the re-issuance of now shares.

3. In case a share certificate is damaged or erased or is lost, stolen or destroyed, the owner
of such share may request to be issued a new share certificate provided that he'she provides
evidence of ownership of the share and pays all related expenses to the Company.

6. The owner of a bearer sharg certificate shall be responsible for the safekeeping of the
certificate and the Company shall not be liable in the event that the certificate is lost or used for
illegal purposes,

7. The Company may issue registercd shares without certificates. The Board of Directors
may issue regulations permitting registered shares (in certificate or uncertificated form) to be
transferred without requiring a transfer document. The Board of Directors may issue regulations
on certificates and transfer of shares in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the
law on securities and the securities market and this Charter.

Article 7. Other securities certificates

Bond certificates or other securities certificates of the Company (except for offer letters,
temporary certificates and similar documents), shall be issued with the seal and specimen
signature of the legal representative of the Campany, unless otherwise provided by the terms and
conditions of issue |
Article 8. Assignment share

I. All shares are freely transferable unless otherwise provided by this Charter and the law.
Shares listed on the Stock Exchange shall be transferred in accordance with the pravisions of the
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law on securities and the securities market. In case the Company Charter contains provisions
resiricting the transfer of shares, these provisions shall only be effective when clearly stated in
the certificate of the corresponding share.

2. Shares that have not been fully paid cannot be transferred and enjov related benefits
siech as the right to receive dividends, the fght to receive shares issued 1o increase share capital
from equity, and the right to purchase newly offered shares.

Arrticle 9. Revocation of shares

1. In case a shareholder fails to pay in full and on time the amount payable to purchase
shares, the Board of Directors shall notify and have the right to request that shareholder 1o pay the
remaining amount together with interest on that amount and any costs arising from the failure to
pay in full to the Company.,

2. The above payment notice must clearly state the new payment period (at least 07 days
from the date of sending the notice), payment location and the notice must clearly state that in
case of non-payment as required, the unpaid shares will be revoked.

3. In case the requirements in the above notice are not implemented, before full payment
of all payable amounts and related expenses, the Board of Directors has the right to reclaim the
unpaid shares. The Board of Directors may accept the surrender of the reclaimed shares in
accordance with the provisions of Clauses 4, 5 and 6 of this Article, and in other cases prescribed
in this Charter.

4. The revoked shares shall become the property of the Company, and the Board of
Directors may directly or authorize the sale, redistribution or settlement to the person who owned
the revoked shares or other subjects under the conditions and in the manner that the Board of
Directors deems appropriate.

5. Shareholders holding forfeited shares shall cease to be sharcholders in respect of such
shares, but shall still be required to pay all relevant amounts plus interest at a rate not exceeding
15% per annum at the time of forfeiture as determined by the Board of Directors from the date of
forfeiture until the date of payment. The Board of Directors shall have the sole discretion 1o
enforce payment of the full value of the shares at the time of forfeiture.

6. Notice of revocation shall be sent to the holder of the shares to be revoked prior to the
time of revocation. The revocation shall remain effective even in the event of any error or
negligence in sending the notice.

Y. STRUCTURE , MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
Article 10. Management structure
The Company's management structure includes:

a, General meeting of shareholders;

b. Board of Directors;

¢, Board of Control;

d. Manager.
V1. SHAREHOLDERS AND GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Article 1 1. Rights of sharcholders

I. A shareholder is an individual or organization that owns at least one share of the
Company, and has rights and obligations corresponding to the number of shares and type of
shares they own. Shareholders are only responsible for the debts and other financial obligations
of the Company within the scope of the capital contributed to the Company.

2. Holders of common stock have the following rights:

[0

s

=



a. Attend and speak at General Meetings of Shareholders and exercise voting rights
directly or through authorized representatives or in other forms prescribed by law,

b. Receive dividends according to the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders:

¢. Freely transfer fully paid shares in accordance with the provisions of this Charter and
current laws:

d. Have priority in purchasing newly offered shares in proportion to the proportion of common
shares they own;

e, Review, look up and extract information about names and contact addresses in the list
of shareholders with voting rights; request correction of incorreet information;

[. Review, look up, extract or photocopy the Company Charter, minutes of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharcholders;

g. In case the Company is dissolved or bankrupt, receive a portion of the remaining assets
corresponding to the number of shares contributed to the Company after the Company has paid
creditors and other shareholders in accordance with the provisions of law;

h. Request the Company to buy back their shares in the cases specified in Article 132.1 of
the Enterprise Law;

i. Other rights as prescribed by law and this Charter,

3. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding 5% or more of total common shares
have the following rights:

a. Review, look up and extract minutes and resolutions of the Board of Directors, mid-year
and annual financial reports, reports of the Board of Supervisors, contracts, transactions that
must be approved by the Board of Directors and other documents, except for documents related
to trade secrets and business secrets of the company;

b. Request to convene a General Meeting of Shareholders in the case specified in Clause 3,
Article 115 of the Law on Enterprises;

¢. Request the Board of Supervisors to inspect cach specific issue related to the
management and operation of the Company when deemed necessary. The request must be in
writing; must include the full name, contact address, nationality, legal document number for
individual shareholders: name, enterprise code or legal document number of the organization,
head office address for institutional shareholders, number of shares and time of share registration
of each sharcholder, total number of shares of the entire group of shareholders and ownership
ratio in the total number of shares of the Company; issues to be inspected, purpose of inspection;

d. Other rights are specified in this Charter.

4. Sharcholders or groups of shareholders specified in Clause 3 of this Article have the
right to request the convening of a General Meeting of Sharcholders in the following cases: The
Board of Directors seriously violates the rights of sharcholders, the obligations of managers or
makes decisions beyond its assigned authority.

The request to convene a meeting of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be made in
writing and must include the full name, contact address, nationality, legal document number of
the individual for individual sharecholders; the name, enterprise code or legal document number
of the organization, head office address for organizational sharsholders: the number of shares
and time of share registration of each sharcholder, the total number of shares of the group of
sharcholders and the ownership ratio in the total number of shares of the Company, the basis and
reason for the request to convene a meeting of the General Meeting of Sharcholders. The request
must be accompanied by documents and evidence of violations by the Board of Directors, the
level of violations or decisions beyond its authority.

11

B R i

F AL



5. A shareholder or group of shareholders owning 10% or more of the total number of
commaon shares or a smaller percentage as prescribed in the Company Charter has the right to
nominate people to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors. Unless otherwise
provided in the Company Charter, the nomination of people to the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors shall be camied out as follows:

2) Ordinary sharcholders forming a group to nominate candidates for the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors must notify the attending sharcholders of the group
meeting before the opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b) Based on the number of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors, the sharcholder or group of shareholders specified in this clause has the right 10
nominate one or several people according to the decision of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
as candidates for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors. In case the number of
candidates nominated by the shareholder or group of shareholders is lower than the number of
candidates they are entitled to nominate according to the decision of the General Mecting of
Shareholders, the remaining candidates shall be nominated by the Board of Directors. the Board
of Supervisors and other shareholders .

Article 1 2. Ohligations of shareholders
Shercholders have the following obligations:

I. Comply with the Company Charter and Company regulations;

2. Comply with the decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of
Directors;

3. Pay in full and on time for the number of shares registered to buy as prescribed;.

4, Capital contributed in common shares shall not be withdrawn from the Company in any
form, except in cases where the Company or another person buys back the shares. In case a
sharcholder withdraws part or all of the contributed capital in violation of the provisions of this
clause, the members of the Board of Directors and the legal representative of the Company shall
be jointly liable for the debts and other property obligations of the Company within the value of
the withdrawn shares and any damages incurred.

5. Provide correct address when registering to buy shares;

6. keep confidential the information provided by the company according to the provisions
of the Company Charter and the law; only use the information provided to exercise and protect
one’s legitimate rights and interests; sirictly prohibit the dissemination or copying or sending of
information provided by the company to other organizations or individuals;

7. Fulfill other obligations as prescribed by law and the Company Charter;

8. Be personally responsible when performing one of the following acts on behalf of the
Company in any form:

a. Violation of the law;

b. Conduct business and other transactions for personal gain and or to serve the interests of
other organizations or individuals;

€. Pay off outstanding debts in the face of possible financial risks to the Company .

Article 1 3. General meeting of shareholders

I. The General Meeting of Sharcholders is the highest authority of the Company . The
General Meeting of Shareholders may hold annual and extraordinary meetings.

2. The Annual General Meeting of Sharsholders is held once a year. The venue of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders must be within the territory of Vietnam. Theé Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders must be held within 04 months from the end of the fiscal vear.
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The Board of Directors decides to extend the annual General Meeting of Sharcholders if
necessary, but not more than 06 months from the end of the fiscal year.

3. The Board of Direciors convenes the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders and
selects a suitable location. The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders decides on matters as
prescribed by faw and the Company’s Charter, especially approving the annual financial reports
and the financial budpet for the following fiscal year. Independent auditors may be invited to
attend the meeting to advise on the approval of the annual financial reports.

4, The Board of Directors must convene an extraordinary meeting of the General Meeting
of Shareholders in the following cases:

4. The Board of Directors deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company;

b. When the number of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors is
less than the minimum number of members prescribed by law;

. A shareholder or group of shareholders specified in Article 11.3 of this Charter requests
to convene a CGeneral Meeting of Sharcholders in writing. The request must clearly state the
reason and purpose of the meeting and be signed by the relevant shareholders (the request may
be made in multiple copies to have the signatures of all relevant sharcholders);

d. At the request of the Board of Supervisors |

g, Other cases as prescribed by law and the Company Charter;

5. Convening an extraordinary meeting of shareholders:

a. The Board of Directors must convene a meeting of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
within 30 (thirty) days from the date the number of remaining members of the Board of Directors
is as prescribed in Clause 4b, Article 13 or from the date of receipt of the request preseribed in
Clauses 4¢ and 44 |, Aricle 13;

In case the Board of Directors fails to convene the General Meefing of Shareholders as
prescribed, the Chairman of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Directors shall
be responsible before the Law and must compensate for any damage arising to the Company.

b. In case the Board of Directors does not convene a meeling of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescribed in Clause 5, Article 13, then Within the next 30 (thirty) days, the
Board of Supervisors must replace the Board of Directors to convene a meeting of the General
Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with Clause 3, Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises;

In case the Board of Supervisors fails to convene the General Meeting of Shareholders as
prescribed, the Board of Supervisors shall be responsible before the law and must compensate for
any damage arising to the Company,

¢. In case the Board of Supervisors fails to convene the General Meeting of Sharcholders
as prescribed in Clause 5, Article 13, within the next 30 (thirty) days, the shareholder or group of
shareholders with the request specified in Clause 4c | Article 13 shall have the right 1o replace
the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors to convene the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescribed in Clause 4, Article 140 of the Law on Enterprises.

In this case, the sharcholder or group of shareholders convening the General Meeting of
Sharcholders may request the business regisiration authority to supervise the convening and
conduct of the meeting il deemed necessary,

d. All costs for convening and conducting the General Meeting of Shareholders will be
reimbursed by the Company. These costs do not include expenses incurred by shareholders
when attending the General Meeting of Sharcholders, including accommodation and travel
EXpenses |
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Article 14, Rights and duoties of the General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders, comprising all shareholders with voting rights, is
the highest decision-making body of the Company. The annuwal General Meeting of Shareholders
has the rnight to discuss and approve:

a. Annual audited linencial siatements;

b. Report of the Board of Directors;

¢. Report of the Board of Supervisors;

d. The Company's annual business plan.

2. The annual and extraordinary general meetings of shareholders shall pass resolutions by
voling at meetings or by obtaining written opinions on the following matiers:

a. Through annual financial reports;

b. The annual dividend payment for each type of share is in accordance with the Enterprise
Law and the rights anached to that type of share. ;

¢. Number of Board members;

d. Select Auditing Company;

e, Elect, dismiss, remove members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors;

f. Total remuneration of the Board of Directors members and remuneration report of the
Board of Directors;

£, Supplement and amend the Company Charter;

h. Class of shares and number of new shares to be issued for each class of shares

i. Division, separation, consolidation, merger or conversion of the Company;

. Reorganize and dissolve (liquidate) the Company and appoint a liquidator;

k. Inspect and handle violations by the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisors that
cause damage to the Company and its shareholders;

|. Decision on sale of Company assets or purchase transactions with value of 35% or more
of the total value of the Company’s assets recorded in the most recent audited financial
statements;

m. The company buys back more than 10% of a type of issued shares;

n. The Company signs contracts with persons specified in Article 167.1 of the Enterprise
Law with a value equal to or greater than 35 % of the total value of the Company's assets
recorded in the most recent audited financial statements;

. Decide on the budget or total remuneration, bonuses and other benefits for the Board of
Dyirectors and the Board of Supervisors;

p. Approve internal governance regulations; operating regulations of the Board of
Drirectors and Board of Supervisors;

q. Other matters as prescribed by this Charter and the provisions of law .

3. Shareholders are not allowed o vote in the [ollowing cases:

a, Contracis specified in Article 14.2 of this Charter when a shareholder or a person
related to that shareholder is a party to the contract;

b, The purchase of shares by that shareholder or by a person related to that shareholder,
except in cases where the purchase of shares is made in proportion to the ownership ratio of all
shareholders or the purchase is made through order matching or public offering on the Stock
Exchange.

4. All resolutions and issues included in the meeting agenda must be discussed and voted
on at the General Meeting of Shareholders .
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Article 15 Person anthorized to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders

|. Shareholders who are entitled to attend the General Meeting of Sharcholders according
to law may attend in person or authorize their representatives to attend. In case more than one
authorized representative is appointed, the number of shares and votes of each representative
must be specifically determined.

2. The authorization for a representative to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders
must be made in writing according to the Company's form and must be signed according to the
following provisions:

In case an individual sharcholder is the principal. there must be the signature of that
shargholder and the person authorized to attend the meeting;

In case the authorized representative of an organization shareholder is the principal, there
must be the signature of the authorized representative, the legal representative of the shareholder
and the person authorized to attend the meeting , and the seal of the orpanization shareholder (3T
any) ;

In other cases, there must be the signature of the sharcholder's legal representative and the
person authorized to attend the meeting ;

The person authorized to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders must submit the
authorization document before entering the meeting room.

3. In case a lawver signs a representative appointment paper on behalf of the principal, the
representative appointment in this case shall only be considered effective if the representative
appointment paper 18 presented together with a power of attorney (o the lawver or a valid copy of
such power of attomey (if not previously registered with the Company).

4, Except for the case specified in Clawse 3, Article 15, the voting ballot of the person
authorized to attend the meeting within the scope of authorization remains valid in one of the
following cases:

a. The authorized person has died, has limited civil capacity or has lost civil capacity ;

The principal has revoked the authorization ;

The principal has revoked the suthority of the agent.

This provision shall not apply in the event that the Company receives written notice of one
of the above events 48 (forty eight) hours before the opening time of the General Meeting of
Shareholders or before the meeting 1s reconvened |
Article 16. Change of rights

1. The change or cancellation of special rights attached to a type of preferred shares shall be
effective when approved by shareholders holding at least 63% of the common shares attending the
meeting and at the same time approved by shareholders holding at least 65% of the voting rights of
the izsued shares of that type.

2. The organization of a meeting of shareholders holding a type of preferred shares to
approve the above-mentioned change of rights shall be effective only when there are at least twa
shareholders (or their authorized representatives) and holding at least one-third (1/3) of the par
value of the issued shares of that type. In case there is not enough number of delegates as stated
above, the meeting shall be re-organized within 30 (thirty) days thereafier and the holders of
shares of that type (regardless of the number of people and shares) present in person or through
authorized representatives shall be considered to have sufficient number of delegates required.
At the meetings of shareholders holding the above-mentioned preferred shares, the holders of
shares of that type present in person or through representatives may request a secret ballot, Each
share of the same type shall have equal voling rights at the above-mentioned meeting,
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3. The procedures for conducting such a separate meeting are similar to the provisions in
Articles |8 and 20.

4. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of issue of shares, the special nghts attached to
the classes of shares with preferential rights in respect of some or all matters relating to the
sharing of profits or assets of the Company shall not be changed when the Company issues
additional shares of the same class |
Article 17, Convening the General Meeting of Shareholders, meeting agenda, and notice of
the General Meeting of Shareholders

I. The convener of the General Meeting of Sharcholders must perform the following tasks:

a. Announce information on the list of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting
of Sharcholders at least 20 days before the final registration date.

b. Prepare a list of shareholders entitled to attend the meeting no earlier than 10 days
before the date of sending the invitation to the General Meeting of Shareholders;

¢. Provide information and resolve complaints related to the shareholder list;

d. Prepare meeting agendas and documents in accordance with the law and Company
regulations;

e. Draft resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders according o the expected
content of the meeting; list and detailed information of candidates in case of ¢lection of members
of the Board of Directors and Supervisors;

f. Determine the time and plece of the congress;

. Send notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders to all sharcholders entitled to attend
the meeting.

2. Notice of the General Meeting of Sharcholders shall be sent to all sharcholders and shall
be published on the Company’s website. Notice of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be
sent at least 21 (twenty-one) days before the opening date of the General Meeting of Sharcholders,
calculated from the date on which the notice is duly sent or defivered, postage is paid or mailed.
The agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders and documents relating Lo the issues o be
voled on al the General Meeting shall be posted on the Company’s website. The notice of invitation
to the General Meeting of Shareholders sent to shareholders as prescribed in this clause shall
clearly state where and how to download the meeting documents and the Company shall send the
meeting documents to shareholders if requesied by shareholders.

The meeting notice must include the name, head office address, enterprise code; name,
permanent address of shareholders, time, place of meeting and other requirements for meeting
atlendees.

3. Sharcholders or groups of sharcholders mentioned in Article 11.5 of this Charter have the
right to propose issues to be inciuded in the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
proposal must be made in writing and must be sent to the Company at least (13 (three) working
days before the opening date of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The proposal must include
the full name of the sharcholder, permanent address, nationality, Citizen Identification Card
number, Legal documents for individual shareholders; name, enterprise code or establishment
decision number, head office address for organizational sharcholders; the pumber and type of
shares held by that shareholder, and the proposed content to be included in the meeting agenda.

4. In case the person convening the General Meeting of Shareholders refuses the proposal
in Clause 3 of this Article, he/she must reply in writing and state the reasons no later than 02
days before the General Meeting. The person convening the General Meeting of Shareholders
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has the right to refuse proposals related to Clause 3, Article 17 of this Charter in the following
cases:

a. Proposals are submitted late or incomplete or incorrect in content ;

b. The proposed issue is not within the scope of decision-making authority of the General
Meeting of Shareholders .

Article 18. Conditions for holding a General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The General Meeting of Sharcholders is held when the number of sharcholders
attending the meeting represents more than 50% of the total number of shares with voting rights.

2. In case there is not enough number of delegates required within 45 { forty five ) minutes
from the time of setting the opening of the meeting, the person convening the meeting shall cancel
the meeting. The meeting must be reconvened within 30 {thirty) days from the date of the first
scheduled meeting. The General Meeting of Shareholders convened for the second time is camied
out when there is a number shareholder attending the meeting representing at least 33% of the
voting shares,

3. In case the second general meeting is not eligible to be held, the third general meeting of
sharcholders shall be convened within 20 {twenty) days from the date of the planned second
general meeting. In this case, the meeting shall be held regardless of the total number of votes of
the shareholders attending the meeting.

4. Only General meeting of shareholders The new sharecholders have the right to change
the meeting agenda sent with the meeting invitation as prescribed in Anticle 17.3 of this Charter .
Article 19. Procedures for conducting the General Meeting of Sharcholders

1. On the date ol the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the Company must carry out
sharcholder registration procedures and must continue to register until all shareholders entitled to
attend the meeting are present and have registered.

2. The election of the Chairman, Secretary and Counting Committee is repulated as
follows:

a. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall chair or authorize another member of the
Board of Directors to chair meetings convened by the Board of Directors; in case the Chairman
is absent or temporarily unable to work, the remaining members shall elect one of them to chair
the meeting according to the majonty principle; in case no one can be elected as chair. the Head
of the Supervisory Board shall direct the General Meeting of Sharcholders to elect a meeting
chair from among the attendees and the person with the highest number of votes shall chair the
meating;

The Chairman is the person who has the right to decide on the order, procedures and events
arising outside the agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

In other cases, the person who signs the summons for the General Meeting of Shareholders
shall direct the General Meeting of Shareholders to elect a chairman of the meeting and the
person with the highest number of votes shall chair the meeting;

The Chairman shall appoint one or more persons to act as Secretary to take minutes of the
Shareholders’ Meeting;

The General Meeting of Shareholders elects a vote counting committee upon the proposal
of the meeting chairman;

1. When registering sharcholders, the Company will issue each shareholder or authorized
representative with voting rights a voting card, on which is recorded the attending sharcholder
code, the full name of the sharcholder, the full name of the authorized representative, the number
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of votes of that shareholder, the issues to be voted on at the General Meeting and the Company's
seal.

The General Meeting will conduct public voting on issues to be voted on according to the
meeting agenda of the General Meeting. Shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders
vote on the above issues by raising their voting ballots under the direction of the General
Meeting Chairman and marking the ballots according to the instructions of the Vote Counting
Committee,

When voting at the congress, the Vote Counting Committee counts the number of votes in
favor, against, and no opinion on each content, summarizes and reports the results o the
Congress Chairman.

The vote counting results are announced by the Counting Committee after the vole
counting is completed.

4. Shareholders who amrive late to the General Meeting of Shareholders have the right to
register immediately and then have the right to participate and vote immediately at the meeting.
The Chairman is not responsible for stopping the meeting to allow late sharcholders to register
and the validity of the contents voted on before will not change.

5. The person convening the General Meeting of Sharcholders has the right to:

a. Require all meeting attendees to submit to screening or other security measures;

Request competent authorities to maintain order at the meeting; expel those who do not
comply with the chairman's auvthority, intentionally disrupt the order, prevent the normal
progress of the meeting, or do not comply with security check requirements from the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

6. The chairman of the meeting may postpone the meeting upon the agreement or request
of the General Meeting of Shareholders with sufficient number of registered attendees as
prescribed to another time or change the meeting location in the following cases:

a. The meeting location does not have enough convenient seating for all attendess;

b. The media at the meeting venue does not ensure that sharcholders attending the meeting
can participate in discussions and voting;

€. There are people who obstruct or disrupt the meeting, which risks making the meeting
nol be conducted lairlv and legally;

The maximum postponement period shall not exceed 03 (three) days from the scheduled

opening date of the congress.

7. In case the chairman postpones or suspends the General Meeting of Shareholders
contrary to the provisions of Clause 6, Article 19, the General Meeting of Shareholders shall
elect another person from among the attending members to replace the chairman in conducting
the meeting until its conclusion and the validity of the votes at that meeting shall not be affected.

8. The Chairman of the meeting or the Secretary of the meeting may take such action as
they deem necessary to conduct the General Meeting of Sharcholders in a valid and orderly
manner, or Lo enable the meeting to reflect the wishes of the majority of the attendees,

9. The Convenor of the General Meeting may require sharcholders or authorized
representatives attending the General Meeting of Shareholders to submit to inspection or security
measures that the Convenor of the General Meeting deems appropriate, In case any sharcholder
or authorized representative refuses to comply with the above regulations on inspection or
security measures, the Convenor of the General Meeting may, after careful consideration, refuse
or expel the said shareholder or representative from attending the General Meeting.
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0. The convener of the General Meeting, after careful consideration , may take such
measures as the Board of Directors deems appropriate to:

a. Seating arrangement at the venue of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b. Ensure the safety of everyone present at the location;

¢, Facilitate shareholders to attend (or continue to attend) the meeting.

The Convenor of the Meeting has full authority to change the above measures and apply all
measures if the Convenor of the Meeting deemed necessary, Measures taken may include the
issuance of entry permits or the use of other options,

11. In case the above measures are applied at the General Meeting of Sharcholders, the
Convenor of the General Meeting, when determining the meeting location, may:

a. Motice that the meeting will be held at the place specified in the notice and that the
chairman of the meeting will be present there (“Principal Place of Meeting™);

b. Arrange and organize so that shareholders or authorized representatives who cannot
attend the meeting according to this Article or those who wish 1o attend at a location other than
the Main Venue of the meeting can simultancously attend the meeting;

€. The notice of the holding of the meeting need not specify the organizalional measures

under this Article .
Article 20, Approval of decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

I. The General Meeting ol Shareholders has the right to pass decisions by voting at
meetings, or by written documents signed by all shareholders, or by collecting written opinions.

2. Except for the decision in Clause 3, Article 20, the decisions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders on the following issues shall be adopted when 65% or more of the total votes of
shareholders attending the meeting approve (in case of holding a meeting in person) or more than
50% of the total votes of shareholders with voting rights approve (in case of obtaining written
opinions)

a. Types of shares and total number of shares of each tvpe;

b. Change of industry, profession and business field;

¢. Change the Company's management structure;

d. Investment projects or sale of assets with a value equal to or greater than 33% of the
total asset value recorded in the Company's most recent financial statements:

€. Reorganization and dissolution of the Company.

3. Resolutions not falling under the provisions of Clause 2 of this Anicle shall be passed
when approved by shareholders representing more than 50%6 of the total number of voting shares
of all sharcholders attending the meeting (in case of holding a direct meeting) or by more than
50% of the total nhumber of votes of shareholders with voting rights (in case of obtaining written
opinions);

4. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders passed by 100% of the total
number of voting shares are legal and effective even if the order and procedures for passing such
resolution are not carried out correctly as prescribed.

5. Voling to elect members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board must be
carried out by cumulative voting. Accordingly, each shareholder has a total number of voies
cortesponding to the total number of shares owned multiplied by the number of elected members
of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board, and shareholders have the right to
accumulate all or part of their total votes for one or several candidates, The elected members of
the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board are determined by the number of votes from
high to low, starting from the candidate with the highest number of votes until the required
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number of members is reached. In case there are 02 or more candidates with the same number of
votes for the final member of the Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board, a re-election will
be conducted among the candidates with the same number of votes or selection will be made
according to the enteria of the election regulations .

Article 2 1. Authority and procedures for obtaining shareholders' written opinions fo
approve decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Authority and procedures for obtaining written opinions of shareholders to pass decisions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders is carried oul aceording 1o the following provisions:

|. The Board of Directors has the right to obtain written opinions from shareholders 1o
pass resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders at any time if deemed necessary for the
benefit of the Company .

2. The Board of Directors must prepare the opimion form, the draft resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the documents explaining the draft resolution. The opinion form,
logether with the draft decision and the documents explaining the draft resolution, must be sent by
guaranteed method to the repistered address of each shareholder. The Board of Directors must
ensure that the documents are sent and announced to the sharcholders within a reasonable time for
consideration and voiing and must be sent at least 10 (ten) days before the deadline for retuming
the opinion form.

3. The opinion form must have the following main contents:

&. Name, head office address, business registration number;

b. Purpose of consultation,

¢. Full name, comtact address , nationality, legal document number of individual
shareholders; name, enterprise code or legal document number of organization., head office
address for organizational shareholders or full name, contact address | nationality. personal legal
document number for authorized representative of organizational shareholders; number of shares
of each type and number of votes of shareholders.

d. Issues need to be voted on for approval.

e Voling options include yes, no, and no opinion.

f. Deadline for returning completed questionnaires to the Company.

£. Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors,

4. The completed ballot must have the sipnature of the individual shareholder, the
authorized representative or the legal representative of the organizational sharcholder,
Sharcholders can send completed ballots to the Company in one of the following ways:

a. Mail. Voting forms sent to the Company must be contained in a sealed envelope and no
one is allowed to open it before counting the votes.

b. Send by fax or email. The ballot sent to the Company must be kept confidential until the
time of vote counting.

Any opinion ballot sent to the Company afier the deadline specified in the opinion ballot or
opened or disclosed is invalid . An opinion ballot that is not returned is considered a non-voting
ballot.

5. The Board of Directors shall count the votes and prepare a vote counting record under
the witness of the Board of Supervisors or of shareholders who do not hold management
positions in the Company. The vote counting record must contain the following main contents:

n. MName, head office address, business registration number;

b. Purpose and issues to be consulted for decision making,
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¢. Number of shareholders with twotal number of votes participated in voting, in which
distinguishing between valid and invalid votes, method of sending voting ballots, with appendix of
list of shareholders participating in voting.

d. Total number of votes for, against and abstentions on each issue.

e. The decisions were passed and the corresponding voting percentages passed .

f. Full name and signature of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the vole counting
supervizor and the vote counter,

The members of the Board of Directors , the vote counters and the vote counting
supervisors shall be jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the vote counting
minutes; and shall be jointly responsible for damages anising from decisions passed due to
dishonest and inaccurate vote counting.

6, Minutes of vote counting results and resolutions must be published on the Company's
website within 24 (twenty-four) hours instead of being sent to shareholders .

7. The completed ballois, the minutes of vote counting, the full text of the adopted resolution
and related documents attached to the ballots must all be keps at the Company's head office.

8. Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders passed in the form of collecting
shareholders’ opinions in writing have the same value as resolutions passed at the General
Meeting of Shareholders .

Article 2 2. Minutes of the General Mecting of Shareholders

l. The General Meeting of Sharecholders must be recorded. Minutes. Minutes of meetings
and minutes of vote counting must be prepared in Vietnamese and must contain the contents
prescribed in Clause |, Article 150 of the Law on Enterprises.

2. Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be completed and approved
before the meeting closes. The Chairman and Secretary of the meeting or other persons signing the
minutes of the meeting must be jointly responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents
of the minutes.

3. The person presiding over the General Mecting of Sharcholders is responsible for
organizing the storage of the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders and publishing them
on the Company’s website within 24 {twenty-four) hours from the date of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders' conclusion. The minutes’ of the General Meeting of Shareholders are considered
authentic evidence of the work carried out at the General Meeting of Sharcholders unless there are
objections to the content of the minutes submiited in accordance with the prescribed procedures
within 10 {ten) days from the date of sending the minutes.

The records, minutes, signature books of sharcholders attending the meeting and the
authorization documents to attend must be kept at the Company’s head office
Article 2 3. Request to cancel the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Within 90 {ninety) days from the date the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders
ot the minutes of the results of the vote counting for the General Meeting of Shareholders are
posted on the Company’s website, the shareholder or group of shareholders specified in Clause 3,
Article 11 of this Charter has the right to request the Court or Arbitration to consider and cancel
the minutes, Resolution or pant of the content of the resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders in the following cases:

I. The order and procedures for convening meetings or obtaining written opinions of
shareholders and making decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders are not implemented in
accordance with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises and the Company Charter;

2. The content of the decision violates the law or the Company Charter.
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In case the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders is annulled by a decision of
the Court or Arbitration, the person convening the annulled General Meeting of Shareholders
may consider reorganizing the General Meeting of Sharcholders within 30 (thirty) days in
aceordance with the procedures prescribed in the Law on Enterprises and this Charter .

VIL BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 2 4. Composition and term of office of members of the Board of Directors

1. The number of members of the Board of Directors is at least 05 (five ) people and at
most 11 {eleven) people according to the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders , The
term of office of a member of the Board of Directors is not more than 05 (five) years; a member
of the Board of Directors can be re-elected for an enlimited number of terms. The total number
of independent members of the Board of Directors must account for at least one-third (1/3) of the
total number of members of the Board of Directors. The minimum number of independent
members of the Board of Directors is determined by rounding down,

2, Shareholders or groups of shareholders owning 5% or more of total common shares
have the right o nominate candidates for election to the Board of Directors according to the
tollowing regulations:

- If' it accounts for 05% to less than 10%, it has the right to nominate 01 (one) member.,

- If it accounts for 10% to less than 30%, it has the right to nominate 02 (two) members,

- If it accounts for 30% to less than 40%, it has the right to nominate 03 (three) members.

- I it accounts for 40% to less than 50%, it has the right to nominate 04 (four) members.

- [t it accounts for 50% to less than 60%, it has the right to nominate 03 (five) members.

- If it aceounts Tor 60% to less than T0%%, it has the nght to nominate 06 (six) members,

- If it accounts for 70% to less than 8024, it has the right to nominate 07 (seven) membeérs.

= If it accounts for 830 % to less than 90 %, it has the right W nominate 08 ( eight )

membeers.

In case the candidates have been identified in sdvance, information related to the Board of
Directors candidates shall be announced at least 10 days before the opening date of the General
Meeting of Shareholders on the company's website so that sharcholders can learn about these
candidates before voting, The Board of Directors candidates must have a written commitment to
the honesty, accuracy and reasonableness of the published personal information and must
commit to perform their duties honestly, loyally, carefully and in the best interests of the
company if elected as a member of the Board of Directors. Information related to the Board of
Directors candidates to be announced shall include at least:

a. Full name, date of birth;

b. Educational level, professional qualifications;

¢. Work history;

d. Companies in which the candidate is holding the position of member of the Board of
Directors and other management positions;

e. Assessment report on the candidate’s contribution to the Company, in case the candidate
15 currently a member of the Company's Board of Directors;

f. Benetfits related to the Company (if any);

. Full name of the sharcholder or group of shareholders nominating that candidate (iF
anyk:

h. Other information (if any).



Public companies must ensure that sharcholders have access to information about companies in
which candidates hold positions as members of the Board of Directors, other management
positiong, and the candidates' interests related to the company {if any).

3, In case the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through nomination and
candidacy is still not enough, the current Board of Directors may nominate additional candidates
or organize nominations according to & mechanism prescribed by the Company. The nomination
mechanism or the method by which the current Board of Directors nominates candidates for the
Board of Directors must be clearly announced and must be approved by the General Meeting of
Sharcholders before the nomination is made.

4. A member of the Board of Directors is no longer eligible to be a member of the Board of
Directors in the following cases:

a. That member is not qualified to be a member of the Board of Directors aceording to the
provisions of the Law on Enterprises or is prohibited by law from being a member of the Board
of Directors;

b, The member submits a written resignation to the Company’s head office and is accepted

c. That member is mentally disordered and another member of the Board of Directors has
expert evidence that he or she is no longer legally competent;

d. That member is absent from attending meetings of the Board of Directors continuously
for 06 (six) months, and during this time the Board of Directors does not allow that member to
be absent and has ruled that his'her position is vacant;

e. That member is removed from the Board of Directors by decision of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders;

f. Providing false personal information when submitting to the Company as a candidate for
the Board of Directors;

g. Representing shareholders who are legal entities when the legal entity loses its legal
status or 15 dissolved;

h. The sharcholder is a legal entity and has withdrawn the right to represent.

3. The appointment of members of the Board of Directors must be notified in accordance
with the provisions of the law on securities and the securities market,

4. A member of the Board of Directors need not be a shareholder of the Company |
Article 2 5, Powers and duties of the Board of Directors

1. The business activities and affairs of the Company shall be subject to the management
or direction of the Board of Directors, The Board of Directors is the body with full authority o
exercise all rights on behalf of the Company except for the authority belonging to the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

. The Board of Directors is responsible for supervising the Director and other managers.
3. The Board of Directors has the following powers and duties:

a. Decide on the Company’s strategy, medium-term development plan and annual business

plan;

[

b. Propose the type of shares and the total number of shares of each type that can be
offered ;

¢. Decision to sell unsold shares within the number of shares allowed to be offered for sale
of each type , decision to raise capital in other forms;

d. Decide on the offering price of the Company's shares and bonds ;

g. Decision to repurchase shares in accordance with the law:
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. Decide on investment plans and investment projects within the authority and limits
prescribed by law;

g. Decide on market development, marketing and technology solutions;

h. Approve purchase, sale, loan, lending and other contracts with a value equal w or
greater than 35% of the total asset value recorded in the Company's most recent financial report,
except for the cases specified m Point d, Clause 2, Article 138 | Clause 3, Article 167 of the Law
on Enterprises;

i. Through granting loans or guaraniees with a value of less than 20% of the total asset
value recorded in the Company's most recent financial statements to the Company’s subsidiaries.

J. Elect, dismiss, remove the Chairman of the Board of Directors; appoint, dismiss, sign
contracts, terminate contracts, decide on salaries, remuneration, bonuses and other benefits of the
Director , Chief Accountant , Branch Director, Head of the Company's representative office;
appoint authorized representatives 1o participate in the Board of Members or General Meeting of
Shareholders at other companies, decide on remuneration and other benefits of those persons ;

k. Supervise and direct the Director and other managers in the daily operations of the
Company:

|. Decide on the organizational structure and intemnal management regulations of the
Company, develop internal regulations on internal management of the Company to submit to the
Cieneral Mecting of Sharcholders for approval . decide on the establishment of subsidiaries,
branches, representative offices and capital contribution and purchase of shares of other
enterprises;

m. Approve the agenda and content of documents for the General Meeting of Sharcholders,
convene the General Meeting of Sharcholders or collect opinions for the General Meeting of
Sharcholders to pass resolutions |

n. Submit annual financial reports to the General Mecting of Shareholders;

0. Propose the level of dividends to be paid; decide on the time limit and procedures for
paving dividends or handling losses arising during the business process;

p- Proposing the reorganization, dissolution, and bankruptcy of the Company:

gq. Other rights and obligations as preseribed in the Charter and the Law on Enterprises.

4. The following matters must be approved by the Board of Directors;

a. Establish branches or representative offices of the Company:

b. Establishment of subsidiaries of the Company;

c. Within the scope of provisions in Article 153.2 of the Law on Enterprises and except for
the case specified in Article 167.3 of the Law on Enterprises which must be approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors shall from time to time decide on the
implementation, amendment or cancellation of major contracts of the Company (including
activities of purchasing, selling, merging, acquiring companies and joint ventures);

d. Appoint and remove persons authorized by the Company as commercial representatives
and Lawvers of the Company;

e. Borrowing and performance of morigages, warranties, guarantees and indemnities of the
Company;

f. Investments not included in the business plan and budget exceeding 10% of charter
capital or investments exceeding 10% of the value of the annual business plan and budget;

g Purchase or sale of shares of other companies established in Vietnam or abroad:
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h. Valuation of non-cash assets contributed to the Company related 1o the issuance of
shares or bonds of the Company, including gold, land use rights, intellectual property rights,
technology and technological know-how;

i. The Company's purchase or withdrawal of no more than 10% of the total number of
shares of each type offered for sale within 12 months ;

J- Business matters or transactions which the Board of Directors determines reguire
approval within the scope of its authority or responsibility;

k. Decide on the price to purchase or redeem the Company's shares.

5, Members of the Board of Directors shall receive remuneration for their work as
members of the Board of Directors. The total remuneration for the Board of Directors shall be
decided by the General Meeting of Shareholders. This remuneration shall be divided among the
members of the Board of Directors according to the agreement in the Board of Directors or
equally divided in case of no agreement,

6. The total amount paid to members of the Board of Directors, including remuneration,
expenses, commissions, stock options, and other benefits received from the Company, its
subsidiaries, affiliates, and other companies in which members of the Board of Directors
represent capital contributions, must be disclosed in detail in the Company's annual report.

7. A member of the Board of Directors who holds an executive position, or performs other
duties which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, are outside the normal scope of duties of a
member of the Board of Directors, may be compensated in the form of a lump sum, salary,
commission, percentage of profits, or in other form as determined by the Board of Directors,

B. Members of the Board of Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for all travel,
accommadlation, meals and other reasonable expenses incurred by them in performing their
duties as members of the Board of Directors, including expenses incurred in attending meetings
of the Board of Directors or General Meetings of Shareholders .

Article 2 6. Chairman of the Board of Directors

I. The Board of Directors must select from among its members a Chairman . The
Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently be the Director of the Company.

2. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is responsible for convening and chairing the
General Meeting of Sharcholders and meetings of the Board of Directors, and has other rights
and responsibilities as prescribed in this Charter and the Law on Enterprises.

3. In case the Chairman is temporarily unable to perform his'her duties for any reason, the
Board of Directors may appoint another person among them to perform the duties of the
Chairman based on the majority principle.

4. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be responsible for ensuring that the Board
of Directors submits the annual financial report, the Company's operational report, the audil
report and the Board of Directors’ inspection report to the shareholders at the General Meeting of
Shareholders:

3. In case the Chairman of the Board of Directors resigns or is dismissed or removed from
office, the Board of Directors must elect & replacement within 10 (ten) davs .

Article 27. Meetings of the Board of Directors

l. In case the Board of Directors elects a Chairman, the first meeting of the Board of
Directors’ term to elect the Chairman and make other decisions within its authority must be held
within 07 {seven) working days from the date of completion of the election of the Board of
Directors for that term, This meeting shall be convened by the member with the highest number
of votes. In case there is more than one member with the highest and equal number of votes,
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these members shall vote by majority to select 01 (one) of them to convene a meeting of the
Board of Directors,

2. Regular meetings. The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene Board meetings,
set the agenda, time and place of the meeting at least 03 {three) days before the scheduled meeting
date. The Chairman may convene a mesting whenever he deems it necessary, but at least once a
I'.ILI.iLﬂH'.

3, Extraordinary meetings. The Chairman of the Board of Directors must convene an
extraordinary meeting when he deems it necessary for the benefit of the Company. In addition,
the Chairman must convene a meeting of the Board of Directors, without delav without
justifiable reason, when one of the following subjects requests in writing to stute the purpose of
the meeting and the issues to be discussed:

a. Director or at least 05 {five) other operators ;

b. At least two (02) members of the Board of Directors;

¢. Board of Supervisors or independent member of the Board of Directors.

4. The meetings of the Board of Directors mentioned in Clause 3, Article 27 must be held
within 07 {seven) days after the meeting proposal is made. In case the Chairman of the Board of
Directors does not agree o convene the meeting as requested, the Chairman shall be responsible
for any damages caused to the Company; the persons requesting the meeting mentioned in
Clause 3, Anticle 27 may themselves convene the meeting of the Board of Directors.

5. In case of request from the independent auditor, the Chairman of the Board of Directors
must convene a meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss the audit report and the situation of
the Company,

6. Meeting location, Board of Directors meetings shall be held at the Company's
headquarters or other locations in Vietnam or abroad as decided by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and agreed upon by the Board of Directors,

7. Motice and agenda of the meeting. Notice of the Board of Directors’ meeting must be sent to
the members of the Board of Directors and the supervisors at least 03 (three) days before the meeting
is held. The members of the Board of Directors may refuse the meeting invitation in writing and such
refusal may be retroactive. Notice of the Board of Directors’ mesting must be in Vietnamese and
miust fully notify the agenda, time and location of the meeting, accompanied by necessary documents
on the issues to be discussed and voted on at the Board meeting and ballots for the members of the
Board of Directors who cannot attend the meeting.

Meeting notices are sent by post, fax, email or other means, but must be guaranteed io
reach the address of each member of the Board of Directors registered with the Company.

8. Minimum number of members attending. The first meetings of the Board of Directors
shall only be held and decisions shall be passed when at least 3/4 (three-quarters) of the Board of
Directors members are present in person or through their proxy.

In case the number of members attending the meeting is not sufficient as prescribed, the
meeting must be reconvened within 07 ( seven ) days from the date of the first scheduled
meeting. The reconvened meeting will be held if more than 1/2 (haif) of the Board of Directors
members altend the meeting.

9. A meeting of the Board of Directors may be held by way of a video conference between
mémbers of the Board of Directors when all or some of the members are in different locations,
provided that each member antending the meeting iz able to:

a. Hear each other member of the Board of Directors speak at the meeting;
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b. Address all other members present simultaneously. Discussions between members may
be conducted directly by telephone or other means of communication or & combination of these
methods. A member of the Board of Directors participating in such a meeting shall be
considered “present” at that meeting. The location of & meeting held under this provision shall
be the location where the majority of the members of the Board of Directors are present, or the
lecation where the Chairman of the meeting is present.

Decisions passed in telephone meetings are properly organized and conducted, effective
immediately upon the end of the meeting but must be confirmed by the signatures in the minutes
of all members of the Board of Directors attending this meeting.

10, A member of the Board of Directors is considered to attend and vote at the meeting in
the following cases:

a. Attend and vote direct]y at the mecting;

b. Authorize another person to attend the meeting if approved by the majority of Board of
Diirectors members;

¢. Attend and vote via online conference;

d. Send voting ballots to the meeting via mail, fax, email.

e. A member of the Board of Directors shall not vote on contracts, transactions or
proposals in which the member has an interest which conflicts or may conflict with the interests
of the Company. A member of the Board of Directors shall not be counted as a quorum for a
meeting of the Board of Directors on decisions on which the member does not have the right o
viote;

f. Pursuant to Clause 10.e, Article 27, when a matter arises in a meeting of the Board of
Directors relating to the level of interest of a member of the Board of Directors or relating to the
viting rights of that member of the Board of Directors, such matter shall be referred to the
chairman of the meeting and the chairman's decision relating to all other members of the Board
of Directors shall be final, except in cases where the nature or scope of interest of the relevant
member of the Board of Directors has not been fully disclosed;

2. A member of the Board of Directors who benefits from a contract specified in Article
36,5a and Article 36.5b of this Charter shall be deemed to have a significant interest in that
contract.

h. Supervisors have the right to attend Board of Directors meetings. have the right to
discuss but not to vote.

11. Disclosure of interests. A member of the Board of Directors who directly or indirectly
benefits from a contract or transaction that has been signed or is expected to be signed with the
Company and knows that he has an interest in it, shall disclose the nature and content of that
interest at the meeting where the Board of Directors first considers the signing of this contract or
transaction. Or this member may disclose it at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held
after this member knows that he has an interest or will have an interest in the relevant transaction
oF contract,

12, Majority voting. The Board of Directors adopts decisions and makes decisions by
following the consensus of the majority of the Board members present {(over 50%4). In case the
number of votes for and against are equal, the vote of the Chairman will be the deciding vote.

13, Resolutions in the form of writien opinions are passed on the basis of the approval of
the majority of members of the Board of Directors with voting rights. This type of resolution has
the same effect and value as a resolution passed by members of the Board of Directors at a
meeling convened and held in accordance with the usual practice,
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|4, Minutes of the Board of Directors’ meetings, The Chairman of the Board of Directors
shall be responsible for forwarding the minutes of the Board of Directors' meetings to the members
and such minutes shall be considered as authentic evidence of the work: conducted in such
meetings unless there is any objection to the content of the minutes within 10 {ten) days from the
date of forwarding. Minutes of the Board of Directors' meetings shall be prepared in Vietnamese
and must be signed by the chairman and the person recording the minutes,

In case the chairman or the minute aker refuses to sign the meeting minutes, but if all other
members of the Board of Directors attending the meeting sign them, the minutes shall be valid .
Article 28, Person in charge of corporate governance

The Board of Directors shall appoint at least (01 person to perform the duties of the
Corporate Governance Officer, The Corporate Governance Officer may concurrently hold the
position of Company Secretary. The term of office of the Corporate Governance Officer shall be
decided by the Board of Directors, with a maximum of five (005) years.

2. The person in charge of corporate governance must meet the following standards:

a. Have knowledge of the |aw;

b. Not to concurrently work for an independent auditing company that is awditing the
Company's financial statements:

¢, (ther standards as prescribed by law, this Charter and the Board of Directors.

3. The Board of Directors may dismiss the Corporate Governance Officer when necessary,
but not in contravention of current labor laws. The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant
to the Corporate Governance Officer from time to time.

4. The person in charge of corporate governance has the following rights and obligations:

a. Advise the Board of Directors on organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders in
accordance with regulations and related work between the company and sharcholders;

b. Prepare meetings of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and General Meeting of
Shareholders at the request of the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board;

¢. Advice on meeting procedures;

d. Attend meetings;

g. Consulting on procedures for preparing resolutions of the Board of Directors in
accordance with the law;

f. Provide financial information, copies of Board of Directors meeting minutes and other
information to Board of Directors members and Supervisors;

g. Monitor and report to the Board of Directors on the company’s information disclosure
activilies;

h. Act as a point of contact with stakeholders;

J- Keep information confidential in accordance with the provisions of law and the
Company Charter;

k. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and the Company Charter.

VIII. DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Article 29, Organization of management apparatus

The Company shall adopt a management system under which the management apparatus
shall be responsible to and under the direction of the Board of Directors. The Director may
concurrently be a member of the Board of Directors, and shall be appointed or dismissed by the
Board of Directors by a duly passed resolution.



Article 30. Business operators

1. Upon the proposal of the Director and with the approval of the Board of Directors, the
Company may employ the number and type of other executives necéssary or appropriate to the
Company’s management structure and practices as proposed by the Board of Directors from time
to time, Other executives must have the necessary diligence to enable the Company's operations
and finances to achieve the set goals,

2. The salary, remuneration, benefits and other terms of the employment contract with the
Dhirector shall be decided by the Board of Directors and the contracts with other executives shall
be decided by the Board of Directors after consulting with the Director .

Article 3 1. Appointment, dismissal, duties and powers of the Director

I. The Board of Directors shall appoint a member of the Board of Directors or another
person as Director and shall enter into a contract stipulating the salary, remuneration, beneflits
and other terms relating to the recruitment. Information on the salary, allowances and benefits of
the Director shall be reported at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and stated in the
Company's annual report.

2. The Director 15 the legal representative of the Company.

3. The Director is the person who runs the daily business of the Company; is supervised by
the Board of Directors and is responsible to the Board of Directors and before the law for the
implementation of assigned rights and duties.

4. The term of office of the Director shall not exceed 05 vears and may be reappointed for
an unlimited number of terms . The appointment may expire based on the provisions of the labor
contract. The Director shall not be a person prohibited by law from holding this position, i.e. a
minor, 8 person lacking capacity for civil acts, a person who has been sentenced to prison, a
person serving a prison sentence, an armed forces officer, a State official, and a person who has
been judged to have caused the company they previously led to go bankrupt.

5. The Director has the following powers and responsibilities:

a. Decide on matters related to the Company's daily business that are not under the
authority of the Board of Directors;

b.Implement the resolutions of the Board of Directors and the General Mesting of
Sharehalders, the business plan and investment plan of the Company approved by the Board of
Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders;

c.. Proposing organizational structure plan and internal management regulations of the
Company;

d. Appoint, dismiss, and remove management positions in the Company, except for
positions under the authority of the Board of Directors;

€. Decide on salaries and other benefits for employees in the company, including
managers under the appointment authority of the Director;

f. Labor recruitment;

g. Propose plans to pay dividends or handie business losses;

h. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law;

6, The Drirector is responsible to the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of
Shareholders for the performance of assigned duties and powers and must reporl o these
agencies when requested.

7. The Board of Directors may dismiss the Director when two-thirds (2/3) or mote of the
Board of Directors members vote in favor (in this case, the Director's vote is not counted) and
appoint & new Director to replace him .



Article 32, Company Secretary
|, The Board of Directors shall appoint one (or more) persons as Company Secretary with
a term and terms as decided by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may dismiss the
Company Secretary when necessary but not contrary to current labor laws. The Board of
Directors may also appoint one or more Assistant Company Secretaries from time to time. Roles
amd responsibilities of the Company Secretary:
& Support the organization in convening meetings of the Board of Directors and General
Meeting of Shareholders and recording meeting minutes;
b. Support Board members in performing assigned rights and obligations:
¢, Support the Board of Directors in applying and implementing corporate govemnance
principles:
d. Support the Company i building shareholder refations and protecting the legitimate rights
anvd interests of shareholders;
e. Support the Company n complying with information, information disclosure and
administrative procedures;
f. Other rights and obligations as prescribed by law and the Company Charter.
2. The Company Secreiary is responsible for keeping information confidential in
accordance with the provisions of the Law and the Company Charter,
IX. BOARD OF SUPERVISION
Article 33. Members of the Board of Supervisors
I. The number of members of the Board of Supervisors must be from 03 (three) to 05
{ five) members .
The Board of Supervisors must have at least one member who is an accountant or auditor, A
member of the Board of Supervisors must not be an employee of the Company's accounting and
finance department and must not be a member or employee of the independent auditing company
that is auditing the Company's financial statements. A member of the Board of Supervisors must
not be related to members of the Board of Directors, the Director and other exccutives of the
Company. The Board of Supervisors must appoint one member as its head.
2. Standards and conditions of Controller
a. Have full civil act capacity and not be prohibited from establishing and managing
enterprises according to the provisions of the Law on Enterprises:
b. Trained in one of the following majors: economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law,
business administration or majors suitable for the business operations of the enterprise;
¢. MNota family member of a member of the Board of Directors, Director and other
MANagers;
d. Mot allowed to hold corporate management positions; not necessarily be a sharcholder
or employee of the Company;
e. Mot working in the accounting or fingnce department of the Company;
f. Mot a member or employee of the independent auditing firm that audited the Company's
financial statements in the three (03) preceding years.
3. The Head of the Board of Supervisors must have a university degree or higher in one of
the following majors: economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business administration or a
major related to the business activities of the enterprise. The Head of the Board of Supervisors
has the following rights and responsibilities:
a. Convene the Board of Supervisors meeting;
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b. Request the Board of Directors, the Director and other executives of the Company to
provide relevant information to report to the members of the Board of Supervisors;

c. Prepare and sign the report of the Board of Supervisors afler consulting with the Board
of Directors to submit to the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

4. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding at least 10 % of total voting shares may
pool their votes together to nominate candidates for the Board of Supervisors as follows:

- Ifit accounts for 10 % to less than 20 %, 01 {one) person can be nominated.
If it occupies from 20 % to less than 35 %, then 02 { two ) people can be nominated .
- IFit accounts for 35 % to less than 50 %, 03 (three) people can be nominated.
- Ifit accounts for 50 % to less than 65 %, (4 (four) people can be nominated,
- If it accounts for 6.5 % or more, all candidates can be nominated .

5. In case the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through nomination and
candidacy is still not enough, the incumbent Board of Supervisors can nominate additional
candidates or organize nominations according to the mechanism prescribed by the Company in
the Intemnal Regulations on Corporate Governance. The mechanism for the incumbent Board of
Supervisors te nominate candidates for the Board of Supervisors must be clearly announced and
must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before the nomination is made.

6. Members of the Board of Supervisors are appointed by the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, the term of office of the Board of Supervisors shall not exceed five (05) vears;
members of the Board of Supervisors may be re-elected for an unlimited number of terms |

7. A member of the Board of Supervisors shall not be eligible for membership in the
tollowing cases:

a, No longer qualified and eligible to be a Controller as prescribed in Article 169 of the
Law on Enterprises;

b. Failure to exercise one's rights and obligations for U6 consecutive months without the
approval of the Board of Supervisors;

¢. That member is prohibited by law from being a member of the Board of Supervisors;

d. Such member resigns by written notice semt to the Company's head office and
accepted;

e. That member is removed from the Board of Supervisors by decision of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders .
Article 34. Board of Supervisors

|. The Company must have a Board of Supervisors and the Board of Supervisors shall
have the powers and responsibilities as prescribed in Article 170 of the Law on Enterprises and
this Charter, mainly the following powers and responsibilities:

a. Supervise the Board of Directors and Director in managing and operating the Company;

b. Check the rationality, legality, honesty and level of prudence in manzgement and
operation of business activities; the systematicity, consistency and appropriateness of accounting,
statistics and financial reporting ;

¢. In case of detecting any violation of the law or violation of the Company Charter by a
member of the Board of Directors, Director and other business executives, it is necessary to
notify the Board of Directors in writing, request the violator to stop the violation and have a
solution to remedy the consequences;

d. Appraise the completeness, legality and honesty of the company's business situation
report, annual and 6-month financial reports, management assessment report of the Board of
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Directors and submit the appraisal report at the annual meeting of the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

e. Review, inspect and evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s internal
control, internal audit, risk management and early warning systems ;

[. Review accounting books, accounting records and other documenis of the company,
management and operation of the company when deemed necessary or according o the
resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders or at the request of a shareholder or group of
sharcholders as prescribed in Clause 3, Article 11 of this Charter;

g. Upon request of a shareholder or group of shareholders as stipulated in Clause 3, Article
| | of this Charter, the Board of Supervisors shall conduct an inspection within 07 working days
from the date of receipt of the request. Within 15 days from the date of completion of the
inspection, the Board of Supervisors shall report to the Board of Directors and the sharcholder or
group of shareholders making the request. The inspection by the Board of Supervisors as
stipulated in this Clause shall not impede the normal operations of the Board of Directors and
shall not disrupt the business operations of the company .

h. Recommend to the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of Shareholders to take
measures 0 amend, supplement, and improve the organizational structure for management,
supervision, and operation of the Company's business activities;

i. Have the right to attend and discuss at mectings of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, Board of Directors and other meetings of the Company;

j- Have the right to use independent consuliants, propose the selection of independent
auditing companies, auditing fees and all related issues;

k. Report, conclusion and recommendation to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

| Orher rights and obligations as prescribed by law and this Charter.

2. The Board of Directors, the Director and other executives must provide all information
and documents relating to the Company's operations upon request of the Supervisory Board, The
Company Secretary must ensure that all copies of financial information, other information
provided to the Board of Directors and copies of minutes of Board of Directors meetings must be
provided o the Board of Directors members at the same time they are provided to the Board of
Directors.

3. The Board of Supervisors may issue regulations: on meetings of the Board of
Supervisors and the manner of operation of the Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors
must meet at least twice a vear and the number of members attending the meetings must be at
least twa,

4. The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board shall be decided by the
General Meeting of Sharcholders. The members of the Supervisory Board shall also be
reimbursed for their travel, hotel and other reasonable expenses incurred when they atiend
meetings of the Supervisory Board or perform other activities of the Supervisory Board .

X. RESPFONSIBILITIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD
MEMBERS, DIRECTORS AND OTHER MANAGERS

Article 35. Responsibility for care

Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the Director and other
executives are responsible for performing their duties honestly and in a manner that they believe
is in the best interests of the Company and with a degree of care that a prudent person would
normally have when holding a similar position and in similar circumstances .
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Article 36. Responsibility to be honest and avoid conflicts of interest

I. Members of the Board of Directors, Supervisors, Directors and other executives must
publicly disclose related interests in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law and
other legal provisions.

2. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, Directors and
other executives are not allowed to use business opportunities that may benefit the Company for
personal purposes; at the same time, they are not allowed to use information obtained through
their positions for personal gain or to serve the interests of other organizations or individuals.

3. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the Director and
other executives are obliged 1o notify the Board of Directars of all interests that may conflict
with the interests of the Company that they may enjoy through economic entities, transactions or
other individuals. The above subjects may only use such opportunities when members of the
Board of Directors who do not have related interests have decided not to pursue this issue.

4, The Company is not allowed to provide loans or guarantees to members of the Board of
Directors, Supervisors, Directors, other executives and individuals, organizations related to the
above members or legal entities in which these people have financial interests, except in cases
where the public company and the organization related to this member are companies in the
same group or compamies operating in a group of companies, including parent company -
subsidiary, economic group and specialized laws have other provisions.

5. A contract or transaction between the Company and one or more of its Directors,
[hrectors, other executives or persons related to them or a company, partnership, association, or
organization of which one or more of its Directors, other executives or persons related to them are
metnbers, or have a financial interest, shall not be void if:

a. For contracts valued at less than 20% of the total asset value recorded in the most recent
financial report, the important elements of the contract or transaction as well as the relationships
and interests of other executives or members of the Board of Directors have been reporied to the
Board of Directors. At the same time, the Board of Directors has allowed the implementation of
such contract or transaction in good faith by the majority vote of the Board of Directors who
have no refated interests; or

b. For contracts with a value greater than 20% of the total asset value recorded in the most
recent financial statements, the important elements of this contract or transaction as well as the
relationship and interests of other executives or members of the Board of Directors have been
disclosed to sharcholders with no relevant interests who have the right to vite on that matier, and
those shareholders have voled in favor of this contract or transaction;

€. such contract or transaction is considered by an independent consulting organization to
be fair and reasonable in all aspects related to the Company's sharcholders at the time the
transaction or contract is approved by the Board of Directors or the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, Directors, other
executives or their related persons are not allowed to buy or sell or deal in any other form with
the shares of the Company or its subsidiaries at the time when they have information that will
certainly affect the price of those shares and other shareholders are not aware of this information

Article 37. Liability for damages and compensation

1. Liability for damages. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory
Board, Directors and other executives who violate the obligation to act honestly, fail 1o fulfill
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their obligations with care, diligence and professional competence shall be liable for damages
caused by their violations.

2. Indemmity. The Company shall indemnify any person who has been, is or may become &
party to any claim, action or proceeding which has been, is or may be brought, whether civil or
administrative (other than litigation initiated by or under the Company’s authority} if such person
has been or is a member of the Board of Directors, other executive officer, employee or
authorized representative of the Company (or its subsidiary), or if such person has been or is
acting at the request of the Company (or its subsidiary) as a member of the Board of Directors,
other executive officer, employee or suthorized representative of the Company,

3. The cosis to be compensated include: costs incurred (including attomeys’ fees),
Judgment costs, fines, payments actually incurred or considered reasonable in resolving these
cases within the framework of the law, provided that the person has acted honestly, carefully,
diligently for the benefit of the Company, on the basis of compliance with the law and there is
no discovery or confirmation that the person has breached his‘her responsibilities. The Company
has the right to purchase insurance for such people to avoid the above compensation
responsibilities .

XI. RIGHT TO INSPECT COMPANY BOOKS AND RECORDS
Article 38, Right to investigate books and records
1. A shareholder or group of shareholders referred to in Article 12.3 of this Charter has the
right, directly or through a lawyer or authorized person, to submil a wrilten request to inspect
duering working hours and al the main business location of the Company: the list of shareholders,
the minutes of the General Meeting of Sharcholders and copies or extracts of such records. The
request for inspection by the representative lawyer or other authorized representative of the
shareholder must be accompanied by a power of attorney from the shareholder that person
represents or a notanzed copy of this power of attomey.
2. Members of the Board of Directors, members of the Supervisory Board, the Director
and other executives have the right to inspect the Company's shareholder register, the list of
shareholders and other books and records of the Company for purposes related to their positions,
provided that such information is kept confidential.
3. The Company shall keep this Charter and any amendments to the Charter, the Business
Registration Cerificate, regulations, documents proving ownership of assets, minutes of
meetings of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, reports of the
Board of Supervisors, annual financial statements, accounting books and any other documents as
prescribed by law at the head office or another place provided that the sharcholders and the
business registration authonty are notified of the location where these documents are kept .
4. The company charter must be published on the Company's website .
XII. EMPLOYEES AND UNIONS
Article 39. Employees and trade unions

I. The Director must plan for the Board of Directors to approve issues refated to
recruitment, emplovment, dismissal, salary, social insurance, benefits, rewards and discipline for
other executives and employees as well as the Company’s relationship with recognized trade
umions in sccordance with best management standards, practices and policies, the practices and
policies stipulated in this Charter, the Company's regulations and current legal regulations.

2. Employees in the Company have the right to establish trade unions and participate in
other political and social organizations in accordance with the provisions of law. Trade unions
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and political and social organizations established in the Company must operate in accordance
with the provisions of law .

XIIL PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
Article 40, Dividends

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders decides on the level of dividend payment and the
form of annual dividend payment from the Company's retained eamings. Dividends paid 1o
common shares are determined based on the net profit realized and the dividend payment is
deducted from the Company's retained eamings when all of the following conditions are met:

a. The Company has fulfilled its tax obligations and other financial obligations as prescribed
by law;

b. Has set aside company funds and fully compensated for previous losses according to the
provisions of law and the Company Charter;

c¢. Immediately after paying all the prescribed dividends, the company still ensures full
payment of all debts and other financial obligations due.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Board of Directors may decide to
pay mid-term dividends if it considers that such payment is consistent with the Company's
profitability.

3. The Company does not pay interest on dividends or pavments relating to a class of
shares.

4. The Board of Directors may propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders to approve
the payment of all or pant of dividends in shares and the Board of Directors is the body
implementing this decision.

5. In case dividends or other amounis related to a type of shares are paid in cash, the
Company shall pay in Vietnamese Dong . Payment may be made directly or through banks based
on the bank details provided by the sharcholder. In case the Company has transferred money
according to the bank details provided by the shareholder, the Company shall not be responsible
for any loss arising from such transfer. Payment of dividends for shares listed on the Stock
Exchange may be made through a securities company or a Depository Center.

6. Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises and the Law on Securities, the Board of Directors
may adopt a resolution specifying a specific date as the record date for shareholders. Based on
that date, those who register as shareholders or holders of other securities are entitled to receive
dividends, interest, profit distribution, shares, notices or other documents.

7. In case a shareholder transfers histher shares between the time of completion of the
shareholder hist and the time of dividend payment, the transferor shall be the person receiving the
dividend from the Company.

8. In case of paying dividends in violation of the law, the sharcholder must retum to the
Company the amount of money or other assets received; in case the shareholder cannot retum to
the Company, that shareholder and all members of the Board of Directors must jointly be
responsible for the debts and other property obligations of the Company within the value of the
amount of money or assets paid to the shareholder but not yet returmed |
Article 41. Issues related to profit distribution

Oither issues related to profit distribution are carried out in accordance with the provisions of
law,



XIV. BANK ACCOUNTS, RESERVE FUND, FINANCIAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING
SYSTEM
Arrticle 42, Bank acconnts

|. The company will open accounts at Vietnamese banks or foreign banks licensed to
operate in Yietnam.

2. Subject to prior approval of the competent authority, if necessary, the Company may
open a bank account abroad in accordance with legal regulations.

3. The Company conducts all payments and accounting transactions through Vietnamese
or foreign currency accounts at banks where the Company opens accounts.

Article 43. Fiscal year

|. The Company's fiscal year begins on the first day of January each vear and ends on the
31st day of December of the same vear.

2. At the end of the fiscal year, the Board of Directors must submit to the General Meeting
of Shareholders the following reports:

a. Financial statements and related explanatory notes.

b. Business performance report,

c. Report on evaluation of Company management and operation.

d. Report on provision, use of funds and annual dividend fevels,

The reports and documents specified in this clause must be sent to the Board of
Supervisors for review at least 30 (thirty) days before the opening date of the annual meeting of
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The reports and documents specified in this clause must be sent o the Board of
Supervisors for review at least 30 (thirty) days before the opening date of the annual meeting of
the General Meeting of Shareholders .

Article 44. Accounting regime

I. The accounting regime wsed by the Company is the Vietnamese Accounting System
(VAS) or other accounting regimes approved by the Ministry of Finance,

2. The Company shall maintain accounting books in Vietnamese. The Company shall
maintain accounting records according to the type of business activities in which the Company is
engaged. These records must be accurate, up-to-date, systematic and sufficient to demonstrate
and explain the Company's transactions.

3. The company uses Vietnamese Dong as the currency used in accounting .

XV, ANNUAL REPORT, RESPONSIBILITY FOR INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
Article 45. Annual, six-month and quarterly financial reports

I. The Company must prepare annual financial reports in accordance with the provisions
of law as well as the regulations of the State Securities Commission and the reports must be
audited in accordance with the provisions of Article 47 of this Charter, and within % days from
the end of each fiscal year, must submit annual financial reports approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders to the competent tax authority, the State Securities Commission, the
stock Exchange and the business registration authority,

2. The annual financial report must include a report on the results of production and
business activities that honestly and objectively reflects the Company's profit and loss siteation
during the fiscal vear and a balance sheet that honestly and objectively reflects the Company’s
opeérations up to the time of preparing the report, & cash flow statement and notes to the financial
statements. In addition to the annual financial report, the Company must also include a
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consolidated balance sheet on the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of
each fiscal year,

3. The Company must prepare and publish six-monthly and quarterly reports in accordance
with the regulations of the State Securities Commission and submit them to the State Securities
Commission and the Stock Exchange and submit them to relevant authorities and business
registration agencies in accordance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law.

4. The Company's audited financial statements (including the auditor's opinion), guarterly
and six-monthly reports must be published on the Company's website.

3. Interested organizations and individeals have the right to inspect or photocopy the
audited annual financial statements, semi-annual and quarterly reports during the Company's
working hours, at the Company's headquarters and must pay a reasonable fee for photocopying .
Article 46. Annual report

The company must prepare and publish annual reports in accordance with the provisions of
the law on securities and the stock market.

Article 47. Information disclosure and public announcement

The company must disclose information and make public announcements in accordance

with the provisions of law

XVI. COMPANY AUDIT
Article 48. Auditing

I. At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, an independent auditing company will
be appointed, or a list of independent auditing companies will be approved and the Board of
Directors will be authorized to decide on one of these independent auditing companies 1o
conduct the Company's auditing activities for the following fiscal year based on the terms and
conditions agresd with the Board of Directors. The independent auditing company conducting
the audit for the Company must be an auditing company approved by the State Securitics
Commission,

2. The company shall prepare and submit annual financial statements to the independent
auditing firm after the end of the fiscal year,

3. The independent suditing company shall examine, confirm and report on the annual
financial statements reflecting the Company's revenues and expenditures, prepare an audit report
and submit such report to the Board of Directors within two months from the end of the fiscal
year,

4. A copy of the audit report shall be attached 1o cach annual accounting report of the
Company.

5. The auditor performing the audit of the Company is allowed to attend the General Meeting
of Sharcholders and is entitled to receive notices and information refated to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders that the shareholders are entitled to receive and to express opinions at the meeting on
issues related 1o the audit .

XVII, STAMP
Article 49, Seal
I. Enterprises have their own seals, Seals are assets of the enterprise. Enterprises have the
right to decide on the form and content of their seals.
2. The company has 01 (one) seal,
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3. The legal representative of the enterprise must be responsible for managing and using
the seal in accordance with the provisions of faw,

XVIIL TERMINATION OF OPERATIONS AND LIQUIDATION
Article 50. Termination of operations

I. The company may be dissolved or terminated in the following cases:

a. The Court declared the Company bankrupt in accordance with current law;

b. Dissolution by decision of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

c. Ohher cases as prescribed by law.

2. When there is a decision to dissolve the Company, the Board of Directors shall directly
organize the liquidation of the enterprise’s assets or appoint a liquidator to replace the Board of
Directors and an auditor (o perform the task of liquidating the Company according to the
prescribed time and current financial regulations,

3. In case of bankruptcy declaration by the court, bankruptcy settlement procedures for the
Company will be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Bankruptey Law,

Article 51. Cases of deadlock between members of the Board of Directors and shareholders

Shareholders holding half of the cutstanding shares with voting rights in the election of
members of the Board of Directors have the right to file a complaint with the count to request
dissalution on one or more of the following grounds:

1. The Board of Directors members did not agree in managing the Company's affairs,
leading to the failure to obtain the required number of votes as prescribed for the Board of
Directors to operate.

2, The sharcholders did not reach a consensus and could not obtain the required number of
votes as prescribed to elect members of the Board of Directors.

3. There is internal disagreement and twoe or more factions of shareholders are divided so
that disselution would be the most beneficial option for all shareholders.

Article 52, Liguidation

I. At least 06 (six) months before the end of the Company's term of operstion or afier a
decision to dissolve the Company, the Board of Directors must establish a Liguidation
Committee consisting of three members, Two members are appointed by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and one member is appointed by the Board of Directors from an independent
auditing company. The Liguidstion Committee shall prepare its own operating regulations.
Members of the Liquidation Committee may be selected from among the Company's emplovess
or independent experts. All expenses refated to the liguidation shall be paid by the Company with
priority over other debts of the Company .

2. The Liquidation Board shall be responsible for reporting to the business registration
authority on the date of liquidation and the date of commencement of operations. From that time
on, the Liquidation Board shall represent the Company in all matters relating to the Company’s
liquidation before the Court and administrative agencies.

3. The proceeds from the liguidation will be paid in the following order:

Liguidation costs;

Salaries and insurance costs for employees;

Taxes and pavments of tax nature that the Company must pay to the State;
Loans {if any);

Orther debts of the Company;
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f. The balance remaining after all debis from items (a) to (e) above have been paid will be
distributed 1o the shareholders. Preferred shares will have priorty for payment.

XIX. INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTLON
Article 53. Resolution of internal disputes

l. In case of any dispute or complaint arising related to the Company's operations or the
rights of sharcholders arising from the Charter or from any rights or obligations prescribed by the
Enterprise Law or other laws or administrative regulations, between:

a. Shareholders with the Company; or

b. Shareholders with the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board, Director or other senior
execulives.

The parties concerned shall attempt to resolve such dispute through negotiation and
conciliation. Except in the case of a dispute involving the Board of Directors or the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, the Company’'s Board of Directors shall preside owver the resolution of the
dispute and shall require each party to present the facts relating to the dispute within 20 working
davs from the date the dispute arises, In the case of a dispute invelving the Board of Directors or
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, any party may request the economic arbitration to
appoint an independent expert to act as arbitrator in the dispute resolution process.

2. In case no conciliation decision is reached within six weeks from the start of the
conciliation process or if the conciliator's decision is not accepted by the parties, any party may
refer the dispute to Economic Arbitration or Economic Court.

3. The parties shall bear their own costs in connéction with the negotiation and
conciliation proceedings. The Count shall decide which party shall bear the costs of the
proceedings.

XX. SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE CHARTER
Article 54. Supplement and amendment of the Charter

I. Amendments and supplements to this Charter must be considered and decided by the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. In case there are provisions of the Law related to the Company's operations that have
not been mentioned in this Charter or in case there are new provisions of the Law that are
different from the provisions in this Charter, the provisions of that Law shall naturally be applied
and regulate the Company's operations.

XXI. EFFECTIVE DATE
Article 55, Effective date

1. This Charter consists of XXI1 chapters and 56 Articles and was unanimously approved
by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
on March 10, 2021.

2. This Charter is made into ten {10} copies of equal legal value, of which:

a. 01 copy submitted to the local State Notary OfTice;

h. 05 copies registered at the government agency according to the regulations of the
People’s Committee of the Province or City

. 04 copies are kept at the Company office.

3. This charter is the sole and official charter of the Company.
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4, Copies or extracts of the Company Charter must be signed by the Chairman of the
Board of Directors or at least one-half of the total number of members of the Board of Directors
o be valid.

Article 56. Signature of the Company's legal representative

A0



B GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Business registration: 0201768923 | Address: Lot CC2 — MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai 2, Hai An, Hai Phong
LOGISTICS Tel: (84) 0225.2838666 | Fax: (B4) 0225.2838689 | E-mail: fg_d_@g{g_g_n_icg_,_c_:gm._v_n__f Website: www.greenicd.com.vn

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT SERVICE JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 01/2025/NQ-PHDCD Hai Phong, March 10, 2025
RESOLUTION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JSC

B Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 39/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

- Pursuant to the Charter of organization and operation of Green Development and Service

Investment Joint Stock Company;

- Pursuant to the Minutes, meeting content and documents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders of Green Development and Service Investment Joint Stock Company dated
March 10, 2025,

General Meeting of Shareholders of Green Development and Investment Service JSC:

RESOLUTION:

Article 1. The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Green Development and Investment

Service Joint Stock Company approves the following contents:

1. Approving the dismissal of Mr. Nguyen The Trong from the position of member of the Board

of Directors for the 2024-2027 term accordin g to his personal wishes.

2 Agree on the list of candidates prepared by the Board of Directors and submitted to the 2025

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to elect additional members of the Board of Directors for the

2024-2027 term. On that basis, the General Meeting of Shareholders unanimously elected Mr. Le

Quang Huy as a member of the Board of Directors for the 2024-2027 term. From the effective date of

this resolution, the Company's Board of Directors for the 2024-2027 term includes the following

members:
Status Name of Board of Directors Note
member
L. Nguyen Duc Dung Election at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders
2. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi Election at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders
3. Dong Trung hai Election at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders
4., Tran Thi Phuong Anh Election at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders

Digitally signed by CONG TY CO PHAN BAU TU DICH VU VA

A A A PHAT TRIEN XANH . S
CO N G TY CO P HAN DN: C=VN, L=HAI PHONG, CN=CONG TY CO PHAN DAU TU'

DICH VU VA PHAT TRIEN XANH,

A A 0ID.0.9.2342.19200300.100.1.1=MST:0201768923, E=
DAU TU DICH VU VA ieicsemt conn
. g

eason: | am the author of this document
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S Le Quang Huy Additional election at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders
1. Approval of the Board of Directors' 2024 Operational Report; 2024 Business Performance

Report and 2025 Business Plan.

4,
5.

Approval of the Board of Supervisors' 2024 Operational Report.
Approval of Audited Financial Statements for 2024

Some basic indicators in the audited 2024 financial report are as follows:

Unit: Vietnamese Dong

STT Target Amount (VND)
I Total assets 262,562,040,922
2 Equity 121,200,000,000
In which: equity capital: 121,200,000,000
3 Service revenue 159,342,953,965
4 Financial revenue 1,291,778,386
5 Profit before corporate income tax 18,091,674,245
6 Profit after corporate income tax 16,238,924,768
7 Basic earnings per share 1,3@
6. Approval of 2024 profit distribution plan:
- Total profit after tax in 2024: 16,238,924,768 VND
- Provision for welfare reward fund: 1,660,000,000 VND
- Bonus for Board of Directors and Supervisory Board: 306,000,000 VND
- Pay dividends by shares (According to the Proposal for issuing shares to increase charter
capital attached to this Resolution)
- The remaining amount is used to supplement business capital and development
investment fund.
% Approval of the 2025 Business Plan and expected 2025 dividend level:

a. Business plan for 2025 is as follows:

- Revenue: 145 billion VND

- Profit before tax: 16.5 billion VND
b. Expected dividend level in 2025:

Expected dividend rate in 2025: 11% of charter capital.
The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors, based on the quality
of services and audit fees, to select an independent auditing company (reputable, licensed to
operate in Vietnam, approved by the State Securities Commission to audit public interest
entities in the securities sector in 2025) to perform the auditing activities. Auditing period:
From the date of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to the date of the 2026
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
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9.

Approving the amendment and supplementation of the Internal Regulations on corporate
governance to comply with Decree 155/2020/ND-CP specifically as follows:

Additional information:

“Article 14: Organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders through online meetings

In case the Company applies modern technology to organize the General Meeting of
Shareholders through online meetings, the Company is responsible Jor ensuring that
shareholders attend and vote by electronic voting or other electronic Jorms as prescribed in
Article 144 of the Law on Enterprises and Clause 3 , Article 274 of Decree No. 155/ND-CP".
Through the change of company name; Adjusting and supplementing the company's business
lines, and amending the Company Charter , specifically as follows:

Change company name

Old Company Name: Green Investment, Service and Development Joint Stock Company
Company name after change: VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company

b. Adjust and supplement some business lines. The Company's registered business lines after

change are as follows:

STT Name of industry, business Industry code

adjusted, detailed

Regulated business lines

Other support services related to transportation

Detail:

- Shipping agency services; Sea transport agency services;
Freight forwarding; Customs clearance agency activities;
Freight forwarding services; Freight forwarding support
services; Ship chartering brokerage (excluding crew); Cargo
packaging, sampling, weighing; International and domestic
multimodal transport services; Consignment agency, container
management, import and export goods delivery; Organization
of joint exploitation of container transport of import and export 5229
goods, transit goods by means of transport; Shipping agency (Main)
and maritime transport brokerage.

(except services of establishing, operating, maintaining and
servicing maritime signals, water areas, public water channels
and maritime routes; services of surveying water areas, public
water channels and maritime routes Jor the publication of
Maritime Notices; services of surveying, constructing and
developing nautical charts of water areas, seaports, maritime
channels and maritime routes; construction and issuance of

documents and publications on maritime safety. Services of
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regulating and ensuring maritime safety in public water areas,
waler areas and maritime routes; maritime electronic
information services; maritime pilotage services; Support
services related to air transport; Air transport business,
airports and general aviation business)

Cargo handling 5224
(except loading and unloading of goods at airport)

Real estate business, land use rights owned, used or leased
3. (except for investment in building cemetery infrastructure to 6810
transfer land use rights associated with infrastructure)
Wholesale of solid, liquid, gaseous fuels and related products
(except for export, import and distribution of goods in the List
4. of goods that foreign investors and Joreign-invested economic 4661
organizations are not allowed to exercise export rights, import
rights and distribution rights according to law.)

Retail sale of motor fuel in specialised stores

(except for export, import and distribution of goods in the List
3. of goods that foreign investors and Joreign-invested economic 4730
organizations are not allowed fo exercise export rights, import
rights and distribution rights according to law, )

Direct support service activities for railway transport
6. (except for management and exploitation of national railway 5221
and urban railway infrastructure systems invested by the State)
Business lines added

Wholesale of other machinery, equipment and spare parts
Detail:

- Wholesale of industrial machinery, equipment and spare parts
1. | (except for export, import and distribution of goods in the List 4659
of goods that foreign investors and Joreign-invested economic
organizations are not allowed to exercise export rights, import
rights and distribution rights according to law)

2. | Wholesale of automobiles and other motor vehicles 4511
Other specialized wholesale not elsewhere classified
3. | Details: 4669

- Wholesale of ships
Packing services

4. | Detail: 8292
- Packaging of goods
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.

Manufacture of automobiles and other motor vehicles

2910

6.

Motor Vehicle Rental

7710

Manufacture of bodies for motor vehicles and other motor
vehicles, trailers and semi-trailers

2920

Direct support service activities for water transport

Detail:

- Transportation services, water freight agency; Water transport
vehicle rescue activities; Operations, towing, and docking of
ships; Barge cargo transportation services

( except services of establishing, operating, maintaining and
servicing maritime signals, water areas, public water channels
and maritime routes; services of surveying water areas, water
areas, public maritime channels and maritime routes Jor the
publication of Maritime Notices: services of surveying,
constructing and developing nautical charts of water areas,
seaports, maritime channels and maritime routes; constructing
and issuing documents and publications on maritime safety;
Services of regulating and ensuring maritime safety in public
waler areas, waler areas and maritime routes; Maritime
electronic information services; Maritime pilotage services)

5222

Manufacture of spare parts and accessories for automobiles and
other motor vehicles

2930

10.

Renting of machinery, equipment and other tangible goods
without operator

Detail:

- Container rental

7730

Wholesale of agricultural machinery, equipment and spare
parts

(except for export, import and distribution of goods in the List
of goods that foreign investors and Joreign-invested economic
organizations are not allowed to carry out) export rights,
import rights, distribution rights according to law)

4653

12

Sale of spare parts and accessories for automobiles and other
motor vehicles

4530

13.

Other retail forms not elsewhere classified
Detail:
- Retail of ships and boats

4799

L 14.

Other remaining business support service activities not

8299
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I1.

c.

d.

elsewhere classified

(except for export, import and distribution of goods in the List
of goods that foreign investors and Joreign-invested economic
organizations are not allowed to exercise export rights, import
rights and distribution rights according to law)

Amend the contents of the Company's charter in accordance Wwith the change of company name
and adjustment and addition of business lines in Clause 10, Article 1 of this Resolution,
Perform

Assign/authorize the Board of Directors and/or the Director to carry out procedures related to
adjusting the Company's business lines and amending the Company Charter in accordance
with the adjusted contents on the basis of compliance with the Enterprise Law 2020,
Investment Law 2020 and other relevant legal documents,

Through contracts and transactions under the authority of the General Meeting of

Shareholders as follows:

a) Approving the policy of signing/performing contracts/transactions of the Company under
the approval authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 as follows:
- Contracting and transaction parties: organizations and individuals (including but not
limited to transactions between the Company and members of the Board of Directors,
Directors, and other related persons as prescribed by the Law on Enterprises).
- Types of contracts and transactions: loans/loans, guarantees (pledges, mortgages,
guarantees, etc.), sales, investments, etc. and other transactions under the authority of the
General Meeting of Shareholders,
- Contract/transaction value:
® Investment contracts/transactions, asset sales with a value of 35% or more of the total
asset value recorded in the Company's most recent financial statements,

® Contracts, transactions of borrowing, lending, selling assets with a value greater than
10% of the total value of the Company's assets recorded in the most recent financial
report between the Company and shareholders owning 51% or more of the total
number of voting shares or related persons of such shareholders.

® Contracts and transactions as prescribed in Clause 1, Article 167 of the Enterprise Law
have a value of 35% or more of the total value of the Company's assets recorded in the
most recent financial report.

- Time of signing contract/transaction: Transactions taking place from after the date of the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders to before the date of the 2026 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

b) Assign and authorize the Board of Directors to decide on the detailed content of each
contract/transaction; sign and implement the above contracts/transactions to ensure
compliance with legal regulations and the Company's interests. The Board of Directors is
authorized to re-authorize the Director to implement the content stated in this Article (if
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necessary), and report the implementation results at the 2026 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.
12. Approval of the Board of Directors' report No. 09 dated February 14, 2025 on approving the
plan to issue shares to increase charter capital (the report is attached to this Resolution).
Article 2. The Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Green
Development and Investment Service Joint Stock Company takes effect from the date of signing. The
Board of Directors of the Company is assigned to implement the above contents in accordance with
current regulations of law and the Company's Charter./.
ON BEHALF OF GMS
Recipient : CHAIRMAN
- As per Article 2 (to implement); : AIRMAN OF BOD
- Hanoi Stock Exchange;
- Save: Board of Directors, General

Director, Information Technology
Department.

3/ COPHAN
«| BAU TUDICH VY
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SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING PROPOSAL (9)

(Re: Approval of the Plan to issue shares to increase charter capital )

To: 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Base on:
- Enterprise Law No. 5 9/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

- Securities Law No. 54/201 9/OH14 dated November 26, 20] 9:

- Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

- Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the
implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

= Circular No. 118/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the Ministry of Finance guiding a
number of contents on offering, issuing securities, public offering, repurchasing shares, registering
public companies and canceling public company status.

- Charter of Green Investment, Service and Development Joint Stock Company;

- Based on the actual capital needs of Green Development and Service Investment Joint Stock
Company.
Dear Shareholders!

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders ("GMS ")
for consideration and approval of the plan to issue shares to increase the charter capital of Green
Development and Service Investment Joint Stock Company (Stock code GIC) in 2025 as follows:

I THE NECESSITY OF INCREASING CHARTER CAPITAL

After more than 8 years of operation and development in the field of supporting services for sea,
waterway, road transport, warehousing and loading and unloading of goods, Green Investment Service
and Development Joint Stock Company (GIC) has been providing many services to customers,
especially services related to transportation and import and export of goods in the Northern region in
general and Hai Phong in particular. To meet the needs of business expansion, especially sea and road
transport, logistics services, the Company needs to invest in purchasing more factories, warehouses,
purchasing machinery, equipment, means of transport and synchronizing necessary equipment for
loading and unloading, transporting goods. With a charter capital of 121.2 billion VND (since its
establishment, the Company has only increased its capital once by 20.2 billion VND in 2018), it is
currently unable to meet the current business needs and the Company's business expansion plan in the
coming time. GIC's increase in charter capital is necessary and important in improving the Company's
financial capacity, operational capacity and business expansion ability . Therefore, the Board of
Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval
of the 2025 Share Issuance Plan as follows:

IL.  Plan to issue shares to increase charter capital
Shares of Green Development and Service Investment Joint

Stock name

Stock Company

" /—__-h"“xo
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Stock code GIC
Stock type Common stock
Share price 10,000 (Ten thousand) VND/share

Charter capital before issuance

121,200,000,000 VND

Total number of shares before
issuance

12,120,000 shares

Number of additional shares issued
in there:

Expected 13,332,000 shares (In words: Thirteen million, three
hundred thirty two thousand shares)

—  Number of shares issued to pay
dividends in 2024 (rate 10%)

Expected 1,212,000 shares

~  Number of shares offered to
existing shareholders (ratio 1:1)

Expected 12,120,000 shares

Asking price

10,000 VND/share (applied to issuance according to the right
exercise ratio for existing shareholders)

Total expected revenue

121,200,000,000 VND (In words: One hundred twenty one
billion, two hundred million VND)

Purpose of capital use

Supplement working capital and invest in purchasing
additional factories, warehouses, machinery , equipment and
means of transport to serve production and business activities.

Number of shares after issuance

Expected 25,452,000 shares

Charter capital after issuance

Estimated 254,520,000,000 VND (In words: Two hundred
Sifty four billion, five hundred twenty million VND)

Estimated implementation time

Quarter Il — Quarter IV/2025

(Detailed plan for issuing shares to increase charter capital is attached to this Proposal)
Respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval!

Hai Phong, February 14, 2025
AF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

/27 CONGTY
1=/ CcOPHAN
'+ BAU TU DICH VY
VA PHAT TRIEN
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SHARE ISSUANCE PLAN TO INCREASE CHARTER CAPITAL
(Attached to Submission No. 09 of the Board of Directors dated F. ebruary 14, 2025)

L. Plan to issue shares to pay dividends in 2024
i | Susei Shares of Green Development and Service Investment
+ | Stock name Joint Stock Company
2. | Stock code GIC
3. | Stock type Common stock
4. | Face value 10,000 VND/share
5 Nu_mber of shares expected to 1,212,000 share
be issued
6. Total issue value at expected 12,120,000,000 VND
par value
Issuance ratio (Number of
shares expected to be 10%
7. issued/number  of  shares i
outstanding)
8. | Exercise rate 10:1 (Owners of 10 shares receive 01 new share)
Existing shareholders whose names are on the shareholder
list on the last registration date to close the shareholder list
9. |Issuer to exercise the right to pay dividends in shares issued by the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
(VSDC) according to regulations
Undistributed profit after tax on the audited separate
10. | Issued capital financial statements of 2024 of Green Development and
Service Investment Joint Stock Company
Shares issued to pay dividends will be rounded down to the
nearest unit. Fractional shares (if any) will be cancelled.
For example: On the record date for shareholders to
Rounding plan and handling exercise the right to pay dividends in shares, shareholder
1. . Nguyen Van A owns 589 shares. At that time, shareholder
of fractional shares 4 4 :
A will receive the number of newly issued shares to pay
dividends corresponding to (589:1 0) x 1 = 58.9 shares,
rounded down to 58 shares. The fractional shares of 0.9
shares will be canceled,
12. | Transfer restrictions Shares issued to pay 2024 dividend.s to existing
‘ shareholders are not subject to transfer restrictions.
IL.  Plan to offer additional shares to existing shareholders by exercising purchase rights
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Shares of Green Development and Service Investment Joint
1. | Stock name

Stock Company
2. | Stock code GIC
3. | Stock type Common stock
4, | Face value 10,000 VND/share
5. Number of shares expected 12,120,000 share

to be issued

6. | Total issue value at| 51550600 000 VND
expected par value

7. | Type of shares offered Common stock

8. | Asking price 10,000 (ten thousand) VND/share

+ Book value of GIC shares as of December 31, 2024
according to 2024 financial statements is VND
19,997/share;

+ The market price of GIC shares as of February 12, 2025 is
VND 16,200/share (closing price) (source: hnx.vn).

Thus, the offering price is determined to be lower than the
Company's book value according to the 2024 financial report
and lower than the value of GIC shares on February 5, 2025.
9. | Basis for determining price | According to the provisions of Article 12.6 of the Enterprise
Law, the Company will be allowed to issue shares to existing
shareholders at a price not higher than the market price at the
time of offering or the value recorded in the books of the
shares at the most recent time. In addition, due to the impact
of the adjustment of the share price on the date of exercising
the rights, the Board of Directors submitted to the Company's
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the issuance
plan to existing shareholders at a price of VND 10,000 /share
to ensure the rights of shareholders and the success of the
public offering of shares to existing shareholders .

Offering Ratio (Number of
shares expected to be 100%
offered/Number of shares ’
outstanding)

Offer for sale to existing shareholders by exercising purchase

11. | Offering method rights

1:1 (At the record date for shareholders to exercise rights,
12. | Exercise rate shareholders owning 01 share will enjoy 01 purchase right, for
every Ol purchase right, they will be able to buy 01 new
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share)

13.

Issuer

Existing shareholders whose names are on the shareholder list
on the last registration date to close the shareholder list to
exercise the right to purchase shares granted by the Vietnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC)
according to regulations

14.

Transfer of purchase rights

The right to purchase can be transferred once (the transferee
cannot transfer the right to purchase to a third party). The
transferor and transferee will negotiate the transfer price, pay
the money and are responsible for performing the obligations as
prescribed in the transfer.

15,

Rounding method

The number of shares offered to existing shareholders will be
rounded down to the nearest unit to ensure that the total
number of shares distributed does not exceed the total number
offered.

For_example: On the record date Jor exercising rights,
shareholder Nguyen Van A owns 589 shares. At that time, the
expected exercise ratio is 1:1, the number of shares offered
Jor sale that shareholder A can buy is (589 : 1) x 1 = 589
shares.

16.

for handling odd
and undistributed

Plan
shares
shares

- The odd number of shares arising from rounding (if any)
and the remaining shares that have not been distributed due
to the existing shareholders not registering to buy or paying
for the purchase will be offered by the Board of Directors to
other investors (including shareholders of the Company who
want to increase their share ownership) at an offering price
not lower than the offering price to the existing
shareholders. The criteria and list of investors eligible to
buy these remaining shares will be decided by the General
Meeting of Shareholders authorized by the Board of
Directors,

- In case the time limit for distributing shares as prescribed by
law (including extension period, if any) expires and the
shares have not been fully distributed, the undistributed
shares will be cancelled and the Board of Directors will
decide to end the offering. The Company will increase its
capital according to the actual capital contribution of
shareholders and investors.

17.

Plan to ensure compliance
with  foreign ownership
ratio regulations

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of
Directors to approve a plan to ensure that the offering of
shares meets the regulations on foreign ownership ratio.

68923 | Address: Lot CC2 ~ MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai 2,
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- The number of shares sold to existing shareholders and
transferees of purchase rights from existing shareholders is
not subject to transfer restrictions.

- The remaining shares not fully distributed to existing
shareholders (including the odd shares arising from
rounding) when offered to other shareholders/investors will
be restricted from transfer for 01 (one) year from the end
date of the offering in accordance with regulations.

- The number of shares purchased by the underwriting
organization according to the commitment in the
underwriting contract (if any) will not be subject to transfer
restrictions.

18. | Restrictions on Transfer

Agree that sharcholders/investors (selected by the Board of
Directors) when purchasing undistributed shares will not have
Tender Offr to carry out public offering procedures as prescribed by the

12, Securities Law if the purchase of such quantity results in an
ownership ratio reaching or exceeding the ownership ratios
prescribed in Clause 1, Article 35 of the Securities Law.

Mini ful
50, | Minimum success Not applicibls

offering rate

ITI.  Assess the expected level of share dilution after the offering

GIC's share price will be technically adjusted on the market on the trading day without the right
to purchase additional shares offered. The market price of GIC's shares will be adjusted according to
the following formula:

PH‘(PI‘ini)
1+1;

Pp1=

In there:

- P i: Diluted share price on ex-dividend date

- P.: GIC stock price on the trading day before the ex-rights trading date

- Pr;:Additional issue price

- I;:is the stock issuance ratio

Assuming that on the trading day before the ex-rights trading day, the market price of GIC

shares is VND 15,000/share and the offering of shares to existing shareholders is carried out together
with the issuance of shares to pay dividends in 2024. At that time, shareholders are entitled to purchase
shares under the additional offering plan to existing shareholders at a ratio of 1:] (equivalent to 100%)
at a price of VND 10,000/share and the right to receive dividends in 2024 in shares (ratio 10%), then
the diluted price of GIC shares is:
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P,  16000+(10,000x1)

- 1+1+40.]

= 12,380 VND/share

IV. Capital usage plan

The proceeds from the public offering of additional shares to existing shareholders will be used
to supplement working capital and invest in purchasing additional factories, warehouses, machinery,
equipment and means of transport to serve production and business activities, specifically as follows:

STT Capital usage plan Amount
1 Additional working capital 10,000,000,000 VND
P Invest in buying more factories and warehouses 40,000,000,000 VND
3 Invest in buying more vehicles 67,000,000,000 VND
4 Invest in buying more machinery and equipment 4,200,000,000 VND
Total 121,200,000,000 VND

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to develop a detailed
capital use plan , specifically decide on the allocation and use of the proceeds from the share offering
and/or amend, supplement, and adjust the capital use plan in accordance with the business situation,
ensuring the Company's general development plan as well as the interests of shareholders, ensuring
compliance with the provisions of law.

V. Change /adjust the Certificate of Business Registration and Company Charter

General meeting of shareholders Authorize the Board of Directors to amend and supplement the
Company Charter, carry out procedures to change/adjust the Business Registration Certificate
according to the new capital level after the end of the issuance.

VI. Through additional depository registration and additional listing registration

The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the adjustment of information on the number of
registered securities (additional registration) at the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation and the registration of additional listing of all additional issued shares at the Stock
Exchange where the Company's shares are listed after the end of the issuance, and at the same time
authorized the Board of Directors to proactively implement and complete related procedures
immediately after the end of the issuance .

VIL. Through the authorization of the General Meeting of Shareholders to the Board of
Directors

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to decide on the
following issues related to the issuance :

l. Choose the time to release, build and complete the profile issue shares to pay dividends and offer
additional shares to existing shareholders to increase capital send to the State Securities
Commission and relevant state agencies. In case the State Securities Commission and relevant
state agencies require amendments or supplements, the Board of Directors is allowed to decide
on amendments or supplements according to the recommendations/proposals of the State
Securities Commission and relevant state agencies.

W
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Select an underwriting organization, negotiate, sign underwriting contracts and complete
procedures to implement underwriting (if necessary).

Select the time to finalize the exercise date and other milestones related to the implementation of
stock issuance according to regulations.

Handle odd shares arising from rounding and remaining shares due to shareholders refusing to
buy.

Decide on detailed capital usage plans and proactively adjust the usage and allocation of
collected capital, capital disbursement time, and capital usage purposes if necessary and in
accordance with the actual situation of the Company, ensuring compliance with legal
regulations.

Develop a plan to ensure that the offering of shares meets foreign ownership ratio regulations.
Carry out amendments and supplements to the Company Charter related to the charter capital
and number of shares after the end of the issuance and related provisions in the Company
Charter according to the actual issuance results.

Carry out procedures to change/adjust the Company's Business Registration Certificate related to
changing charter capital according to actual issuance results.

Carry out necessary procedures to adjust information on the number of registered securities
according to the number of shares issued at the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing \‘3;
Corporation and register for additional listing of all additional shares issued at the Stock L
Exchange where the Company's shares are listed . &
In addition to the above contents, the General Meeting of Shareholders unanimously approved
the authorization for the Board of Directors to decide all other related issues arising in the
process of issuing shares to pay dividends and offering additional shares to existing shareholders
to increase capital according to regulations.

ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS




VSC GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
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No.: 08/2025/NQ-HBQT Hai Phong, August 29, 2025
RESOLUTION

Re: Approving the implementation of the plan for share issuance to increase charter capital and the
plan for utilizing proceeds from the issuance

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

 Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and its guiding documents:

* Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and its guiding documents;

¢ Law No. 56/2024/QH15 passed by the National Assembly on November 29, 2024: Law amending
and supplementing a number of articles of the Law on Securities, Law on Accounting, Law on
Independent Audit, Law on State Budget, Law on Management and Use of Public Assets, Law on Tax
Administration, Law on Personal Income Tax, Law on National Reserves, and Law on Handling of
Administrative Violations;

e Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government detailing the
implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities:

e Charter of Organization and Operation of the Company;

* General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-DHBCP dated March 10, 2025 on
approving the Plan for share issuance to increase charter capital;

* Minutes of the Board of Directors (BOD) meeting dated August 29, 2025.

RESOLVES:
Article 1: Approve the implementation of the share issuance plan according to the proposal in the

General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-PHPCP dated March 10, 2025, with
the following details:
» Name of share: Share of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company
e Stock code: GIC :
* Type of share: Ordinary share
o Parvalue: 10,000 VND/share
» Charter capital before issuance: 121,200,000,000 VND
o Number of shares before issuance: 12,120,000 shares
» Number of additional shares to be issued: expected 13,332,000 shares, in which:
o Issuance of shares for 2024 dividend payment: 1,212,000 shares
o Additional public offering to existing shareholders: 12,120,000 shares
» Total value of additional issuance at par value: 121,200,000,000 VND
e Method of issuance:
o Issuance of shares for 2024 dividend payment: 10%




L ]

o Additional offering to existing sharcholders via the rights exercise method, exercise

ratio: 1:1
Expected number of shares after issuance: 25,452,000 shares
Expected charter capital after issuance: 254,520,000,000 VND.

Specific issuance plan is as follows:
L. Plan for share issuance for 2024 dividend payment

1.

LI b3

R

Expected number of shares to be issued: 1,212,000 shares.

Total issuance value at par value: 12,120,000,000 VND.

Issuance ratio (Expected number of shares to be issued / Number of outstanding shares): 10%.
Rights exercise ratio: 10:1 (A shareholder owning 10 shares shall receive 01 new share).
Capital source for issuance: Undistributed post-tax profit on GIC's audited 2024 Financial
Statements,

Timeline of issuance: After approval from the State Securities Commission. Expected Q4/2025
—-Q2/2026.

Plan for rounding and handling of fractional shares: Shares issued for dividend payment will be
rounded down to the nearest whole unit. Fractional shares (if any) will be canceled.

Other contents: Pursuant to the Plan for share issuance for 2024 dividend payment approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders in Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-DHDCD dated March 10,
2023.

IL. Plan for additional share offering to existing shareholders

1.

N

Number of shares registered for offering: 12,120,000 shares

2. Offering price: 10,000 VND/share
3i
4. Rights exercise ratio: 1:1 (On the record date for rights exetcise, a shareholder owning 01 share

Ratio of additional shares registered for offering to total outstanding shares: 100%

is entitled to 01 purchase right; every 01 purchase right allows the purchase of 01 new share)
Total expected capital to be mobilized: 121,200,000,000 VND
Minimum success rate: Not applicable
Timeline of offering: After approval from the State Securities Commission. Expected Q4/2025
~Q2/2026.
Distribution method: Additional offering to existing shareholders through purchase rights
exercise.
Plan to ensure the share issuance complies with the maximum foreign ownership ratio: The
maximum foreign ownership ratio at VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company (GIC) is
implemented according to Official Dispatch No. 658/UBCK-PTTT dated April 1, 2025, of the
State Securities Commission and is set at 49%. Therefore, to ensure that the issuance and
distribution do not exceed 49% of charter capital, the BOD will implement the following
measures:
o Coordinate with VSDC to ensure shareholders do not transfer purchase rights to foreign
investors in a way that exceeds the regulated limit.
o Regarding fractional shares arising from rounding and shares not fully distributed to
existing shareholders, the Company commits not to offer them to foreign investors.



10. Purpose of capital use: Supplementing working capital and investing in purchasing additional
workshops, warchouses, machinery, equipment, and means of transport for production and
business activities.

11. Other contents: Pursuant to the Plan for share issuance to increase charter capital approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders in Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-DHDCD dated March 10,
2025.

Article 2: Approve the plan for utilizing proceeds from the offering with the following details:

1. Total expected proceeds from the offering: 121,200,000,000 VND

2. Plan for capital use: The total amount expected to be raised from the offering of additional
shares to existing shareholders (VND 121,200,000,000) will be used to supplement working
capital and invest in acquiring additional factories, warehouses, machinery, equipment, and
transport vehicles to support business and production activities, with the following plan:

Expected
No.
0 Items Value (VND) Execution Time
1 |ISupplementing working capital 10,000,000,000(1Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
) Investment in purchasing additional workshops. 40,000,000,000/Q1/2026 o Q1/2027
warehouses
3 ||Investment in purchasing additional means of transport 67,000,000,000(1Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
/€5 1 i litior i d
4 Iny t..qtmeni in purchasing additional machinery an 4,200,000,000(/Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
equipment
Total 121,200,000,000
 Detailed disbursement plan:
_ ! Expected Expected
i Coatar ot Crpital Lse Disbursement Value || Disbursement Time
1 (Supplementing working capital 10,000,000,000
) Investment in purchasing additional workshops, 40,000,000,000
warehouses
E — Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
21 Lan# Use Rights Transfer Contract No. g 40,000,000,000
36/HDPCN/GLC-GIC dated Aug 29, 2025
3 Investment in purchasing additional means of 67,000,000,000
transport
Asset Transfer Contract No. 37/HPCNTS/GLC- .
3 18,000,000,000(Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
GIC dated Aug 29, 2025 : Q i
39 Asset Transfer Contract No. 170/HDCNTS/GSL- 49,000,000,000
GIC dated Aug 29, 2025
4 Investmf:nt in purchasing additional machinery 4,200,000,000
and equipment Q1/2026 to Q1/2027
4.1 [[Machinery and Equipment Transfer Contract No. 3,600,000,000




Expected Expected

No. Content of Capital Use
P Disbursement Value || Disbursement Time

38/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC dated Aug 29, 2025

Machinery and Equipment Transfer Contract No.
169/HPCNTS/GSL-GIC dated Aug 29, 2025

4.2 600,000,000

Total 121,200,000,000

Article 3: Assign and authorize the Director of the Company to be responsible for finalizing dossiers
and relevant procedures in accordance with the law for implementation.

Article 4: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. Members of the Board of Directors,
Director, Chief Accountant, and relevant departments are responsible for implementing this
Resolution./,

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF-EH
- As Article 4 (for implementation);

- BOD, Board of Supervisors, Information
Disclosure;

- Archives, BOD Secretary.

OA.RD OF DIRECTORS
JATRMAN




VSC GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
---000--- ---000---
No.: 10/2025/NQ-HBQT Hai Phong, December 4th, 2025
RESOLUTION

Re: Approving the sequence and timeline for implementing share issuance plans to increase charter
capital in 2025 and related contents of the issuance plan

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

 Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H14 dated June 17, 2020, and its amending, supplementing
documents and guiding regulations,

* Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019, and its amending,
supplementing documents and guiding regulations;

» Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government detailing the
implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities and its amending, supplementing
documents;

» The Charter of Organization and Operation of the Company;

» General Mandate of the General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/NQ-PHPCP dated
March 10, 2025, regarding the approval of the Share Issuance Plan to increase charter
capital;

» Board Resolution No. 08/2025/NQ-HP QT dated August 29, 2025, regarding the
implementation of the share issuance plan to increase charter capital and the plan for utilizing
proceeds from the issuance;

o Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting dated December 4, 2025.

RESOLVED

Article 1: Approve the sequence and timeline for implementing share issuance plans to incre
charter capital in 2025 of VSC Green Logistics JSC, as approved by the 2025 Annual General Mee
of Shareholders, specifically as follows:
 Concurrent implementation of two plans: Issuance of shares for dividend payment and pub
offering of additional shares to existing shareholders in the same issuance period.
o Upon receiving approval from the State Securities Commission (SSC), the Board of
Directors will proceed to finalize the list of shareholders to exercise concurrent rights:
(1) the right to receive dividends in shares and (2) the right to purchase additional
shares issued to existing shareholders on the same record date.
o The number of additional shares issued in the offering to existing shareholders will not
be entitled to receive the stock dividends from this same issuance period.
» Implementation timeline: During Q4/2025 — Q2/2026, following the approval of the State
Securities Commission.



Article 2: Approve the detailed plan for utilizing proceeds for the working capital supplement, as
previously approved by the Board of Directors in Resolution No. 08/2025/NQ-HPQT dated August
29, 2025, under the authorization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, as follows:

1. Amount from the offering to be used for working capital supplement: VND 10,000,000,000

2. Detailed utilization plan:

. Expected Disbursement || Expected Disbursement
N il ili
o Utilization Content Value (VND) Timeline
ki ital st ;

) Wor ‘ng capital supplement, 10,000,000,000

including:
1.1 |[Labor and management costs 4,000,000,000

Fuel. : : . Within 2026
| o [[Fuel. materials (cc{nsumables_, 3.000,000,000

reserves) and repair costs

C li i orati
13 (:igso handling and other operating 3,000,000,000

COSE

Article 3: Assign and authorize the Director of the Company to be responsible for finalizing relevant
dossiers and procedures in accordance with the law to implement this Resolution.

Article 4: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. Members of the Board of Directors,
the Director, the Chief Accountant, and relevant departments are responsible for implementing this
Resolution./.

Recipients:

- As per Article 4 (for implementation);

- Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
Information Disclosure;

- Archives, Secretary of the Board.




V8C GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
-==0{Q--~ ===0() 0~~~
No.: 11/2025/NQ-HPQT Hai Phong, December 4th, 2025
RESOLUTION

Re: Approving the registration dossier for the public offering of shares to existing shaveholders

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

» The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, and its amending,
supplementing documents and guiding regulations;

» The Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019, and its amending,
supplementing documents and guiding regulations;

* Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, of the Government detailing the
implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities and its amending, supplementing
documents;

»  The Charter of Organization and Operation of the Company;

» General Mandate of the General Meeting of Shareholders No. 01/2025/NQ-DHPCP dated
March 10, 2025, regarding the approval of the Share Issuance Plan to increase charter
capital;

» Board Resolution No. 09/2025/NQ-HDQT dated August 29, 2025, regarding the approval o
the registration dossier for the public offering of shares to existing shareholders;

e Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting dated December 4, 2025.

RESOLVED
Article 1: Approve the registration dossier for the public offering of shares to existing shareholders to
increase charter capital, comprising the following documents:

» Registration Application for Public Offering of Shares No. 01/2025/GIC-GPKCRB dated
August 29, 2025;

¢ Prospectus;

+ Business Registration Certificate No, 0201768923 issued by the Hai Phong Department of
Finance, with the 4th amendment dated March 13, 2025;

¢ The Company's Charter;

e General Mandate of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharecholders (AGM) No.
01/2025/NQ-DHPCD dated March 10, 2025, and the Minutes of the AGM No. 01/2025/BB-
DHDCD dated March 10, 2025, regarding the approval of the Share Issuance Plan to increase
charter capital;

+ Submission to the General Meeting of Shareholders (9) dated February 14, 2025, regarding the
approval of the Share Issuance Plan to increase charter capital;



+ Audited Financial Statements for the years 2023 and 2024 of VSC Green Logistics JSC;
Q3/2025 Financial Statements of VSC Green Logistics ISC:

« Board Resolution No. 08/2025/NQ-HPQT dated August 29, 2025, regarding the
implementation of the share issuance plan to increase charter capital and the plan for utilizing
proceeds from the issuance;

» Board Resolution No. 10/2025/NQ-HDQT dated December 4, 2025, regarding the sequence
and timeline for implementing the 2025 share issuance plans and related contents;

¢ Advisory Contract for share issuance to increase charter capital No. 1102/2025/HDTVPH/GIC-
VIX dated February 11, 2025, signed between VSC Green Logistics JSC and VIX Securities
JSC;

» Board of Directors’ Report No. 02/2025/BC-HDQT dated August 29, 2025, regarding the
segregation of voting results for shareholders with related interests who are individuals or
organizations related to the purpose of capital utilization;

» Board of Directors’ Report No. 01/2025/BC-HPQT dated August 29, 2025, regarding the
segregation of voting results for Board members related to the plan for utilizing proceeds from
the offering;

* Document No. 20/2025/GIC-CV dated August 29, 2025, regarding the commitment to
implement share listing;

¢ Bank confirmation regarding the opening of a frozen account to receive payments for the share
offering dated April 11, 2025;

» Document No. 19/2025/GIC-CV dated August 29, 2025, regarding the commitmen
Issuer is not under criminal prosecution or has not been convicted of any crimes agh
economic management order without an expunged criminal record; N

e Document No. 24/2025/GIC-CV dated December 4, 2025, regarding the non—vmi%ﬁ
cross-ownership regulations under the Law on Enterprises;

» Documents related to the plan for utilizing proceeds from the public share offering. L&

Article 2: This Resolution replaces Board Resolution No. 09/2025/NQ-HPQT issued on August 29,
2025. Board Resolution No. 09/2025/NQ-HPQT shall cease to be effective from the date of issuance
of this Resolution.

Article 3: Assign and authorize the Director of the Company to be responsible for finalizing relevant
dossiers and procedures in accordance with the law to implement this Resolution.

Article 4: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. The Board of Directors, the Director,
relevant departments, and employees are responsible for implementing this Resolution in accordance
with the law and the Company's Charter./.

Recipients:

- As per Article 4 (for implementation);

- Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
Information Disclosure;

- Archives, Secretary of the Board.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Statement of the responsibility of the Board of Managemeant of the Company in respect of
the Financial Statements

The Board of Management of Green Development and Invastmant Service Joint Stock Company
("the Company”} is responsible for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
wiew of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and the resulls of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended. In prepanng these financial statements,
the Board of Management is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis uniess it Is inappropnate to
presume that the Company will continue in business,

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for ensuring thal proper accounting
records are kept which dizclose, with reazonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of
the Company and enable financial statements to be prepared which comply with the basis of
accounting set out in Note 2 to the financial statemeants. The Board of Management of the
Company is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud or emor,

Approval of the Financial Statements

We heraby, approva the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 5 to 33 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 Decamber 2023 and of
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended. The financial statements
are prepared in accordance with Vietnamesa Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting Systemn and applicable regulations on the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements,

BAL FL BICH VU
i PRAT TRIEN /L8
:'LﬁrH{'l Ll

Deong Trung Hai

General Director/Legal Representative

Hai Phong, SR Vietnam
20 February 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

e have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) which ware prepared on 31 December 2023 and
approved by the Board of Management of the Company on 20 February 2024, These financial
statements compnse the balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, the income statement and the
cash flow statement for the yvear then ended, and explanatory notes to the financial statements
including significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 33,

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Board of Management of the Company |8 responsible for the praparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations on the
preparation and prezenfation of financial statements; and for such intemal contral which the Board
of Managemeant determings as necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
fimancial statemants that are free from materal misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. These standards
recuire that we comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit
in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements of the Company
are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including an assessmeant of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those rsk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal contral refevant to the Company's preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements In order to design audit proceduras that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal contral, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Eocard of
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Wa beliave that the audit evidenca wa have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

...........................................................................................

Eranch of Pwl Miednam) Limilad in Hanol

{ Gt foor, Mesmgnam Hano Landmark Tower, Lob £6, Cau Slay Urban Arsa. Me T Commoune, Mam Tu Uism Crafnic,
Hanai, ¥ietnam

T, +84 24 3048 2248 www pwe comdtvn
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Auditor's Opinion

In eur opinion, the financial statements present fairty, in all material respects, the financial position
of tha Company as at 31 December 2023, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporale

Accounting System and applicable regulations on the preparation and presantation of financial
statemeants.

Other Matter

The independent auditor's report is prepared in Vietnamese and English. Should there be any
conflict between the Vietnamese and English versions, the Vietnamese version shall take
precedence.

For and on behalf of Branch of PwC [Vietnam) Limited in Hanoi

CVN—

Tran Hong Kien Truong Minh Hoa

f CHI MHANH '-

y
w‘lf-:;uhn TY [HHH"I'I

Audit Practising Licence Audit Practising Licence
Mo. 0298-2023-008-1 Mo, S067-2024-006-1

Authorised signatory

Report reference number: HAN 3541
Hanai, 20 February 2024
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BALAMNCE SHEET

Code ASSETS

100 CURREMNT ASSETS

110  Cash and cash equivalents
111 Cash

112 Cash eguivalents

130 Short-term receivables

131

132

135 Short-term lending

136 Ciher shart=tanm receivablas
140 Inventories

141 Inventaries

150 Other current assets

151 Shor-term prepaid expenses
200 LONG-TERM ASSETS

220 Fixed assets

221 Tangible fixed assets

222 Historical cost

223 Accumulated depreciation
227 Intangible fixed assets

228 Historical cost

229 Accumulzied amaortisation
250 Long-term investmeants

253 Imvastmeants In othar antities
254

260  Other long-term assets

261 Long-term prepaid expanses
270 TOTAL ASSETS

Shori-term trade accounts receivable
shor-term prepayments to supplers

Provision for long-term invesiments

MNote

o h

&(a)

Bia)

9{b)

10
10

&ib)

Form B 01 - DN

A= at 31 December

2023
VND

50,473,566,277

43,520,227,724
B.020,227.724
35.500,000,000

12,596,726,345
1,140,464 476
1,067 500,000
10,00:0,000,000
388,761,869

3,085,444 230
3,085 444 230

261,167,978
261,167,978

207,953,363,730
43,799,300,690

43,799, 300,680
153,394,732 157

(109.585,431.447)

1,121,382 455
(1,121,382 459)

49 536,637,974
50,000,000,000
(483,362 026)

114,617,425,066
114,617 425,086

2022
VND

77.129,462,994

29,639,378,630
6,630,378 830
23,000,000,000

42,611,001,232
1,220 042 B32
1.250,117.720

40,140.840,680

3,206,657 200
3 206,657,200

1,672,425,932
1,672 425,932

178,347,098 608

61,054,089,659
61,054 089 859
153,724,487 576
{92,670,397,917)

1,121,382 459
(1,121,382, 459)

]

117,253,008,949
117,2893,008,949

267,426,930,007

255,476,561,602

The noles on pages % to 33 are an Integral pan of these financial siatemants,

5
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BALANCE SHEET

{continued)

Code RESOURCES MNote
300 LIABILITIES

30 Short-term liabilities

311 Shart-term trade accounts payable 1"
312 shori-term advances from customers

313 Tax and other payables to the State 12
314 Payable to employeas 13
315 shori-term accrued expenses 14
319 Other short-term payables

322 Bonus and welfare funds 15
430 Long-term liabilities

342 Provision for long-term liabilities 18
400 OWNERS' EQUITY

410 Capital and reserves

411 Crwners' capital 17,18
411a - Qrdinary shares with voting nghts

418 Investment and development funds 18
421 Undistributed eamings 18
4218 - Post-tax profits of current year

440 TOTAL RESOURCES

j_, ﬁf}mﬁ{“?

Form B 01 - DN

As at 31 December

2023
VND

24,791,591,133

24,136,829 191
5 553,347 453
72243905
1,444,231 875
9,091,253.933
6,608,093.579
851,084 446
225 674,000

654,761,942
G54, 761,042

242 635,338,874

242 635,338,874
121,200,000,000
121, 200,000,000
104,804, 160,218
16,631,178,656
16.631,178,656

2022
VND

15,592,401,384

15,592,401,384
4383 065 985
40,460,800
1,440,004, 264
5,003,237 529
3,624,338 927
352 519 878
607 874,000

239,884,160,218

239 884 160,218
121,.200,000,000
127,200,000,000
102,035,769,380
16,648 ,3090,838
16,648,390 838

255,476,561,602

Nguyen Thi Thu Hang
Preparar

Wu Tra My
Chief Accountant

/gr;;nﬁ Trung Hai
neral Director/Legal Represantative
20 February 2024

Thie noles on pages 910 53 are an integral pan of these financial siatements.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

INCOME STATEMENT

Code

01 Revenue from rendering of services

10 Net revenue from rendering of services

11 Cost of services rendered

20 Gross profit from rendering of services

21 Financial incomea
22 Financial expenses
25  Selling expenses

26 General and administration expenses

30 Net operating profit

31 Other income
32 Other expenses

40 Net other (expenses)fincome

50 Net accounting profit bafore tax

51 Business income tax — current
52 Business income tax - defarred

60 Net profit after tax

70 Basic eamings per share
71 Diluted earnings per share

fiany”)

Note

20

21

23
24

25

26
26

Form B 02 - DN

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
VND VND

172,273,666,111 168,327,880,456

172,273,666,111  168,327,880,456

(102,670,925,633) (107,259,796,519)

69,602,740,478 61,068,083,937

2,243 669,119 1,288,230,045
(511,665,118 :
(45,933,206.704)  (38,840,253,416)
(6,747 737.743)  (5,233,607,179)

18,653,800,034 18,182,453,388

158,701,711 2,257,185 618
(219,818.847) (1,058 805759)
(61,117,238) 298,379,860

18,592,682,798  18,480,833,248

(1,961,504,142)  (1,832,442,410)

16,631, 178,656 16,648,390 838

Nguyen Thi Thii'Hang
Freparer

WVu Tra My
Chief Accountant

Aong Trung Hal
General Director/Legal Representative
20 February 2024

The notes on pages 9 1o 33 are an integral parl of these financial statements.

.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)

Code

01

0z
03
05
08
09
10
"
12
15
17

21
22

23
25
26

27
30

38
40

TQ

s

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax
Adjustmenis for,
Depreciation and amortisation
Prowvisions
Profits from investing acivities
Operating profit before changes in working capital
Decrease in recelvables
Decreasel/(increase) in Invenlores
IncreaseNdecrease) in pavables
Decrease in prepald expenses
Busness income 1ax paid
Cther payments on operating activities
Net cash inflows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FPurchases of fixed assels and other bong-lerm assels

Frocesds from disposals of fixed assets and long-
berm assets

Loans granted, purchases of debl instruments of
ather entiias

Investments in other entities

Proceeds from divestment in oiher entities

Dividends and interes! recelved

MNet cash outflows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid, profits distributed 1o owners
Net cash outflows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Mot

]

Form B 03 = DN

Year ended 31 Decemiber

2023
VND

18,592,682,798

17,254,788 069
1,118,123 968
(2,243 889,119)
34,721,926,5616
133,637,301
111,212,870
8,718,378, 844
4,086,841 837
{1,912 805,179)
{1,882 200,000)
43,876,992,989

{10,000,000,000)
{50,000,000,000)
40,000.000,000
2,124 208,105
{17,875,693,895)

2022
VMDD

18,480,833,248
21,537 474,158

(1,063,785 482)
38,954.541,924

1,666 BBO,5T4
(3,057 640,200)
(1,087,388 385)

2,088,245, 089
(1,588,727,118)
(2,587 800,000)
34,410,013,904

(56,000,000

6755 020 000

{40,000,000,000

1,288,220, 048
{32.008,679,954)

{12,120,450,000)  (5,960,530,000)
{12,120,450,000)  {5.960,630,000)
13,880,849,084  (2,559,296,050)
33,198,674,680

29,638,378,630

29,639,378,630

Mguyen Thi ThU Hang WVu Tra My Dopg-Trung Hai
Freparer Chief Accountant General Director/Legal Representative
20 February 2024

The noles on pages 9 to 33 are an Integral part of these financial statements,

&



GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

1

2.2

2.3

GENERAL INFORMATION

Green Development and Investmeant Service Join Stock Company (“the Company”) is a
joint stock company established in SR Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration
Cerfificate Mo. 0201768923 dated 24 January 2017 issued by the Hai Phong Department
of Planning and Investment The |atest amendment (3) to the Entarprise Registration
Certificale was issued on 11 December 2020,

The Company obtained the Investmant Registration Certificata No. 8585663882 dated 18
February 2022 issued by Hai Phong Economic Zone Management Beard for a peried of
35 years from the date of the initial Investment Registration Certificate.

The Company's shares are listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock trading code
GIC

The principal business achivities of the Company include warehousing and storage of
goods, mairtenancs, repair, and cleanng of containers.

The nomal business cycle of the Company is 12 months.

Az at 31 December 2023 the Company had 127 employeas (a3 at 31 December 2022
138 emplovees).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations on
the preparation and presentation of financial statements. The financial statements have
been prapared under the histoncal cost convention,

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position
and the results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted In countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam. The
accounting principles and practices ulilised in Vietnam may differ from those generally
acceptad in countrigs and jurisdictions other than Vietnam,

The financial statements in the Vietnamese language are the official statutory financial
statements of the Company. The financial statements in the English language have been
transiated from the Vietnamese version,

Fiscal year

The fiscal year of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

Currency

The financial staternenis are measured and presented in Vietnamese Dong ("WKNDT),
which is the Company's accounting currency



GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2
.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Exchange rates

Transaciions arising in forgign cumancies are translated at exchange rates prevailing at
the transaction dates. Foreign exchangs differences arising from thase transactions are
racognised in the income statemeant.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated In forgign currencies at the batance sheet
date are respectivaly transiated at the buying and salling exchange rates at the balance
sheet date of the commercial bank with which the Company regularly transacts. Foreign
currencies deposited in bank at the balance sheet date are transiated al the buying
exchange rate of the commercial banks where the Company opens its foreign cumancy
accounts. Foreign exchange differences arising from these translations are recognised in
the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank, cash i transit, demand
deposits and other short-term investments with an onginal maturity of three months or
lass

Receivables

Receivables mepresent trade receivables from customers ansing from rendering of
services or non-trade receivables from others and are stated at cost. Provision for doubtful
debts iz made for each outstanding amount based on overdue days in payment according
to the initial payment commitment {(exclusive of the payment reschedulng between
parties) or based on the astimated loss that may arise. Bad debts are written off when
identified as uncollectible

Receivables are classified into short-term and long-term recefivables an the balance sheet
based on the ramaining period from tha balance sheet date to the maturity date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
the weighted average method and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventorias to their present location and condition. In
the case of manufactured products, cost includes all direct expenditure and producton
overheads based on nomal evels of operating activity. Net realisable value s the
estimated salling price in the normal course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and sefling expanses.

The Company applies the parpatual system for inventones,
Provision is made, when necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventory

itemns. The difference between the provision of this year and the provision of the previous
year iz recognisad as an increase’decrease of cost of goods sold in the year.

10



GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2

2.8

(a)

(b)

2.9

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Investments
Invastmeants in other entities

Investmeants in other entities are investmeants in equity instruments of other entities without
controlling rights or co-controlling rights, or without significant influence over the investes,
These investments are accounted for initially at cost Subseguently, the Board of
Management reviews all outstanding investments to determine the amount of provision to
recognise at the year end.

Provision for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and other
entities

Provision for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and other entities
is made when there is a diminution In value of the investments at the year and

Provision for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is calculated
based on the loss of invesiees.

Chanpas in tha provision balance during the fiscal year are recorded as an intrease or
decrease in financial expenses. A reversal if any, & made only to the extent the
investment is restorad to its original cost.

Lendings

Lendings are lendings granied for the earning interest under agreements amaong parties
but not for being traded as secunbes

Lendings are initially recognised at cost. Subseguently, the Board of Management reviews
&ll outstanding amounts to determine the amount of provision to recognise at the year
end. Provision for doubtful lendings iz made for each lending based on overdus days in
payment of principals according to the initial payment commitment (exclusive of the
payment reschaduling between partes) or based on the estimated loss that may arisa.
Changes in the provision balance during the fiscal year are recorded as an increase or
decrease in financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is made anly to the extent the
investment is restored o its enginal cost

Fixed assets
Tangible and intangible fixed assels

Fixed assets are stated &t historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amaortisation,
Histarical cost includas any expenditure that is directly attributabie to the acquisition of the
fixgd assets bringing them to suitable conditions for their mtended use. Expenditure which
is incurred subseguently and has resulted in an increase in the future economic banefits
expected to be obtained from the use of fixed assets, can be capitalised as an additional
historical cost, Otherwizsa, such expendiiure iz charged to the income statement when
incurred in the year

L
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DM

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2

2.10

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fixed assets (continued)
Tamgible and infangible fixed assels (continued)

Land usa rights comprise of land use rights granted by the State for which land use fees
are collected, land use rights acquired in & legitimate transfer, and prepad land use fights
obltained under land rental contracts which are effective before the affective date of land
law 2003 (ie. 1 July 2004} and which land use right cerificates are granted.

Definite land use rights are stated at costs less accumulated amartisation. Costs of land
use rights consists of the purchased prices and any directly attributable cosis in obtaining
the land use rights. Land use rights are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
terms of the land use right carificates,

Indefinite land use rights are stated at costs and not amortised
Deprecialion and amoriisation

Fixad assaels are dapreciated and amortised using the straight-line basis so &s to writa off
the depreciable amount of the asset over their estimated useful lives. Depreciable amount
equals to the historical cast of fixed assets recorded in the financial statements minus (-
the estimated disposal value of such aszets, The estimated useful lives of each assat
class are as follows:

Buildings, structuras 5 =25 years
Machinery, equipment 3 =10 years
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
Ofice eguipmeant 4 = 5 yaars
Software 3 years
Disposal

Gains or lossas on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceads with the
carrying amount and are recognized as income or expense in the income statement

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the cost of assets in the course of installation or
construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
detarminad, which are racorded at cost and are comprisad of such necessary Ccosts 1o
construct, repair and maintain, upgrade, renaw or equip the projects with technologies
as construction costs: costs of tools and equipment, compensation and resettlement costs;
project management expenditure; construction consulting expenditure;, and capitalised
borrowing costs for qualifying in accordance with the Company's accounting poficies.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other fixed assets, commences when
they are ready for their intended use.

Leased assets

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the income statemeant on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.

12
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2
2.12

213

2.14

2.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expensas include short-term and long-term prepayments on the balancea sheet
Short-term prepaid expensas represent prepayments for services, or tools that do not
meet the recognition criteria for fixed assels for a period not exceeding 12 months or one
business cycle from the date of prepayment. Long-term prepand expenses represent
prepayments for services, or fools, which do not meet the recognition critena for fixed
assets for & period exceeding 12 months or more than one business cycle from the date
of prepayment. Prepaid expenses are recorded at historical cost and allocated on a
straight-line basis over their astimated usaful lives,

Frepayments for land rental contracts which are not recarded as intangible assets as
described in Mole 210 are recorded as prepaid expensas, and afocated using the
straight-line basis over the prepaid lease term,

Payables

Classifications of payables are based on their nature as follows;

 Trade accounts payable are trade payables arising from purchases of goods and
services; and

s (Jther payables including non-trade payables and payables not relating to purchase of
goods and Services,

Fayables are classified into short-tarm and long-term payables on the balance shaat
based on the remaining period from balance sheet date to the matunty date.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses inchude lisbilities for goods and services received in the year but not
yat paid for, due to pending invoices or insufficient records and documents, Accrued
expenses are recorded as expenses in the reporting year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Frovision is
not recognised for fulure operating losses.

Provisions ane measured al the level of the expenditures axpected to be required to settle
the obligations. If the time value of money is material, provision will be measured at the
present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as a finencial expense. Changes in the provision balance
dunng the fiscal year are recorded as an mcrease or decreasa in aperating axpanses

13
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2023

2

2.16

217

(a)

{b)

2.18

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
Capital and reserves

Owners' capital is recorded according to the actual amounts contributed at the par value
of the shares.

Share pramium is the difference betwean the par value and the issue price of shares and
the difference between the repurchase price and re-issuing price of freasury shares.

Lindistributed eamings record the Company's results (profit or loss) after Corporate
Income Tax (“CIT") &t the reporting date.

Appropriation of profit

The Company's dividends are recognised as a liability in the Company's financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’'s General
Maating of shareholders.

MNet profit after CIT could be disfributed to shareholders after approval at a General
Meeating of shareholders, and after appropriation fo other funds in accordance with the
Company's charter and Vietnamease regulations.

The Company's funds are as below
Investment and development fund

The investment and development fund is appropriated from profit after CIT of the
Company and approved by shareholders in the General Meeting of shareholders, This
fund is used for expanding the business of the Company.

Bonus and welfare fund

The bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Company's profit after CIT and
subject to shareholders' approval at the General Meeting of shareholders. This fund is
presented as a liability on the balance sheet and is used for paying the bonus and welfare
for employeeas of the Company.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from rendering of services

Revenua from rendering of services is recognised In the income statement when the
services are rendered, by réference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on
the basiz of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services o be provided.
Revenue trom the rendenng of services is only recognised when the four (4) of the
following conditions are satisfied:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

s |iis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company,;

s  The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be
measured reliably; and

= The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can
be measured raliably,

14
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2
2.18

(b)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income

Interest income 15 recognised on an eamed basis.

Cost of services rendered

Cost of services renderad are costs of services rendered during the year and recorded on
ine basis of matching with revenue and on a prudent basis.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses are axpenses incurred in the year for financial activities including
provision for investment in other entities.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses represent expenses that are incurred in the process of providing
sarvicas,

General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses represent expenses that are incurred for
administrative purposes,

Current and deferred income tax

Income taxes include all income taxes which are based on taxable profits, Income tax
expense comprizes current income tax expense and deferred income tax expense.

Currant income tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in respect of the
current year taxable profits at the curment year tax rates. Current and deferred income tax
are recogrised 25 an incoma or an expense and included in the profit or loss of the year,
axcept to the extent that the income lax arizes from a transaction or event which is
recognised, in the same or a different year, direclly in equity.

Deferrad income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising bebween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis in the
financial statements Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a ransaction other than a business combination that
at the time of cccurrence affects neither the accounting nor the taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined at the tax rates that are expectad to apply to the fiscal
year whan the assel is realisad or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be ulilized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2

2.24

2.25

2.26

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or meore intermediarias,
contral, or are confrolled by, or are under common control with the Company, including
holding companias, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the
Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voling
power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key
management personnel, including directors of the Company and close mambers of the
family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute
related parties,

In considering its relationships with each related party, the Company considers the
substance of the relationship not mersly the legal form.

Segment reporting

A segment is a component which can be separated by the Company engaged in rendering
of services ("husiness segment’) or rendering of services within a particular economic
environment ("geographical segment”). Each segment is subject to risks and retums that
are different from those of other sagments. A reportable segment is the Company's
business segment or the Company’s geographical segment,

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamess Accounting System and applicable regulations on preparation
and presentation of financial statemenis requires the Board of Management to make
aslimates and assumptions that affact the reported amounis of assets, liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial stafements and
ine reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the fiscal year,

The areas imvolving significant estimates and assumptions are as follows:
s  Estimated useful life of fixed assais (Note 2.10), and
= CIT expenses {Mote 2.23).

Such estimates and assumptions ara confinually evaluated, They are based on historical
expenences and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are assassad by the Board of Managemsant to
be reazonable under the circumstances,

18
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Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2023 2022
VND VND
Cash on hand 683,824 217 37,0685 120
Cash at bank 7,336,403 507 8,602,313,510
Cash equivalents (%) 35,500,000,000 23,000,000, 000

43,520,227 724 29,839.378,630

(*} Cash equivalents are term deposits at commercial banks with an onginal maturity of
thraa months or less and intarest rates of 3.25% — 4 3% per annum (2022; 8% per
annum}.

4 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2023 2022
WMND VMND
Third parties 732 946,258 009 054 663
i which:

- 5K Global Logistics Joint Stock Company 157,356,000 18,837 360

- Yusen Logistics and Transportation
(\Vietnam} Company Limited 130,626,000 73,413.000
- Dihers 444,964 258 816,804,303
Related parties (Note 29(b)) 407 518,218 310,088,169
1,140,464 475 1,220,042 832

5 SHORT-TERM LENDINGS

2023 2022
VMND VND
Related parties (Mote 29(b)) 10,000.000,000 .

This is an unsecured short-term loan pursuant to loan contract No. 01/2023/HDVTIGIC-
YGI dated 24 October 2023 with ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Yu Joint Stock Company (a
related party). The maturity date is 12 months from the first disbursement date. The
interest rate iz calculated by the sum of the 12-month term deposit interest rate of the Lien
Viet Fost Joint Stock Commercial Bank and a premium of 2% per annum. The interest is
paid manthly and the principal is paid anca at the matunty date

LI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

L]

(&)

OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Advance for employees
Advance for purchase of sharas (*)
Others

Form B 09 - DN

2023 2022

VND VND
82,125,200 140 B40 880
- 40,000,000,000

06,636 650 :
ABR 761 860 40,140 840 880

(*) This was an advance to individuals for the Company to purchase shares of a target
company in accordance with Resolution No. 10/2022MN0-HDAT dated 31 October
2022, In 2023, the Company decided not to purchase shares of this target company

and has fully collected the advance amount

INVENTORY

Taols and supphes
Accessories

PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term

Container yard maintenance expensea
Insurance expense
Othears

18

2023 2022

VND VND
188,827,000 188,827,000
2,906,817 230 3,017 830,200
3,095,444 230 3,208,657 ,200
2023 2022

VND VND

. 1,061,280,000

261,167,978 247 619,904

- 363,525 938

261,167 978 1,672.425932




GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2023

8 PREPAID EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(b)  Long-term

Form B 09 - DN

2022
VND

117,125,612,850
167,386,089

2023

WYND

Land rental fee (*) 113,730,667 550

Tools and supplies 313 990 822
Land dismantfing and restoration costs

(Mote 16) S72, 766,684

114,617 425,066

117.293,008,848

{*} Long-term prepayment balance mainly represents the prepayment for the land rental
fee for lot CCZ at Minh Phueng, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone for the period from 25 January
2017 to 30 June 2057 according to the Land rental contract no. 612017/ HDTD-MP
dated 25 January 2017 signed with Minh Phuong Real Estate Investment Joint Stock
Company. This prepaid expense is amortized to the incomea statemant on a straight-

ling hasis over the lease tarm,

Maovements in long-lerm prepaid expenses during the fiscal year were as follows:

2022
VND

120,739 479,346
166,863 636
(3,613,334,033)

2023
VND
Baginning of year 117,253,008 549
Increase 946,127 875
Allocation (3,621,711,758)
End of year 114,617 425,066

117,293,008,949

18
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
9 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)
{b) Intangible fixed assets
Software
VND
Historical cost
Az at 1 January 2023 1,121,382 455
As at 31 Decamber 2023 1,121,382 459
Accumulated amortisation
As gt 1 January 2023 {1,121,382,458)
Az at 31 December 2023 {1,121, 382 459)
et book valua
As at 1 January 2023 -
s ————— 1
Az at 31 Decamber 2023 -
The historical cost of fully depreciated intangible fixed assets but sfill in use as at 31
December 2023 was VND 1,121,382 458 (as at 31 December 2022- VND 1,121,382 459).
10 INVESTMENT IN OTHER ENTITIES

2023 _ 2022
Fair Fair
Cost value Provision Cost  value Provision
VND VND VND VND VND VND
ICD Quang Binh - Dinkh
Wi Joinl Steck
Company (%) 50,000,000,000 () (463,362 026) - - -

In accordance with the Share Transfer Contract Mo, 02/2023/HDCN-GLC-GIC dated 20
September 2023 signed with Green Logistics Centre One Member Company Limited (&
related party) and a Share Cerfificate No, D2'QBOV/Z023 dated 20 September 2023, the
Company received a transfer of 9.51% of the shares of ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu Joint
Stock Company {Mote 2%{a)). In accordance with the Board of Directors Resolution No.
102023 NQ-HDQT dated 20 September 2023, all of these shares have been used as
collateral for the obligations of Vietnam Container Joint Stock Company (the parent
company) at Bao Viet Joint Stock Commercial Bank.

{*) Az at 31 Decamber 2023, the Company had not yet determined the fair value of this

investment for disclosure in the financial statements because it do not have listed
prices. The fair value of such investment may be different from its book value
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MOTES TO THE FINARMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
11 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
2023 2022
Ableto-pay Able-to-pay
Value amount Value armount
VND VHD VHND VHD
Third partias 3 687 557 084 3 GBT 557 054 2870971600 2870971800
Iy wihick
= Huyen Yen Trading
Comparty Limifed 548.331, 700 548 331,700 969 4408, 800 269 440 800
= Branch of Nam
Survg Shipping
Vietnam Company
Lifmited i Hai Fhong 718 264, 800 718 264 800 - -
- Oiffars 2420 880 B4 2 420 050 554 1,907 527 8080 1,007 527 BOG
Felated partles
(Mole 28D} 1,865 790,399 1 885 720 3949 1,512 994 186 1,512 984 385
£ 5R3 247 453 5 B3 347 453 4 383 965 986 4 3B3 965 DES

12 TAX AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM/PAYABLES TO THE STATE

Movemants in tax and other recelvables from/payables o the State during the fiscal year

were as below:

As at Incurmed  Payment during As at
112023 during the year the year Mat off M2.2023
VD VD WD VND WHD
a} Receivables
Input valus sddad 1as B,603,115.074 - (6A03,115,074)
bj Payabdas
Clidpid value added
[ BT5 677 854 15488354070 (8,880,569 853) (6802.113,074) 70,348 By
CAT 501,482 508 1,861,504,142 [1,812,805.179) - EEN181,272
Pessongd oo e 282,844,109 536,014,831 {506, 057.118) - 1RE70i6E14

1,440,004/ 264 17 588,772 B43

(11,179,433 158]

(6,803 113,074) 1,444,231 875

13 PAYABLES TO EMPLOYEES

Salary payables
Bonus payables

2023 2022

VND VND
1,227 667,791 1,240 BA7 488
7.B63.586,142 3,852 350,041
9,081,253,933 5,083 237 528

22




GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

14

15

16

SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Commission fees
Others

BONUS AND WELFARE FUNDS

Form B 09 - DN

2023 2022

YND VMD
2,510,300.110 2,472 284,038
1,387 792 469 152 054 891
5,898,093 579 3.624,338,927

Movements in bonus and welfare funds during the fizcal year were as follows:

Baginning of yaar
Appropriated from undistributed profit (Mote 18)
Litilised during the year

End of year

PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Provision for dismaniling and restoraton costs

2023 2022

VND VND
807,874,000 1,195 674,000
1,600,000,000 2,000,000,000
(1,982 200,000) {2,587 800,000)
225 674,000 607,674,000
2023 2022

VND VND
654,761,042 4

This represenis the provision for dismantling and restorsfion costs related to the
Company's leased lands in accordance with the land lease contracts No. 81/2017/HDTD-
MP dated 25 January 2017 between the Company and Minh Phuong Real Estate
Investment Joint Stock Company. Accordingly, the Company has the obligations to restora
and retumn the lands at the end of the lease terms. The land restoration ncludes removals
of the Company's properties, assets on tha lands and restoration of the [ands to the oniginal

conditions.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
17 OWNERS' CAPITAL
fa)  MNumber of shares
2023 2022
Mumber of shares registered 12,120,000 12,120,000
Mumkber of shares izsued 12,120,000 12,120,000
Mumber of existing shares in circulation 12,120,000 12,120,000
(=]} Details of owners’ shareholding
2023 2022
Ordinary Ordinary
shares % shares %

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation
Others

Mumber of issued shares

e}  Movement of share capital

As at 1 January 2022
As at 31 Decambear 2022

Az at 31 Deacamber 2023

Par value: VND 10,000 per share

8,040,000 66.40
4 080 000 33.60

8,040,000 8&.40
4 080,000 33.60

12,120,000 100

Ordinary shares
VND

121,200,000,000

121,200,000,000

12,120,000 100
Number of shares
12,120,000
12,120,000
12,120,000

121,200,000,000

24

o

-



b [P S )

g€

“puny Juedo[BASD PUE JUBLISBA| B 0} §E8'06E'89. Z ONA Pajeudaidde
pUE siostuadng jo pieog pue siojsend Jo plecd si Joj snuog Aed of 000000081 ONA Paleudaidde “(gL 810N} spuny SJejjam puE snuog
aUl 01 000°000°002' L ANA Peleudoudde 'siapjoysieus sy o) spuapiap Aed o) sBuilEs paINgIISIPUN 5)) Wod) 000 000’021 21 ONA PEIngUIsID
Auedwo sy '£20Z Wdy £ pelep GDAHO-DN/SZOZIL0 ON Siopioysseys jo Bunee (eseusD) |ENULY B JO LORMOSSY S O} Wensind (.}

¥.B'2CE'SED'ZYE 959'8/ L' LES'OL BLZ 02l 'FOR FOL 000'000°00E L L eZ0E Jaquadag LE 1e sy
859'8/1'1E9'al gco'all' lEg'oL = . Jeak ey Joj Jyoud
- (BER'DBEC 89L'T) BER'OBE'BRL'Z - () puny usudo@ssp pue Juaunsasy| Joy uoneudosddy
(000000 009’ L) (00000 009" L) : - (o (51 SON) pury suegam pue shuog Jo) uoheudoiddy
(000'D00°09L) (000'000°D9L) - = (.) volsiuadng j0 piEOg PUE SI0JD8U0 JO PJEDH JOJ SNUOH
(000’000 0ZL'2L) (000'000'0ZL'ZL) = - () pred spuspiyg
2LZ209L veR'6eZ BEROGE'BPA'OL 0BE'A9. 'SE0'Z0L 000'000°00Z ' LZL ZZ0Z Jequwadaq LE e sy
BEB'06E 'S0 0L gE8'06E BP0 0L - Jead Buy Jo) Joid
. (5L0'508°'601L'0L)  SLD'SO9'60LOL - puny jusiludojasap pue Jusunsan| o) uoleudosddy
(DO0'D00000'2) (QO0'000°000'E) 5 =+ puny suejiam puE SnUoE Jo) UoljEUdoIdDY
(000'000 5+ Z) {000'000°GFT) - - uoisiedns jo pieog PUE 5101980 JO PIRCE JOj SNUOT
(Q00'D00" 0=0'e) (00 000" 080'9) - - pled spuUBpIAIg
0BE'692'0¥S'LEE GLO'S0g'FLY'BL GOE'¥9) 82616 000'000°002 L1 ZZOZ Menuer | e sy
QA amA arM, anA

B30} sbuiea punj uawdojarap  |euded siBumQ

paynquisipun puE JuaURS3AU|

ALIND3 SHINMO NI SLNIWIAON gl
£202 Y38W3334 £ d3AN3 WYv3A IHL HOA
SINIWALVYLS TYIDONYNIJ IHL OL S3LON
NG - 60 8 wuo4

ANYdWOD MO0LS INIOT 32AHIS LINIFWILSIANI ANV LNIWDOTIAIA NIIHD




GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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(a)

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to sharehoidars
after deducting the bonus and welfare funds by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for bonus shares issued during the year and
excluding freasury sharas. The details were as follows:

2023 2022
{Restated)
Met profit attributable to shareholders (VND) 16,631,178, 656 16,848,380 B38

Less amount allocated to bonuz and weilfare
funds (WMD) (*) - (1,600 ,000,000)
18,831,17B,655 15,048,390 B28

Veighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue (shares) 12,120,000 12,120,000
Basic eamings per share (VND) 1,372 1,242

{*} At the date of these financal statements, the Company has not appropriated to the
bonus and welfare fund for the year ended 31 December 2023. Actual disfributions to
the bonus and welfare fund for the fiscal year endad 31 December 2023 would be
approved in the Ganeral Meeting of Shareholders in 2024 and be different to tha
presented figures.

Basic eamings per share of the year ended 31 December 2022 were recalculated to take
inte account the actual appropriated bonus and welfare fund as follows:

For the year ended 31.12.2022

As previously As
reported Adjustments restated

Het profit attributable o

shareholders (WNDY) 16,648 300 838 - 16,648,390,838
Less amount allocated to bonus

and welfare funds (VND) - (1,600,000,000) (1,600,000,000)
Frofit to calculate basic eamings

per share (WVND) 18,648,380,838 (1.600,000,000) 15048390838
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue (shares) 12,120,000 . 12,120,000
Basic earmings par share (WD) 1,374 (132) 1,242

ot
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

18 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted earmings per share

Form B 09 - DN

The Company did not have any ordinary shares potentially diluted during the year and up
1o the date of this financial statement, Therefore, the diluted sarnings per share is equal

to the basic earnings per share.

20 NET REVENUE FROM RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from container handling
Revenua from repairing container
Fevenue from rendering of other services

21 COST OF SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of services rendered

22 FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest mcome from deposits and loans

23 SELLING EXPENSES

Expensas related to shipping agencias

Commission fees - third parties

Commission fees - related parties
(Mote 29(al) (%)

Others

2023
VND

155,064 270,190

2022
VND

145 509, B62 822

11,110,258,127 12.025,763.072
6,109,137, 794 8,792 254 552
172 273,666,111 168,327 880 456
2023 2022

VND VND
102,670,925833 107 259,796,519
2023 2022

VND VND
2,243,668,118 1,288.230,046
2023 2022

VND VYND

20 362 969,000 18,185,600,300
5 384 388.070 =
18, 796 525,000 19,173,833 500
1,389,310,634 1.580,819.616
45933 206704 38,940,253 418
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23

29

SELLING EXPENSES (CONTINUED}

Form B 09 = DN

{*} According to the Service contract Mo. 01/2023AGR-GIC dated 1 January 2023
between the Company and VIP Greenport Joint Stock Company (a related party), the
Company pays commission axpansas to VIP Greenport Joint Stock Company upon
the prowision of and earmn revenue from container handling services related to the
containers of shipping lines that are the counterparties of VIP Graenpon Joint Stock
Company. Commissien expenses are calculated based on the number of containers
handled during the year and the unit prices specified in the Confract,

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Staff costs
Qutside service expenses
Cthers

OTHER EXPENSES

Other income
Gains on disposal of fixed assets
Othars

Other expenses
Losses from fixed assets writlen off
Others

2023 2022

VND VND

4,548 418 331 3,943 288,304
1,753,323,803 664,206 731
345,995,609 428,022,144
B6,747,737,743 5,233,607,179
2023 2022

VND VND

, 2.054,080,323

158,701,711 203,105,296
158,701,711 2,257, 185619

z 1,858 805 758

219,818,047 -
219,818,847 1,958,805,75%
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26

27

CORPORATE INCOME TAX ("“CIT")

According to preferentlal policies for investmeant in Dinh Vu - Cat Hal economic zone, the
Company is exempt from CIT for 4 years from the first year of having taxable Income (2017
- 2020) and a 50% reduction of CIT for the next 9 years (2021 - 2029). Incentive CIT rate
of 10% is applied continuously from the first year of having revenue (2017 - 2031) in 15
YEETS.,

The tax amount on the Company's accounting profit before tax is different from the tax
amount calculated at the applicable tax rate of 10%, as follows:

2023 2022
VND VYND
Met accounting profit before tax 18.592 882 788 18,480,833 248
Tax calculated at a rate of 10% 1,855 268 280 1,848,083, 325
Effect of:
Expensas not deductible for tax purposes 2,053, 7681.943 1,818,560,030
Tax deduction {1,856.525,112) {1,834 200 945)
LInder-provision in previous years 4,979,031 -
CIT charge (%) 1,881,504 142 1,832,442 410
— _J
Charged to income statement:
CIT= cumrent 1,961,504, 142 1,832,442 410
CIT — deferred . -

1,961,504, 142 1,832 442 410

(*} The CIT charge for the year is based on estimated taxable income and is subject to
review and possible adjustments by the tax authorities.

COSTS OF OPERATION BY FACTOR
Costs of operation by factor represent all costs incurmred dunng the year from the

Company s operating activities, excluding cost of merchandise for trading activities, The
details are as follows;

2023 2022

VYND VND
Raw materials 27,252,215 503 21,131,288 683
Staff costs a7.062 447 961 34 751,233,297
Dapreciation and amortisation axpenses 17,254 TBE 969 21,537 474,158
Outside service expenses 26.990,531.334 24,081 498,738
Commission fees 44 543 896 070 37,350,433 800
Others 2 247 990 243 2,872 728438

155,351,870,080

151,433,657 114
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information based on the business activities

During the year, the Company’s main business activities include container handling and
repairment and other ancillary business aciivities related to the main business activities.
Revenus and casts from other business activities were VND 6.1 billion and WMND 2.4 billion
respectively, accounting for @ negligible proporion of the total revenue from rendenng of
service and total costs of services rendered. Therefore, the financial information presentad
on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2023 and the income statemant for the year then
ended is mainly related o container handling and repainment and other ancillary business
activities which are mentioned above.

Segment information based on the geographical location

During the yaar, the Campany only operated within tha territory of Vietnam. Therefore, the
Company does not have any geographic division other than the termitory of Vietnam,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

List of related parties which had transactions with the Company during the fiscal year is
as follows:

Company Relationship

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation Ultimate parent

VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company Fellow group subsidiary

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co. Lid, Fellow group subsidiary

Grean Star Lines One Member Co,, Lid. Faflow group subsidiary

Greenport Services One Member Co |, Ltd, Fellow group subsidiary

Central Container Joint Stock Campany Fallow group subsidiary

Viconzhip Ho Chi Minh Company Limitad Fellow group subsidiary

ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu Jaint Stock Company Investes and fellow group
subsidiary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29

(a)

i)

iv)

vi)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party transactions

Form B 09 = DN

During the year, the following significant transactions were carmed out with related parties:

Sales of goods and services

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation

VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co. Ltd.

oreen Star Lines One Member Co., Lid.

Greenport Services Cne Member Co_, Ltd.

Viconship Ho Chi Minh Company Limited

Purchases of goods
Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation

Purchases of services

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation

Green Logistics Cenire One Member Co, Lid.

Green Star Lines One Member Co , Ltd.

VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company

Central Container JSC

Commission fees (Note 23)
VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company

Collection/payment of behalf of related parties

Vietnam Container Shipping Jeint Stock
Corporation

Disposal of fixed assefs
VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company
mreen Logistics Centre One Member Co. Lid.

a1

2023 2022

VND VND

- 1,835,E874.471
18,569,705,140 23,067 408,623
1.932,578.490 2,987 841,028
1.118,813,862 2043, 340 500
355,830,000 111,747
703,440,000 171,831,750
22,680 487 592 20,108.410.019
6,310,632 003 19,912 575,456
] e —
1,932,000,000 1,116,000,000
6549 218 126,677,584
7.741,348,000 4,140,231,300
- 164 376 633

551,160,775 382,013,526
10,231,058,983 5,829 299 053
18,796.529,000 18,173,833,500
84,000,000 81,500,000
6,600,000,000

29,800,000
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(a)

vil)

i)

ix)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party transactions {continued)

fnvesting activities

|ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu Joint Stock Company

- Princapal of lending (Note 5)

= Interest of lkending

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co. Lid
= Receipt of transferad shares of ICD Quang

Binh - Dinh Vu Jeint Stock Company (Mate 10)

Dividend payment

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporaticn

Compensation for key management

Board of Directors

Mr. Cap Trong Cudng

Mr. Mguyen The Trong

Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Mr. Nguyen Kim Ducng Fhoi
Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh
Mr. Mguyen Ngoc Thang

Mr. Ducng Tien Dung
Board of Supervisor

Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong
Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu
Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc
Mr. Nguyen Tuan Anh
Board of Management

Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Chief accountant
Ms. Vu Tra My

Ms. Mguyen Thi Minh Lan

Form B 09 = DN
2023 2022
YND VYND
10,000,000,000 =
140,835 617 .
—=
50,000 000,000 -
B,040,000,000 4,020,000.000
—_— — .
2023 2022
WND WND
Chairpersan 20,000,000 -
hMember 20,000,000 45 000,000
Membear Q3B BT1.526 940 246 319
MMember 20,005,000 25 000 000
Member 20,000,000 -
Member
{resigned on 14/3/2022) - 25,000,000
Chairparson
(resigned on 20/9/2022) 15,000,000 45 000 000
Head 15,000,000 15,000,000
Member 10,000,000 15,000, 000
Member (appointed on
14352022 10,000,000
Member
(resigned on 14/3/2022) - 15,000,000
Ganaral Direcior Az shove Az above
Chief Accountant
(appointed on 15/2/2023) 473,118,649 5
Chief Accountant
(resigned on 16/2/2023) 205,764,638 614 728 844

32
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29 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

1

o E W M,

{b)  Year end balances with related parties
2023 2022
VYND YND
i) Short-term trade accounts receivable (Note 4)
Green Logistics Centre One Mamber Co. Ltd. 200219 418 125,409,879
Greanport Servicas One Member Co., Lid. 3,728,000 =
Viconship Ho Chi Minh Company Limited 194,572 BOO 185,578,290 ;
407,518,218 310,988,169
i} Short-term lending (Note 5)
ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu Joint Stock Company  10,000,000,000 -
i) Short-term trade accounts payable (Note 11)
VIP Greenpoint Joint Stock Company 863,680,679 B59 549 116
Vietnam Contaimer Shipping Joint Stock
Corporstion 174,580,000 373,129,390
Green Star Lines One Member Co., Lid. 807,309,720 265 205,880
Central Container Joint Stock Company 20,210,000 15,110,000
1,865, 790,398 1,512,994 386

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Mana-gament of the Company on 20
February 2024

My’

Nguyen Thi Thu Hang
Freparer

Wu Tra My
Chief Accountant

33
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General Director/Lagal Reprasentative




September 26, 2023

POWER OF ATTORNEY

| am Mai Viet Hung Tran, the Head of the Hanoi Branch of PwC (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company (the “Branch”), Branch tax code 0100157406-001, first registered with the Hanoi
Department of Planning and Investment on August 06, 2012,

Hereby appoint Mr. Tran Hong Kien, Citizen Identity Card No. 033075010696, issued by the
Police Department for Administrative Management of Social Order on August 3, 2022 (the
“Authorized Representative”).

To be my lawful and valid Authorized Representative, on my behalf and in my name,

to perform the following specific tasks:

(1) To sign, issue, and deliver the following documents of the Branch (with or without the Branch's
seal):

o Engagement letters, contracts, and service fee proposals for customers;

e Reports, opinions, advice, documents, correspondence, or other materials issued under or
related to the engagement letters, contracts, or service fee proposals, including debit notes
and invoices for services provided;

(i) To perform other tasks related to the aforementioned documents.

| confirm that the Authorized Representative has the legal right to represent me in performing the
authorized tasks above.

This Power of Attorney is effective from the date of signing until June 30, 2024, unless the
Authorized Representative ceases working for the Branch or PwC (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company, or | decide to terminate the authorization before the expiry date.

Signature of the Principal

(Signed and Sealed)

Mai Viet Hung Tran

Head of Branch



FR T B o

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024




el

M

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE
Corporate information 1
Statement of the Board of Management 2
Independent auditor’s report 3
Balance sheet (Form B 01 - DN) 5
Income statement (Form B 02 - DN) 7
Cash flow statement (Form B 03 - DN) 8
Notes to the financial statements (Form B 09 - DN) 9



——

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Enterprise Registration
Certificate

Investment Registration
Certificate

Board of Directors

Board of Supervision

Board of Management

Legal Representative

Registered Office

Auditor

No. 0201768923 dated 24 January 2017

The Enterprise Registration Certificate and its subsequent
amendments were issued by the Hai Phong Department of Planning
and Investment. The latest amendment (3™) to the Enterprise
Registration Certificate was issued on 1 December 2020.

No. 8585663882 dated 18 February 2022

The Investment Registration Certificate was issued by the Hai Phong
Industrial Zone Authority for a period of 35 years from the date of the
Investment Registration Certificate.

Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung Chairperson
(appointed on 15 March 2024)
Mr. Cap Trong Cuong Chairperson
(resigned on 15 March 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khai Member
Mr. Nguyen The Trong Member
Mr. Dong Trung Hai Member
Ms.Tran Thi Phuong Anh Member
Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong Head
Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu Member
Ms.Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc Member
Mr. Dong Trung Hai General Director
Mr. Dang Quoc Ve Vice General Director

(appointed on 1 June 2024)

Mr. Dong Trung Hai General Director

Lot CC2, MP Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai An
District, Hai Phong City, Viet Nam

Branch of PwC (Vietnam) Limited in Hanoi



mm ™ ™ ™

e

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Statement of Responsibility of the Board of Management of the Company in respect of the
Financial Statements

The Board of Management of Green Development and Investment Service Joint Stock Company
(“the Company") is responsible for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing these financial statements,
the Board of Management is required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on a going-concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Cempany will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept
which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and
enable financial statements to be prepared which comply with the basis of accounting set out in
Note 2 to the financial statements. The Board of Management is also responsible for safeguarding
the assels of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud or error.

Approval of the Financial Statements

We hereby, approve the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 5 to 34 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations
on the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

General Director/Legal Representative

Hai Phong, SR Vietnam
18 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT
STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Development and Investment
Service Joint Stock Company (“the Company®) which were prepared on 31 December 2024 and
approved by the Board of Management of the Company on 18 February 2025. The financial
statements comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and explanatory notes to the financial statements
including significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 34.

The Board of Management’s Responsibility

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these financial statements of the Company in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations
on the preparation and presentation of financial statements, and for such internal control which
the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform the audit
in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements of the Company
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

* Branch of PwC (Vietnam) Limited in Hanoi

16th floor, Keangnam Hanoi Landmark Tower, Lot £E6, Cau Giay Urban Area, Me Tri Commune, Nam Tu Liem District,
Hanoi, Vietnam
T: +84 24 3946 2246, www.pwc.com/vn
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Auditor’'s Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2024, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and applicable regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial
statements.

Other Matter

The independent auditor’s report is prepared in Vietnamese and English. Should there be any
conflict between the Vietnamese and English versions, the Vietnamese version shall take
precedence.

e

o

Do Duc Hau Dang Thai Son
Audit Practising Licence Audit Practising Licence
No. 2591-2023-006-1 No. 4668-2023-006-1

Authorised signatory

Report reference number: HAN 3877
Hanoi, 18 February 2025
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BALANCE SHEET

Code ASSETS

100

110
11
112

130
131
132
135
136

140
141

150
151

200

220
221
222
223

227
228
229

250
253
254

260
261

270

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term receivables

Short-term trade accounts receivable

Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Short-term lendings
Other short-term receivables

Inventories
Inventories

Other current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation

Intangible fixed assets
Historical cost
Accumulated amortisation

Long-term investments
Investments in other entities
Provision for long-term investments

Other long-term assets
Long-term prepaid expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

7(a)

8(a)

8(b)

7(b)

Form B 01 -DN

As at 31 December

2024
VND

54,068,820,897

33,445,666,939
13,445,666,939
20,000,000,000

17,883,341,171
7,713,741171
20,600,000
10,000,000,000
149,000,000

2,449,951,323
2,449,951,323

289,861,464
289,861,464

208,493,220,025

29,749,493,225
29,649 363,225
1563,456,732,137
(123,807,368,912)

100,130,000
1,224,742 459
(1,124,612,459)

67,593,742,351
70,000,000,000
(2,406,257 649)

111,149,984,449
111,149,984 ,449

2023
VND

59,473,566,277

43,520,227,724
8,020,227,724
35,500,000,000

12,596,726,345
1,140,464, 476
1,067,500,000
10,000,000,000
388,761,869

3,095,444,230
3,095 444,230

261,167,978
261,167,978

207,953,363,730

43,799,300,690
43,799,300,690
1563,394,732,137
(109,595,431,447)

1,121,382 459
(1,121,382,459)

49,536,637,974
50,000,000,000
(463,362,026)

114,617,425,066
114,617,425,066

262,562,040,922

267,426,930,007

The notes on pages 9 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

Code

300

310
311
312
313
314
315
319
322

330
342

400

410
411
411a
418
471
421b

440

RESQURCES

LIABILITIES

Short-term liabilities
Short-term trade accounts payable
Short-term advances from customers
Tax and other payables to the State
Payables to employees
Short-term accrued expenses
Other short-term payables
Bonus and welfare funds

Long-term liabilities
Provision for leng-term liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Owners’ capital
- Ordinary shares with voting rights
Investment and development fund
Undistributed earnings
- Post-tax profits of current year

TOTAL RESOURCES

/ﬁa

Nguyen Thi E?‘u Hang
Chief Accountant/Preparer

Note

10
11
12
13

14

16,17

17
17

* BAUTUDICHU )
VAPHATT

Form B 01 - DN

As at 31 December

2024
VND

20,197,777,280

19,543,015,338
3,364,617,465
50,460,600
1,062,628,076
8,569,331,783
5,392,985,508
892,017,906
211,074,000

654,761,942
654,761,942

242,364,263,642

242,364,263,642
121,200,000,000
121,200,000,000
104,925,338 874
16,238,824,768
16,238,924,768

2023
VND

24,791,591,133

24,136,829,191
5,663,347 453
72,243,908
1,444 231,875
9,091,253,933
6,898,093,579
851,984,446
225,674,000

654,761,942
654,761,942

242,635,338,874

242,635,338,874
121,200,000,000
121,200,000,000
104,804,160,218
16,631,178,656
16,631,178,656

262,562,040,922

267,426,930,007

General D|rectorfLega| Representative
18 February 2025

The notes on pages 9 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

INCOME STATEMENT

Code
01
02
10
11

20

21
22
25
26

30
31
32
40
50

51
52

60

70
Pl

L

Revenue from rendering of services
Less deductions
Net revenue from rendering of services
Cost of services rendered
Gross profit from rendering of services
Financial income
Financial expenses
Selling expenses
General and administration expenses
Net operating profit
Other income
Other expenses
Net other incomel/(expenses)

Net accounting profit before tax

Corporate income tax (“CIT”) — current
CIT — deferred

Net profit after tax

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Nguyen ThilJhu Hang

Chief Accountant/Preparer

Note

19

20

21
22

24

25
25

Form B 02 - DN

~Year ended 31 December

2024
VND

159,342,953,965

2023
VND

172,273,666,111

159,342,953,965

(94,283,782,258)

172,273,666,111

(102,670,925,633)

65,059,171,707

1,291,778,386
(1,942,895,623)
(40,237,731,001)
(6,342,725,805)

69,602,740,478

2,243,669,119
(511,665,116)
{(45,933,206,704)
(B,747,737,743)

17,827,597,664

265,783,589
(1,707,008)
264,076,581

18,653,800,034

168,701,711
(219,818,947)
(61,117,236)

18,091,674,245

(1,852,749,477)

18,592,682,798

(1,961,504,142)

16,238,924,768

16,631,178,656

Gener

1,340
1,340

1,235
1,235

al Director/Legal Representative
18 February 2025

The notes on pages 9 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)

Code

01

02
03
05

09
10
11
12
15
17
20

21
22
23
25
26

27
30

36
40

50

60

70

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Accounting profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provisions
Profits from investing activities
Operating prefit before changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in receivables
Decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/fincrease in payables
Decrease in prepaid expenses
CIT paid
Other payments on operating activities
Net cash inflows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and long-

term assets
Loans granted, purchases of debt instruments of
other entities
Investments in other entities
Proceeds from divestment in other entities
Dividends and interest received
Net cash outflows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid, profits distributed to owners
Net cash outflows from financing activities

Net (decrease)lincrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

e,

Nguyen Thi THu Hang
Chief Accountant/Preparer

Form B 03 - DN

Year ended 31 December

2024
VND

18,091,674,245

14,382,709,207
1,942,895,623
(1,329,690,499)
33,087,588,576
(5,256,977,840)
645,492 907
(4,852,037,047)
3,438,747,131
(1,912,746,283)
(1,674,600,000)
23,475,467,444

(1,646,841,481)

1,351,851,852

(20,000,000,000)
1,262,141 ,400
(19,032,848,229)

(14,517,180,000)
(14,517,180,000)

2023
VND

18,592,682,798

17,254,788,969
1,118,123 968
(2,243,669,119)
34,721,926,616
133,637,901
111,212,970
8,718,378,844
4,086,841,837
(1,912,805,179)
(1,982,200,000)
43,876,992,989

(10,000,000,000)
(50,000,000,000)
40,000,000,000
2,124,306,105
(17,875,693,895)

(12,120,450,000)
(12,120,450,000)

{10,074,560,785)

43,520,227,724

13,880,849,094

29,639,378,630

33,445,666,939

43,520,227,724

nd Hai

18 February 2025

General Director/Legal Representative

The notes on pages 9 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1

21

2.2

2.3

GENERAL INFORMATION

Green Development and Investment Service Join Stock Company (‘the Company”) is a
joint stock company established in SR Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0201768923 dated 24 January 2017 issued by the Hai Phong Department
of Planning and Investment. The latest amendment (3" to the Enterprise Registration
Certificate was issued on 1 December 2020.

The Company obtained the Investment Registration Certificate No. 8585663882 dated 18
February 2022 issued by the Hai Phong Industrial Zone Authority for a period of 35 years
from the date of the Investment Registration Certificate.

The Company's shares are listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange with the stock trading code
GIC.

The principal activities of the Company include warehousing and storage of goods,
maintenance, repair, and cleaning of containers.

The normal business cycle of the Company is 12 months.

As at 31 December 2024 the Company had 124 employees (as at 31 December 2023:
127 employees).

Comparative figures presented in the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 are those of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations on
the preparation and presentation of financial statements. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position
and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and
practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam. The
accounting principles and practices utilised in Vietnam may differ from those generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

The financial statements in the Vietnamese language are the official statutory financial
statements of the Company. The financial statements in the English language have been
translated from the Vietnamese version.

Financial year

The financial year of the Company is from 1 January to 31 December.

Currency

The financial statements are measured and presented in Viethamese Dong ("VND?),
which is the Company’s accounting currency.

9
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Exchange rates

Transactions arising in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates prevailing at
the transaction dates. Foreign exchange differences arising from these transactions are
recognised in the income statement.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are respectively translated at the buying and selling exchange rates at the balance
sheet date of the commercial banks with which the Company regularly transacts. Foreign
currencies deposited in banks at the balance sheet date are translated at the buying
exchange rate of the commercial banks where the Company opens its foreign currency
accounts. Foreign exchange differences arising from these translations are recognised in
the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks, cash in transit and
other short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Receivables

Receivables represent trade receivables from customers arising from rendering of
services or non-trade receivables from others and are stated at cost. Provision for doubtful
debts is made for each outstanding amount based on overdue days in payment according
to the initial payment commitment (exclusive of the payment rescheduling between
parties) or based on the estimated loss that may arise. The difference between the
provision of this year and the provision of the previous year is recognised as an increase
or decrease of general and administration expenses in the year. Bad debts are written off
when identified as uncollectible.

Receivables are classified into short-term and long-term receivables on the balance sheet
based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date o the maturity date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
the weighted average method and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other directly-related costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. In the case of manufactured products, cost includes all direct expenditure and
production overheads based on normal levels of operating activity. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the normal course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

The Company applies the perpetual system for inventories.
Provision is made, when necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventory

items. The difference between the provision of this year and the provision of the previous
year is recognised as an increase or decrease of cost of goods sold in the year.

10
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2

2.8

(@)

(b)

2.9

210

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments
Investments in other entities

Investments in other entities are investments in equity instruments of other entities without
controlling rights or co-controlling rights, or without significant influence over the investee.
These investments are accounted for initially at cost. Subsequently, the Board of
Management reviews all outstanding investments to determine the amount of provision to
recognise at the year end.

Provision for investments in other entities

Provision for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and other entities
is made when there is a diminution in value of the investments at the year end.

Provision for investments in other entities is calculated based on market value if market
value can be determined reliably. If market value cannot be determined reliably, the
provision is calculated based on the loss of investees.

Changes in the provision balance during the financial year are recorded as an increase
or decrease in financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is made only to the extent the
investment is restored to its original cost.

Lendings

Lendings are lendings granted for the earing interest under agreements among parties
but not for being traded as securities.

Lendings are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, the Board of Management reviews
all outstanding amounts to determine the amount of provision to recognise at the year
end. Provision for doubtful lendings is made for each lending based on overdue days in
payment of principals according to the initial payment commitment (exclusive of the
payment rescheduling between parties) or based on the estimated loss that may arise.
Changes in the provision balance during the financial year are recorded as an increase
or decrease in financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is made only to the extent the
investment is restored to its original cost.

Lendings are classified into short-term and long-term lendings on the balance shet based
on the remaining term of the lendings as at the balance sheet date.

Fixed assets
Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation.
Historical cost includes any expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
fixed assets bringing them to suitable conditions for their intended use. Expenditure which
is incurred subsequently and has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of fixed assets, can be capitalised as an additional
historical cost. Otherwise, such expenditure is charged to the income statement when
incurred in the year.

11
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2

2.10

2.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fixed assets (continued)
Tangible and intangible fixed assets (continued)

Land use rights comprise of land use rights granted by the State for which land use fees
are collected, land use rights acquired in a legitimate transfer, and prepaid land use rights
obtained under land rental contracts which are effective before the effective date of land
law 2003 (ie. 1 July 2004) and which land use right certificates are granted.

Definite land use rights are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation. Costs of land
use rights consists of the purchased prices and any directly attributable costs in obtaining
the land use rights. Land use rights are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
terms of the land use right certificates.

Indefinite land use rights are stated at costs and not amortised.
Depreciation and amortisation

Fixed assets are depreciated and amortised using the straight-line basis so as to write off
the depreciable amount of the asset over their estimated useful lives. Depreciable amount
equals to the historical cost of fixed assets recorded in the financial statements minus (-)
the estimated disposal value of such assets. The estimated useful lives of each asset
class are as follows:

Buildings and structures 5 — 25 years
Machinery and equipment 3 —10 years
Motor vehicles 3 -10years
Office equipment 4 — 5 years
Computer software 3 years
Disposal

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with the
carrying amount of the fixed assets and are recognised as income or expense in the
income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the cost of assets in the course of installation or
construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
determined, which are recorded at cost and are comprised of such necessary costs to
construct, repair and maintain, upgrade, renew or equip the projects with technologies
as construction costs; costs of tools and equipment; compensation and resettlement costs;
project management expenditure; construction consulting expenditure; and capitalised
borrowing costs for qualifying in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other fixed assets, commences when
they are ready for their intended use.

Leased assets
Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by

the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

12
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2

2.12

213

2.14

2.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include short-term and long-term prepayments on the balance sheet.
Short-term prepaid expenses represent prepayments for services; or tools that do not
meet the recognition criteria for fixed assets for a period not exceeding 12 months or one
business cycle from the date of prepayment. Long-term prepaid expenses represent
prepayments for services; or tools, which do not meet the recognition criteria for fixed
assets for a period exceeding 12 months or more than one business cycle from the date
of prepayment. Prepaid expenses are recorded at historical cost and allocated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Prepayments for land rental contracts which are effective after the effective date of the
land law 2003 (ie. 1 July 2004) or which land use right certificates are not granted are
recorded as prepaid expenses and allocated using the straight-line method over the
prepaid lease term.

Payables
Classifications of payables are based on their nature as follows:

s Trade accounts payable are trade payables arising from purchases of goods and
services: and

e Other payables including non-trade payables and payables not relating to purchase of
goods and services.

Payables are classified into short-term and long-term payables on the balance sheet
based on the remaining period from balance sheet date to the maturity date.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include liabilities for goods and services received in the year but not
yet paid for, due to pending invoices or insufficient records and documents. Accrued
expenses are recorded as expenses in the reporting year.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provision is
not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the level of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligations. If the time value of money is material, provision will be measured at the
present value using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as a financial expense. Changes in the provision balance
during the financial year are recorded as an increase or decrease in operating expenses.

13
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(a)

(b)

218

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital and reserves

Owners’ capital is recorded according to the actual amounts contributed at the par value
of the shares.

Share premium is the difference between the par value and the issue price of shares and
the difference between the repurchase price and re-issuing price of treasury shares.

Undistributed earnings record the Company’s results (profit or loss) after corporate income
tax ("CIT”) at the reporting date.

Appropriation of profit

The Company's dividends are recognised as a liability in the Company's financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Net profit after CIT could be distributed to shareholders after approval at a General
Meeting of Shareholders, and after appropriation to other funds in accordance with the
Company's charter and Vietnamese regulations.

The Company’s funds are as below:
Investment and development fund

The investment and development fund is appropriated from profit after CIT of the
Company and approved by shareholders in the General Meeting of Shareholders. This
fund is used for investing and expanding business activities.

Bonus and welfare fund

The bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Company's profit after CIT and
subject to shareholders' approval at the General Meeting of Shareholders. This fund is
presented as a liability on the balance sheet and is used for welfare activities of the
Company’s employees.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the income statement when the
services are rendered, by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on
the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.
Revenue from the rendering of services is only recognised when all four (4) of the following
conditions are satisfied:

« The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« |tis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

s« The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be
measured reliably; and

s The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can
be measured reliably.

14
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2

2.18

(b)

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement on the basis of the actual time and
interest rates for each period when both (2) of the following conditions are satisfied:

o |t is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company,; and
=« |ncome can be measured reliably.

Cost of services rendered

Cost of services rendered are the costs of services rendered during the year and recorded
on the basis of matching with revenue and on a prudent basis.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses are expenses incurred in the year for financial activities including
expenses and losses relating to provision for diminution in value of investments in other
entities.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses represent expenses that are incurred in the process of providing
services.

General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses represent expenses that are incurred for
administrative purposes.

Current and deferred income tax

Income tax includes all income tax which is based on taxable profits. Income tax expense
comprises current income tax expense and deferred income tax expense.

Current income tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in respect of the
current year taxable profits at the current year tax rates. Current and deferred income tax
are recognised as an income or an expense and included in the profit or loss of the year,
except to the extent that the income tax arises from a transaction or event which is
recognised, in the same or a different year, directly in equity.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of occurrence affects neither the accounting nor the taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
financial year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

15
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2

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with the Company, including
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the
Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key
management personnel, including the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervision and
the Board of Management of the Company and close members of the family of these
individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related
parties.

In considering its relationships with each related party, the Company considers the
substance of the relationship not merely the legal form.

Segment reporting

A segment is a component which can be separated by the Company engaged in rendering
of services (“husiness segment”) or rendering of services within a particular economic
environment (“geographical segment”). Each segment is subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other segments. The Board of Management of the Company
has determined that the business's risk and profitability are primarily influenced by
differences in the types of services the Company provides. As a result, the primary
segment reporting of the Company is presented in respect of the Company’s business
segments.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations on
the preparation and presentation of financial statements requires the Board of
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
financial year.

The areas involving significant estimates and assumptions are as follows:
e Provision for investments in other entities (Note 2.8(b));

o Estimated useful lives of fixed assets (Note 2.10); and

e CIT expenses (Note 2.23).

Such estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are assessed by the Board of Management to
be reasonable under the circumstances.
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3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2024 2023
VND VND
Cash on hand 357,380,716 683,824,217
Cash at bank 13,088,286,223 7,336,403,507
Cash equivalents (*) 20,000,000,000 35,500,000,000
33,445,666,939 43,520,227,724
(*) Cash equivalents are term deposits at commercial banks with an original maturity of
three months or less and an interest rate ranging from 2.45% per annum to 3.2% per
annum (as at 31 December 2023: from 3.25% per annum to 4.3% per annum).
4 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2024 2023
VND VND
Third parties 1,073,156,121 732,946,258
Related parties (Note 28(b)) 6,640,585,050 407,518,218
7,713,741 171 1,140,464 476
As at 31 December 2024, no third party customer had a balance exceeding 10% of the
total short-term trade accounts receivable balance.
As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, there was no balance of short-term
trade accounts receivable that was past due or not past due but doubtful.
o) SHORT-TERM LENDINGS

2024 2023
VND VND
Related parties (Note 28(b)) 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

This is an unsecured short-term loan pursuant to the loan contract No.
01/2024/HDVT/GIC-VGI dated 24 October 2024 with ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC (a
related party). The interest rate is calculated by the sum of the 12-month term deposit
interest rate of Fortune Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank plus a margin of 2% per
annum. The loan interest and principal will be paid once at the maturity date on 24 October
2025.
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6

(@)

(b)

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Tools and supplies
Spare parts

PREPAID EXPENSES
Short-term

Insurance expense
Repairment expense

Long-term

Land rental fees (%)
Tools and supplies

Land dismantling and restoration costs

(Note 15)

Form B 09 -DN

2024 2023

VND VND
62,666,633 -
134,567,000 188,827,000
2,252, 717,690 2,906,617,230
2,449,951 323 3,095,444 230
2024 2023

VND VND
174,100,353 261,167,978
115,761,111 -
289,861,464 261,167,978
2024 2023

VND VND
110,335,722,252 113,730,667,550
241,495,503 313,990,822
572,766,694 572,766,694

111,149,984,449

114,617,425,066

(*) The long-term prepaid expenses balance mainly represents the prepaid land rental
fee for the land lot CC2 at MP Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai An
District, Hai Phong City for the period from 25 January 2017 to 30 June 2057 in
accordance with the land rental contract No. 61/2017/HDTD-MP dated 25 January
2017 signed with Minh Phuong Real Estate Investment JSC. This prepaid expense is
allocated to the income statement on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

Movements in long-term prepaid expenses during the financial year were as follows:

Beginning of year
Increase
Allocation

End of year

2024
VND

114,617,425,066
245,699,546
(3,713,140,163)

2023
VND

117,293,008,949
946,127,875
(3,621,711,758)

111,149,984,449

114,617,425,066

18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

(b)

FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Intangible fixed assets

Computer software

VND
Historical cost
As at 1 January 2024 1,121,382 459
New purchases in the year 103,360,000
As at 31 December 2024 1,224,742 459
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2024 (1,121,382,459)
Charge for the year (3,230,000)
As at 31 December 2024 (1,124,612,459)
Net book value
As at 1 January 2024 -
As at 31 December 2024 100,130,000

The historical cost of fully amortised intangible fixed assets but still in use as at 31 December
2024 was VND 1,121,382 459 (as at 31 December 2023: VND 1,121,382,459).

INVESTMENTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

2024 2023
Fair Fair
Cost value Provision Cost value Provision
VND VND VND VND VND VND
ICD Quang
Binh - Dinh

Vu JSC 70,000,000,000 (*) (2,406,257649)  50,000,000,000 (") (463,362,026)

In accordance with the Share Transfer Contract No. 01/2024/HDCN-GLC-GIC dated 26
February 2024 signed with Green Logistics Centre One Member Co., Lid. (a related party)
and Share Certificate No. 10/QBDV/2024 dated 26 February 2024, the Company received
an additional transfer of 3.8% of the shares of ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC (Note 28(a)).
As at 31 December 2024, the Company owned 13.31% of the charter capital of ICD Quang
Binh - Dinh Vu JSC.

(*) As at 31 December 2024, the Company had not yet determined the fair value of this

investment for disclosure in the financial statements because it does not have listed
prices. The fair value of such investment may be different from its book value.

20
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10 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
2024 2023
Able-to-pay Able-to-pay
Value amount Value amount
VND VND VND VND

Third parties
In which

2,608,946,145

2,608,946,145

3,687,557,054

- Thinh Tien Service
and Trade Investment

3,687,557,054

Co., Lid. 1,267,592,400 1,267,692,400 -
- Mitos Service and
Technic JSC 337,262,890 337,262,890 - -
- Others 1,004,090,855 1,004,090 855 3,687 657,054 3,687,557 054
Related parties
(Note 28(b)) 755,671,320 755,671,320 1,665,790,399 1,865,790,399
3,364617,465 3,364,617 465 5553,347,453 5,553,347 453

11 TAX AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM/PAYABLES TO THE STATE

Movements in tax and other receivables from/payables to the State during the financial year
were as below:

Receipt/
As at Incurred Payment during As at
1.1.2024 during the year the year Offset 31.12.2024
VND VND VND VND VND
a) Receivables
Input value
added tax - 6,240,527,755 - (6,240,527,755) -

b) Payables
Output value

added tax 700,348,987 12,954,278,149 (7,033,758,151) (6,240,527,755) 380,341,230
CIT 550,181,272 1,852,749477 (1,912,746,283) - 490,184,466
Personal

income tax 193,701,616 764,642,261 (766,341 ,497) 192,002,380

1,444,231 875 15,571,669,887 (9,712,845,931) (6,240,527,755) 1,062,528,076

21
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

12 PAYABLES TO EMPLOYEES

Salary payables
Bonus payables

13 SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Expenses related to shipping agencies
Others

14 BONUS AND WELFARE FUND

2024
VND

1,426,310,988
7,143,020,795

Form B 09 - DN

2023
VND

1,227,667,791
7,863,586,142

8,569,331,783

9,091,253,933

2024
VND

5,182,974 ,040
210,011,468

2023
VND

5,5610,300,110
1,387,793,469

5,392,985,508

6,898,093,579

Movements in bonus and welfare fund during the financial year were as follows:

Beginning of year

Appropriated from undistributed eamings

(Note 17)
Utilised during the year

End of year

15 PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Provision for dismantling and restoration costs

2024
VND

225,674,000

1,660,000,000

(1,674,600,000)

2023
VND

607,874,000

1,600,000,000
(1,982,200,000)

211,074,000 225,674,000
2024 2023
VND VND
654,761,942 654,761,942

This represents the provision for dismantling and restoration costs related to the
Company's leased land in accordance with the land lease contract No. 61/2017/HDTD-
MP dated 25 January 2017 between the Company and Minh Phuong Real Estate
Investment JSC. Accordingly, the Company has the obligations to restore and return the
land at the end of the lease terms. The land restoration includes removals of the
Company's properties, assets on the lands and restoration of the land to the original

conditions.
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16 OWNERS’ CAPITAL
(a) Number of shares
2024 2023
Number of shares registered 12,120,000 12,120,000
Number of shares issued 12,120,000 12,120,000
Number of existing shares in circulation 12,120,000 12,120,000
(b) Details of owners’ shareholding
2024 2023
Ordinary Ordinary
shares % shares %
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC 8,040,000 66.40 8,040,000 66.40
America LLC 673,700 5.56 - -
Others 3,406,300 28.04 4,080,000 33.60
Number of issued shares 12,120,000 100% 12,120,000 100
(c) Movements of share capital
Number of shares Ordinary shares
VND

As at 1 January 2023
As at 31 December 2023

As at 31 December 2024

Par value: VND 10,000 per share.

23

12,120,000 121,200,000,000

12,120,000 121,200,000,000

12,120,000 121,200,000,000
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

18 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders
after deducting the bonus and welfare fund by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for bonus shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares. The details were as follows:

2024 2023

(Recalculated)

Net profit attributable to shareholders (VND) 16,238,924,768 16,631,178,656
Less amount allocated to bonus and welfare

fund (VND) (*) i (1,660,000,000)

16,238,924,768 14,971,178,656

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (shares) 12,120,000 12,120,000
Basic earmings per share (VND) 1,340 1,235

(*) At the date of these financial statements, the Company has not appropriated to the
bonus and welfare fund for the year ended 31 December 2024, Actual distributions to
the bonus and welfare fund for the year ended 31 December 2024 would be approved
in the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 and may be different to the presented
figures.

Basic earnings per share of the year ended 31 December 2023 were recalculated to take
into account the actual appropriated bonus and welfare fund as follows:

For the year ended 31.12.2023

As previously As
reported Adjustments recalculated

Net profit attributable to
shareholders (VND) 16,631,178,656 - 16,631,178,656

Less amount allocated to bonus
and welfare fund (VND)

1]

(1,660,000,000) (1,660,000,000)

Profit to calculate basic earnings

per share (VND) 16,631,178,656 (1,660,000,000) 14,971,178,656
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (shares) 12,120,000 - 12,120,000
Basic eamnings per share (VND) 1,372 (137) 1,235
23
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

18

(b)

19

20

21

22

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

Diluted earnings per share

Form B 09 - DN

The Company did not have any ordinary shares potentially diluted during the year and up
to the date of these financial statements. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share is equal

to the basic earnings per share.

NET REVENUE FROM RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from container handling
Revenue from container repairing
Revenue from rendering of other services

COST OF SERVICES RENDERED

Staff costs

Raw materials

Qutside service expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Others

FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income from deposits
Interest income from lendings (Note 28(a))

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Provision for investments in other entities

26

2024
VND

139,738,234,408
13,402,305,479
6,202,414,078

2023
VND

155,054,270,190
11,110,258,127
6,109,137,794

159,342,953,965

172,273,666,111

2024
VND

30,195,233,543
27,203,678,570
22,268,930,938
14,379,479,207

236,460,000

2023
VND

32,414,029,630
27,252,215,503
25,237,141,531
17,254,788,969

512,750,000

94,283,782,258

102,670,925,633

2024
VND

559,572,907
732,205,479

2023
VND

2,102,833,502
140,835,617

1,291,778,386

2,243,669,119

2024
VND

1,942,895,623

2023
VND

511,665,116
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
23 SELLING EXPENSES
2024 2023
VND VND
Expenses related to shipping agencies 18,977,145,000 20,362,969,000
Commission fees - third parties 3,110,876,588 5,384,398,070
Commission fees - related parties
(Note 28(a)) () 16,686,760,228 18,796,529,000
Others 1,462,949 185 1,389,310,634
40,237,731,001 45,933,206,704
() According to the service contracts No. 01/2023/VGR-GIC dated 1 January 2023 and
No. 01/2024NGR-GIC dated 1 January 2024 between the Company and VIP
Greenport JSC (a related party), the Company pays commission expenses to VIP
Greenport JSC upon the provision and collection from container handling services for
containers related to shipping agencies that are partners of VIP Greenport JSC.
Commission expenses are calculated based on the number of containers handled
during the year and the unit prices specified in the contracts.
24 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2024 2023
VND VND
Staff costs 4,404,190,502 4,648,418,331
Outside service expenses 1,455,782,280 1,753,323,803
Others 482,753,023 345,995,609
6,342,725,805 6,747,737,743
25 CIT

According to preferential investment policies in the Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Economic Zone, the
Company is exempted from CIT for 4 years from the first year having taxable income (2017
- 2020) and is entitled to a 50% reduction of CIT for the next 9 years (2021 - 2029). The
incentive CIT rate of 10% is applied in 15 consecutive years from the first year having
revenue (2017 - 2031).

27
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GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

25 CIT (CONTINUED)

Form B 09 - DN

The tax amount on the Company's accounting profit before tax is different from the tax
amount calculated at the applicable tax rate of 10% as follows:

Accounting profit before tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 10%

Effect of:
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
- Tax deduction
- Under-provision in previous years

CIT charge (*)
Charged to income statement:

CIT - current
CIT - deferred

2024
VND

18,091,674,245

2023
VND

18,692,682,798

1,809,167 425

1,896,331,529
(1,852,749,477)

1,859,268,280

2,053,781,943
(1,956,525,112)
4,979,031

1,852,749 477

1,961,504,142

1,852,749 477

1,961,504,142

1,852,749 477

1,961,504,142

(*) The CIT charge for the year is based on estimated taxable income and is subject to
review and possible adjustments by the tax authorities.

26 COSTS OF OPERATION BY FACTOR

Costs of operation by factor represent all costs incurred during the year from the
Company's operating activities. The details are as follows:

Staff costs

Outside service expenses

Raw materials

Commission fees

Expenses related to shipping agencies
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Others

28

2024
VND

34,599,424 045
23,724,713,218
27,203,678,570
19,797,636,816
18,977,145,000
14,382,709,207

2,178,932,208

2023
VND

37,062,447 ,961
26,990,531,334
27,252,215,503
24,180,927,070
20,362,969,000
17,254,788,969

2,247,990,243

140,864,239,064

165,351,870,080




GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 - DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

27

(@)

(b)

28

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information based on the business activities

During the year, the Company's main business activities include container handling and
repairment and other ancillary business activities related to the main business activities.
Revenue and costs from other business activities were VND 6.2 billion and VND 2.5 billion
respectively, accounting for an immaterial proportion of the total revenue from rendering
of service and total costs of services rendered. Therefore, the financial information
presented on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024 and the income statement for
the year then ended is mainly related to container handling and repairment and other
ancillary business activities which are mentioned above.

Segment information based on the geographical location

During the year, the Company only operated within the territory of Vietnam. Therefore, the
Company does not have any geographic division other than the territory of Vietnam.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details of the main related parties and their relationships with the Company are as follows:

Company Relationship

Vietnam Container Shipping JSC Parent company

VIP Greenport JSC Fellow group subsidiary

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co. Lid. Fellow group subsidiary

Green Star Lines One Member Co., Ltd. Fellow group subsidiary

Greenport Services One Member Co., Lid. Fellow group subsidiary

Central Container JSC Fellow group subsidiary

Viconship Ho Chi Minh One Member Co., Ltd. Fellow group subsidiary

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd. Fellow group subsidiary (*)
(from 18 July 2024)

ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC Investee and fellow group subsidiary

Vinaship Marine Services Co., Ltd. Other related party (**)
(from 10 October 2024)

VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC Other related party

(until 12 September 2024)

(*)  Since 18 July 2024, Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd. has become a fellow group
subsidiary. Previously, it was an associate company of Vietnam Container Shipping
JSC, the parent company.

(**) Since 10 October 2024, Vinaship JSC has become an associate of Vietnam
Container Shipping JSC, the parent company. As Vinaship Marine Services Co.,
Ltd. is a direct subsidiary of Vinaship JSC, Vinaship Marine Services Co., Ltd. is an
other related party of the Company from 10 October 2024.

29
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

28

(@)

ii)

iii)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party transactions

Form B 09 - DN

During the financial year, the following major transactions were carried out with related

parties:

Sales of goods and services
VIP Greenport JSC

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co., Lid.

Green Star Lines One Member Cao., Ltd.
Greenport Services One Member Co., Ltd.

Viconship Ho Chi Minh One Member Co., Ltd.

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd.
VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC

Purchases of raw materials
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC

Purchases of services
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
VIP Greenport JSC

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co., Ltd.

Green Star Lines One Member Co., Ltd.
Greenport Services One Member Co., Ltd.
Central Container JSC
Vinaship Marine Services Co., Ltd.

(from 10 October 2024)

Disposals of fixed assets, tools and supplies

VIP Greenport JSC
Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd.

30

2024
VND

22.005,457,191
1,081,129,236

2023
VND

18,569,705,140
1,932,578,490

834,444 000 1,118,813,962
209,383,331 355,930,000
1,093,293,887 703,440,000
489,185,233 5
65,149,997 -
26,678,042,875 22680,467,592

6,310,632,003

1,932,000,000
95,063,000

7,858,256,500
1,110,000
549,074,075

20,000,000

1,932,000,000

6,549,218
7,741,349,000

551,160,775

10,455,503,575

10,231,058,993

868,000,000
1,351,851,852

2,219,851,852
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28

(a)

vi)

vii)

viii)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party transactions (continued)

Commission fees
VIP Greenport JSC (Note 23)

Investing activities

ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC
- Principal of lending (Note 5)

- Interest of lending

Green Logistics Centre One Member Co., Lid.

- Acquisition of shares of ICD Quang Binh -
Dinh Vu JSC (Note 9)

Interest income on lendings (Note 21)
ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC

Dividend distribution
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC

31
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2024 2023

VND VND
16,686,760,228 18,796,529,000
- 10,000,000,000

732,205,479 140,835,617
20,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
732,205,479 140,835,617
9,648,000,000 8,040,000,000
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(a)

ix)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party transactions (continued)

Compensation for key management

Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Duc Dung
Mr. Cap Trong Cuong
Mr. Duong Tien Dung

Mr. Nguyen The Trong
Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Mr. Nguyen Kim Duong Khoi

Ms. Tran Thi Phuong Anh

Board of Supervision

Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong

Ms. Phan Thi Trung Hieu
Ms. Pham Thi Thuy Ngoc

Board of Management
Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Mr. Dang Quoc Ve
Chief accountant
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang

Ms. Vu Tra My

Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Lan

Chairperson

(appointed on 15/3/2024)
Chairperson

(resigned on 15/3/2024)
Chairperson

(resigned on 20/9/2022)
Member
Member
Member
Member

Head
Member
Member

General Director
Vice General Director
(appointed on 1/6/2024)

Chief Accountant
(appointed on 1/6/2024)

Chief Accountant
(appointed on
15/2/2023, resigned
on 1/6/2024)

Chief Accountant
(resigned on 15/2/2023)

32
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2024 2023

VND VND
42,000,000 20,000,000
- 15,000,000
40,000,000 20,000,000
941,234,497 938,871,926
40,000,000 20,000,000
40,000,000 20,000,000
30,000,000 15,000,000
24,000,000 10,000,000
24,000,000 10,000,000
78,000,000 35,000,000
As above As above
310,436,805 2
274 303,717 "
314,748,636 473,118,649
- 205,764 638
589,052,353 678,883,287
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Year-end balances with related parties
2024 2023
VND VND
i) Short-term trade accounts receivable (Note 4)
VIP Greenport JSC 5,715,274,001 -
Green Logistics Centre One Member Co., Ltd. 135,399,049 209,219,418
Greenport Services One Member Co., Ltd. 33,480,000 3,726,000
Viconship Ho Chi Minh Cne Member Co., Ltd, 756,432,000 194,572,800
6,640,585,050 407,518,218
ii) Short-term lendings (Note 5)
ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
iii) Other short-term receivables
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC - 84,000,000
ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Vu JSC 126,000,000 -
126,000,000 84,000,000
iv) Short-term trade accounts payable (Note 10)
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC - 174,580,000
VIP Greenport JSC - 863,690,679
Green Star Lines One Member Co., Ltd. 740,911,320 807,309,720
Central Container JSC 14,760,000 20,210,000
755,671,320 1,865,790,399

33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) Year-end balances with related parties (continued)
2024 2023
VND VND
v) Short-term accrued expenses
VIP Greenport JSC - 95,063,000

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Management of the Company on 18
February 2025.

/}/ﬂz

Nguyen ThilJhu Hang
Chief Accountant/Preparer
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July 01, 2024

POWER OF ATTORNEY

| am Mai Viet Hung Tran, the Head of the Hanoi Branch of PwC (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company (the “Branch”), Branch tax code 0100157406-001, first registered with the Hanoi
Department of Planning and Investment on August 06, 2012,

Hereby appoint Mr. Do Duc Hau, Citizen Identity Card No. 001085008023, issued by the Police
Department for Administrative Management of Social Order on Apirl 251, 2021 (the “Authorized
Representative”).

To be my lawful and valid Authorized Representative, on my behalf and in my name,

to perform the following specific tasks:

(1) To sign, issue, and deliver the following documents of the Branch (with or without the Branch's
seal):

o Engagement letters, contracts, and service fee proposals for customers;

e Reports, opinions, advice, documents, correspondence, or other materials issued under or
related to the engagement letters, contracts, or service fee proposals, including debit notes
and invoices for services provided;

(i) To perform other tasks related to the aforementioned documents.

| confirm that the Authorized Representative has the legal right to represent me in performing the
authorized tasks above.

This Power of Attorney is effective from the date of signing until June 30, 2025, unless the
Authorized Representative ceases working for the Branch or PwC (Vietnam) Limited Liability
Company, or | decide to terminate the authorization before the expiry date.

Signature of the Principal

(Signed and Sealed)

Mai Viet Hung Tran

Head of Branch
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Issued in accordance with Circular No.
2002014/ TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 by the
Ministry of Finance

INTERIM BALANCE SHEET
(Full form)
Quarter IV 2025
Unit: VND
ASSETS Code Note Attheend of | At the beginning of
- o _ quarter the year
B I 2 | 3 | 4 ‘ A
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100  85,165704,112  54,068,820,897
I. Cash and Cash Equivalents 110 v 74.6001,867.643 33,445,666,939
1. Cash 111 V.1 57,601,867,643 13,445,666,939
- Cash on hand (including bank drafis) 111A 755,161,507 357,380,716
- Cash at Bank 111B 56,846,706,136 13,088,286,223
- Cash in transit 111C
2. Cash Equivalents 112 V.2 17,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
- Term deposits 112A 17,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
- Other investments held to maturity 112B
I1. Short-term investments 120
1. Trading securities 121
2. Provision for diminution in value of trading securities (*) 122
3. Investments held to maturity 123
I11. Short-term reccivables 130 V.3 7.894,206,876 17,883,341,171
1. Short-term trade accounts receivable 131 V.3a 5,628,006,876 7,713,741,171
2. Short-term prepayments to suppliers 132 V.4 100,000,000 20,600,000
3. Short-term intercompany receivables 133
- Intercompany receivables from exchange rate differences 133A
- Intercompany receivables from capitalisable borrowing costs 133B
- Other intercompany receivables 133C
4. Construction contract-in-progress receivables 134
5. Short-term lendings 135 10,000,000,000
6. Other short-term receivables 136 Va4 2.166,200,000 149,000,000
- Short-term pledged, mortgaged, deposited. and guaranteed 136L 2,000,000,000
7. Provision for doubtful debts — short-term (*) 137
8. Shortage of assets awaiting resolution 139
IV. Inventories 140 V.7 2,312,996.410 2,449,951.323
1. Inventories 141 V.7 2.312,996.410 2.449.951.323
2. Provision for decline in value of inventories (*) 149
V. Other current assets 150 356,633,183 289.861,464
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 356,633,183 289,861,464
2. Value added tax (*VAT") to be reclaimed 152
3. Tax and other receivables from the State 153
4. Government bonds under repurchase agreements 154
5. Other current assets 155

b 4
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RESOURCES

B. LONG-TERM ASSETS 200 191,805,888.616 208,493,220,025
I. Long-term receivables 210
1. Long-term trade accounts receivable 211
2. Long-term prepayments to suppliers 212
3. Capital provided to dependent units 213
4. Long-term intercompany receivables 214
5. Long-term lendings 215
6. Other long-term receivables 216
7. Provision for doubtful debts — long-term (*) 219
II. Fixed assets 220 18,403,149,412 29,749,493,225
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 V.9 18,341,779,412 29,649,363,225
- Historical cost 222 V.9 153,456,732,137 153,456,732,137
- Accumulated depreciation (*) 223 V.9 (135,114,952,725)  (123,807,368,912)
2. Finance lease fixed assets 224
- Historical cost 225
- Accumulated depreciation (*) 226
3. Intangible fixed assets 227 V.10 61,370,000 100,130,000
- Historical cost 228 V.10 1,224,742,459 1,224,742 459
- Accumulated depreciation (*) 229 V.10 (1,163,372,459) (1,124,612,459)
III. Investment properties 230
- Historical cost 231
- Accumulated depreciation (*) 232
IV. Long-term assets in progress 240 148,148,148
1. Long-term work in progress 241
- Work in progress 241A
- Provision for decline in value of inventories 241B
2. Construction in progress 242 148,148,148
V. Long-term investments 250 65,456,549,582 67,593,742,351
1. Investments in subsidiaries 251
2. Investments in associates and joint ventures 252
3. Investments in other entities 253 70,000,000,000 70,000,000,000
4. Provision for long-term investments (*) 254 (4,543,450,418) (2,406,257.649)
5. Investments held to maturity 255
V1.Other long-term assets 260 V.13 107,798,041,474 111,149,984,449
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 V.13 107,798,041,474 111,149,984 449
2. Deferred income tax assets 262
3. Long-term spare parts, supplies and equipment 263
4. Other long-term assets 268
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 276,971,592,728 262,562,040,922
| Attheend of | At the beginning of
RESOURCES | o Note | T quarter | theyear
1 1 2 3 4 5




C. LIABILITIES

I. Short-term liabilities

1. Short-term trade accounts payable

. Short-term advances from customers

. Tax and other payables to the State

. Payables to employees

. Short-term accrued expenses

. Short-term intercompany payables

. Construction contract-in-progress payables
. Short-term unearned revenue

oo =1 & b B W

. Other short-term payables

10. Short-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities
11. Provision for shori-term liabilities

12. Bonus and welfare fund

13. Price stabilisation fund

14. Government bonds under repurchase agreements

I1.Long-term liabilities

. Long-term trade accounts payable

. Long-term advances from customers

. Long-term accrued expenses

. Intercompany payables on capital contributions
. Long-term intercompany payables

. Long-term unecarned revenue

. Other long-term payables

. Long-term borrowings and finance lease liabilities
9. Convertible bonds

10. Preference shares

B 3 o b B W o —

I 1. Deferred income tax liabilities
12, Provision for long-term liabilities
13. Fund for scientific and technological development

D. OWNERS’ EQUITY
1. Capital and reserves
1. Owners’ capital
- Ordinary shares with voting rights
- Cb phiéu wu dai
2. Share premium
3. Share conversion options on convertible bonds
4. Owners® other capital
5. Treasury shares
6. Differences upon asset revaluation
7. Foreign exchange differences
- Foreign exchange differences
8. Investment and development fund
9. Enterprise reorganisation assistance fund
10.Other funds
11.Undistributed earnings/(Accumulated losses)
- Undistributed post-tax profits of previous years
- Post-tax profit of current period/year
- Undistributed post-tax profits
12. Capital expenditure fund

300
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324

330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343

400
410
411
411a
411b
412
413
414
413
416
417
417a
418
419
420
421
421a
421b
421c
422

21,980,558,911
21,105,011,797

V.14a 2,748,011,553
86,230,600

V.15 1,336,864,259
8,172,872,324

V.16 7,323,299.418
V.17 1,015,013,643
422,720,000

875,547,114

875,547,114

254,991,033,817

V.18 254,991,033,817
V.18 121,200,000,000
V.18 121,200,000,000
V.18 107,078,263,642
V.18 26,712,770,175
12,120,000,000

V.18 14,592,770,175

20,197,777,280
19,543,015,338
3,364,617,465
50,460,600
1,062,528,076
8,569,331,783
5,392,985,508

892,017,906

211,074,000

654,761,942

654,761,942

242,364,263,642
242,364,263,642
121,200,000,000
121,200,000,000

104,925,338,874

16,238,924,768
16,238,924,768

i



11. Budget sources and other funds

1. Budget sources

- Non-business expenditure source

- Non-business expenditures

2. Funds used to form fixed assets
TOTAL RESOURCES (440 = 300 + 400)

430
431
431A
431B
432
440

276,971,592,728 262,562,040,922

Preparer

e

Nguyen Thi[{hu Hang

Chief Accountant

M

Neuyen Thi Tha Hang

Prepared on A49. Tan.. 2026

o

- |

13



VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

INTERIM INCOME STATEMENTS

Form Bl2a-DN

(Tesued in aceordance with Circular No.
200200 41T-81C dated December 22,

20104 by the Ministry of Finance)

Quarter ['V 2025
Unif: VND
| | Cumulative from the beginning of
Item | Cote | Note | Quarter1v2025 | year to the end of period
B || Currentyear | Prioryear | Currentyear _Prior year
— T - T 4 1 5 SRS S S
1. Revenue from rendering of services 01 VI.1 41,048,410,684 43,256,200,462 155,974,747 414  159,342,953,965
2, Less deductions 02
3. Net revenue from rendering of services (10 =01 - 02) 10 VL1 41,048,410,684 43,256,200.462 155,974,747 414  159,342,953,965
4, Cost of services rendered 11 VI3 21,555,527,603 26,243,073.808 $7,432,352,326  94,283,782,258
5. Gross profit from rendering of services (20= 10 - 11) 20 19.492,883,081 17,013,126,654 68,542,395,088  65,059,171,707
6. Financial income 21 V1.4 549,757,222 343,563,989 1,693,032,677 1,294,852,316
7. Financial expenses 22 VIS 511,220,590  1,121.380,136 2,162,768,425 1,945,969,553
- Including: Interest expense 23
8. Selling expenses 25 VI8 13,086,968,761 11,047.493,156 45,133,519,896  40,237,731,001
9. General and administration expenses 26 VI3 1,622,644.546 1,396,074,03% 6,412,998,219 6,342,725,805
10. Net operating profit {30 =20+ (21 - 22) - (25 + 26)} 30 4.821.806,406  3,791,743,312 16,526,141,225  17,827,597,664
11. Other income 31 VL6 265,783,589
12. Other expenses 32 15,969,846 1,707,008
13. Lyi nhudin khic (40 =31 - 32) 40 (15,969,8406) 264,076,581
14. Net accounting profit before tax (50 = 30 + 40) 50 4,821.806.406 3,791,743.312 16,510,171,379  18,091,674,245
15. Business income tax — current 51 YL10 569,696,134 490,184,466 1,917,401,204 1,852,749 477
16. Business income tax — deferred 52
17. Net profit after tax (60 = 50 - 51 - 52) 60 4,252,110,272 3.301,558,846 14,592,770,175 16,238,924,768
18, Basic earnings per share (*) 70
19. Diluted earnings per share (*) 71
- Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 90
the period
- Mumber of additional ordinary shares expected to be issued a1
- Allocation Lo the bonus and wellare fund 92
Preparer Chief Accountant

/61

Newyen Thi Thu Hang

A

Nguyen Thi Thu Hlang




VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B03a-DN

(Issued in accordance with Circular No,
2002014/ TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 by the

INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Full form)
(Indirect method)

Quarter IV-2025

Unit: VND

| Cumulative from the beginning of year to

Item ! Code | Note the end of period
s -~ a . Cwrrent | Prior
R - 12 ] 3 | . 3
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit before tax 01 16,510,171,379 18,091,674,245
2. Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortisation 02 V.9 11,346,343,813 14,215,167.465
- Provisions/(Reversal of provisions) 03 220,785,172
- Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses 04
- (Profits)/losses from investing activities 05 (549,757,222) (1,429.974,947)
- Interest expense 06
- Other adjustments 07
3. Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 08 27,527,543,142 30,876,866,763
- (Increase)/decrease in receivables 09 14,272,909,321 (13,477.437,960)
- (Increase)/decrease in inventories 10 136,954,913 645.492 907
- Increase/(decrease) in payables 11 (3,681,127.870) (12,997.604,010)
+ Short-term borrowings paid to suppliers 1102
t (Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 12 3,285,171,256 3.438,747,131
- (Increase)/decrease in trading securities 13
- Interest paid 14
- Business income tax paid 15 485,346,720
- Other receipts from operating activities 16 47,259,437
- Other payments on operating activities 17 (1,420,354,000) 127,500,000
- Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 20 40,606,443,482 8.660,824,268
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets 21 100,130,000
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and long-term assets 22
3. Loans granted, purchases of debt instruments of other entities 23 (13.000,000,000)
4. Collection of loans, proceeds from sales of debt instruments of other 24
entities
5. Investments in other entities 25 (20,000,000,000)
6. Proceeds from divestment of investments in other entities 26
7. Dividends and interest received 27 V1.4 549,757,222 1,429,974,947
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities 30 549,757,222 (31,469,895,053)
II1. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from issuance of shares and capital contribution 31
2. Payments for share returns and repurchases 32
3. Proceeds from borrowings 13
4. Repayments of borrowings 34
5. Finance lease principal repayments 35
6. Dividends paid, profits distributed to owners 36 (265,490,000)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities 40 (265,490,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents of the period 50 41,156,200,704 (23,074,560,785)

e

LA



Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 60 33,445,666,939 43,520,227,724
Effect of foreign exchange differences 61
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (70=50+60+61) 70 74,601,867,643 20,445,666,939
Prepared ondd.. Tn. 2026
Preparer Chief Accountant
Il ¢ //(/2
Neguyen Thi THu Hang Nguyen Thi Thu Hang

WaH N Ln o



VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form B 09 - DN
(lssued under Circular No. 20002014/ TT-BTC dated December
22, 2014 by the Minisiry of Finance)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Quarter IIT 2025

I. The Company Operations Overview

GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY ("the Company")
1. Capital Ownership Structure

- Joint Stock Company

2. Business Areas:

- Container agency services, shipping agency and maritime brokerage, warehousing business, transportation...
3. Business Lines:

- Container agency services, shipping agency and maritime brokerage, warehousing business, transportation...
4, The normal business cycle 15: 12 months

5. Characteristics of the business activities during the fiscal year which have impact on the finance statements.
6. The Company's structure

- Subsidiaries:

- Associates, joint venture

- Dependent units without legal entity status operating under dependent accounting;

7. Statement on the Comparability of Information in the Financial Statements { The statement should indicate whether the information presented in the financial statements is
comparable. If the information cannot be compared, the reasons must be clearly disclosed, such as changes in ownership structure, demergers, mergers, or other relevant factors like
the duration of the comparison period.)

IL. Accouting Period and Currency
1. Annual Accounting Period: From January Ist to December 3 1st

2. Currency used for accounting: Vietnamese Dong ("VND")

IT1. Accounting Standards and Accounting System Applied F

1. Applied Accounting Standards:
The Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014, by the Ministry of Finance.

—

2. Statement on Compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting System:

Y

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in aceordance with the current Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Accounting System

IV. Applied Accounting Policies (in case of going concern)
Recognition Principles for Revaluation Differences, Exchange Rate Differences, and Undistributed Profits
1. Principles for the Conversion of Financial Statements from Foreign Currency to Vietnamese Dong:

(In cases where the functional currency differs from Vietnamese Dong); The impact (if any) from the conversion of financial statements from foreign eurrency to Vietnamese Dong

2. The types of exchange rates applied in accounting,
3. Principles for determining the actual interest rate (effective interest rate) used for discounting cash flows,
4. Principles for Recognizing Cash and Cash Equivalents;

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are easily convertible inlo a known amount of cash, are subject to
minimal risk of changes in value, and are used for meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

5. Principles for Aceounting for Financial Investments;

a} Trading securities.

b} Held-to-maturity investments.

¢) Loans receivable.

d) Investments in subsidiaries, and associates, joint venture.

d) Investments in equity instruments of other entities.

6. Principles for Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are menitored in detail by maturity, debtor, foreign currency type, and other factors based on the enterprise’s management needs.

7. Principles for Recognizing Inventories:
- Recognition principle for inventories: at cost.
- Method for valuing inventories: first-in, first-out (FIFO).
- Inventory accounting method: periodic inventory system,
- Method for provisioning inventory obsolescence.
8. Principles for Recognizing and Depreciating Fixed Assets (FA), Leased Assets, and Investment Properties:

The original cost of fixed assets is recognized at actual incurred cost. During usage, fixed assets are reflected at their initial cost, accumulated depreciation, and carrying amount.

Depreciation method is calculated using the straight-line method
9. Principles of Accounting for Business Cooperation Contracts

10. Principles of Accounting for Deferred Corporate Income Tax



1
12. Principles of Accounting for Accounts Payable

. Pringiples of Accounting for Prepaid Expenses

13. Principles of Recognizing Borrowings and Finance Lease Liabilities
14, Principles of Recognizing and Capitalizing Borrowing Costs

15, Principles of Recognizing Accrued Expenses

16. Principles and Methods for Recognizing Provisions

17, Principles of Recognizing Unearned Revenue

18, Principles of Recognizing Convertible Bonds
19. Principles of Recognizing Equity:

- Principles of Recognizing Capital Contributions from Owners, Surplus Equity, Convertible Bond Options, and Other Owners' Equity.
- Principles of Recognizing Asset Revaluation Gain/Loss.

- Principles of Recognizing Foreign Exchange Differences.

- Principles of Recognizing Retained Earnings.
20, Principles and Methods for Recognizing Revenue:

- Sales Revenue.

- Service Revenue,

- Financial Revenue;

- Construction Contract Revenue.

- Other income,
21. Principles of Accounting for Revenue Deductions.
22. Principles of Accounting for Cost of Goods Sold.
23. Principles of Accounting for Financial Expenses.
24, Principles of Accounting for Selling and Administrative Expenses.
25. Principles and Methods for Recognizing Current and Deferred Corporate Income Tax Expenses.
26. Other Accounting Principles and Methods.

V1. Additional Information on Items Presented in the Balance Sheet T
(Currency: Vicmamesem
1. Cash End of Period Beginning of Period
- Cash on hand 755,161,507 1,193,228 966
- Mon-term bank deposits 56,846,706,136 15,009,856,577
Total 57,601,867,643
End of Period Beginning of Period
Historical Cost Fair Value Provision Historical Cost Fair Value
2, Financial Invevstments
a) Trading Securities
Historical Cost Carrying Amount Historical Cost Carrying Amount
b) Investments held-to-maturity
bl) Short-term
- Term Deposits 17,000,000,000 17,000,000 000 48, 110,000,000 48,110,000,000
-Other investments
b2) Long-term
Historical Cost Fair Value Provision Historical Cost Fair Value Provision

¢} Investments in other entities (Details of each investment by ownership percentage and voting rights percentage)

- Investments in subsidiaries
- Investments in associates, joint venture 70,000,000,000 70,000,000,000 4,543.450418  70,000,000,000  70,000,000,000 4,057,805484

= Investments in other entities

End of Period Beginning of Period
3. Trade Accounts Receivable
a) Short-term Trade Accounts Receivable 5,628,006,876 0,513, 414,089
- Details of Receivables from Customers Representing 10% or More of Total Receivables from 4,321,157,241 5.862,091,737
Customers:
+ VIP GREENPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY 3,518,116,174 3,684,732,823
+ QUANG BINH - DINH VU INLAND PORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+ GREEN LOGISTICS CENTRE ONE MEMBER CO., LTD. 803,041,067 1,491,612,914
+ VIETNAM CONTAINER JOINT STOCK COMPANY - HO CHI MINH CITY BRANCH 685,746,000
IN HANOI:
+ YUSEN LOGISTICS AND TRANSPORT (VIETNAM) CO., LTD.
+ NEW WAY LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+ SK GLOBAL LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+NAMSUNG SHIPPING VIETNAM CO,, LTD. -BRANCH
-+ HO! WAH SHIPPING AGENCIES (VIETNAM) CO., LTD. - HAI PHONG BRANCH
- Receivables from other customers 1,306,849,635 (51,322,352

b) Long-term Trade Accounts Recetvable



¢) Recervables from related parties

4. Other Receivable
a) Short-term
- Other receivables

b) Long-term

5. Assets Awaiting Settlement
a) Cash;

b) Inventories;

¢) Fixed assets

d) Other assets

6. Bad debts

7. Inventories
- Raw materials and supplies;

Total

8. Long-term Work-in-Progress Assets
a, Long-term Work in Progress Assests

b, Incomplete Construction Works

Recoverable Amount

End of Period
Historical Cost

2,166,200,000
2.166.200,000

2,166,200,000

End

Amount

End of Period

Provision

of Period
Value

Rewvaluation Historical Cost

End of Period

2312996410

Historical Cost

Beginning of Period

Historical Cost Provision

149,000,000
149 000,000

149,000,000

Beginning of Period

Amount

Beginning of Period

Revaluation Historical Cost

Beginning of Period

Recoverable Amount

0

Historical Cost

Value

-

L) == ™ oy
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I3. Prepaid Expenses
a) Short-term
- Other expenses,

b) Long-term
- Other expenses (land lease);
Total

14. Accounts Payable to Suppliers
a) Short-term Accounts Payable to Suppliers
- Details for individual suppliers aceounting for 10% or more of total accounts payable:
+ VIETNAM CONTAINER SHIPPING JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
+ VIP GREENPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+ GREEN STAR LINES ONE MEMBER CO., LTD.
+ MITOS TRADING CO., LTD.
+ PVOIL HAl PHONG PETROLEUM AND OIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+ HOANG HUY TRADING AND SPARE PARTS CO,, LTD,
+ SAC VIET PORT SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY
+ THINH TIEN INVESTMENT, TRADING, AND SERVICE CO., LTD.
- Accounts payable to other suppliers
Total
b) Long-term Accounts Payable to Suppliers
¢) Overdue Payables Not Yet Settled
- Details for individual suppliers accounting for 10% or more of total accounts payable
Total

17. Taxes and Other Payables to the State S §
. Beginning of Period

a) Taxes Payable

- Value Added Tax (VAT) 546,102,153

= Corporate Income Tax 485,346,720
- Personal Income Tax 181,056,097
- Other

Total 1,212,504,970

b, Taxes Receivable
- Value-added tax (VAT) creditable on goods and services
Total

16. Acerued Expenses
a) Short-term
b) Long-term
Total

17. Other Payables
a} Short-term

- Trade union funds

- Other payables and payables to be paid

Total

b) Long-term
18. Provisions
a) Short-term
b) Long-term

- Other provisions for liabilities (e.g.. periodic fixed asset maintenance costs, environmental restoration

costs..)
Total

End of Period

356,633,183

107,798,041,474
108,154,6 74,657

End of Period

Beginning of Period

366,059 684

108,502,580,971
108,868,640,655

Beginning of Period

1,284,340,540 2,071,524,307
691,363,080 1,070,775,607
592,977 460 1,000,748,700
1,463,671,013 1,346,057,884
2,748,011,553 3,417,582,191
Amount payable Amount paid/

during the period

3,290,745.884
569,696,134
28,473,084

3,888,915,102
1.472,191,323

1,472,191,323
End of Period

7323299418

deducted during the EhlpEErei

3,259,499 301 577.348.736.
485,346,720 56‘,7,-‘396,[34J
19,709,792 189,819,389

:

3,764,555.813 1,336,864,25%

1,472,191,323
1,472,191,323
Beginning of Period

10,939,496,508

7,323,299,418 10,939,496,508

End of Period Beginning of Period
1,015,013 643 672,494 843
1,015,013,643 672,494,843
875,547,114 654.761.942
875,547,114 654,761,942



L
LIS'EE0'T66'FST TPO'COT'RLO'LOT  SLT'DLL'TIL'OT 000°000°00T 1ZT potiad Jualand 3y Jo Suipud Auejeg
T66'TST'8II THE'1ST'RIL S29EA102D 1) -
pouiad ayy Surmp ssor -
pouad sy Surmp aseamap endery -
SASBRUDUL JAIQY -
FOT'TIC0LE POTTOE OLE Y pousad at Sunnp njoi -

pouad juauna sy u aseaou] fepde)) -
SES'ET6'SEL'0ST THO'EIT'SLOLOT  £06'659°09ZT 00000000171 Pouad Jua.Lina ay o Suuuidaq duejeg

1ead snotaaxd sy Sunmp sso -
porad

snoiaaid ay Fupmp asearnap rende) -
sasealoul YO -

poriad snotaaad aty Suumnp 1o -

Tk snotaaxd 2y un aseasoul fende) -

THO'EITHICTHT PLY'BEE'STO'FOL  89L'PT6'BETII 000°000°007 171  Poriad snotaaad ays jo Supumaq 2ueleg
] Rl ] i 1 S i el A S
| [ pung poddng | pung | SooUAIBIp | SeouasapI

[el0, W | e mc_.mEoEmuxw ansasay PO UITRSIATT sjgoig paurelay | afueyoxy | uonen[easy SPIOYITYS | UONCO) | T _ R
samyg & spung | i wawdofaaa(g | m JomEndes | puog | amysg | jo uonnquuuosy
m _ asudiyuyg | eroueu g | uSiazog SEAY _ _
L IWUSERRT] Iy ) v o et = (- N L L - | 20 ! N S
Kb sapun swag

Ainb3 s Jaump ui sadueyd jo Juawaiels (t
Aynby siappoyareys 6



b) Shareholders' Equity

- Contributions from the parent company (if it 18 a subsidiary)

- Contributions from other

¢) Capital Transactions with Owners and Distribution of Dividends, Profit Sharing

= Qwner's Capital Contributions
+ Opening Balance of Capital Contributions
+ Closing Balance of Capital Contributions
- Dividends and Profit Distributed

d) Shares
- Number of shares registered for issuance
- Number of shares issued to the public

+ Ordinary shares

*Par value of outstanding shares: VND 10,000 per share

e) Dividends
f) Reserves of the Company
- Development Investment Fund

g) Income and Expenses, Gains or Losses Recognized Directly in Equity in accordance with specific

accounting standards,

VL. Supplementary Information for Items Presented in the Income Statement

Total Revenue from Sales and Services
a) Revenue
- Service Revenue

Total

Total

b) Revenue from Related Parties (Details each parties)

2. Deductions from Revenue
3. Cost of Goods Sold

- Cost of Goods Sold

4. Financial Income
- Interest Income from Deposits and Loans

5. Financial Expenses
- Interest Expenses

6. Other Income
- Disposal and Sale of Fixed Assets:
- Other Income

7. Other Expenses

Taotal

Total

Total

Total

- Net Book Value of Fixed Assets and Disposal Costs

- Extraordmary expenses
- Other Expenses

Total

End of Period

80,400,000,000
40,800.000,000

121,200,000,000

121.200.000,000
121,200.000.000

12,120,000
12,120,000

107078263 642

Q4 this year

41,048.410.684
41,048,410.684

21,555,527.603
21,555,527,603

549,751,222
549,757,222

511,220,590

Beginning of Period

§0,400,000,000
40,800,000,000

121,200,000,000

121,200,000,000
121,200,000,000

12,120,000
12,120,000

107,078,263,642

04 last year

43 256,200,462
43,256,200,462

26,243,073, 808
26.,243,073,808

343,563,989
343,563,989

1,121,380,136



%. Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses
a) Administrative Expenses Incurred During the Period
- Details of expenses representing 10% or more of total administrative expenses
+ Wages
+ Other expenses
+ Management expenses
- Other administrative expenses
Total
b) Selling Expenses Incurred During the Period
- Details of expenses representing 10% or more of total selling expenses
+ Commission expenses
+ Customer bonus expenses
- Other selling expenses
Total
¢) Reductions of Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses

9. Production and Business Costs by Category
- Cost of materials
- Labor costs
- Depreciation of fixed assets
- Qutsourced services costs
- Other monetary costs
Total

1. Current Corporate Income Tax Expenses
Corporate income tax expense based on taxable income for the current year

11. Deferred Corporate Income Tax Expenses

VI Supplemental Information for Items Presented in the Statement of Cash Flows
1. Non-cash Transactions Affecting Future Cash Flows Statement:
2, Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by the Entity;
3. Actual Borrowings During the Period:
4. Actual Principal Repayments During the Period:

IX. Other Information

. Contingent Liabilities, Commitments, and Other Financial Information
. Events Oceurring After the End of the Fiscal Year

1
2
3, Related Party Information (in addition to disclosures already provided in previous sections)
4

1,622,644,546
1,284.825.077

337.819.469
1,622,644,546

11,940,062,714
6,286.541,630
5,653,521,084
600,325,180
12,540,387,900

2,181,328.280
7,929.768,146
2,757,126,345
3.557.216.814
1,151,086,324
17,576,525,909

569,696,134

1,727,640,000
1,297,640,000

430,000,000
1,727,640,000

10,409,592,591
4,871,343,591
5,538,249,000
637,900,565
11,047,493,156

3,904,155,000
8,393,423,228
3,139,809,108
5.903.363.916
1,204 846 324
22,545,597,576

490,184,466

. Presentation of assets, revenue, and business results by segment (by business sector or geographic area) in accordance with Accounting Standard No. 28 “Segment Reporting.”

5. Comparative Information (Changes in information from prior fiscal years® financial statements)

&, Going Concern Information
7. Other Information

Chief Accountant

L

Newyen Thi ThulHang




VSC GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
—" | F— —ollo-—
No.: 06/2025/NQ-HBQT Hai Phong, August 23rd, 2025
RESOLUTION

Re: Approving the asset acquisition transaction with a related party — Green Logistics Center
One Member Company Limited

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Pursuant to:

« Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and its guiding documents;
« Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and its guiding
documents;
= The Charter of Organization and Operation of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company (“GIC”);
+ General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-BHPCP dated March 10,
2025;
e Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting dated August 23, 2025,
RESOLVES:
Article 1: Approve the policy to sign an asset acquisition contract with a related party as follows:
» Transaction Party: Green Logistics Center One Member Company Limited (“GLC”). GLC
is a related party of GIC’s major shareholder - Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock
Corporation.
« Estimated Value: 61,600,000,000 VND (In words: Sixty-one billion, six hundred million
Vietnamese Dong).
s Asset groups expected for the transaction:
o Workshops and/or warehouses:
o Means of transport;
o Machinery and equipment.
Article 2: Assign and authorize the Director of the Company to hire a valuation unit (if necessary),
negotiate specific contents, sign purchase and sale contracts, dossiers/documents for declaration
and payment of taxes, fees, and charges related to the transfer of ownership; and other necessary
relevant documents in accordance with the law and regulations of competent siate agencies.
Article 3: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. The Board of Directors, Director,
and relevant departments and individuals are responsible for implementing this Resolution in
accordance with the law and the Company's Charter./.
Recipients:
- As per Article 3 (for implementation);
- BOD, Board of Supervisors, Information
Disclosure;
- Archives, BOD Secretary.
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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
HAI PHONG CITY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
BUSINESS REGISTRATIONAND e
ENTERPRISE MANAGEMENT OFFICE-

ENTERPRISE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
Enterprise Code: 0201263312
First registration: May 16, 2012
8th amended registration: August 29, 2025
1. Company name
Company name in Vietnamese: CONG TY MOT THANH VIEN TRUNG TAM LOGISTICS
XANH
Company name in foreign language: GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER
COMPANY LIMITED
Abbreviated company name: GLC
2. Headquarters address
Land lot CN3.2G, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietham
Telephone: 02253979550 Fax:
Email: Website:
3. Charter capital: 620.000.000.000 VND
In words: Six hundred and twenty billion Vietnamese Dong
4. Owner information
Organization name: VIETNAM CONTAINER SHIPPING JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
Enterprise Code/Establishment Decision No.: 0200453688
Issue date: 01/04/2002 Issued by: Hai Phong City Business Registration Office
Headquarters address: No. 11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam
5. Legal representative of the company
* Full name: LE QUANG HUY Gender: Male
Date of birth:: 25/03/1979 Nationality: Vietnam
Personal Identification No.: 031079006117
Title: Director
Contact address: P304 A12TT Phuong Mai, Kim Lien Ward, Hanoi City, Vietnam

FOR THE HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
DEPUTY HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
(Signed and Sealed)

Pham Dinh Phuc



LAND USE RIGHTS TRANSFER CONTRACT
No.: 36/HDCN/GLC-GIC

Between
GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

And

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, August 29, 2025



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

LAND USE RIGHTS TRANSFER CONTRACT

No.: 36/ HDCN/GLC-GIC

- Pursuant to the Civil Code No. 91/2015/QH13 approved by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 24, 2015, and its guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Commercial Law No. 36/2005/QH11 approved by the National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietham on June 14, 2005, and its guiding documents;

- Based on the needs and mutual agreement of both parties

This Land Use Rights Transfer Contract is entered into on August 29, 2025, by and between
the parties as follows:

THE TRANSFEROR: GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER COMPANY
LIMITED

Tax Code : 0201263312

Address : Land lot CN3.2G, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone : 0225.3979550

Representative : Mr. Le Quang Huy

Title : Director

Bank Account : 0031000146868 at VCB - Hai Phong Branch (Hereinafter referred

to as Party A)
THE TRANSFEREE: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Tax Code : 0201768923

Address : Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone : 0225.2838666 Fax:

Representative : Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Title : Director

Bank Account : 0031000285868 at Vietcombank Hai Phong (Hereinafter referred

to as Party B)

Party A and Party B are hereinafter referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as “the
Parties,” depending on the context.

WHEREAS:



1. Party Ais the legal user of the 10,120 m? land lot, Book No.: CT: 00899, located at: Land
Lot CN3.21, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong City
(current address: Land Lot CN3.2l, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City), and Party A wishes to transfer the entire asset to Party B.

2. Party B is a company legally established in Vietnam and wishes to acquire the 10,120 m?2
land lot from Party A at the address: Land Lot CN3.2I, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai
2 Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong City (current address: Land Lot CN3.2l, Dinh Vu
Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong City), to serve its business needs, in
accordance with Vietnamese law.

Now, therefore, the Parties agree to enter into this Contract with the following terms and
conditions:
ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1. “Contract” means this Land Use Rights Transfer Contract signed by the Parties and all
other documents agreed upon by the Parties as part of the Contract.

1.2. “Asset” means the asset transferred by Party A to Party B as detailed in Article 2.1 of this
Contract.

1.3. “Asset Handover Minute” means the minute confirming that Party A has handed over the
Asset to Party B, established by both Parties.

1.4. “Contract Value” means the value determined in accordance with Article 2.2 of this
Contract.

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF THE CONTRACT

2.1. Object of the Contract: Party A agrees to transfer, and Party B agrees to acquire, the
10,120 m? land lot located at: Land Lot CN3.2I, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward, Hai
An District, Hai Phong City (current address: Land Lot CN3.2l, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong
Hai Ward, Hai Phong City).

2.2. Contract Value:

o Total Contract Value: 40,000,000,000 VND (In words: Forty billion Vietnamese Dong).
e The unit price includes Value Added Tax (VAT) but excludes any other costs.

ARTICLE 3: TIME AND LOCATION OF ASSET HANDOVER

3.1. Expected Handover Time: Within 09 months from the signing date of this Contract. The
specific handover time shall be agreed upon by both Parties.

3.2. Handover Location: At VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company and/or another location
as agreed in writing by both Parties.

3.3. At the time of handover, the Parties shall establish a handover minute signed by the legal
representatives of both Parties.



ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT METHOD

4.1. Payment Method: Party B shall pay Party A via bank transfer to Party A’s bank account
provided at the beginning of this Contract.

4.2. Estimated Payment Term: Party B may pay Party A in several installments, provided that
the payment term is no later than 30 days from the date of Asset handover.

ARTICLE 5: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY A

5.1. Guarantee that the transferred Asset is under the legal ownership/use of Party A and is not
subject to any dispute or claim by bat ky bén thir ba nao khac.

5.2. Request Party B to make full and timely payments as stipulated in the Contract.
5.3. Hand over the Asset in the correct condition, time, and location to Party B.

5.4. Appoint a representative to coordinate with Party B during the handover process and jointly
establish the Asset Handover Minute.

5.5. Perform procedures to support Party B in registering the transfer of ownership/use rights for
the Asset in accordance with the law.

ARTICLE 6: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY B

6.1. Request Party A to hand over the Asset in the correct condition and schedule as stipulated.
6.2. Inspect the actual status of the Asset at the time of handover.

6.3. Refuse to receive the Asset if it does not comply with the Contract's provisions.

6.4. Suspend any payment to Party A if the valid Asset handover has not been completed.

6.5. Thanh toan dung han, day du cho bén A theo quy dinh ctia Hop dong nay.

6.6. At its own expense, perform procedures to complete the registration of ownership/use rights
for the Asset as required by law.

ARTICLE 7. FORCE MAJEURE

7.1. Force Majeure Event is understood as events that are unforeseeable, unavoidable, beyond
the control of the parties and prevent the parties from performing their obligations under
this Contract. Force majeure events include but are not limited to epidemics, fires,
explosions, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, or other natural disasters; states of emergency,
riots, uprisings, wars, and national economic crises, the change of laws and State policies;
system failures, fiber optic cable cuts, loss of connection signals, or breach of the parties'
networks; or other events occurring that a party cannot control or prevent, and which are
the cause leading to the failure in performing the obligations of the affected party.

7.2.  When a force majeure event occurs, the affected party must immediately notify the other
party of the event, its duration, and expected consequences, and the parties are obligated to



discuss and coordinate with each other with their full responsibility to implement
reasonable remedial measures to minimize the consequences.

ARTICLE 8. PENALTIES AND DAMAGES

8.1.

8.2.

One of the two parties shall be deemed to be in breach of the Contract if it violates the law
to the extent of being prohibited from doing business in accordance with the provisions of
the law, or fails to strictly comply with any agreement in this Contract.

In the event that a party breaches the Contract, the non-breaching party has the right to
apply one or all of the following measures simultaneously:

(@) Unilaterally terminate the Contract in accordance with Article 9 of this Contract;

(b) Impose a penalty for the breach at a rate of 8% of the value of the breached contractual
obligation. In this case, the parties agree that the penalty is 8% of the value of the
breached contractual obligation.

(¢) Request the breaching party to compensate for actual damages for the breaches caused
by the breaching party to the non-breaching party.

For the avoidance of doubt, the parties agree that the breaching party is obligated to pay the
penalty/compensation to the non-breaching party within the time limit requested by the non-
breaching party.

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

The Contract shall terminate in the following cases:

9.1.
9.2.

9.3.

The Parties have fulfilled all of their obligations and responsibilities under this Contract.

The Parties have a mutual agreement to terminate this Contract (in which case, this Contract
shall terminate in accordance with such termination agreement);

One party unilaterally terminates the Contract due to a breach by the other party.

If one of the two parties breaches the Contract, the non-breaching party has the right to
unilaterally terminate the Contract by sending a written notice to the other party at least 05
(five) days prior to the time of termination. In this case, the non-breaching party has the
right to implement Acrticle 8.2 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 10. CONFIDENTIALITY

10.1.

10.2.

The Parties shall maintain confidentiality and not disclose any information related to this
Contract and any information received by the Parties during the performance of the
Contract and after the termination of the Contract, except for:

@) As required by Vietnamese law or at the request of a competent Vietnamese state
authority;

(b) By agreement between the two parties.

Both parties commit not to use the information provided by the other party for any purpose
other than those agreed upon in this Contract, unless otherwise agreed by both parties.

ARTICLE 11. GENERAL PROVISIONS



11.1.
11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

This Contract shall be governed by the laws of Vietnam.

If a dispute arises or one party breaches the Contract, both parties shall resolve it through
negotiation. In the event that negotiation fails, both parties agree to bring the case to a
competent People's Court in Hai Phong City for resolution. The Court's decision shall be
final and binding on both parties, and all costs shall be borne by the breaching party.

Any amendments or supplements to this Contract shall only take effect when agreed upon
by both parties and made in writing.

All notices, requests, or communications related to this Contract and its Appendices (if
any) between the two parties (“Notice”) must be made in writing in Vietnamese and sent
to the addresses of the parties as stated at the beginning of this Contract..

Neither party shall have the right to assign or transfer this Contract or any rights and
obligations related to this Contract to any third party without the prior written consent of
the other party.

This Contract shall take effect from the date of signing and is made in 04 (four) original
copies in Vietnamese with equal legal validity. Each party shall keep 02 (two) copies for
implementation.

REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY A REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY B

(signed and sealed) (signed and sealed)
Director Director

Le Quang Huy Dong Trung Hai



CONTRACT FOR THE TRANSFER OF TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE
No: 37/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC

Between
GREEN LOGISTICS CENTRE ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

And

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, August 29, 2025



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence — Freedom — Happiness

CONTRACT FOR THE TRANSFER OF TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE
No: 37/HPCNTS/GLC-GIC

- Pursuant to the Civil Code No. 91/2015/QH13 adopted by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 24, 2015, together with its amendments,
supplements, and guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Commercial Law No. 36/2005/QH11 adopted by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 14, 2005, together with its amendments,
supplements, and guiding documents;

- Based on the needs and agreement of both parties.

This Contract for the Transfer of Transportation Vehicle is entered into on 29/08/2025 by and
between the following parties:

TRANSFEROR PARTY: GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

Tax Code : 0201263312

Address : Lot CN3.2G, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone Number : 0225.3979550

Representative : Mr. Le Quang Huy

Position : Director

Bank Account : 0031000146868 at VCB Bank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party A)
TRANSFEREE PARTY: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Tax Code : 0201768923

Address : Lot CC2 — MP Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone Number : 0225.2838666

Representative : Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Position : Director

Bank Account : 0031000285868 at VCB Bank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party B)

Party A and Party B shall hereinafter be referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as
the “Two Parties” or the “Parties,” depending on the context.



Whereas:

3.

Party A is the lawful owner of all transportation vehicles (“Assets”) as specified and listed
in Appendix 01 — the Asset List attached to this Contract, and Party A wishes to transfer
all such Assets to Party B.

Party B is a company legally established in Vietnam, which desires to acquire from Party
A all the Assets to serve Party B’s needs, in compliance with the laws of Vietnam.

After discussion and mutual agreement, the Parties hereby agree to enter into this Contract with
the following contents and terms:

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Contract, the following terms and phrases shall be understood as follows:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

“Contract” shall mean this Contract for the Transfer of Vehicle, including Appendix 01
attached hereto, executed by the Parties, together with all other documents mutually agreed
upon by the Parties to form an integral part of the Contract.

“Contract Appendix” shall mean the content inseparable from the Contract. The Contract
Appendix may be additionally prepared during the performance of the Contract.

“Assets” shall mean the assets transferred by Party A to Party B as detailed in Article 2.1
of this Contract.

“Asset Handover Minutes” shall mean the minutes confirming that Party A has delivered
the Assets to Party B, prepared jointly by Party A and Party B.

“Contract Value” shall mean the value determined in accordance with Article 2.2 of this
Contract.

ARTICLE 2: CONTENT OF THE CONTRACT

2.1.

2.2.

Subject of the Contract

Party A agrees to transfer and Party B agrees to receive the transfer of all Assets, including:
13 tractor units, 35 40-foot semi-trailers, 02 10-ton empty container handlers, 02 41-ton
forklifts, 03 45-ton forklifts, 01 46-ton forklift, 05 3-ton diesel forklifts, 01 4.5-ton diesel
forklift, and 17 electric forklifts as detailed in Appendix 01 of this Contract.

For clarification, this Contract sets forth the principles governing the transfer of Assets.
Depending on specific circumstances, the Parties may enter into separate contracts for each
Asset in accordance with the provisions of law and the requirements of competent state
authorities (if necessary). The timing of the execution of each individual asset purchase
contract shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties. Any contracts arising from this
Contract must comply with and be consistent with the terms and conditions agreed upon
herein

Total Contract Value
Total Contract Value: 18,000,000,000 VND (In words: Eighteen billion Vietnamese dong
only)

The detailed value of the Assets stipulated in Article 2.1 of this Contract is specified in
Appendix 01 attached hereto.



The unit price of the Assets includes Value Added Tax but excludes any other costs.

ARTICLE 3: TIME AND PLACE OF ASSET HANDOVER

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Expected Time of Asset Handover: Within 09 months from the date of signing this
Contract. The specific time of asset handover shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties.

Place of Asset Handover: At Green Logistics Center One Member Limited Liability
Company.

At the time of Asset Handover, the Parties shall prepare an Asset Handover Minutes, duly
signed by the legal representatives of both Parties.

ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT METHOD

4.1.

4.2,

Payment Method: Party B shall make payment to Party A by bank transfer to Party A’s
bank account details as stated at the beginning of this Contract.

Expected Payment Term: Party B may make payment to Party A in multiple installments;
however, the payment term shall not be later than 30 days from the date of Asset Handover.
Party B shall have the right to inspect the quantity, type, and condition of the Assets prior
to making payment.

ARTICLE 5: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY A

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

Party A warrants that all Assets transferred are under Party A’s lawful ownership and are
not subject to any dispute or claim by any third party.

Party A has the right to require Party B to make full and timely payment in accordance
with this Contract.

Party A shall deliver and transfer the Assets to Party B in the correct quantity, type,
condition, time, and place as stipulated in this Contract.

Party A shall appoint representatives to coordinate with Party B during the asset handover
process and jointly prepare the Asset Handover Minutes.

At its own expense, Party A shall be solely responsible for safeguarding and ensuring the
safety and security of the Assets until the completion of the handover to Party B.

Party A undertakes to bear full responsibility towards Party B and/or any Third Party in
the event of damages caused by defects, faults, or non-conformity of the Assets in terms of
quantity, type, or condition.

At Party B’s request, Party A shall, at its own expense, repair, remedy, or take appropriate
measures to address any Assets that fail to meet the requirements regarding quantity, type,
or condition as stipulated in this Contract.

Party A shall deliver and transfer to Party B all information and instructions related to the
transportation, preservation, operation, use, warranty, and maintenance of the Assets; and
shall assign qualified personnel to the site where the Assets are located to assist and guide
Party B during the handover process.

Party A shall carry out necessary procedures to assist Party B in registering ownership of
the Assets in accordance with the law.



5.10. Party A shall perform other rights and obligations as provided under this Contract and

applicable laws.

ARTICLE 6: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY B

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.
6.8.

6.9.

Party B has the right to require Party A to deliver the Assets in the correct quantity, type,
condition, schedule, and location as stipulated in this Contract.

Party B shall inspect the quantity, specifications, quality, and condition of the Assets at the
time of handover.

Party B may refuse to accept the Assets if they do not conform to the provisions of this
Contract.

Party B shall notify and request Party A to repair/remedy or take appropriate measures to
address any defects/damages of the Assets (if any).

Party B may suspend any payment to Party A until the lawful transfer of the Assets has
been completed in accordance with this Contract.

Party B shall appoint representatives to coordinate with Party A during the asset handover
process and jointly prepare the Asset Handover Minutes.

Party B shall make full and timely payment to Party A in accordance with this Contract.

At its own expense, Party B shall carry out procedures to complete the registration of
ownership of the Assets in accordance with the law.

Party B shall perform other rights and obligations as provided under this Contract and
applicable laws.

ARTICLE 7: FORCE MAJEURE

7.3.

7.4.

A Force Majeure Event shall be understood as an event that is unforeseeable, unavoidable,
beyond the control of the Parties, and prevents the Parties from performing their obligations
under this Contract. Force Majeure Events include, but are not limited to, epidemics, fires,
explosions, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, or other natural disasters; states of emergency,
riots, civil commotion, war, and national economic crises; changes in laws and government
policies; system failures, fiber optic cable disruptions, loss of connection signals, network
intrusions affecting the Parties; or other events beyond a Party’s control and prevention,
which cause failure in the performance of the affected Party’s obligations.

Upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, the affected Party must immediately notify
the other Party of the event, its duration, and the anticipated consequences. The Parties
shall be obliged to discuss and cooperate with each other, with full responsibility, to
implement reasonable remedial measures to minimize the consequences.

ARTICLE 8: PENALTIES FOR BREACH AND COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES

8.3.

8.4.

Either Party shall be deemed to be in breach of this Contract if it violates the law to the
extent that it is prohibited from conducting business under applicable regulations, or fails
to comply with any provision of this Contract.

n the event of a breach of Contract by one Party, the non-breaching Party shall have the
right to apply one or all of the following measures simultaneously:



(d) Unilaterally terminate the Contract in accordance with Article 9 of this Contract;

(e) Impose a penalty for breach at the rate of 8% of the value of the contractual obligation
breached. In this case, the Parties agree that the penalty shall be 8% of the value of the
breached contractual obligation.

(f) Require the breaching Party to compensate for actual damages caused to the non-
breaching Party as a result of the breach.

For clarification, the Parties agree that the breaching Party shall be obliged to pay
penalties/compensation to the non-breaching Party within the time frame requested by the non-
breaching Party.

ARTICLE 9: TERMINATION OF CONTRACT
This Contract shall be terminated in the following cases:

9.4. The Parties have fulfilled all their obligations and responsibilities under this Contract, or
the Parties have executed separate contracts to transfer all Assets as listed in Appendix 01
of this Contract

9.5.  The Parties mutually agree to terminate this Contract (in which case, this Contract shall be
terminated in accordance with such termination agreement);

9.6.  One Party unilaterally terminates the Contract due to the breach of the other Party.

If either Party breaches the Contract, the non-breaching Party shall have the right to
unilaterally terminate the Contract by sending a written notice to the other Party at least 05
(five) days prior to the termination date. In such case, the non-breaching Party shall have
the right to enforce Article 8.2 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 10: CONFIDENTIALITY

10.3. The Parties shall keep confidential and shall not disclose any information related to this
Contract or any information received during the performance of the Contract and after its
termination, except in the following cases:

(c) As required by the laws of Vietnam or by a competent Vietnamese state authority;
(d) As agreed upon by both Parties.

10.4. The Parties undertake not to use information provided by the other Party for any purpose
other than those agreed upon in this Contract, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the
Parties.

ARTICLE 11: GENERAL PROVISIONS
11.7. This Contract shall be governed by the laws of Vietnam.

11.8. In the event of any dispute or breach of this Contract, the Parties shall resolve the matter
through negotiation. If negotiation fails, the Parties agree to submit the case to the
competent People’s Court in Hai Phong City. The Court’s decision shall be final and
binding on both Parties, and all costs shall be borne by the breaching Party.

11.9. Any amendments or supplements to this Contract shall only be valid if mutually agreed
upon by the Parties and executed in writing.



11.10. All notices, requests, or communications relating to this Contract and its Appendices (if
any) between the Parties (“Notices”) must be made in writing in Vietnamese and sent to
the addresses of the Parties as stated at the beginning of this Contract.

11.11. Neither Party shall have the right to assign or transfer this Contract or any rights and
obligations related to this Contract to any Third Party without the prior written consent of
the other Party.

11.12. This Contract shall take effect from the date of signing and is executed in 02 (two) original
copies in Vietnamese, each having equal legal validity. Each Party shall retain 01 (one)
copy for implementation.

With full understanding and trust, the legal representatives of the Parties have executed this
Contract on the date, month, and year stated at the beginning of this Contract.

REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY A REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY B
(signed and sealed) (signed and sealed)
Director Director

Le Quang Huy Dong Trung Hai



APPENDIX 01
LIST OF ASSETS AND ASSET VALUES

. Amount
No Vehicle Type ((?Vue?,r,];;g (VND) Attached Documents
I SEMI-TRAILER 35 1.110.000.000
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.

1 Brand: JINDAO 04 120.000.000 | Certificate of technical
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 1999 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.

) Br(?m_d: KR!\IG 03 90.000.000 | Certificate of_ technical
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2000 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.

3 Brand: CHIENYOUVN 02 60.000.000 | Certificate of technical
Origin: Vietnam safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2004 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.

A Brand: JUPITER 02 60.000.000 | Certificate of technical
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2006 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.

. Brand: YINDAO 03 90.000.000 | Certificate of technical
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2007 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) - Certificate of registration
Brand: YINDAO for trailer/semi-trailer.
6 04 120.000.000

Origin: China
Year of Manufacture: 2008

- Certificate of technical
safety and environmental




protection inspection for
motor vehicles.

Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier)
Brand: HUANYA

- Certificate of registration
for trailer/semi-trailer.
- Certificate of technical

! Origin: China 04 120.000.000 safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2007 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.
Brand: CIMC - Certificate of technical
8 .. . 01 30.000.000 .
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2009 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.
9 Br(?m_d: KC_:T o1 30.000.000 | Certificate of_ technical
Origin: Vietnam safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2012 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.
10 Brz?m'd: KC'ZT 06 180.000.000 | Certificate oftechnlcal
Origin: Vietnam safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2013 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.
1 Brz?m'd: HQANGSA 02 60.000.000 | Certificate oftechnlcal
Origin: Vietnam safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2015 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Semi-trailer (Container carrier) for trailer/semi-trailer.
Brand: KCT - Certificate of technical
12 . . . 03 150.000.000 .
Origin: Vietnam safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2018 protection inspection for
motor vehicles.
Il. | TRACTOR UNIT 13 550.000.000




Used Tractor Unit

- Certificate of registration
for trailer/semi-trailer.
- Certificate of technical

1. | Brand: Freightliner 02 100.000.000 i
. safety and environmental
Origin: USA . .
protection inspection for
Year of Manufacture: 2005 :
motor vehicles.
- Certificate of registration
Used Tractor Unit for trailer/semi-trailer.
2 | Brand: Freightliner 03 210.000.000 | - Certificate of technical
i e o
rotection i [
Year of Manufacture: 2007 &otor vehicleg.
- Certificate of registration
for trailer/semi-trailer.
Used Tractor Unit

3 | Brand: MAZ 03 90.000.000 | - Certificate of technical
Origin: Belarus safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2006 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
) - Certificate of registration
Used Tractor Unit for trailer/semi-trailer.

4 Brand: FAW 05 150.000.000 | - Certificate of technical
Origin: China safety and environmental
Year of Manufacture: 2008 protection inspection for

motor vehicles.
. 10T EMPTY CONTAINER 02 1550.000.000
HANDLER R
Used Empty Container Handler
Brand: Kalmar

1 | Lifting Capacity: 10T 02 1.550.000.000 | - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Sweden certificate.

Year of Manufacture: 2008
IV. | 41T FORKLIFT 02 2.200.000.000
Used 41T Laden Container Handler

y | Brand: Kalmar 01 1,100,000,000 _ o
Origin: Sweden - Technical safety inspection
Year of Manufacture: 2008 certificate.

Used 41T Laden Container Handler
o | Brand: Kalmar 01 1.100.000.000

Origin: Sweden
Year of Manufacture: 2013

- Technical safety inspection
certificate.




V. | 45T FORKLIFT 03 6.890.000.000
Used 45T Laden Container Handler
Brand: Hyster - Technical safety inspection
1 | Origin: Netherlands 01 1.500.000.000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2016
Used 45T Laden Container Handler
5 Brand: Hyster - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Netherlands 01 1.500.000.000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2015
Used 45T Laden Container Handler
3 Br:fm_d: Hyster o1 3.890.000.000 |~ Te_chnlcal safety inspection
Origin: Netherlands certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2019
VI. | 46T FORKLIFT 01 1.500.000.000
Used 46T Laden Container Handler
L Brand: Hyster - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Netherlands 01 1.500.000.000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2018
VII. | 3T DIESEL FORKLIFT 05 1.197.000.000
Used 3T Diesel Forklift Technical safety | "
, - Technical safety inspection
1 Brz?m'd. TCM FD30T3Z certificate.
Origin: Japan 02 200,000,000
Year of Manufacture: 2018
Used 3T Diesel Forklift Technical safetv i .’
, - Technical safety inspection
2 Brz?m'd. TCM FD30T3Z 02 872,000,000 | certificate.
Origin: Japan
Year of Manufacture: 2022
Used 3T Diesel Forklift
3 Brand: TCM FD30T3Z - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Japan 01 125,000,000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2015
VIIL. | 45T DIESEL FORKLIFT 01 175.000.000
Used 4.5T Diesel Forklift
1 Brand: TCM FD45T9 - Technical safety inspection
01 175,000,000 | certificate.

Origin: Japan
Year of Manufacture: 2015




IX. | ELECTRIC FORKLIFT 17 2.828.000.000
Used Electric Forklift Technical safety inspection
. - i yi i
! Br{fm.d - BT RREL60 01 60.000.000 | certificate.
Origin: Sweden
Year of Manufacture: 2011
Used Electric Forklift Technical safety inspection
. - i yi i
2 Br"fm.d - TCM-FB 18-8 01 98.000.000 | certificate.
Origin: Japan
Year of Manufacture: 2013
Used Electric Forklift
3 Brand: TCM-FB 18-8 - Technical safety inspection
. certificate.
Origin: Japan 02 350.000.000
Year of Manufacture: 2014
Used Electric Forklift Technical safety inspection
. - ical safety ins i
‘ Brz?m_d - TCMFRHB 18-8 04 392,000,000 | certificate.
Origin: Japan
Year of Manufacture: 2013
Used Electric Forklift
5 Brand: TCM FRSB 14-8 - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Japan 04 684,000,000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2016
Used Electric Forklift
6 Brand: TCM FRSB 14-8 - Technical safety inspection
Origin: Japan 03 462,000,000 | certificate.
Year of Manufacture: 2013
Used 3T Electric Forklift Technical safety inspection
f | Brand: TCM FRSB 14-9F 02 782,000,000 | certificate.
Origin: China
Year of Manufacture: 2020
Total 79 18.000.000.000




MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT TRANSFER CONTRACT
No: 38/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC

Between
GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

And

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, August 29, 2025



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

MACHINERY, EQUIPMENT, AND MEANS OF TRANSPORT TRANSFER
CONTRACT

No:38/HDCNTS/GLC-GIC

- Pursuant to Civil Code No. 91/2015/QH13 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on November 24, 2015, and its amendments, supplements, and guiding
documents;

- Pursuant to Commercial Law No. 36/2005/QH11 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 14, 2005, and its amendments, supplements, and
guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the needs and agreements of both parties.

This Machinery and Equipment Transfer Contract is entered into on August 29, 2025, by and
between the parties whose information is provided below:

TRANSFEROR: GREEN LOGISTICS CENTER ONE MEMBER LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

Tax Code : 0201263312

Address : Land lot CN3.2G, Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone : 0225.3979550

Representative : Mr. Le Quang Huy

Title : Director

Bank Account : 0031000146868 at VCB - Hai Phong Branch (Hereinafter referred

to as Party A)
THE TRANSFEREE: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Tax Code : 0201768923

Address : Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Zone, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone : 0225.2838666 Fax:

Representative : Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Title : Director

Bank Account : 0031000285868 at Vietcombank Hai Phong (Hereinafter referred

to as Party B)

Party A and Party B shall hereinafter be referred to individually as the “Party” and collectively as
the “Two Parties” or the “Parties,” depending on the context.



WHEREAS:

1. Party A is the legal owner of all machinery and equipment (“Assets”) specified and listed

in Appendix 01 - List of Assets attached to this Contract, and Party A wishes to transfer all
such assets to Party B.

Party B is a company lawfully established in Vietnam and wishes to receive the transfer of
all Assets from Party A to serve the needs of Party B, in accordance with the provisions of
Vietnamese law.

After discussion and mutual agreement, the Parties hereby agree to enter into this Contract with
the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Contract, the following words and phrases shall be understood as follows:

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

“Contract” means this Machinery and Equipment Transfer Contract, including Appendix
01 attached hereto signed by the Parties, and all other documents agreed upon by the Parties
to form an integral part of the Contract.

“Contract Appendix” means an integral and inseparable part of the Contract. Appendices
may be additionally established during the course of the Contract performance.

“Assets” means the assets transferred by Party A to Party B as detailed in Article 2.1 of
this Contract.

“Asset Handover Minute” means a minute confirming that Party A has transferred the
Assets to Party B, which is established by both Party A and Party B.

“Contract Value” means the value determined in accordance with the provisions of Article
2.2 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF THE CONTRACT

2.3.

2.4,

Subject Matter of the Contract

Party A agrees to transfer and Party B agrees to receive the transfer of all Assets as detailed
in the list in Appendix 01 of this Contract.

For the avoidance of doubt, this Contract sets forth the principles for the transfer of Assets.
Depending on each case, the Parties may enter into separate contracts for each Asset in
accordance with the law and requirements of competent state authorities (if necessary). The
timing for signing each asset purchase agreement shall be discussed and mutually agreed
upon by the Parties. Any contracts arising from this Contract must comply with and be
consistent with the terms and conditions agreed herein.

Total Contract Value

The Total Contract Value is: 3.600.000.000 VND (In words: Three billion six hundred
million Vietnam Dong).

Details of the Asset Value specified in Article 2.1 of this Contract are set forth in Appendix
01 attached hereto.



The unit price of the assets includes Value Added Tax (VAT) but excludes any other costs.

ARTICLE 3. TIME AND LOCATION OF ASSET HANDOVER

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

Estimated Asset Handover Date: Within 09 months from the date of signing this Contract.
The specific handover time shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties.

Asset Handover Location: At Green Logistics Center One Member Limited Liability
Company.

At the time of Asset handover, the Parties shall establish an Asset Handover Minute signed
by the authorized representatives of both Parties.

ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT METHOD

4.3.

4.4.

Payment method: Party B shall pay Party A by bank transfer to Party A's bank account
information specified in the preamble of this Contract.

Expected payment schedule: Party B may pay Party A in multiple instaliments, but the
payment deadline shall be no later than 30 days from the date of Asset handover. Party B
shall have the right to inspect the quantity, types, and condition of the Assets before making
payment.

ARTICLE 5. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY A

5.11.

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

To warrant that all transferred Assets are under the legal ownership of Party A and are not
subject to any disputes or claims by any other third party.

To request Party B to make payments in full and on time in accordance with the provisions
of the Contract.

To hand over and transfer the Assets to Party B in the correct quantity, type, and condition,
at the time and location as stipulated in this Contract.

To appoint representatives to coordinate with Party B during the Asset handover process
and to collaborate with Party B in establishing the Asset Handover Minute.

At its own expense, to be solely responsible for the preservation, safety, and security of the
Assets until the time Party A has completed the handover of the Assets to Party B.

Party A undertakes to bear full responsibility toward Party B and/or any Third Party for
any damages arising from the Assets of Party A being defective, faulty, or failing to meet
requirements regarding quantity, type, or condition.

At the request of Party B, Party A shall, at its own expense, be responsible for repairing,
rectifying, or taking appropriate remedial measures for any Assets that fail to meet the
requirements regarding quantity, type, or condition as stipulated in this Contract.

To hand over and transfer to Party B full and detailed information and instructions related
to the transport, preservation, operation, use, warranty, and maintenance of the Assets; to
appoint technical personnel to the Asset site to provide direct support and guidance to Party
B during the Asset transfer process.



5.19.

5.20.

To carry out procedures to support Party B in registering the ownership of the assets in
accordance with the provisions of law.

To exercise other rights and perform other obligations in accordance with the Contract and
the provisions of law.

ARTICLE 6. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY B

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

6.18.

To request Party A to deliver the Assets in the correct quantity, type, condition, schedule,
and location as stipulated in this Contract.

To inspect the quantity, specifications, quality, and condition of the Assets handed over at
the time of delivery by the Parties.

To refuse to accept the Assets if the delivered Assets are not consistent with the provisions
of this Contract.

To notify and request Party A to repair, rectify, or take appropriate remedial measures for
any defects/damages of the Assets (if any).

To suspend any payments to Party A in the event that the valid Assets have not been
transferred in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.

To appoint representatives to coordinate with Party A during the Asset handover process
and to collaborate with Party A in establishing the Asset Handover Minute.

To make payments in full and on time to Party A in accordance with the provisions of this
Contract.

At its own expense, to carry out procedures to complete the registration of ownership of
the Assets in accordance with the provisions of law.

To exercise other rights and perform other obligations in accordance with the Contract and
the provisions of law..

ARTICLE 7. FORCE MAJEURE

7.5.

7.6.

Force Majeure Event is understood as events that are unforeseeable, unavoidable, beyond
the control of the Parties, and prevent the Parties from performing their obligations under
this Contract. Force majeure events include, but are not limited to, epidemics, fires,
explosions, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, or other natural disasters; states of emergency,
riots, insurrections, wars, and national economic crises; changes in law and state policies;
system failures, fiber optic cable cuts, loss of connection signals, or breaches of the Parties'
networks; or other events occurring that a Party cannot control or prevent and which are
the cause leading to the failure of the affected Party to perform its obligations..

Upon the occurrence of a force majeure event, the affected Party must immediately notify
the other Party of the event, its duration, and its expected consequences; the Parties are
obligated to discuss and coordinate with each other in full responsibility to implement
reasonable remedial measures to mitigate the consequences.

ARTICLE 8. PENALTIES FOR BREACH AND COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGES



8.5.  Either Party shall be deemed to be in breach of the Contract if it violates the law to the
extent that it is prohibited from doing business under legal regulations, or fails to strictly
comply with any agreement in this Contract.

8.6.  Inthe event that a Party breaches the Contract, the aggrieved Party shall have the right to
apply one or all of the following measures concurrently:

(g) To unilaterally terminate the Contract in accordance with Article 9 of this Contract;

(h) To impose a penalty for breach at a rate of 8% of the value of the breached contractual
obligation. In this case, the Parties agree that, 8% of the value of the breached
contractual obligation.

(i) To request the breaching Party to compensate for actual damages arising from the
breaches caused by the breaching Party to the aggrieved Party.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree that the breaching Party is obliged to pay the
penalty/compensation to the aggrieved Party within the time limit requested by the aggrieved
Party.

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT
The Contract shall be terminated in the following cases:

9.7.  The Parties have fulfilled all their obligations and responsibilities under this Contract, or
the Parties have entered into separate contracts to transfer all Assets in accordance with
Appendix 01 of this Contract.

9.8.  The Parties agree to terminate this Contract (in which case, this Contract shall terminate in
accordance with such termination agreement);

9.9. A Party unilaterally terminates the Contract due to a breach by the other Party.

If either Party breaches the Contract, the aggrieved Party shall have the right to unilaterally
terminate the Contract by providing at least 05 (five) days' prior written notice to the other
Party before the time of termination. In such case, the aggrieved Party shall be entitled to
exercise Article 8.2 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 10. CONFIDENTIALITY

3. The Parties shall maintain confidentiality and shall not disclose any information relating to this
Contract and any information received during the performance of the Contract and after its
termination, except for:

(e) As required by Vietnamese law or at the request of a competent Vietnamese state
authority;

U] In accordance with the agreement between the Two Parties.

4. The Parties commit not to use the information provided by the other Party for any purpose other
than the purposes agreed upon in this Contract, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.

ARTICLE 11. GENERAL PROVISIONS
11.13. This Contract shall be governed by the laws of Vietnam.



11.14.

11.15.

11.16.

11.17.

11.18.

Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Contract, or in the event of a breach
by either Party, shall be settled through negotiation. In the event that a settlement cannot
be reached through negotiation, the Parties agree to submit the dispute to the competent
People's Court in Hai Phong City for resolution. The Court's decision shall be final and
binding upon both Parties, and all costs shall be borne by the breaching Party.

Any amendments or supplements to this Contract shall only be effective if they are agreed
upon by both Parties and made in writing.

All notices, requests, or communications relating to this Contract and its Appendices (if
any) between the Parties (“Notices”) must be made in writing in Vietnamese and sent to
the addresses of the Parties as specified at the beginning of this Contract.

Neither Party may assign or transfer this Contract or any rights and obligations related to
this Contract to any Third Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.

This Contract shall take effect from the date of signing and is made in 02 (two) original
copies in Vietnamese with equal legal validity. Each Party shall keep 01 (one) copy for
implementation.

In witness whereof, based on mutual understanding and trust, the legal representatives of
the Parties have executed this Contract on the date first written above.

REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY A REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY B
(signed and sealed) (signed and sealed)
Director Director

Le Quang Huy Dong Trung Hai



APPENDIX 01: LIST OF ASSETS

No ASSET NAME QUANTITY | TOTAL AMOUNT
1 | Hydraulic Scissor Lift Table A688FHE 37 999.000.000
2 | Industrial Dehumidifier 15 405.000.000
3 | Server System 03 114.000.000
4 | Electrical Infrastructure System 01 484.000.000
5 ﬁ#g;triﬁgfulre Telecommunications  Network 01 1.946.000.000
6 | Office Container 01 20.000.000
7 | Operational Machinery and Equipment System 01 332.000.000

Total 3.600.000.000




VSC GREEN LOGISTICS SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence — Freedom — Happiness
—-0llo--- -—0lo-—
No.: 07/2025/NQ-HPQT Hai Phong, August 23rd, 2025
RESOLUTION

Re: Approving the asset purchase transaction with a related party — Green Star Shipping One
Member Limited Liability Company

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Pursuant to:
+ Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and its guiding documents;
+ Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019 and its guiding

documents;

* The Charter of Organization and Operation of VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock
Company (“GIC™);

» General Meeting of Shareholders' Resolution No. 01/2025/NQ-DHDCP dated March 10,
2025:

» Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting dated August 23, 2025,

RESOLVES:
Article 1: Approve the policy to sign an asset acquisition contract with a related party as follows:
+ Transaction Party: Green Star Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company (“GSL™).
GSL is a related party of GIC's major shareholder — Vietnam Container Shipping Joint
Stock Corporation.
« Estimated Value: 49,600,000,000 VND (In words: Forty-nine billion, six hundred million
Vietnamese Dong).
= Asset groups expected for the transaction:
o Means of transport;
o Machinery and equipment.
Article 2: Assign and authorize the Director of the Company to hire a valuation unit (if necessary),
negotiate specific contents, sign purchase and sale contracts, dossiers/documents for declaration
and payment of taxes, fees, and charges related to the transfer of ownership; and other necessary
relevant documents in accordance with the law and regulations of competent state agencies.
Article 3: This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing. The Board of Directors, Director,
and relevant departments and individuals are responsible for implementing this Resolution in
accordance with the law and the Company's Charter./.

Recipients: LQF THE BOARD OF
- As per Article 3 (for implementation); ' 'tm:\

- BOD, Board of Supervisors, Information
Disclosure;
- Archives, BOD Secretary.
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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
HAI PHONG CITY Independence - Freedom — Happiness
BUSINESS REGISTRATIONAND e
ENTERPRISE MANAGEMENT OFFICE-

ENTERPRISE REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE
ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
Enterprise Code: 0200468606
First registration: June 14, 2002
14th amended registration: August 05, 2025
1. Company name
Company name in Vietnamese: CONG TY MOT THANH VIEN VAN TAI BIEN NGOI SAO
XANH
Company name in foreign language: GREEN STAR LINES ONE MEMBER LIMITED
COMPANY
Abbreviated company name: GS LINES
2. Headquarters address
No. 05 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam
Telephone: 0225.3836025 Fax: 0225.3836722
Email: Website:
3. Charter capital: 76.000.000.000 VND
In words: Seventy-six billion dong
4. Owner information
Organization name: VIETNAM CONTAINER SHIPPING JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
Enterprise Code/Establishment Decision No.: 0200453688
Issue date: 01/04/2002 Issued by: Hai Phong City Business Registration Office
Headquarters address: No. 11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam
5. Legal representative of the company
* Full name: DONG TRUNG HAI Gender: Male
Date of birth: 28/12/1977 Nationality: Vietnam
Personal Identification No.: 031077008290
Title: Director
Contact address: No. 12 Hoang Van Thu Street, Hong Bang Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam

FOR THE HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
DEPUTY HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
(Signed and Sealed)

Doan Van Sang



EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY TRANSFER CONTRACT
No: 169/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC

Between
GREEN STAR SHIPPING ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

And

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, August 29, 2025



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

EQUIPMENT AND MACHINERY TRANSFER CONTRACT
No: 169/HPCNTS/GSL-GIC

- Pursuant to the Civil Code No. 91/2015/QH13 approved by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 24, 2015, and its guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Commercial Law No. 36/2005/QH11 approved by the National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietham on June 14, 2005, and its guiding documents;

- Based on the needs and agreements of both parties.

This Equipment and Machinery Transfer Contract is entered into on August 29, 2025, by and
between:

TRANSFEROR: GREEN STAR SHIPPING ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Tax Code: : 0200468606

Address: : No. 5 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam

Telephone: : 0225.3836025 Fax: 0225.3836722

Represented by : Mr. Tran Huu Thang (Under Authorization No. 03/2025-UQ dated August
25, 2025)

Position : Deputy Director

Bank Account : 0031000002566 at Vietcombank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party A)

TRANSFEREE: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Tax Code: : 0201768923

Address: : Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone: : 0225.2838666 Fax:

Represented by : Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Position : Director

Bank Account : 0031000285868 at Vietcombank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party B)



Party A and Party B are hereinafter referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties"
depending on the context.

Whereas:

5. Party A is the legal owner of all machinery and equipment (“Assets”) as specified and
listed in Appendix 01 — List of Assets and Asset Values attached to this Contract, and Party
A wishes to transfer all such assets to Party B.

6. Party B is a company legally established in Vietnam and wishes to receive the transfer of
all Assets from Party A to serve its needs, in accordance with Vietnamese law.

After discussion and consensus, the Parties agree to sign this Contract with the following terms
and conditions:

PIEU 1: PINH NGHIA VA GIAI THICH
In this Contract, the following terms and phrases shall be understood as follows:

1.1. “Contract” means this Equipment and Machinery Transfer Contract, including all attached
appendices signed by the Parties and all other documents agreed upon by the Parties to form
part of the Contract.

1.2. “Contract Appendix” is an integral part of the Contract. Appendices may be established
additionally during the performance of the Contract.

1.3. “Assets” means the assets transferred by Party A to Party B according to the details in Article
2.1 of this Contract.

1.4. “Asset Handover Minutes” means the document confirming that Party A has delivered the
Assets to Party B, prepared by both Parties.

1.5. “Contract Value” means the value determined according to Article 2.2 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 2: CONTENT OF THE CONTRACT
2.1. Object of the Contract

Party A agrees to transfer and Party B agrees to receive the transfer of all Assets as detailed
in Appendix 01 of this Contract.

To clarify, this Contract sets out the principles for the asset transfer. Depending on specific
cases, the Parties may sign separate contracts for each Asset in accordance with the law
and requirements of competent state agencies (if necessary).

2.2.Total Contract Value

- Total Contract Value is: VND 600,000,000 (In words: Six hundred million Vietnamese
Dong). The details of the Asset values are specified in Appendix 01 attached hereto.

- The Asset unit price includes Value Added Tax (VAT) but excludes any other costs.
ARTICLE 3: TIME AND LOCATION OF ASSET HANDOVER

3.1. Expected Handover Time: Within 09 months from the date of signing this Contract. The
specific handover time shall be agreed upon by the Parties

3.2.Handover Location: At VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company and/or another location as
agreed in writing by the Parties.



3.3.At the time of handover, the Parties shall establish Asset Handover Minutes signed by the
legal representatives of both Parties..

ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT METHOD

4.1.Payment Method: Party B shall pay Party A via bank transfer to Party A's bank account
mentioned at the beginning of this Contract.

4.2 .Expected Payment Deadline: Party B may pay Party A in multiple installments, but the final
payment deadline shall be no later than 30 days from the date of Asset handover. Party B has
the right to inspect the quantity, type, and condition of the Assets before making payment.

PIEU 5. QUYEN VA NGHIA VU CUA BEN A

5.1. Commit that all transferred Assets are under the legal ownership of Party A, free from
disputes or claims by any third party.

5.2. Request Party B to make full and timely payments as stipulated in the Contract.

5.3. Hand over and transfer Assets in the correct quantity, type, condition, time, and location to
Party B.

5.4. Appoint a representative to coordinate with Party B during the handover process and jointly
establish the Asset Handover Minutes.

5.5. At its own expense, be responsible for the preservation, safety, and security of the Assets
until the completion of the handover to Party B.

5.6. Assume full responsibility to Party B and/or Third Parties in case of damages arising from
defects, errors, or non-compliance regarding quantity, type, or condition of the Assets.

5.7. At Party B's request and at its own expense, repair, rectify, or take appropriate measures for
all Assets that do not meet the requirements specified in this Contract.

5.8. Provide Party B with full details, information, and instructions related to transport, storage,
operation, use, warranty, and maintenance of the Assets.

Dispatch technical personnel to the site to assist Party B during the transfer.

5.9. Perform procedures to support Party B in registering asset ownership as per legal
regulations.

5.10. Exercise other rights and obligations under the Contract and the law.

ARTICLE 6: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY B

6.1. Request Party A to deliver Assets in the correct quantity, type, condition, schedule, and
location as stipulated.

6.2. Inspect the quantity, specifications, quality, and condition of the Assets at the time of
handover.

6.3. Refuse to receive Assets if they do not comply with the Contract.

6.4. Notify and request Party A to repair/rectify or handle any defects/damages of the Assets.
6.5. Suspend any payments to Party A if the valid transfer of Assets has not been received as per
the Contract.

6.6. Appoint a representative to coordinate with Party A during the handover and joint
establishment of the Asset Handover Minutes.

6.7. Make full and timely payments to Party A.

6.8. At its own expense, perform procedures to complete the registration of asset ownership.
6.9. Exercise other rights and obligations under the Contract and the law.



ARTICLE 7: FORCE MAJEURE

7.1. Force Majeure events are understood as unforeseen, unavoidable events beyond the control
of the Parties that prevent them from performing their obligations.These include but are not
limited to epidemics, fires, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, natural disasters; states of emergency,
riots, wars, national economic crises, changes in state laws and policies; system failures, fiber
optic cable cuts, loss of connection signals, network breaches.

7.2. Upon occurrence, the affected Party must immediately notify the other Party of the event,
duration, and expected consequences. Both Parties are obligated to discuss and coordinate to
implement reasonable remedial measures to minimize consequences.

ARTICLE 8: PENALTIES AND DAMAGES

8.1. A Party is considered in breach of the Contract if it violates the law to the extent of being
prohibited from doing business or fails to comply with any agreement in this Contract.

8.2. In case of breach, the aggrieved Party may apply one or all of the following:

() Unilaterally terminate the Contract according to Article 9;

(b) Impose a penalty of 8% of the value of the breached contractual obligation;

(c) Request the breaching Party to compensate for actual damages.

The breaching Party is obligated to pay the penalty/compensation within the period requested by
the aggrieved Party.

ARTICLE 9: TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

The Contract terminates in the following cases:

9.1. Both Parties have completed all obligations and responsibilities, or have signed separate
contracts for the transfer of all Assets in Appendix 01.

9.2. Parties agree to terminate the Contract in writing.

9.3. One party unilaterally terminates the Contract due to a breach by the other Party.

If one of the two Parties breaches the Contract, the aggrieved Party has the right to unilaterally
terminate the Contract by sending a written notice to the other Party at least 05 (five) days prior
to the time of termination. In this case, the aggrieved Party has the right to implement Article 8.2
of this Contract.

ARTICLE 10: CONFIDENTIALITY

10.1. Parties shall keep confidential and not disclose any information related to this Contract or
information received during its performance and after termination, except:

() As required by Vietnamese law or competent state agencies;

(b) By mutual agreement between the Parties.

10.2. Both Parties commit not to use information provided by the other Party for any purpose
other than those agreed upon in this Contract.

ARTICLE 11: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Dudi day 1a ban dich tiéng Anh cho cac diéu khoan chung ctia Hop ddng, duoc tach dong rd rang
theo yéu cau cta ban:

11.1. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Vietnam.
11.2. If any dispute arises or a Party breaches the Contract, both Parties shall resolve it through
negotiation.

In case negotiation fails, the Parties agree to submit the case to a competent People's Court in
Hai Phong City for resolution.



The Court's decision shall be final and binding on both Parties; all costs and expenses shall be
borne by the breaching Party.

11.3. Any amendments or supplements to this Contract shall only be effective when agreed upon
by both Parties and made in writing.

11.4. All notices, requests, or communications related to this Contract and the Contract
Appendices (if any) between the two Parties (“Notices”) must be made in writing in Vietnamese
and sent to the addresses of the Parties as stated at the beginning of this Contract.

11.5. Neither Party has the right to assign or transfer this Contract or any rights and obligations
related to this Contract to any Third Party without the prior written consent of the other Party.
11.6. This Contract takes effect from the date of signing and is made in 02 (two) original copies
in Vietnamese with equal legal validity. Each Party shall keep 01 (one) copy for implementation.
In witness whereof, with mutual understanding and trust, the legal representatives of the Parties
have signed this Contract on the date, month, and year written at the beginning of the Contract.

REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY A REPRESENTATIVE OF PARTY B
Deputy Director Director
(signed and sealed) (signed and sealed)

Tran Huu Thang Tran Huu Thang



APPENDIX 01
LIST OF ASSETS AND TRANSFER VALUES

. e .- Quantity
No | Asset Name, Condition, Specifications (System) Value (VND)
1 | Workshop repair equipment system 01 397.000.000
2 | Office equipment system 01 203.000.000
Total value 02 600.000.000




VEHICLE TRANSFER AGREEMENT
No: 170/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC.

Between
GREEN STAR SHIPPING ONE MEMBER COMPANY LIMITED

And

VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, August 29, 2025



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

VEHICLE TRANSFER AGREEMENT

No: 170/HDCNTS/GSL-GIC

- Pursuant to the Civil Code No. 91/2015/QH13 approved by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 24, 2015, and its guiding documents;

- Pursuant to the Commercial Law No. 36/2005/QH11 approved by the National Assembly
of the Socialist Republic of Vietham on June 14, 2005, and its guiding documents;

- Based on the needs and agreements of both parties.

This Equipment and Machinery Transfer Contract is entered into on August 29, 2025, by and
between:

TRANSFEROR: GREEN STAR SHIPPING ONE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

Tax Code: : 0200468606

Address: : No. 5 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen Ward, Hai Phong City, Vietnam

Telephone: : 0225.3836025 Fax: 0225.3836722

Represented by : Mr. Tran Huu Thang (Under Authorization No. 03/2025-UQ dated August
25, 2025)

Position : Deputy Director

Bank Account : 0031000002566 at Vietcombank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party A)

TRANSFEREE: VSC GREEN LOGISTICS JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Tax Code: : 0201768923

Address: : Lot CC2 - MP Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Dong Hai Ward, Hai Phong
City, Vietnam

Telephone: : 0225.2838666 Fax:

Represented by : Mr. Dong Trung Hai

Position : Director

Bank Account : 0031000285868 at Vietcombank — Hai Phong Branch

(Hereinafter referred to as Party B)

Party A and Party B are hereinafter referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties"
depending on the context.
Whereas:



1. Party A is the legal owner of all vehicles (“Assets”) as specified and listed in Appendix
01: List of Assets and Asset Values attached to this Agreement, and Party A wishes to
transfer all such assets to Party B.

2. Party B is a company legally established in Vietnam and wishes to acquire all Assets
from Party A for its operational needs, in accordance with the provisions of Vietnamese
law.

After mutual discussion and agreement, the Parties hereby agree to enter into this Agreement
with the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Agreement, the following terms and phrases shall be understood as follows:

1.1. ""Agreement’ means this Vehicle Transfer Agreement, including all appendices attached
hereto signed by the Parties and all other documents agreed upon by the Parties to form part of
the Agreement.

1.2. ""Appendix' means an integral part of the Agreement. Appendices may be supplemented
during the course of the Agreement's performance.

1.3. ""Assets™ means the assets transferred by Party A to Party B according to the detailed
information in Article 2.1 of this Agreement.

1.4. " Asset Handover Minutes' means the minutes confirming that Party A has transferred the
Assets to Party B, as established by both Party A and Party B.

1.5. "Contract Value™ means the value determined in accordance with the provisions of Article
2.2 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

2.1. Subject Matter of the Agreement

Party A agrees to transfer, and Party B agrees to receive the transfer of all Assets, including: 123
tractor trucks and 123 semi-trailers (container carriers) as detailed in Appendix 01 of this
Agreement.

For the avoidance of doubt, this Agreement sets out the principles for the transfer of Assets.
Depending on specific cases, the two Parties may sign separate contracts for each Asset in
accordance with the law and the requirements of competent state authorities (if necessary). The
timing for signing each individual asset sale contract shall be discussed and agreed upon by both
Parties. Any contracts arising from this Agreement must comply with and be consistent with the
terms and conditions agreed herein.

2.2. Total Contract Value

e The Total Contract Value is: 49,000,000,000 VND (In words: Forty-nine billion
Vietnamese Dong sharp). The detailed value of the Assets specified in Article 2.1 of this
Agreement is provided in Appendix 01 attached hereto.

e The unit price of the Assets includes Value Added Tax (VAT) but does not include any
other costs.

ARTICLE 3: TIME AND LOCATION OF ASSET HANDOVER

3.1. Expected time of Asset handover: Within 09 months from the date of signing this Agreement.
The specific handover time shall be agreed upon by both Parties.

3.2. Location of Asset handover: At VSC Green Logistics Joint Stock Company and/or another
location as agreed in writing by both Parties.



3.3. At the time of Asset handover, the Parties shall prepare an Asset Handover Minutes signed by
the legal representatives of both Parties.

ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT METHOD

4.1. Payment Method: Party B shall pay Party A via bank transfer to Party A's bank account
information provided at the beginning of this Agreement.

4.2. Expected Payment Schedule: Party B may pay Party A in multiple installments, provided that
the payment deadline is no later than 30 days from the date of Asset handover. Party B reserves
the right to inspect the quantity, type, and condition of the Assets before making payment.
ARTICLE 5: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY A

5.1. Undertake that all transferred Assets are under the legal ownership of Party A, and are not
subject to any disputes or claims by any third party.

5.2. Request Party B to make full and timely payments in accordance with the provisions of the
Agreement.

5.3. Hand over and transfer the Assets to Party B in the correct quantity, type, condition, time,
and location as specified in this Agreement.

5.4. Appoint representatives to coordinate with Party B during the Asset handover process and
work with Party B to establish the Asset Handover Minutes.

5.5. At its own expense, be responsible for the preservation and security of the Assets until the
time Party A completes the handover of the Assets to Party B.

5.6. Party A undertakes to bear full responsibility toward Party B and/or Third Parties in the
event of any damage arising from defects, errors, or failure to ensure the quantity, type, or
condition of Party A's Assets.

5.7. At the request of Party B, Party A shall, at its own expense, be responsible for repairing,
rectifying, or taking appropriate measures for all Assets that do not meet the requirements for
quantity, type, or condition as prescribed in this Agreement.

5.8. Hand over and transfer to Party B full and detailed information and instructions related to
the transport, preservation, operation, use, warranty, and maintenance of the Assets; appoint
qualified personnel to the Asset site to support and guide Party B during the Asset transfer
process.

5.9. Perform procedures to support Party B in registering ownership of the assets in accordance
with legal regulations.

5.10. Exercise other rights and perform other obligations under the Agreement and the provisions
of the law.

ARTICLE 6: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTY B

6.1. Request Party A to deliver the Assets in the correct quantity, type, condition, schedule, and
location as specified in this Agreement.

6.2. Inspect the quantity, specifications, quality, and condition of the Assets at the time of
handover between the two Parties.

6.3. Refuse to accept the Assets if the delivered Assets do not comply with the provisions of this
Agreement.

6.4. Notify and request Party A to repair, rectify, or take appropriate measures for any defects or
damages to the Assets (if any).



6.5. Suspend any payments to Party A if the valid transfer of Assets has not been received in
accordance with this Agreement.

6.6. Appoint representatives to coordinate with Party A during the Asset handover process and
work with Party A to establish the Asset Handover Minutes.

6.7. Make full and timely payments to Party A in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement.

6.8. At its own expense, perform the procedures to complete the registration of ownership for the
Assets in accordance with legal regulations.

6.9. Exercise other rights and perform other obligations under the Agreement and the provisions
of the law.

ARTICLE 7: FORCE MAJEURE

7.1. Force Majeure Event means any event which is unforeseeable, unavoidable, beyond the
control of the Parties, and which prevents the Parties from performing their obligations under
this Agreement. Force majeure events include, but are not limited to, epidemics, fires,
explosions, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, or other natural disasters; states of emergency, riots,
civil unrest, wars, and national economic crises; changes in law and state policies; system
failures, fiber optic cable cuts, loss of connection signals, or breaches of the Parties' networks; or
other events occurring beyond a Party's control or prevention that cause the affected Party to fail
in performing its obligations.

7.2. When a force majeure event occurs, the affected Party must immediately notify the other
Party of the event, its duration, and expected consequences. The Parties shall have the obligation
to discuss and coordinate with each other, exercising full responsibility to implement reasonable
remedial measures to minimize the consequences.

ARTICLE 8: PENALTIES FOR BREACH AND DAMAGES

8.1. Either Party shall be deemed to be in breach of the Agreement if it violates the law to the
extent that it is prohibited from conducting business under legal regulations, or fails to strictly
comply with any agreement set forth in this Agreement.

8.2. In the event of a breach of Agreement by one Party, the aggrieved Party shall have the right
to apply one or all of the following measures simultaneously:

() Unilaterally terminate the Agreement in accordance with Article 9 of this Agreement;

(b) Impose a penalty for breach at a rate of 8% of the value of the breached portion of the
Agreement's obligations. In this case, the Parties agree that the penalty shall be 8% of the value
of the breached portion of the Agreement's obligations.

(c) Request the breaching Party to compensate for actual damages resulting from the violations
caused by the breaching Party to the aggrieved Party.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree that the breaching Party is obligated to pay the
ARTICLE 9: TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

The Agreement shall terminate in the following cases:

9.1. The Parties have fulfilled all of their obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement,
or the Parties have entered into separate contracts to transfer all Assets as specified in Appendix
01 of this Agreement.

9.2. The Parties mutually agree to terminate this Agreement (in which case, this Agreement shall
terminate in accordance with such termination agreement).



9.3. One Party unilaterally terminates the Agreement due to a breach by the other Party.

If either Party breaches the Agreement, the aggrieved Party has the right to unilaterally terminate
the Agreement by sending a written notice to the other Party at least 05 (five) days prior to the
termination date. In such case, the aggrieved Party is entitled to exercise the provisions of Article
8.2 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10: CONFIDENTIALITY

10.1. The Parties shall keep confidential and not disclose any information related to this
Agreement or any information received during the performance of the Agreement and after the
termination thereof, except:

(a) As required by Vietnamese law or at the request of a competent Vietnamese state authority;
(b) As otherwise agreed between the two Parties.

10.2. Both Parties undertake not to use the information provided by the other Party for any
purpose other than the purposes agreed upon in this Agreement, unless the Parties agree
otherwise.

ARTICLE 11. GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Vietnam.

11.2. In the event of a dispute or a breach of the Agreement by either Party, the two Parties shall
resolve it through negotiation. If negotiation fails, the Parties agree to submit the case to a
competent People's Court in Hai Phong City for resolution. The Court's decision shall be final
and binding on both Parties, and all costs shall be borne by the breaching Party.

11.3. Any amendments or supplements to this Agreement shall only be valid when mutually
agreed upon by both Parties and made in writing.

11.4. All notices, requests, or communications related to this Agreement and its Appendices (if
any) between the two Parties (“Notices”) must be made in writing in Vietnamese and sent to the
addresses of the Parties as stated at the beginning of this Agreement.

11.5. Neither Party shall have the right to assign or transfer this Agreement or the rights and
obligations related to this Agreement to any Third Party without the prior written consent of the
other Party.

11.6. This Agreement shall take effect from the date of signing and is made in 02 (two) original
copies in Vietnamese with equal legal validity. Each Party shall keep 01 (one) copy for
implementation.

In witness whereof, the legal representatives of the Parties have executed this Agreement on the
day, month, and year recorded at the beginning of the Agreement.

FOR PARTY A FOR PARTY B
Deputy Director Director
(Signed and sealed) (Signed and sealed)

Tran Huu Thang Dong Trung Hai



APPENDIX 01
LIST OF ASSETS AND SALE VALUES

No Vehicle Type ((\glgﬁirétlg Value (VND)) Attached documents
SEMI-TRAILER (CONTAINER
| CARRIER) 123 11.200.000.000
- . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). trailer registration
1 \B(L:;dc; fcnlwz/rlﬁ%acture' 2009 3 90,000,000 - Certificate of technical safety and
Oriain: China ' ' environmental protection
gin: ' inspection for motor vehicles.
- . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). trailer registration
Brand: JUPITER. - L
2 Vear of manufacture: 2008 2 60,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and
Oriain: China ' ' environmental protection
gin. ' inspection for motor vehicles.
- . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). trailer registration
Brand: JUPITER. - L
3 Year of manufacture: 2010 2 80,000,000 - Certificate of technical safety and
Oriain: China ' ' environmental protection
gin- ' inspection for motor vehicles.
— . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). trailer registration
Brand: MINGWEL. '
4 2 80,000,000 - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2010. . .
Origin: China environmental protection
gin- ' inspection for motor vehicles.
_— . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). trailer registration
Brand: CIMC. '
5 7 350,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2012. . .
Origin: China environmental protection
gin- ' inspection for motor vehicles.
- Certificate of trailer and semi-
. i i trailer registration.
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). - Certificate of technical safety and
6 Brand: CHIENYOU. 1 55,000,000 environmental protection

Year of manufacture: 2013.
Origin: Vietnam.

inspection for motor vehicles.




Used semi-trailer (container carrier).

Brand: Hoang Sa.

- Certificate of trailer and semi-
trailer registration.

7 2 120,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2015. . .
- . environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
- . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . .
Brand: Hoang Sa trailer registration.
8 1 60,000,000 - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2016. . . Y
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . ) .
inspection for motor vehicles.
- . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . .
trailer registration.
9 Brand: KCT. 12 720,000,000 Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2016. . . y
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . ) .
inspection for motor vehicles.
- . : - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). _ .
trailer registration.
Brand: Truong Sa. - .
10 7 420,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2015. . .
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
S . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . o
trailer registration.
11 Brand: KCT. 14 980,000,000 Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2017. . . y
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
S . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . . .
trailer registration.
12 Brand: KCT. 14 1,120,000,000 Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2018. . . y
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
S . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . o
trailer registration.
13 Brand: KCT. 31 2,790,000,000 Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2019. . . y
o environmental protection
Origin: Vietnam. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
L . . - Certificate of trailer and semi-
Used semi-trailer (container carrier). . o
Brand: XINHONGDONG trailer registration.
rand: . - :
14 10 900,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and

Year of manufacture: 2019.
Origin: China.

environmental protection
inspection for motor vehicles.




Used semi-trailer (container carrier).
Brand: CIMC.

- Certificate of trailer and semi-
trailer registration.

15 15 3,375,000,000 | - Certificate of technical safety and
Year of manufacture: 2021. . .
. . environmental protection
Origin: China. . . .
inspection for motor vehicles.
Il | TRACTOR TRUCK 123 37.800.000.000
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - ifi f technical saf n
1 d d eightline 4 200,000,000 Ce_rn icate of tec |da safety and
Origin: USA. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2005. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - ifi f technical saf n
) d d eightline ) 140,000,000 Ce_rtl icate of tec |da safety and
Origin: USA. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2006. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - ifi f technical saf n
3 d d eightline 21 1.890,000.000 Ce_rn icate of tec |da safety and
Origin: USA. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2007. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - Certificate of technical safety and
4 .. 5 600,000,000 . .
Origin: USA. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2008. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: International. - Certificate of technical safety and
5 .. . 8 1,200,000,000 . .
Origin: Mexico. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2010. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: International. - Certificate of technical safety and
6 .. . 15 2,850,000,000 . .
Origin: Mexico. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2012. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - Certificate of technical safety and
7 3 570,000,000 . .
Year of manufacture: 2012. environmental protection
Origin: USA inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: International. - Certificate of technical safety and
8 .. . 25 5,750,000,000 . .
Origin: Mexico. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2013. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used Terberg Terminal Tractor.
9 | Year of manufacture: 2017. 5 1,500,000,000 | - Certificate of vehicle registration.

Origin: Malaysia.




- Certificate of technical safety and
environmental protection
inspection for motor vehicles.

Used tractor truck.
Brand: International.

- Certificate of vehicle registration.
- Certificate of technical safety and

10 .. . 20 5,400,000,000 . .
Origin: Mexico. environmental protection
Year of manufacture: 2014. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - Certificate of technical safety and
11 g 4 4,720,000,000 . . 4
Year of manufacture: 2016. environmental protection
Origin: USA. inspection for motor vehicles.
Used tractor truck. - Certificate of vehicle registration.
Brand: Freightliner. - Certifi f technical safety an
1 and: Freightliner 1 12.980,000,000 Ce_rt cate of tec c_a safety and
Year of manufacture: 2016. environmental protection
Origin: Mexico. inspection for motor vehicles.
Total 49,000,000,000




